
 
 
 
 
 
 

Six Mile Creek 
Community Development District 

 
 

October 20, 2021 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 



 Six Mile Creek  
  Community Development District 

  475 West Town Place 
             Suite 114  

  St. Augustine, Florida 32092 
www.SixMileCreekCDD.com 

              
  

October 15, 2021 
 
 
 
Board of Supervisors 
Six Mile Creek Community Development District 
 
Dear Board Members: 
 
The Meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Six Mile Creek Community Development 
District will be held Wednesday, October 20, 2021 at 2:00 p.m. at the Renaissance World Golf 
Village Resort, 500 South Legacy Trail, St. Augustine, Florida 32092.   
  
 
 I. Roll Call 
 
 II. Audience Comments (regarding agenda items listed below) 
 
 III. Affidavit of Publication  
 
 IV. Approval of Minutes of the September 15, 2021 Meeting 
 
 V. Consideration of Construction Proposals for Phase II and East Parcel, Phase 2 
 
 VI. Public Hearing Related to Series 2021 Bonds, Resolution 2022-01 
 
 VII. Ratification of Resolution 2022-01, Setting Public Hearing Regarding Boundary 

Amendment 
 
 VIII. Ratification of Audit Engagement Letter with Grau & Associates 
 
 IX. Consideration of Hold Harmless Agreement with UPS 
 
 X. Discussion of Process to Apply for Golf Cart Community Designation and Estimated 

Costs/Funding Source to Meet Applicable Standards 
 
 XI. Other Business 
 



 XII. Staff Reports 
  A. Attorney  
   
  B. Engineer  
   1. Consideration of Requisitions 275-276 (2016A Bond Series) 
 
   2. Ratification of Requisition No. 124 (2020 Bond Series Account) 
 
   3. Consideration of Requisitions 125-132 (2020 Bond Series Account) 
 
   4. Consideration of Requisitions 70-80 (2021 Bond Series Account) 
 
   5. Ratification of Work Authorization No. 57 TrailMark Drive (Phases 9 and 

11) Landscape Architectural Services 
    
  C. Manager  
 
  D. Operations / Amenity Manager  
   1. Report 
 
 XIII. Supervisor’s Requests and Audience Comments 
 
 XIV. Financial Reports 
  A. Balance Sheet as of September 30, 2021 and Statement of Revenues and 

Expenses for the Period Ending September 30, 2021 
 
  B. Assessment Receipt Schedule 
 
  C. Check Register 
 
 XV. Next Scheduled Meeting – November 17, 2021 @ 2:00 p.m.  
 
 XVI. Adjournment 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



THE ST. AUGUSTINE RECORD 
Affidavit of Publication 

SIX MILE CREEK COD C/O GMS LLC 
475 WEST TOWN PLACE, STE 114 

SAINT AUGUSTINE, FL 32092 

ACCT: 15653 
AD# 0003378745-01 

PO# 

PUBLISHED EVERY MORNING SUNDAY THROUGH SATURDAY 
ST. AUGUSTINE AND ST. JOHNS COUNTY, FLORIDA 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF ST. JOHNS 

Before the undersigned authority personally appeared MELISSA 
RHrNEHART who on oath says he/she is an Employee of the St. Augustine 
Record, a daily newspaper published at St. Augustine in St. Johns County, 
Florida; that the attached copy of advertisement being a SA Legal Classified 
in the matter of SPEC ASSESSMENTS TO CHPTS 170, 190, 197 was 
published in said newspaper in the issue dated 09/22/2021, 09/29/2021. 

Affiant further says that the St. Augustine Record is a newspaper published at 
St. Augustine, in St. Johns County, Florida, and that the said newspaper 
heretofore has been continuously published in said St. Johns County, Florida 
each day and has been entered as second class mail matter at the post office in 
the City of St. Augustine, in said St. Johns County, Florida for a period of one 
year preceding the first publication of the attached copy of advertisement; and 
affiant further says the he/she has neither paid nor promised any person, firm 
or corporation any discount, rebate, commission, or refund for the purpose of 
securing this advertisement for publication in said newspaper. 

Sworn to (or affirmed) and subscribed before me by means of 

[>4 physical presence or 
[ ] online notarization 

this_ day.,._ SEP '2 9 ,2021 
' 

~----------- who is personally known to 
me or who has produced as identification 



68 I WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 29, 2021 I THE ST. AUGUSTINE RECORD 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER IMPOSITION OF SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS PURSUANT TO CHAPTERS 170, 190, AND 197 BY THE SIX MILE CREEK COMJVIUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT TO LEVY NEW ASSESSMENTS FOR THE 2021 
BONDS; NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER ADOPTION OF ASSESSMENT ROLLS PURSUANT TO SECTION 197.3632(4)(b), FLORIDA STATUTES, BY THE SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT; AND NOTICE OF BOARD 

OF SUPERVISORS MEETING 

The Board of Supervisors for the Six Mile Creek Communily Development District ("District") hereby provides notice of the following p11blic hearings and regular bo~rd meeting: 

Background 

Pb'BUE HC..RU'IG ,:5S ESSP fE, fFS ,'.:NB B0 t.'1B HEE'FRIS 
DATE: Octobcr20,202l 
TIME: 2:00 P.M. 
LOCATION: Renaissance World Golf Village Resort, 500 South Legacy Trail, St. Augustine, Floridn 320n 
(The public hearing will be conducted within the Board meeting) 

The District is an independent local unit or spccfal.-pul'J)ose government created in accordance with Chapter 190, Florida Statutes. for the pul'JlOSCs of financing, constructing, ncquiring, opcr:iling and maintaining public infrastructure improvements. The Dis\rict was established pursuant 
to Rule 42GGG•l of the Florida Land and Water Adjudicatory Commission. effective March 7, 2007 and amended August J J, 2021, and encompasses appro,dmalcly 1,288.95 acres located in SL Johns Cou111y, Florida (see below map). 

By way of background, the District previously adopted Resolutions 2007-!2. 2007-13 and 2007-08, which approved the Improvement P!o11for the Purpm;e of Speciol As.1cssmc11t Bonds dated December I, 2006 (the "Master Project Report") and the Speciol Asse.mnent Master Methodolog-y 
Report dated March 30, 2007 (the "Master Assessment Report") and levied a Master Assessment Lien on all bcnclitting property within the District. 

Subsequent to levying the Master Assessment Lien, in July 2007, the District issued its $47,000,000 in aggregate principal amount or Six Mile Creek Comrnunily Development District (St. Johns County) Caphal Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2007 (lhc •·originul Bonds"). The 
Original Bonds were issued to fund the infrastructure improvements dcscrib<:d in the Distric\'s. Supplemental Engineers Jl.eporrfr,r Series 2007 Capital Improvements dated Mny 25, 2007 (the "2007 Project Report"). which supplemented the Master Project Report. 

The Original Bonds arc secured by and repaid from non-ad valorcm special assessments imposed and levied on all specially benefited acres, parcels, lots or units within the District (lhc "Prior Assessments") based on the District's, Master Assessment Report and the Supplemental Spedal 
A~essmcnt Methodo/og-y Report, Final Numbers dated June 28, 2007 {the !'2007 Assessment Report''). 

As a result or a default in the payment of the Prior Assessments. the District bifurcated the Original Bonds (lhc ·'Bifurco.Lion") as follows: (i) :i portion of the Original Bonds in the principal amount of $J,!40,000 was exchanged for S3,140,000 in principal amount of lhc Districfs Series 
2014A Capital Improvcmcnt Revenue Bonds (the "Series 2014A Bonds"); and (ii) a portion of the Original Bonds in the principal amount of $42. 700,000 was exchanged for $42,700.000 in principal amo1mt of the District's Series 2007 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds (the ·•series 2007 
Bonds" and, together with thc Series 2014A Bonds, the' "Bifurcated Bonds~). In connection with the Bifurcation. on October 15, 2014 the District adopted Resolution 2015•04 (the "Bifurcation Assessment Resolution"), adopting the Second S1Jf!plemental Special Assessment Mc1!wdolog-y 
Rcporl/or /he Capirol lmprovemem Bonds Series 2014A and Series 2007 dated October 15. 20!4 (the "Bifurcation Assessment Report"), which created two separate assessment areas, the Series 2014A Assessment Arca and the Series 2007 Assessment Arca, for !he purpose of securing the 
Series 2014A Bonds and the Series 2007 Bonds respectively (the -Bifurcation AsscssmcnlS"). 

Subsequent to the Bifurcation, the Distdct issued its $3,165,000 Capital Improvement Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2015 (Assessment Arca ]) {the "2015 Refunding Bonds") for the purpose or refunding the Series 2014A Bonds. The District adopted Resolutions 20!5.J3 and 2015-19. 
for the purpose of restr'ucturing the Bifurcation Assessments and allocating and levying debt assessments to secure the 2015 Refunding Bonds and Lhc remaining Series 2007 Bonds. The Distr!Ct also adopted the Six Mile Creek Comnnmity Development Dist!'ict Suppfomemal Engineer's 
&port for Series 20U Capital Jmprovem&w dated November \2, 2014 (the "2014 Projcc\ Rcpor\"), which supplemented the Master Project Report and the 2007 Project Report. 

Subsequent lo the issuance of the 2015 Refunding Bonds, the District issued its $7.315.000 Capital bnprovcmcnt Revenue Bonds. Series 2016A nnd $6,720,000 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2016B (the "2016 Bonds") to finance tl1c acquisition and construction <1dditionnl 
improvements as described in the adopted Six Mile Creek Community Development Districl Supplcmenlaf Engineer's Repor, for SerieJ" 2016 Copirol Jmprovemenrs dated April 12. 2016 {the "2016 Projccl Report"). which rurtiier supplemented the Master Project Report, 2007 Project Report 
and 2014 Project Report. 

Subsequent to the issuance of the 2016 Bonds, the District issued its $10,620,000 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 20!7A (Assessment Arca 2, Phase 2) :ind $3,980,000 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2017B (Assessment Arca 2, Ph:isc 2) (the "2017 Bonds") 
to finance the :icquisition ll.l"ld construction additional improvements as dcscrib<:d in Lhc adopted Six Mile Creek Community Development District Supplcmen1al E11gineer's Reporl for Series 2017 Capilal Imprm•emel!ls dated October 27. 2017 (the "2017 Project Report'"}. which further 
supplemented the Master Project Report, 2007 Project Report, 2014 Project Report and 2016 Project Report. 

Subsequent to Lhc issuance of the 2017 Bonds. the District issued ils $7,020,000 Capital Improvement Revenue and Refunding Bonds. Series 2020 (Assessment Arca 2. Phase 3A) (lhc •·2020 Arca 2, Phase 3A Bonds") to refund certain portions of the Series 2016B Bonds and finance the 
acquisition and cons\ruction of an additional portion of the improvements as described i□ the adopted Six J"vfi/e Creek Comm1mi1y De,•e/opmen/ Dislrict Supplemenlal Enginel.'r's Report for Series 2020 Capilal Improvements dated June 2, 2020 (the ··2020 Arca 2. Phase 3A Project Report"), 
which further supplemented the Master Project Rcpon, 2007 Project Report, 2014 Project Report, 2016 Project Report and 2017 Project Report. 

Subsequent to the issuance or the 2020 Area 2, Phase JA Bonds, the District issued its $11,340,000 Ca pl Lal Improvement Rcvcuuc Bonds, Series 2021 {Asscssmcul Arcn 3, Phase ! ) (the "2021 Arca 3, Phase I Bonds") to finance the acquisition and construction of nn additional portion 
of Lhe improvements as described in the adopted Six Mile Creek Communiry Development Distrir1 Suppleme1110/ Engineer's Report for &rics 2021 Capiwl lmprovemcnls dated Junuary 19, 2021 (lhc "2021 Arca 3, Phase l Project Report"), which further supplemented the Master Project 
Report, 2007 Project Report, 2014 Project Report, 2016 Projecl Report, 2017 Project Report and 2020 Arca 2, Phase 3A Project Report. 

The District is considering the issuance of a new series of bonds {the "2021 Arca 3. Phase 2 Bonds/Arca 2, Phase 3B Boi1ds") to rerund certain portions of the Series 2016B Bonds and finnnce the acquisition and construction of the improvements described in the enclosed Six Mlle Creek 
Commw1(1y Devclopme/11 District Supplemental E11g1i1ecrs Report for Sertcs 2021 AA2-3B & AAJ-2 Capitol lnipro,•cmenls dated August 12, 202! (the "202 l Arca 3, Phase 2/Arca 2. Phase 3B Project Report"), which fun her supplements the Master Project Report, the 2007 Project Report, 
the 2014 Project Report, the 2016 Project Report, the 2017 Project Report, the 2020 Arca 2, Phase 3A Project Report. and the 2021 Arco 3. Phase ! Project Report (collectively the "Engineer's Report"). All of the improvements described in \he Engineer's Report shall br: referred Lo herein 
as the lrriprov;m~~- , 

The District desires to allocnfe and Jcvy_assessments to secure the 2021 Area J, Phase 2 Bonds/Arca 2, Phase 3B Bonds (the "2021 Arca 3, Phase 2/Arca 2, Phase 3B Assessments") pursuant to llrnt certain Spedal Assessmcnr Methodology Repon for the Series 2021 Capital lmpro\'emcnl 
Revenue Bonds Assc~menl Area 3 ( Phas"i:"2)"-a,1d-t!sscssmen1 Area 2 ( Phase 3B) dated August 18, 2021 (the "2021 Arca 3, Phase 2/Arca 2. Phase 3B Assessment Report"). The District will conduct a public hearing to consider the allocation and levy or the 2021 Arca J, Phase 2/Arca 2, 
Phase 3B Assessments. ---. 

Bond Mes1lng ?Pd PnhEc He;,rins 

In accordance with Chapters 170, 190, and 197, Florida Statutes, the District's Board will hold a public he3ring Lo consider the levy, imposition and allocation of non.ad valorem special as·sessmcats on benefited lands within the District in the manner sct forth in thc 2021 Arca 3, Phase 2/ 
Arca 2, Phase 3B Assessment Report. The 2021 Area J, Phase 2/Arca 2, Phasc_3B Assessments arc to be levied on a portion the dcvelopablc properly within the District (the District's location is identified on the map below) as set forth in more particularity in the 202! Arca 3. Phase 2/ 
Area 2, Phase 3B Assessment Report. At the hearing the Board will consider \he :idop1ion or an assessment roll; and whether to provide for the levy, collection and enforcement or the assessments. The Board may also consider any other matter that may legally come before it. 

At the hearing, the Board will hear public testimony as to the propriety and advisability or m;iking the Improvements. or some pha~c thereof, in particular the portion or Lhc Improvements described hi the 2021 Arca 3. Plrnse 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Project Report, .is to the cost thereof, as 
to the manner of payment thereof, and as to the amount thereof to be assessed. 

For the 2021 Arca 3, Phase 2/Afe:i 2, Phase 3B Assessments. the District intends to impose assessments in Lile manner sci forth in the Masler Assessment Report and tile 2021 Arca 3, Phase 2/Arca 2, Phase 3B Assessment Report. The assessment reports arc available to the public at 
Governmental Management Services, 475 West Town Place, Suite 114, World Golf Village, St. Augustine, Florida 32092 (wDistricl Managcmcn\ Office") during normal business hours. The areas improved or to be improved by the District nre described in detail in the Engineer's Report 
and the 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Project Report. All engineer's reports arc nvai\able to the public during normal business hours al the District Management Office. All persons imcrcstcd may ascerl:lin the description of each property to be assessed and the amount to be 
assessed to each piece or parcel of property at the District Management Office. 

The process by which the alloea\ion is 10 be made for the 202! Area 3, Phase 2/Arca 2, Phase 3B Assessments is set forth in, and tl1c maximum nmounts to be allocated by product type will be as set out in, the 2021 Area 3, Phase 2//Uca 2, Phase 3B Asscssmcnl Report. The total assessment 
amount to be levied, the unit of measurement to bi: applied to determine the assessment, and the number of such unit& conl:llned within the property lo be assessed for the 2021 Arcn 3. Phase 2/Area 2, Phase JB Assessments arc as set forth in the 2021 Arca 3, Phase 2/Arca 2, Phase 3B 
Assessment Report. The total estimated revenue the District wi!l co Heel by the 2021 Arca 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Assessments is $19,987,065. which includes the estimated cost or the porlion of the Improvements described in the 2021 Arca 3, Phase 2/Arca 2, Phase 3B Assessment 
Report. financing-related costs. capitalized interest and debt service reserve, but is exclusive of interest, collection costs and early payment discounts, The assessments presented in the 2021 Arca 3, Phase 2/Arca 2, Phase 3B Assessment Report represent estimated amounts that may be 
lower than what is finally decided upon and adopted by the Board of Supervisors at the assessment hearing on October 10, 2021, 

The assessments may be prcPaid in whole, and in some instances, in part. The proposed schedule of assessments includes no more Lhan thirty (30) annual installmcnlS of principal and interest commencing subsequent to the issuance of the 2021 Arca 3, Phase 2 Bonds/Arca 2, Phase 3B 
Bonds ror the 2021 Aica 3, Phasc2/Area 2, Phase 3B Assessments. These assessments may be collected directly by the District in accordnncc with Florida law, or may be collected by the St. Johns County Tax Collector on the property tax notice. The decision lo collect special assessments 
by any particular method- e.g., by dir\:ct bill or on the tax roll- docs not mean that such a method will be used to co!kc-l special assessments in fnlurc years, and the District reserves the right in its sole discretion to select collection methods in any given year, regardless of past practices. 

Please be advised that failure to pay any ossessments will ca11se a tax certificate to be issued against your property within the District that may result in a loss of title, or, if the assessments arc clire<:tly collected, will cnusc a foreclosure action to be filed against your property within the District 



Pleasfi' be advised that failure to pay :my assessments will cause a Ta,c ccrnm:1111, ,u vo, =""" "B""•~• jV~• .,.-,--., 

that may result in a Joss of title. 

Addit\nnal Nntis;~ Pr,wision~ 

The hearing and meeting are open to the public and will be conducted in accordance with the provisions of Florida Jaw. The hearing and meeting may be con(inucd to a date. time, and place to be specified on the record. There may be occasions when staIT or Board members may 
participate by speaker telephone. 

Any person requiring special accommodations at the hcariDgs or meeting been use of a disabil;ty or physical impnirmcnt should contact the District Management Office nt (904) 940-5850 at least forty-.::ighl (48) hours prior to the hearings or meeting. If you arc hearing or speech impnircd. 
please eontnct the Florida Relay Service at 800-95S-8770 for aid in contacting the District Managcmcn1 Office. 

All affected property owners have the right lo appear at the public hearing nod meeting and the right to file 1TTitten objections with the District within twenty (20) days of the publication of this notice. A person .. ho decides to appeal any decision made by the Board of Supervisors of the Six Mile 
Oeek Community Development District with respect to any matter considered at the hearings or meeting will need a record of the proceedings. Such person may need 10 ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, indudiog a record of the testimony and eVidwce upon which the 
appeal is to be based. 

James Oliver 
District Manager 

\\y-::

\I"' 
·-._ •• :,.,. ·>·'.i.':'..>·· · f 1> --• 

,·······<9f,~ 

_(, __ } ~~~7.-:: .. -~~ 
.• .. ·'-r .... • z, ... ,,, .. 

/· ... g<;:~ \, .. fL •..... ,i3) ~""-
Y=--~·· .• .. ····.···r· •• • . cs "c;,,.,, -.i=;.---·, •. 1/, (:_:I -· 

-.-~ ,~" ff.::·.- . ·, .. '4~ <~f•·· \ 

'l~.,~h t • - ~ __ ,; A '\'t ~ - ----:::::;-,, ---,~.::di; ~\\\ • "", 1> £' j,, ft, \·;,» 
, ,, ~ 1/ ,,, " '*' () -"c » '''\, 
(/;;,,f \ii. '' ,ef' st::>'--c~- 'I :l!J ~-~\\_ '£ 

j ""71'"\22.r=.--,,.~J '\::i ? 
1/ ' ~""- ,;,,,, / 

!,1 'S,,,, \~\ ~ I ~ 
11 ,~,, '! ,'!, J ~ 1 ',_, "''-

,!' , k .J... ''¾:, ~""' -·-~ I"" ¾., ~, , 

y/ -zr:;~ 
. 

;,¢) ,1! o? ~ ~•C<XXX"OVX;'Xn00QVO'"""'- 11r--=-? 

,,,.4-L_.:J~fi.Js 0 PROJE""T \, ''~\ 
....... , - ·- ,;;.. ~, """ 
• SITE ~~ ¾'\,, 

Sr>c,½1(£ 

SH.10 
IS 

M 

N£c, 

#/., rr-· :_~ 

~ .••.• •••...... ., , ·~o 

~icolct~ • • . . ~~Jr g 

• '¾«- -::~, 
"¾--'"----~l\. 

~'-.a5a ~(~ '~~ D. 111-
\li 

• ]i"'.,, 

~:::--~: 
~"-.~:.. 

h#~~ ELLZ --#~ ~ (fosr=----~-~Mt~kosa~f"'""~~~ • 
ICOLATA • '\,iJ '""i'\\s

1 
r:,_ •• • ,. ~I "'· 

• .... 1,·sL,__., ~ 

H
/?~\]Q~, '·• 

1\ B~lle y"P I~ ·'=. 
~Towe, ~ 'f:=1 ' "({ ' ,,;;:;, ~-~- ~- =cl ' ,Yl~A1~,10 "'= 

Eloke:-s,,.,iJle -,o; -

'"~¾i_ 0 __ 
~"<1 3 ) 

•"L¼.-. 

••• ·,, Meld1·in1 le are 

, "'¾,, rriera • 
P\. ., • .. ' 

$ilciY,o 
l-0\/E;: 

Silano P( 

,,, '". 
'•,:\'-: ......... • .. . ,. 

J'i 

Englc:mcl• Thim) 

:::::::::=:-. 

G.RAPJ-HC SCAL"J:!: 
0 :moo 60CC 

-',\ =-::.,111 

12000 

01-:;-,('1 .•. ! 

llr==c.:<==:"'==41 ~r~1 
"' 11 

.D j rl 

(TM. NO. 20- 2:?7 

\i 
1\1~'\ I' ~ .. ' 

- \, \~ 

··~~ 
,~, 0 j 

V < 
\ttr ii.1, 

\~\~I 
i,t\ 
\\11 
li 

_ 11,mmar Inc. 
-- 111111 El"!G1t!EERS-·•· PLJ~\J;:RS 

LOCATION MAP DA fE": OCTOBER 2020 
m._ ,.= ~M~i:-S.,,.; ~;~:~~r·~~~.j ,.RCH1:i.:r.1~: 
~4ea~ Jo~~~;:mvi:f,:. F1oc..iu 3:!258 
r.=~C.--a.."'u Corttflcot~ <i/ Au!horlzalior, l!o.,l5s,t 

ra;nf~,/\~J%?~J~i;:11so 

SIX MILE CRES< COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT sc.r....LE: I" = 6,000' 

EXHiBIT 5 

RESOLUTION 2021-18 

t,rj ... =-s.: 
~ 

"' 
C'.l 
~ 
~ 
I:!,. 

&" ,, 
"' g. 
= ,:, ..., 
~ 
"' = C. 
('l> 

C. 
i::, 
:;;· 
~ 
E 



~~?-i q~ 
"'\:.: 

"'" , , 

rriel"O" 
'\\~ Me\drim Rork ,, 

Pl -, · ' 

Silano 
Cove 

Sit:=3no P~: 

"-,, : ,, 
• .: • -,~_ , :-: ___ · , , " , 

%_ , 

·-.. •. '~) 
fnglcmcl•Thim) 

-•miller Inc. 
=-' ,.. 8"1CltHC:ERS, - PLAli<JERS =.. -= ~~f;"11t:'S.,,.; ~~~~~t~~ ARCHls'.Ci~\ 

~i!~~ t~~i't~:~~"~r,~fti"orfz~G~ IJo.:258·' 

t~;1~0:~<:1J.ift~~~~~80 

0 

I;;;; 

cc=.zc,ti 
'<?:1 

GRAPHf.C SCALE '13A'J 
12000 ~-ii llr:=--=,===~ 

LOCATION MAP 
SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

RESOLUTION 2021~18 

~ 

'D 

'6 
Q) 

.D 

] 
~ ,, 

ETM. ~iO. :?0-227 

\\S \\ 

···Fo,;_:v~:i \ I -95 Y~-
'~ \!) ,, 

OAT[: OCT08EH 2020 

SCALE: I" '"" €,000' 

E'>:Hi81T 5 

)--

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOMill OF SUPERVISORS OF THE SIXMtLE CREEK COMMVNITI' DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT DECLARING SPEClAL ASSESSMENTS TO SECURE ITS 2021 AREA 3, PHASE 2 
BONDSANDA.REA2PHASE3BBONDS;INDICATINGTIIELOCATION,NATUREANOESTIMATEDCOSTOFTHOSEIMPROVEMENTSWHOSECOSTISTOBEDEFRAYEDBYTHESPEClALASSESSMENTS; 
P!tOvtDING THE ESTIMATED COST OF THE IMPROVEMENTS TO BE DEFRAYED BY THE SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS; PROVIDING THE MANNER IN WHICH SUCH SPECJ.AL ASSESSMENTS SHALL BE 
MADE; PROVIDING WHEN SUCH SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS SHALL BE PAID; DESIGNATING LANDS UPON WHICH THE SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS SHALL BE LEVIED; PROVIDING FOR AN ASSESSMENT 
PLAT; ADOPTING·A-PRELIMINARY ASSESSMENT ROLL; AND PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION OF THIS RESOLUTION. 

= 
~ 
;:.. 
t:I .,;· .... 
'"' ~-::.. 

Wm:RF.AS, the Six Mile Creek Community Develcipment Disltict (°'Dis\rict'•) was estnblished by Rule42GGG-l of· the Florida Land and Water Adjudicatory Commission. pursuant to the Uniform Community Development District Act of 1980, Chapter 190, F!Grida StalU1es. 
as amended (the "Act"). and is validly existing under the constiiul.ion an·ct-law~_ of the State of Florida; and 

WHERE...S, lhe Act authorizes the District to_ issue bonds for the purpose. among others. or planning, financing. acquiring, constructing. installing, operating. and/or maintaining certain infrastructure. including roadways. stormwatcr management systems.. water and sewer 
systems, landscape and hardseape improvem<:P.IS.. recreation improvements and other lnfrMtructure within or \\~th out the boundaries of tj1e District; and 

WHEn£As, in July 2007. the District issued its $47,820,000 in aggregate principal amount of Six Mile Creek Community Development District (SL Johns County. Florida) Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds. Series 2007 (the ~original Bondi'), to finance the design. 
construclion. and/or acquisition of th<:: 2007 Project (as hereinafter defined) ncccssi\:lted by development within lhc District: and 

WH£RE"5, the infrastructure improvements and facilities financed, in part, by the Original Bonds arc more spceilically described and identified in the District's Jmproveme111 Pfau for the Purpose of Special Assessmc/1/ Bemis dated December .1, 2006 (the ··Master Project 
Report"), as supplemented by the District's Supp/eme111a/ Engineers Ri!portfor Series 2007 Capltal Impronments dated May 25, 2007 (the "2007 Project Report"), adopted and confirmed by the Dislrict; and 

WHEREI.S, pursuant to Resolutions 2007-12, 2007-13. 2007-18. and 2007-24 (collectively the ·•original Assessment Resolutions~). th~District imposed special assessments (lhe "Original Asscssmcnts•·i on dcvclopab!e real property within the boundaries or the District th.1t 
specially benefits from the improvements more particularly described in the Master Project Report m1d the 2007 Project Report as described in the Series 2007 Asscssmcnl Resolulions and as set forth in the Dis1rict's Special Assessmcni Mas/er Mcrhodology Rcporl d:l.ted March 30. 2007 
{the "Master Assessment Rcport'1, as supplemented by lhe District's Supple111c111al Special Assessmc111 Mellwdology Report, Final Numbel's dalcd June 28. 2007 (the ·•First Supplemental Assessment Report"): and 

WHtnEAS. the adoption of the Original Assessment Resolutions resulted in the imposition of a master lien against all the properly bcncfitting from the improvements described in the Master Project Report. as amended (the ·•Master Assessment Lien .. ) within the District's 
boundaries: and 

WHtllE.IS, on October 15, .2014, the District adopted Resolution 2015•03, which authorized the bifurcation of the Original Bonds (the •"Bifurcation Rcsolution'1; and 

WHEIIE...S, pursuant to the Bifurcation Resolution. (il a portion of the Original Bonds in the principal amount or $3.140.000 were exchanged for $3.140,000 in principal amount of the Districl 's Series 2014A Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds (the "Series 20 l4A Bonds"): 
and (ii) a portion of the Original Bonds in the principal amount or $42,700,000 were exchanged for $42.700.000 in principal amount of the Dislrict's Series 2007 Capital. Improvement Revenue Bonds (the •·series 2007 Bonds" and. together with lhc Series 2014A Bonds. the "Bifurcated 
Bonds"): and 

WtttRE.\S, in connection with the Bifurcation, on October 15. 2014 the District :ilso :idoptcd Resolution 2015-04 (the "Bifurcation Assessment Resolution"). adopting the Second S11ppfcmc1110I Special Asses;menl Merlwdology Report for the Capital Jmprorcmem Bonds Series 
20J4A and Series 2007 dated October IS, 2014·(\hc ••Bifurcation Assessmcnl Report"), which created two separate assessment areas. lhe Series 2014A Assessment Arca and the Series 2007 Assessment Arca. for the purpose of securing the Series 2014A Bonds and the Series 2007 Bonds 
respectively (lhe "Bifurcation Assessmcms"): and 

WHEREAS, Six Mile Creek Investment Group. LLC, the primary owner oflands wi\hin the District (lhe "Landowner") ai1d the Owners of the Bifurcated Bonds determined th:ll it w:is in their best interest to refund the Series 2014A Bonds with the issuance of the $3. 165,000 
Six Mile Creek Community Development District Capital Improvement Revenue Refunding Bonds.. Series 2015 (the "'2015 Refunding Bonds"), and. in connection with the issuance of the 2015 Refunding Bonds. to restructure the Bifurc:Hion Assessments in order to secure debt service 
for both the 2015 Refunding Bonds and the Series 2007 Bonds; and 

WntRi;4S, in connection with the issuance of the 2015 Refunding Bonds and the restructure or the Bifurcation Assessments. the Board of Supervisors of \he Dislrict ("'Board") adopted Resolutions 2015"13 and 2015"19. which levied the assessments restructuring the 
Bifurcated Assessments (the "Restructured Assessments") and ratified and approved the completed and on-going undertaking, installation. planning, est:lblishing, construction, enlarging or ex.tc11ding, equipping, acquiring, operating. and/or maintaining the public improvements described 
in the Master Project Report, the 2007 Projeel Report and the Six Mile Creek Community De••e/opmem District Suppl,:menral Engineer's Report fa1· Series 2014 Capilo/ lmprovemem.i dalcd November 12. 2014 {the •:2015 Project RcporC): 

WHEREAS. in connection with the l<?VY of the Restructured Assessments and the issua1~cc of the 2015 Refunding Bonds. lhe District approved its Final Special A:;scssmenr Mel,fwdo/ogy R~port for 1/ie 2015 Refunding BonlL< and tire Remaining 2007 Bonds dated November 14, 
2014 (the •·Refunding Repon"): :ind 

Wtt1mEAS, the District, !he Landowner and the Owners or the Series 2007 Bonds dctcnnincd that it was in their best interes\s for the District issue its $7,315.000 Six Mile Creek Community Dcve!opmc11l District Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds. Series 2016A and its 
$6,720,000 Six Mile Creek Community Development District Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds. Series 2016B to finance the acquisition and construction of an ndditional porlion of the Improvements (collectively \be "2016 Bonds"), and accordingly confinncd the levy of the Master 
Assessment Lien and levied and allocated assessments to secure ll1e 2016 Bonds (the "20l6 Assessmcnts'1; and 

WHEREAS, in connection with the issuance of the 2016 Bonds. lhe Board adopted Rcsoh1tion 2016-07. which levied the 2016 Asses.~mcnts and ratified a11d approved the completed and on"going under\aking, i11stallation. planning. establishing. construction. cnlnrging or 
extending, equipping, acquiring, operating, and/or maintaining the public improvements described in the Masi er Project Report. the 2007 Project Reporl. lhc 2015 Project Report and the Si.'( Mile Creek Commu11i1y De,,e/opment Dislrlct Suppfrmenlaf Eugi11eer'; Re par/ for Series 2016 
Capilol Improveme111;dated April 12, 2016 (the "2016Projecl Report"); 

E0-000337S7~5-o, ,-



'cor· GO"rosi<!,-173.4 SqFt., wood
Look Tile, $359,900 (216121) CALL-
90.4-797-6000 CENTURY 21 ST. 
AUGUSTINE PROPERTIES 

RIVERFRONT,l.25 Acre, SOOOSciFt, 
Custom Built. Concrete Blocl<, 
Pool, NO HOA! $830,000 (21360.4) 
CALL 904-797-6000 CENTURY 21 
ST. AUGUSTINE PROPERTIES 

CLASl:>111-111:U::» 
WORK 

Go to StAugustine.com 
or call (888) 254 3466 

to place your ad. 

agt:uu.,_ ,,.,, .... ..,,... ~•~-..- ··-, -- --
tained from c/o Rizretta & Company, 
Inc., 3434• Colwell Avenue, Suite 200, 
Tampa, FL 33614, or by calling (904) 
436-6270, 

There may be ·occasions .when one or 
more Supenrisors or staff will partid
p_ate _hr. ~eJephon0rs~t ~ P_[ovi-

Rt.QU~l::O rv:n. 
TIONS BY PERSONS WITH DISA
BILITIES 

If you are a person with a disability who 
needs an accommodation in order to 
participate in this proceeding, you are 
entitled, at no cost to you, to the provi
sion of ce~n assistance, Please c~n-

)T1 I )R1I )A1I [!:,) )E1 I LZ~ l.!::1J RA\Ot<.4= ~ 
PARSCORE150-160 TOTAL 215· 
Ha~bro and lls logo, SCRABBLE"°, assocrated logo, the design ol lhs dls!inctrve SCRAllBLE brnnd 
gorne board, 0n<:11he distinctive letter lile designs are lradern~rl<s of Hasbro ln th~ Uni\erl Stales and 
cana<:la. ©2021 H,isbro_Al1 rlgh\S rese....,M. Dts!ributed by Tribune ConlcntAgency, LLC. 

Wm;:mlAS, in connection with the levy of lhc 2016 Assessments and the issuance of the 2016 Bonds, the District approved its Final Numbers Spcciaf Assessment Methodology Repar1Jor 1he Se1•frs 2016A and 20!6B Capiral Improvement B011ds dated April 22, 2016 (the "2016 
Assessment Report"); ::ind 

w~mRl'.AS, the Dis\ricl. the Landowner and the Owners of the Series '2007 Bonds determined that it was in their best interests for the District issue its $10.6.:W,OOO Six Mik Oeck Community Development District Ca.pita I Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2017A 
(Assessment Area 2. Phase 2) and its $3,980,000 Six Mile Creek Comm\mity Development District Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 20! 7B (Assessment Area 2, Phase 2) lo re fond certain portions of the Series 2016 Bonds and finance the acquisition and construction of an 
additional portion of the Improvements (co!lcctivc\y the "2017 Bonds"). and accordingly confirmed the levy of the Master Assessment Lien and levied and allocated assessments lo secure the 2017 Bonds (the "2017 Asscssmcnt.s"): and 

WflEIIV.S, in connection with the issuaucc or the 2017 Bonds. the Bo;1rd adopted Resolution 2017-16. which levied the 2017 Assessments and ratified and _.ipprovcd the completed .ind on-going undertaking, installaLion, planning, establishing, construction. enlarging or 
extending, equipping, acquiring. operating. and/or maintaining the public improvements described in the Master Project Report. the 2007 Project Report. the 2015 Project Report. the2016 Project Report and the Si:v Mile 0'1!ek Conm,wil)' Dew:lopmenl District Supplemental Engineer's 
Repor/ for Series 2017 Copirof lmprol'e/l/enls dated October 27. 2017 (the "2017 Project Report"); 

WHEREAS, in connection with the levy of the 2017 Assessments :md the issuance of the 2017 Bonds, the District approved its Supplemental Special Assessmem Methodology Repor/ Jc,· rhe Series 2017A and 2017B Capiwl lmpro,•ement Bonds Assessmenr Area 2 ( Phase 2) 
dated November 14, 2017 (the "2017 Assessment Report"): and 

Wm:iu:,\S, Lhc District. the Llndowner and the Owners of the Series 2007 Bonds determined that it was in their best interests for the District issue its $7,020,000 Six Mile Creel, Community Development District Capitcl Improvement Revenue and Refunding Bonds. Series 
2020 (Assessment Arca 2, Phase 3A) to refund certain portions of the Series 2016B Bonds and fmancc the acquisition and construction of an additional portion of the Improvements (\he "2020 Bonds"}, and accordingly confirmed \he levy of the Master Assessment Lien and levied .ind 
allocated assessments LO secure the 2020 Bonds (the "2020 Assessments,.); and 

W1-1mtE.1s. in connection with the issuance of the 2020 Bonds. the Board adopted Resolution 2020-09, which levied the 2020 Assessments and ratified and approved the complc\cd and on-going undertaking, installation, planning, establishing, construction, enlarging 
or extending. equipping, acquiring, operating, :ind/or maintaining the public improvements described in the Master Project Report, the 2007 Project Report, the 2015 Project Report. the 2016 Project Report. the 2017 Report. and the Six Mile Creek Communiry De,•e/opment District 
Supplemental E,,gfneer's Report/or Serie& 2020 Capiwl Improvements dated June 2. 2020 (the "2020 Project Report"); 

W;nmEAS, in connection with the levy of the 2020 Assessments and the issuance of the 2020 Bonds, Lhe District approved its Six Mile Creek Comimmity Developmenl Dislriet Supp/ememal Special Assessmenl Methodology Report for the Capital Jmprovemenr Reverrue and 
Refunding Bonds. Series 2020 ( Asse,rsmenl A1·ea 2, Phase 3A) dated June 12. 2020 (the "2020 Assessment Report"); and 

WllERE,\S, the District, the Landowner and the Owners of the Series 2007 Bonds determined that it wus in their best interests for the District issue ils $11,340,000 Six Mile Creek Community Development District Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2021 
(Assessment Area 3, Phase 1) LO !in:ince the acquisition and construe lion of an addiLional portion of the Improvements (the "2021 Arca 3, Phase I Bonds"}, .ind accordiligly confirmed the levy or the Master Assessment Lien and levied and allocated assessments to secure the 2021 Area 
3. Phase I Bonds (the "202! Arca 3, Phase l Assessments"): and 

WHERE.,s. in connection with the issuance of the 2021 Area 3, Phase 1 Bonds, the Board adopted Resolution 2021-06, which levied lhc 2021 Arca 3. Phase I Assessments and r:itificd and approved the completed and on-going undertaking, installation, planning. establishing. 
construction, enlarging or c:,.tcnding, equipping. acquiring, operating, and/or maintainillg the public improvements described in the Master Project Report, the 2007 Project Report, the 2015 Project Report, the 2016 Project Report. the 2017 Project Report, the 2020 Project Report. and 
the Six MUe Creek Communiry Dc,•e/opmenr District Suppfemcmal Ei1ginccr's Report for Series 2021 Capiraf lmproremenls dated January 19, 2021 (the "2021 Arca 3. Phase I Project Report"): 

WnEREAS, in connection with the levy of the 2021 Arc:i 3, Phase l Assessments and the issuance of the 2021 Arca 3. Phase I Bonds, the District approved its The Six Mile Creek Com11umi1y Dei•elopmer11 Disrricl Supplemental Special Assessment Mc!liodology Report for 
the Series 2021 Capital J,npro1·eme111 Rewmue Bonds Assc,1smen1 Areo 3 ( Phase 1) dalcd February 10, 2021 (the "2021 Arca 3. Phase l Assessment Report"); and 

W11tii.E,1S, District and the Landowner have determined that il is in their best interests for the District to issue its Series 2021 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds Assessment Arca 3, Phase 2 and Assessment A;;;iPn"?sC'JB '(thc-''2Q2,LArca 3, Phase 2/Arca 2. Phase 3B 
Bonds") Lo finance the acqi.Usition and construction of ,,n additional portion of the Improvements as described in more detail in lhal certain S,'.v 1\1ile Creek Commmity Dei'f.'lopm<!trl Dis/J'li:r Supplemental Eng,iieers &!port Jar Series 202/ AA2-3B & A~;2 • .Co[!ilal Jinp1v,cmen1.1:-d.itcd 
August 12. 2021 (the "2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Arca 2, Phase 3B Project Report") and accordingly to confirm the levy of the Master Assessment Lien and levy :ind allocate assessments to secure the 2021 Arca 3, Phase 21Area 2, Phase 3B Bonds; and .- • 

Wtffill.ll/\S, the proceeds of the 2021 Arca 3. Phase 2JArc:i 2. Phase 3B Bonds will be used in part lo finance. acquire or construct improvements for Assessment Area 3, Phase 2 and Assessment Arca 2. Phase 3B portions of the dcvclopmenl; 

Wimn£~s, the 2021 Arca 3, Phase 2/Arca 2, Phase 3B Bonds will be secured by the "2021 Arca 3, Phase 2/Arca 2, Phase 3B Assessmeots"; 

WHEREAS, the 202i Arca 3. Phase 2/Arca 2. Phase 3B Assessments make up a portion of the Master Asscssmcill Lien; however, in light of the bifurcalion and refunding and subsequent bond issuances described herein. the District has chosen to ad dpt resolutions declaring 
asscssn,cnts nnd to hold public hearings in conocction wilh the levy and al\oc:ition of assessments securing the2021 Arca 3. Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Bonds: and 

W1u:1m,\S, the District desires 10 ratify and approve the completed and on-going undertaking, installation, planning, establishing, construction, enlarging or c:,.tcnding, equipping, acquiring, operating. and/or maintaining the Improvements described in Composite Exhibit 
A: and 

W1-IERE,1.S, it is in the best interests of the District to pay the cos\ of the Improvements through the levy of special assessments pursuant to Chapters 170, 190, and i97, Florida Statutes; itnd 

WHER!':AS, the kvy and allocation of the 2021 Arca 3. Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Asscssment.s and the issuance of U1c 2021 Arca 3, Phase 2/Arca 2. Phase 3B Bonds shall not impact the validity or enforceability of the Restructured Assessments securing the 2015 Refunding 
Bonds. the 2016 Assessments securing the 2016 Bonds. the 2017 Asscssme11ts securing the 2017 Bonds. the 2020 Assessments securing the 2020 Bonds, or the 2021 Area 3. Phase I Assessments securing the 2021 Arca 3, Phase I Bonds; and 

WnE1u;:AS, the District is empowered by Chapters 170, 190, and 197. Florida Statutes, to finance, fund, plan, establish, acquire, construct, or rcco11struct, enlarge. or extend. cq11ip, operate, and maintain the Improvements and to impose, levy and collect the 2021 Area 3, 
Phase 2/Arca 2, Pb::isc 3B Assessments: and 

WHEREAS.. the District hereby dctcm1incs that benefits have accrued and will continue to accrue to the property improved, the amount of lhose benefits, and that special assessments will be made in proportion to the benefits received :is set forth iii the District's Master 
Assessment Rcpon, First Supplemental Assessment Report, Bifurcation Assessment &::port. Refunding Rcporl, 2016 Assessment Report, 2017 Assessment Report, .2020 Assessment Report, the 2021 Area 3, PhasclA Assessment Report and the Special Assessment Methodology Report 
for rhe Series 2021 CC1pi1a/ Impro\'cme111 Re,,em1e Bouds .Assessment Area 3 ( Phose 2} and Assessmenl Arco 2 ( Plwse 3B) dated August_, 202! (the" 2021 Arca 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Assessment Report"), all of which arc atrnchcd hereto as Composite Exhibit Band incorporated 
herein by reference, and· on file at Governmental Management Services, 475 West Town Pince, Suite 114, World Golf Village. Sl. Augustine. Florida 32092 ("District Record~ Office"): and 

\-V1i£ll;£AS, this Resoli.1tion shall serve as the "resolution required to declare special as.,essmcnts" contemplated by section 170.03, Florida Statutes. for the assessment lien levied on all bcncfitting properly within the District that comprises the 2021 Arca 3, Phase 2/Area 2, 
Phase 3B Assessments: and 

W1-1i,;1tr,,1s, the District hereby determines lhal the 2021 Arc:i 3. Phase 2/Arca 2. Phase 3B Assessments 10 be levied will not c1<cccd the benefiLs 10 the property improved. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRlCT: 

Section 1. The recitals us stated .,bovc arc true and correct and by 1his reference are incorporated into and form a material part of this Rcsolulion, 

Section 2. The 202! Arca 3. Phase 2/Arca 2. Plrnsc 3B Assessments shall be levied to defray \he cost of a portion of the Improvements described in the 2021 Arca 3, Plmsc 2/Arca 2. Phase 3B Project Report. 

Section 3. The nature and general location of. and plans and specifications for. the Improvements arc described in Composite Exhibit A. and arc on file nt the District Records Orllcc, Composite Exhibit Bis also on file and available for public inspection at the sume localion 
during nonnal business hours. 

Section 4. TI1e total estimated cost of the Improvements is $156.326.750, a portion of which includes $17,196,082 for the infrastructure described in the 2021 Arca 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Project Report (hcrcinaf1cr. referred lo as lhe "Estimated Cost"). 

Section S. The 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Arca 2, Phase 3B Assessmeiits will collectively defray approJlimntc\y $19.987,065. which includes the Estimated Cost described in the 2021 Arca 3. Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Projcc1 Report, plus financing-related costs. capitalized 
interest. debt s~rvicc reserve and contingency The lien for the 2021 Arca 3. Ph:isc 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Asscssn1cnts will be allocated to the property identified in the 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Arca 2. Phase 3B Assessment Report. Notwilhslandi!lg the levy of the Master Assessment Lien. 
should the District issue uddition.:tl bonds ror the purpose of fonding additional portions of the Improvements. and seek lo levy and allocate asscssmcnt.s lo secure such bonds. the District shall ndopt addition:il resolutions declaring assessments as conu:mplated by seC\lon l 70.03, Florida 
S1atutcs and conduct a public hearing on such assess~cnts. 

Section 6. The manner in which the 2021 Arca 3, Phase 2/Arca 2, Phase 3B Asscssmcnis shall be apportioned and paid is set forth in Composite Exhibit B. 

Section 7. The 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2. Phase 3B Assessments shall be levied within the District. on all lots and lands adjoining and contiguous or bounding and nbutling upon such improvements or specially benefittcd thereby :md further designated by the 2021 
Arca 3. Phase 2/Arcn 2, Phase 3B Assessment Report. 

Section 8. There is on file. at the District Records Ollicc. nn assessment plat sho\\~llf; the area to be assessed, with certnin plans and specifications describing the Improvements and the Estimated Cost of the Improvements. all of which shall be open lo inspection by the 
public during n<?rmal b11sine-~s hours. 

c:-=- 0 r,.,,,.,,.,.,,,,.,,-1,,~ with the vears in which the 202! Arca 3, Phase 2/Arc:i 2, Phase 3B Assessments are certified for collection, the 2021 Arca 3. Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Assessments shall be paid in not more than thirty (30} annual installments or the maximum period 
• ''·- ·--" •'-" nn.1 ;., ,h,. <~mr mnnner as arc ad•valorcm laxes and collected pursuanl to Chapter l97. Florida Statutes: provided, however, that in the event the unifonn 

··-· • "-• .~,,-n., <>~~•~-:,.0; A«.-«m,.n1<mavbcco\lcctcdasis 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



MINUTES OF MEETING 
SIX MILE CREEK  

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 

 The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Six Mile Creek Community 

Development District was held on Wednesday, September 15, 2021 at 2:00 p.m. at the Renaissance 

World Golf Village Resort, 500 South Legacy Trail, St. Augustine, Florida. 

 

 Present and constituting a quorum were: 
 
  Gregg Kern by phone Chairman 
  Mike Taylor Vice Chairman 
  Blake Weatherly Supervisor 
  Darren Glynn Supervisor  
  Wendy Heartly Supervisor 
   
 
 Also, present were: 
 
 
 Jim Oliver District Manager 
 Wes Haber by phone District Counsel   
 Zach Brecht District Engineer  
 Rodney Hicks BrightView Landscape  
 Jessica Humprey CAM (Evergreen Lifestyles Management- HOA) 
 Alex Boyer  Evergreen Lifestyles Management 
 Lynzi Chambers Evergreen Lifestyles Management 
 Samantha Hawkins Evergreen Lifestyles Management 
 Peter Dame Akerman, LLP 
  
 
 The following is a summary of the actions taken at the September 15, 2021 Six Mile Creek 

Community Development District’s Regular Board of Supervisor’s Meeting. 

 

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS  Roll Call 

 Mr. Oliver called the meeting to order at 2:05 p.m. Four Supervisors were in attendance at 

the meeting constituting a quorum.    

 

  



September 15, 2021   Six Mile Creek CDD 

2 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS  Audience Comments 
 Mr. Oliver explained the comment protocol for audience comments and opened the floor 

to audience members. There being none, the next item followed. 

 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Approval of Minutes of the August 18, 
2021 Meeting 

 Mr. Oliver presented the minutes of the August 18, 2021 meetings and asked for any 

comments, corrections, or changes. The Board had no changes.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Weatherly, seconded by Mr. Taylor, with all in 
favor, the Minutes of the August 18, 2021 Meeting, were approved. 

 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Acceptance of the Fiscal Year 2020 Audit 
Report 

 Mr. Oliver stated that as a unit of government they are required to have an annual financial 

audit conducted by an independent CPA firm that is in accordance with Florida Statute. The report 

was conducted by Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines, & Frank, and a copy of the audit can be found 

in the agenda packet. It was considered to be a clean audit with no identified deficiencies. Mr. 

Oliver gave an overview of the report to the Board.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Taylor, seconded by Mr. Weatherly, with all in 
favor, Acceptance of the Fiscal Year 2020 Audit Report, was 
approved. 

 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Consideration of Disclosure Letter with 
FMS Bonds 

 Mr. Haber reported that this is a letter that is required to be provided by federal law from 

the underwriter who is working with the District in connection with the marketing and sale of the 

bonds the Board is currently discussing. It makes certain disclosures related to the fact that the 

underwriter is an independent entity, and they are not serving as a financial advisor and do not 

have any fiduciary responsibility to the CDD.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Taylor, seconded by Mr. Weatherly, 
Consideration of Disclosure Letter with FMS Bonds, was approved. 



September 15, 2021   Six Mile Creek CDD 

3 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Consideration of Resolution 2021-20, 
Bond Delegation Resolution for the 
Capital Improvement and Refunding 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2021 (Assessment 
Areas 2, Phase3B) and its Capital 
Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2021 
(Assessment Area 3, Phase 2) 

 Mr. Peter Dame presented this resolution to the Board, it will authorize the next series of 

bonds and the principal amount not to exceed $8.5 million and authorizes the documents that are 

necessary to market and issue the bounds. The resolution also authorizes the Chair and/or Vice 

Chair to award the bonds to FMS Bond upon presentation of a purchase contract within certain 

parameters. He summarized the resolution for the Board, and it can be found in the agenda 

package.  

 There was one change made in section 12 of the resolution entitled “Other Agreements” 

and they would like to add language that further delegates and authorizes District staff to do the 

items necessary for closing. The amendment will broadly authorize the staff to take such additional 

actions and prepare additional reports as may be necessary for the sale of the bonds. He then asked 

for any questions anyone might have about the delegation resolution or any exhibits to the 

resolutions. There being none, there was a motion of approval.  

 

On MOTION by Mr.  Taylor, seconded by Mr. Weatherly, with all 
in favor, Consideration of Resolution 2021-20, Bond Delegation 
Resolution for the Capital Improvement and Refunding Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2021 (Assessment Area 2, Phase 2B) and its Capital 
Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2021 (Assessment Area 3, 
Phase 2), was approved as amended. 

 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Consideration of Resolution 2021-21, 
Resolution Declaring Assessments for the 
6.8 Acre Expansion Parcel to Secure the 
Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2021 (Assessment Area 3, Phase 1) 

 Mr. Oliver noted that this resolution adds the 6.8 acres to the District and 24 lots. The 

resolution can be found in the agenda package, and Tables 4 and 5 show the impact of adding those 

24 lots to that section. Mr. Haber added that it is for the sole purpose of levying the debt 

assessments on that property that was newly added to the district. The resolution will also set a 



September 15, 2021   Six Mile Creek CDD 

4 

public hearing that requires a 30-day notice for advertisement, and he suggested adding it to the 

November Board of Supervisors meeting on November 17, 2021 at 2:00 p.m. There being no 

questions there was a motion of approval.  

 

On MOTION by Ms. Taylor, seconded by Mr. Weatherly, with all in 
favor, Resolution 2021-21, Resolution Declaring Assessments for the 
6.8 Acre Expansion Parcel to Secure the Capital Improvement 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2021 (Assessment Area 3, Phase 1), was 
approved. 

 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Ratification of Change Order No. 4 with 
Carlton Construction 

 This change order is to perform the necessary improvements for the irrigation pump station 

that is within the Revere area. It provides irrigation in a backup well for the common areas and 

park place and amenity space. It is a deduction change order that equals $1,534.92.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Taylor, seconded by Mr. Weatherly, with all in 
favor, the Change Order No. 4 with Carlton Construction, was 
ratified. 

 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Ratification of Work Authorization No. 2, 
Amenity Area Expansion Concept 

 This work authorization allows Basham & Lucas to start planning efforts toward the 

concept of the amenity expansion.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Taylor, seconded by Mr. Weatherly, with all in 
favor, Work Authorization No. 2, Amenity Area Expansion Concept 
with Basham & Lucas, was approved. 

 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Ratification of Underground Distribution 
Facilities Installation Agreement with 
Florida Power & Light 

 Mr. Oliver stated that this has been executed for the additional streetlights.  

 



September 15, 2021   Six Mile Creek CDD 

5 

On MOTION by Mr. Weatherly, seconded by Mr. Taylor, with all in 
favor, the Underground Distribution Facilities Installation 
Agreement with Florida Power & Light, was ratified. 

 

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Other Business 
 There being none, the next item followed.  

 
TWELTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Staff Reports 

A. Attorney  
 Mr. Haber noted that they are working towards a new bond issuance, and they will be 

considering the levy of assessments at the October meeting and are looking to pre close after the 

meeting or shortly after. The new boundary amendment has been filed with the State and County 

and they are waiting on the County to finalize its review.  

 

B. Engineer  
i. Consideration of Requisition 273 (2016A Bond Account) 

 In the amount of $1,232.78. 
 

ii. Ratification of Requisition 118 (2020 Bond Series Amount) 
 In the amount of $600. 
 

iii. Consideration of Requisitions 119-123 (2020 Bond Series Account) 
 In the amount of $85,923.01. 
 

iv. Ratification of Requisitions 61-62 (2021 Bond Series Account) 
In the amount of $166,792.43. 
 

v. Consideration of Requisitions 63-69 (2021 Bond Series Account) 
 In the amount of $281,041.43. 
 

On MOTION by Mr. Taylor, seconded by Mr. Weatherly, with all in 
favor, the Requisition Summary, was approved as revised. 

 

  



September 15, 2021   Six Mile Creek CDD 

6 

vi. Ratification of Work Authorization No. 21, Amendment 3 
 This is a work authorization for ETM to design, permit, and modify the existing 

consumptive use of water permit with the water management district for irrigation within phase 

nine.  

On MOTION by Mr. Taylor, seconded by Mr. Weatherly, with all in 
favor, Work Authorization No. 21, Amendment 3, was ratified. 

 

vii. Ratification of Change Order No. 3, Trailmark Phases 9A, 9B and 9C 
 This is a change order that is related to the direct owner purchase of materials. This is an 

increase of $179,698 and is for the installation of the electric backbone throughout phase nine.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Taylor, seconded by Mr. Weatherly, with all in 
favor, Change Order No. 3. Trailmark Phase 9A, 9B, and 9C, was 
ratified. 

 

viii. Consideration of Change Order No. 4 
 This was added to the package late and is a deductive change order out of the contractor’s 

contract for the direct owner purchase of materials for what was just approved in the amount of 

$153,042.14.   

  

On MOTION by Mr. Taylor, seconded by Mr. Weatherly, with all in 
favor, Consideration of Change Order No. 4, was approved. 

 

ix. Consideration of Work Authorization No. 54, Phase 11 and East Parcel 
Phase 2 Bid Documents 

This is the work authorization for ETM to provide proposed documents and to oversee the 

RFQ processes for Trailmark Phase 11 and East Parcel Phase 2 to get bids from contractors to 

preform that work for those two phases. It’s an hourly contract with an estimated budget of not to 

exceed $20,000.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Taylor, seconded by Mr. Weatherly, with all in 
favor, Work Authorization No. 54 Phase 11 and East Parcel Phase 2 
Bid Documents, was approved. 

 

  



September 15, 2021   Six Mile Creek CDD 

7 

C. Manager 
 Mr. Oliver stated that iPads will be brought to the meetings with all the preloaded necessary 

documentation, and they will start that at the next Board of Supervisors meeting.  

 

D. Operations/ Amenity Manager – Report 
1. Report 

 Mr. Boyer presented the operations/amenity manager’s report which can be found in the 

agenda package. He noted that they have followed up with the diver and feel that they have 

addressed most of the issues that were still underlining from the previous conversations. Due to 

the epoxy the PH level is higher than normal but within limits. There is a little bit of mold and 

algae that they are aware of and will address once the epoxy dries. They put together a screen shot 

that they are working with BrightView on for a report to post on the website. It will report what 

has been done and what is projected to get done to have a better line of communication with the 

residents.  

 Mr. Boyer summarized what he has done for the CDD in the time since he started and what 

their focus will be moving forward with the Board. He touched on several in process projects 

including pressure washing and screen replacement at the camphouse. The purpose of the report 

was to stay communicative with the Board on what is being taken care of and continuing to do so. 

The Board had asked staff to move forward with trash pickup and although they are doing a good 

job to continue with that type of service it will be approximately $800 a month that will exceed 

the next year’s operational general maintenance budget. Before they get to that point, he wants to 

have the conversation of how the Board would like to move forward.  

 Mr. Boyer talked about the camphouse and the usage of it. Renting it to resident and 

nonresident groups and how the Board would like for that to be managed. A lot of comments they 

have been getting are related to the wear and tear of the facility because of the usage. Ms. Chambers 

continued with reporting that the fee for the usage was kept as low as possible and they would like 

to look at offsetting the costs for the wear and tear and reported their ideas. Mr. Taylor asked staff 

to summarize usage for the next meeting to get a better idea of what the usage is like to better 

breakdown on maintenance moving forward.  

   

  



September 15, 2021   Six Mile Creek CDD 

8 

THIRTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Supervisor’s Requests and Audience  
    Comments 
 Mr. Kern requested for Mr. Boyer to inquire about pressure washing the roadways within 

the CDD when he is getting proposals for pressure washing the amenity facility. He noticed that 

there are several areas of curbs and sidewalks that could be cleaned as well and would like a quote 

for that work.  

 Mr. Oliver then opened the meeting up for public comment: 

• Sue Minter had general comments and concerns on the look of the neighborhood and if the 

maintenance budget needs to be increased that’s what they should do.  

• Michelle Sidon asked is the Board has thought about adding more dog waste receptacles 

especially towards the back of the neighborhood. It has been talked about for several years, 

but the decision has always been not to for a few different reasons.  

• Unnamed resident asked who the HOA reports to and the Board answered that they consist 

of a Board that is developer controlled by Greenpoint. He’s concerned that the HOA rules, 

especially pertaining to parking are not being enforced. The Board will take note on that 

and make sure those rules are being followed and enforced.  

• Steve Pasher reported that Tuesday Morning there were 14 empty water bottles littered on 

the basketball court and would like for the community to be reminded to pick up after 

themselves. He also asked if Evergreen will ever be full time. Mr. Tylor said they would 

reevaluate a full-time position when the community continues to grow and will continue to 

evaluate it.  

 

FOURTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Financial Reports 
A. Balance Sheet as of August 31, 2021 and Statement of Revenues and Expenses for the 

Period Ending August 31, 2021 
 Mr. Oliver noted that the unaudited financial statements were included in the agenda 

packets. There are no unusual variances on the income statement.  

 

B. Assessment Receipt Schedule 
 Mr. Oliver noted that the assessment collections are fully collected.  

 
  



September 15, 2021   Six Mile Creek CDD 

9 

C. Check Register 
 Mr. Oliver noted that the check register was included in the agenda packet for Board 

approval. Mr. Kern had three items he brought up from the check register and their allocation and 

Mr. Oliver will look into those and address them as needed.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Taylor, seconded by Mr. Weatherly, with all in 
favor, the Check Register, was approved as amended. 

 

FIFTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Next Scheduled Meeting- October 20,  
    2021 at 2:00 p.m. 
 Mr. Oliver noted that the next meeting date will be October 20, 2021 at 2:00 p.m. at their 

current location.  

 

SIXTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Adjournment 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Weatherly, seconded by Mr. Taylor, with all in 
favor, the Meeting was adjourned.  

 
 
 
 

________________________    _____________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary  Chairman/Vice Chairman 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



1 

RESOLUTION 2022-01 
 

(ASSESSMENT AREA 3, PHASE 2 AND ASSESSMENT AREA 2, PHASE 3B) 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT AUTHORIZING AND 
CONFIRMING DISTRICT PROJECTS FOR 
CONSTRUCTION AND/OR ACQUISITION OF 
INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS; EQUALIZING, 
APPROVING, CONFIRMING, AND LEVYING SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENTS TO SECURE ITS 2021 AREA 3, PHASE 
2/AREA 2, PHASE 3B BONDS ON PROPERTY SPECIALLY 
BENEFITED BY SUCH PROJECTS TO PAY THE COST 
THEREOF; PROVIDING FOR THE PAYMENT AND THE 
COLLECTION OF SUCH SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS BY THE 
METHODS PROVIDED FOR BY CHAPTERS 170, 190 AND 
197, FLORIDA STATUTES; CONFIRMING THE DISTRICT'S 
INTENTION TO ISSUE SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BONDS; 
MAKING PROVISIONS FOR TRANSFERS OF REAL 
PROPERTY TO GOVERNMENTAL BODIES; PROVIDING 
FOR THE RECORDING OF AN ASSESSMENT NOTICE; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS AND AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the Six Mile Creek Community Development District (“District”) was established 
by Rule 42GGG-1 of the Florida Land and Water Adjudicatory Commission, pursuant to the 
Uniform Community Development District Act of 1980, Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, as amended 
(the “Act”), and is validly existing under the constitution and laws of the State of Florida; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Act authorizes the District to issue bonds for the purpose, among others, of 
planning, financing, acquiring, constructing, installing, operating, and/or maintaining certain 
infrastructure, including roadways, stormwater management systems, water and sewer systems, 
recreation and security improvements, and other infrastructure within or without the boundaries of 
the District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in July 2007, the District issued its $47,820,000 in aggregate principal amount of 
Six Mile Creek Community Development District (St. Johns County, Florida) Capital Improvement 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2007 (the “Original Bonds”), to finance the design, construction, and/or 
acquisition of the 2007 Project (as hereinafter defined) necessitated by development within the 
District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the infrastructure improvements and facilities financed, in part, by the Original 
Bonds are more specifically described and identified in the District’s Improvement Plan for the 
Purpose of Special Assessment Bonds dated December 1, 2006 (the “Master Project Report”), as 



2 

supplemented by the District’s Supplemental Engineers Report for Series 2007 Capital 
Improvements dated May 25, 2007 (the “2007 Project Report”), adopted and confirmed by the 
District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolutions 2007-12, 2007-13, 2007-18, and 2007-24 (collectively 
the “Original Assessment Resolutions”), the District imposed special assessments (the “Original 
Assessments”) on developable real property within the boundaries of the District that specially 
benefits from the 2007 Project as described in the Series 2007 Assessment Resolutions and as set 
forth in the District’s Special Assessment Master Methodology Report dated March 30, 2007 (the 
“Master Assessment Report”), as supplemented by the District’s Supplemental Special Assessment 
Methodology Report, Final Numbers dated June 28, 2007 (the “First Supplemental Assessment 
Report”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the adoption of the Original Assessment Resolutions resulted in the imposition of 
a master lien against all the property within the District’s boundaries benefitting from the 
improvements described in the Master Project Report, as amended (the “Master Assessment Lien”); 
and 
 

WHEREAS, on October 15, 2014, the District adopted Resolution 2015-03, which authorized 
the bifurcation of the Original Bonds (the “Bifurcation Resolution”) 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Bifurcation Resolution, (i) a portion of the Original Bonds in the 
principal amount of $3,140,000 were exchanged for $3,140,000 in principal amount of the District’s 
Series 2014A Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds (the “Series 2014A Bonds”); and (ii) a portion 
of the Original Bonds in the principal amount of $42,700,000 were exchanged for $42,700,000 in 
principal amount of the District’s Series 2007 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds (the “Series 
2007 Bonds” and, together with the Series 2014A Bonds, the “Bifurcated Bonds”); and 

WHEREAS, in connection with the Bifurcation, on October 15, 2014 the District also adopted 
Resolution 2015-04 (the “Bifurcation Assessment Resolution”), adopting the Second Supplemental 
Special Assessment Methodology Report for the Capital Improvement Bonds Series 2014A and 
Series 2007 dated October 15, 2014 (the “Bifurcation Assessment Report”), which created two 
separate assessment areas, the Series 2014A Assessment Area and the Series 2007 Assessment Area, 
for the purpose of securing the Series 2014A Bonds and the Series 2007 Bonds respectively (the 
“Bifurcation Assessments”); and     
 
 WHEREAS, Six Mile Creek Investment Group, LLC, the primary owner of lands within the 
District (the “Landowner”) and the Owners of the Bifurcated Bonds determined that it was in their 
best interest to refund the Series 2014A Bonds with the Series 2015 Refunding Bonds (the “2015 
Refunding Bonds”), and, in connection with the issuance of the 2015 Refunding Bonds, to 
restructure the Bifurcation Assessments in order to secure debt service for both the 2015 Refunding 
Bonds and the Series 2007 Bonds; and  
 

WHEREAS, in connection with the issuance of the 2015 Refunding Bonds and the restructure 
of the Bifurcation Assessments, the Board of Supervisors of the District (“Board”) adopted 
Resolutions 2015-13 and 2015-19, which levied the assessments restructuring the Bifurcation 



3 

Assessments (the “Restructured Assessments”) and ratified and approved the completed and on-
going undertaking, installation, planning, establishing, construction, enlarging or extending, 
equipping, acquiring, operating, and/or maintaining the public improvements described in the Master 
Project Report, the 2007 Project Report and the Six Mile Creek Community Development District 
Supplemental Engineer’s Report for Series 2014 Capital Improvements dated November 12, 2014 
(the “2014 Project Report”);  

 
WHEREAS, in connection with the levy of the Restructured Assessments and the issuance of 

the 2015 Refunding Bonds, the District approved its Final Special Assessment Methodology Report 
for the 2015 Refunding Bonds and the Remaining 2007 Bonds dated November 14, 2014 (the 
“Refunding Report”); and  
 

Whereas, the District, Landowner and the Owners of the Series 2007 Bonds determined that 
it was in their best interests for the District issue its $7,315,000 Six Mile Creek Community 
Development District Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2016A and its $6,720,000 Six 
Mile Creek Community Development District Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2016B 
(collectively the “2016 Bonds”) to finance the acquisition and construction of an additional portion 
of the Improvements (as hereinafter defined), and accordingly confirmed the levy of the Master 
Assessment Lien and levied and allocated assessments to secure the 2016 Bonds (the “2016 
Assessments”); and 
 

Whereas, in connection with the issuance of the 2016 Bonds, the Board adopted Resolution 
2016-07, which levied the 2016 Assessments and ratified and approved the completed and on-going 
undertaking, installation, planning, establishing, construction, enlarging or extending, equipping, 
acquiring, operating, and/or maintaining the public improvements described in the Master Project 
Report, the 2007 Project Report, the 2014 Project and the Six Mile Creek Community Development 
District Supplemental Engineer’s Report for Series 2016 Capital Improvements dated April 12, 2016 
(the  “2016 Project Report”);  
 

WHEREAS, in connection with the levy of the 2016 Assessments and the issuance of the 2016 
Bonds, the District approved its Final Numbers Special Assessment Methodology Report for the 
Series 2016A and 2016B Capital Improvement Bonds dated April 22, 2016 (the “2016 Assessment 
Report”); and  

 
WHEREAS, the District, the Landowner and the Owners of the Series 2007 Bonds determined 

that it was in their best interests for the District issue its $10,620,000 Six Mile Creek Community 
Development District Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2017A (Assessment Area 2, 
Phase 2) and its $3,980,000 Six Mile Creek Community Development District Capital Improvement 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2017B (Assessment Area 2, Phase 2) to refund certain portions of the Series 
2016 Bonds and finance the acquisition and construction of an additional portion of the 
Improvements (collectively the “2017 Bonds”), and accordingly confirmed the levy of the Master 
Assessment Lien and levied and allocated assessments to secure the 2017 Bonds (the “2017 
Assessments”); and 

 
WHEREAS, in connection with the issuance of the 2017 Bonds, the Board adopted Resolution 

2017-16, which levied the 2017 Assessments and ratified and approved the completed and on-going 



4 

undertaking, installation, planning, establishing, construction, enlarging or extending, equipping, 
acquiring, operating, and/or maintaining the public improvements described in the Master Project 
Report, the 2007 Project Report, the 2015 Project Report, the 2016 Project Report and the Six Mile 
Creek Community Development District Supplemental Engineer’s Report for Series 2017 Capital 
Improvements dated October 27, 2017 (the “2017 Project Report”); 

 
WHEREAS, in connection with the levy of the 2017 Assessments and the issuance of the 2017 

Bonds, the District approved its Supplemental Special Assessment Methodology Report for the Series 
2017A and 2017B Capital Improvement Bonds Assessment Area 2 (Phase 2) dated November 14, 
2017 (the “2017 Assessment Report”); and  
 

WHEREAS, the District, the Landowner and the Owners of the Series 2007 Bonds determined 
that it was in their best interests for the District issue its $7,020,000 Six Mile Creek Community 
Development District Capital Improvement Revenue and Refunding Bonds, Series 2020 
(Assessment Area 2, Phase 3A) to refund certain portions of the Series 2016B Bonds and finance the 
acquisition and construction of an additional portion of the Improvements (the “2020 Bonds”), and 
accordingly confirmed the levy of the Master Assessment Lien and levied and allocated assessments 
to secure the 2020 Bonds (the “2020 Assessments”); and 
 

WHEREAS, in connection with the issuance of the 2020 Bonds, the Board adopted Resolution 
2020-09, which levied the 2020 Assessments and ratified and approved the completed and on-going 
undertaking, installation, planning, establishing, construction, enlarging or extending, equipping, 
acquiring, operating, and/or maintaining the public improvements described in the Master Project 
Report, the 2007 Project Report, the 2015 Project Report, the 2016 Project Report, the 2017 Report, 
and the Six Mile Creek Community Development District Supplemental Engineer’s Report for Series 
2020 Capital Improvements dated June 2, 2020 (the “2020 Project Report”); 
 

WHEREAS, in connection with the levy of the 2020 Assessments and the issuance of the 2020 
Bonds, the District approved its Six Mile Creek Community Development District Supplemental 
Special Assessment Methodology Report for the Capital Improvement Revenue and Refunding 
Bonds, Series 2020 (Assessment Area 2, Phase 3A) dated June 12, 2020 (the “2020 Assessment 
Report”); and  
 

WHEREAS, the District, the Landowner and the Owners of the Series 2007 Bonds determined 
that it was in their best interests for the District issue its $11,340,000 Six Mile Creek Community 
Development District Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2021 (Assessment Area 3, Phase 
1) to finance the acquisition and construction of an additional portion of the Improvements (the 
“2021 Area 3, Phase 1 Bonds”), and accordingly confirmed the levy of the Master Assessment Lien 
and levied and allocated assessments to secure the 2021 Area 3, Phase 1 Bonds (the “2021 Area 3, 
Phase 1 Assessments”); and 
 

WHEREAS, in connection with the issuance of the 2021 Area 3, Phase 1 Bonds, the Board 
adopted Resolution 2021-06, which levied the 2021 Area 3, Phase 1 Assessments and ratified and 
approved the completed and on-going undertaking, installation, planning, establishing, construction, 
enlarging or extending, equipping, acquiring, operating, and/or maintaining the public improvements 
described in the Master Project Report, the 2007 Project Report, the 2015 Project Report, the 2016 



5 

Project Report, the 2017 Project Report, the 2020 Project Report, and the Six Mile Creek Community 
Development District Supplemental Engineer’s Report for Series 2021 Capital Improvements dated 
January 19, 2021 (the “2021 Area 3, Phase 1 Project Report”); 
 

WHEREAS, in connection with the levy of the 2021 Area 3, Phase 1 Assessments and the 
issuance of the 2021 Area 3, Phase 1 Bonds, the District approved its The Six Mile Creek Community 
Development District Supplemental Special Assessment Methodology Report for the Series 2021 
Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds Assessment Area 3 (Phase 1) dated February 10, 2021 (the 
“2021 Area 3, Phase 1 Assessment Report”); and  
 

WHEREAS, District and the Landowner have determined that it is in their best interests for 
the District to issue its Series 2021 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds Assessment Area 3, Phase 
2 and Assessment Area 2, Phase 3B (the “2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Bonds”) to finance 
the acquisition and construction of an additional portion of the Improvements as described in more 
detail in that certain Six Mile Creek Community Development District Supplemental Engineers 
Report for Series 2021 AA2-3B & AA3-2 Capital Improvements dated September 10, 2021 (the 
“2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Project Report”), attached hereto as Exhibit A, and 
accordingly to confirm the levy of the Master Assessment Lien and levy and allocate assessments to 
secure the 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Bonds; and 
 

WHEREAS, the proceeds of the 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Bonds will be used in 
part to finance, acquire or construct improvements for Assessment Area 3, Phase 2 and Assessment 
Area 2, Phase 3B portions of the development;  
 

WHEREAS, the 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Bonds will be secured by the “2021 
Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Assessments”;  
 

Whereas, the 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Assessments make up a portion of the 
Master Assessment Lien; however, in light of the bifurcation and refunding and subsequent bond 
issuances described herein, the District has chosen to adopt resolutions declaring assessments and to 
hold public hearings in connection with the levy and allocation of assessments securing the 2021 
Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Bonds; and  

 
WHEREAS, the District desires to ratify and approve the completed and on-going 

undertaking, installation, planning, establishing, construction, enlarging or extending, equipping, 
acquiring, operating, and/or maintaining the Improvements described in the Master Project Report, 
the 2007 Project Report, the 2015 Project Report, the 2016 Project Report, the 2017 Project Report, 
the 2020 Project Report, the 2021 Area 3, Phase 1 Project Report, and the 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 
2, Phase 3B Project Report (collectively the “Engineer’s Report”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the District hereby determines that benefits have accrued and will continue to 

accrue to the property improved, the amount of those benefits, and that special assessments will be 
made in proportion to the benefits received as set forth in the Supplemental Special Assessment 
Methodology Report for the Series 2021 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds Assessment Area 3 
(Phase 2) and Assessment Area 2 (Phase 3B) dated September 15, 2021 (the “2021 Area 3, Phase 
2/Area 2, Phase 3B Assessment Report”), attached hereto as Exhibit B, applies the adopted Master 



6 

Assessment Report, First Supplemental Assessment Report, Bifurcation Assessment Report, 
Refunding Report, 2016 Assessment Report, 2017 Assessment Report, 2020 Assessment Report, the 
2021 Area 3, Phase1A Assessment Report (collectively, the “Assessment Report”), incorporated 
herein by reference and on file at Governmental Management Services, 475 West Town Place, Suite 
114, World Golf Village, St. Augustine, Florida 32092 (“District Records Office”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the District hereby determines that the 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B 

Assessments to be levied will not exceed the benefits to the property improved; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the District Board of Supervisors (the “Board”) has noticed and conducted a 
public hearing pursuant to Chapters 170, 190, and 197, Florida Statutes, relating to the imposition, 
levy, collection, and enforcement of such assessments; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the District to pay the cost of the Improvements, 
including the 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Project, through the levy of special 
assessments, including the 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Assessments, pursuant to 
Chapters 170, 190, and 197, Florida Statutes; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS OF THE SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT AS FOLLOWS: 

 
SECTION 1.  AUTHORITY FOR THIS RESOLUTION.  This Resolution is adopted 

pursuant to Chapters 170, 190 and 197, Florida Statutes, including without limitation, Section 
170.08, Florida Statutes. 
 

SECTION 2.  FINDINGS.  The Board hereby finds and determines as follows: 
 

(a)  The District is a local unit of special-purpose government organized and existing under 
and pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, as amended. 

 
(b)  The District is authorized by Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, to finance, fund, plan, 

establish, acquire, install, equip, operate, extend, construct, or reconstruct roadways, water and 
sewer, storm water management systems, landscape and hardscape, recreational facilities, security 
features, and other infrastructure projects and services necessitated by the development of, and 
serving lands within, the District. 
 

(c)  The District is authorized by Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, to levy and impose special 
assessments to pay all, or any part of, the cost of such infrastructure projects and services and to 
issue special assessment bonds payable from such special assessments as provided in Chapters 170, 
190 and 197, Florida Statutes. 

 
(d)  It is necessary to the public health, safety and welfare and in the best interests of the 

District that (i) the District provide the Improvements, including the 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, 
Phase 3B Project, the nature and location of which was initially described in Resolution 2021-18 and 
is shown in the Engineer’s Report, and which Improvements plans and specifications are on file in 



7 

the District Records Office; (ii) the cost of the Improvements, including the 2021 Area 3, Phase 
2/Area 2, Phase 3B Project be assessed against the lands specially benefited by the Improvements; 
and (iii) the District issue bonds to provide funds for such purposes pending the receipt of such 
special assessments. 
 

(e)  The provision of the Improvements, including the 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B 
Project, the levying of 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Assessments, and the sale and 
issuance of the 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Bonds serves a proper, essential, and valid 
public purpose and is in the best interests of the District, its landowners, and residents. 
 

(f)  In order to provide funds with which to pay the costs of the Improvements, including the 
2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Project, which are to be assessed against the benefitted 
properties more particularly described in the 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Assessment 
Report, pending the collection of the 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Assessments, it is 
necessary for the District from time to time to sell and issue its bonds, in one or more series, 
including, but not limited to the 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Bonds. 
 

(g)  By Resolution 2021-18, the Board determined to provide the Improvements, including 
the 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Project, and to defray the costs thereof by levying the 
2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Assessments on benefited property more particularly 
described in the 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Assessment Report, and expressed an 
intention to issue the 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Bonds to provide the funds needed for 
the Improvements, including the 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Project, prior to the 
collection of the 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Assessments.  Resolution 2021-18 was 
adopted in compliance with the requirements of Section 170.03, Florida Statutes, and prior to the 
time it was adopted, the requirements of Section 170.04, Florida Statutes, had been met. 
 

(h)  As directed by Resolution 2021-18, said Resolution 2021-18 was published as required 
by Section 170.05, Florida Statutes, and a copy of the publisher's affidavit of publication is on file 
with the Secretary of the Board. 
 

(i)  As directed by Resolution 2021-18, a preliminary assessment roll was adopted and filed 
with the Board as required by Section 170.06, Florida Statutes. 
 

(j)  As required by Section 170.07, Florida Statutes, upon completion of the preliminary 
assessment roll, the Board adopted Resolution 2021-19 fixing the time and place of a public hearing 
at which owners of the property to be assessed and other persons interested therein could appear 
before the Board and be heard as to (1) the propriety and advisability of making the Improvements, 
including the 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Project, (2) the cost thereof, (3) the manner of 
payment therefor, and (4) the amount thereof to be assessed against each specially benefited property 
or parcel more particularly described in the 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Assessment 
Report, and provided for publication of notice of such public hearing and individual mailed notice in 
accordance with Chapters 170, 190 and 197, Florida Statutes. 
 

(k)  Notice of such public hearing was given by publication and also by mail as required by 
Section 170.07, Florida Statutes.  Affidavits as to such publications and mailings are on file in the 



8 

office of the Secretary of the Board. 
 

(l)  On October 20, 2021, at the time and place specified in the resolution and notice referred 
to in paragraph (j) above, the Board met as an Equalization Board and heard and considered all 
complaints and testimony as to the matters described in paragraph (i) above.  The Board has made 
such modifications in the preliminary assessment roll as it deems necessary, just, and right in the 
making of the final assessment roll. 
 

(m)  Having considered the estimated costs of the Improvements, including the 2021 Area 3, 
Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Project, estimates of financing costs and all complaints and evidence 
presented at such public hearing, the Board of Supervisors of the District further finds and 
determines: 
 

(i)  that the estimated costs of the Improvements, including the 2021 Area 3, Phase 
2/Area 2, Phase 3B Project, are as specified in the 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, 
Phase 3B Project Report , attached as Exhibit A hereto and incorporated herein by 
this reference, which 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Project Report is 
hereby adopted and approved, and that the amount of such costs is reasonable and 
proper; and 

 
(ii) it is reasonable, proper, just and right to assess the cost of the Improvements, 
including the 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Project, against the properties 
specially benefited thereby as more particularly described in the 2021 Area 3, Phase 
2/Area 2, Phase 3B Assessment Report using the method determined by the Board 
set forth in the Assessment Report and the 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B 
Assessment Report attached hereto as Exhibit B and incorporated herein by this 
reference, which results in the special assessments set forth on the final assessment 
roll; and 

 
(iii) it is hereby declared that the Improvements, including the 2021 Area 3, Phase 
2/Area 2, Phase 3B Project, continue, to and will constitute a special benefit to all 
parcels of real property listed on said final assessment roll and that the benefit, in the 
case of each such parcel, is equal to or in excess of the assessments, including the 
2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Assessments, thereon when allocated as set 
forth in Exhibit B; and 

 
(iv) it is in the best interests of the District that the 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, 
Phase 3B Assessments be paid and collected as herein provided. 

 
SECTION 3.  AUTHORIZATION OF DISTRICT PROJECT.  The Improvements, 

including the 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Project are hereby authorized and approved 
and the proper officers, employees and/or agents of the District are hereby authorized and directed to 
take such further action as may be necessary or desirable to cause the same to be made. 
 

SECTION 4.  ESTIMATED COST OF THE PROJECT.  The total estimated costs of the 
Improvements, including the 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Project, and the costs to be paid 



9 

by the 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Assessments on all specially benefitted property more 
particularly described in the 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Assessment Report, are set forth 
in Exhibits A and B, respectively, hereto. 
 

SECTION 5.  EQUALIZATION, APPROVAL, CONFIRMATION AND LEVY OF 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS.  The 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Assessments on parcels 
more particularly described in the 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Assessment Report 
specially benefited by the Improvements, including the 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B 
Project, all as specified in the final assessment roll set forth in Exhibit B, attached hereto, are hereby 
equalized, approved, confirmed, and levied.  Immediately following the adoption of this Resolution, 
the 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Assessments, as reflected in the 2021 Area 3, Phase 
2/Area 2, Phase 3B Assessment Report, attached hereto as part of Exhibit B, shall be recorded by the 
Secretary of the Board of the District in a special book, to be known as the “Improvement Lien 
Book.”  The 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Assessments or assessments against each 
respective parcel shown on such final assessment roll and interest, costs and penalties thereon, as 
hereafter provided, shall be and shall remain a legal, valid, and binding first lien on such parcel until 
paid and such lien shall be coequal with the lien of all state, county, district, municipal or other 
governmental taxes and superior in dignity to all other liens, titles, and claims.  Prior to the issuance 
of any bonds, including refunding bonds, the District may, by subsequent resolution, adjust the 
acreage assigned to particular parcel identification numbers listed on the final assessment roll to 
reflect accurate apportionment of acreage within the District amongst individual parcel identification 
numbers. The District may make any other such acreage and boundary adjustments to parcels listed 
on the final assessment roll as may be necessary in the best interests of the District as determined by 
the Board by subsequent resolution.  Any such adjustment in the assessment roll shall be consistent 
with the requirements of law.  In the event the issuance of bonds, including refunding bonds, by the 
District would result in a decrease of the 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Assessments, then 
the District shall by subsequent resolution, adopted within sixty (60) days of the sale of such bonds 
at a publicly noticed meeting and without the need for further public hearing, evidence such a 
decrease and amend the final assessment roll as shown in the Improvement Lien Book to reflect such 
a decrease. Prior to the issuance of the 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Bonds, the District 
shall adopt a supplemental assessment resolution.  Such subsequent resolution shall be adopted at a 
noticed meeting of the District, and shall set forth the actual amounts financed, costs of issuance, 
expected costs of collection, and the total amount of the assessments pledged to that issue, which 
amount shall be consistent with the lien imposed by this Resolution. 
 

SECTION 6.  FINALIZATION OF ASSESSMENTS.  When all of the Improvements 
have both been constructed or otherwise provided to the satisfaction of the Board, the Board shall 
adopt a resolution accepting the same and determining the actual costs (including financing costs) 
thereof, as required by Sections 170.08 and 170.09, Florida Statutes.  Pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 170.08, Florida Statutes, regarding completion of a project funded by a particular series of 
bonds, the District shall credit to each assessment the difference, if any, between the assessments, 
including the 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Assessments, as applicable, as hereby made, 
approved, and confirmed and the actual costs incurred in completing the Improvements.  In making 
such credits, no credit shall be given for bond financing costs, capitalized interest, funded reserves, 
or bond discounts.  Such credits, if any, shall be entered in the Improvement Lien Book.  Once the 
final amount of the assessments for all of the Improvements have been determined, the term 



10 

“Assessment” shall, with respect to each parcel, mean the sum of the costs of the Improvements.  
 

SECTION 7.  PAYMENT OF 2021 AREA 3, PHASE 2/AREA 2, PHASE 3B 
ASSESSMENTS, AND METHOD OF COLLECTION. 
 
 (a)  The 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Assessments may be paid in not more than 
thirty (30) substantially equal consecutive annual installments of principal and interest.  Unless 
otherwise waived, 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Assessments may be paid in full without 
interest at any time within thirty (30) days after the completion of the Improvements and the 
adoption by the Board of a resolution accepting the Improvements; provided, however, that the 
Board shall at any time make such adjustments by resolution, at a noticed meeting of the Board, to 
that payment schedule as may be necessary and in the best interests of the District to account for 
changes in long and short term debt as actually issued by the District. At any time subsequent to 
thirty (30) days after the Improvements have been completed and a resolution accepting the 
Improvements has been adopted by the Board, the 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B 
Assessments may be prepaid in full including interest amounts to the next succeeding interest 
payment date or to the second succeeding interest payment date if such a prepayment is made within 
forty-five (45) calendar days before an interest payment date. The owner of property subject to the 
2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Assessments may prepay the entire remaining balance of the 
2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Assessments at any time, or a portion of the remaining 
balance of the 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Assessments if there is also paid, in addition 
to the prepaid principal balance of the 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Assessments, an 
amount equal to the interest that would otherwise be due on such prepaid amount on the next 
succeeding interest payment date, or, if prepaid during the forty-five day period preceding such 
interest payment date, to the interest payment date following such next succeeding interest payment 
date.  Prepayment of 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Assessments does not entitle the 
property owner to any discounts for early payment.  

 
 (b)  The District may elect to use the method of collecting the 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, 
Phase 3B Assessments authorized by Sections 197.3632 and 197.3635, Florida Statutes (the 
“Uniform Method”). The District has heretofore taken necessary actions to comply with the 
provisions of said Sections 197.3632 and 197.3635, Florida Statutes.  The 2021 Area 3, Phase 
2/Area 2, Phase 3B Assessments may be subject to all of the collection provisions of Chapter 197, 
Florida Statutes.  Notwithstanding the above, in the event the Uniform Method of collecting its2021 
Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Assessments is not available to the District in any year, or if 
determined by the District to be in its best interests, and subject to the terms of the Indenture, the 
2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Assessments may be collected as is otherwise permitted by 
law.  In particular, the District may, in its sole discretion, collect the 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, 
Phase 3B Assessments by directly billing landowners and enforcing said collection in any manner 
authorized by law.  Any prejudgment interest on delinquent assessments that are directly billed shall 
accrue at the applicable rate of any bonds or other debt instruments secured by the 2021 Area 3, 
Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Assessments.  The decision to collect 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 
3B Assessments by any particular method – e.g., on the tax roll or by direct bill – does not mean that 
such method will be used to collect 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Assessments in future 
years, and the District reserves the right in its sole discretion to select collection methods in any 
given year, regardless of past practices.  



11 

 
(c)  For each year the District uses the Uniform Method, the District shall enter into an 

agreement with the Tax Collector of St. Johns County who may notify each owner of a lot or parcel 
within the District of the amount of the special assessment, including interest thereon, in the manner 
provided in Section 197.3635, Florida Statutes. 
 

SECTION 8.  APPLICATION OF TRUE-UP PAYMENTS.   
 

 (a)  There may be required from time to time certain true-up payments as specified in the 
2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Assessment Report.  As parcels of land or lots subject to the 
2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Assessments are platted, the 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, 
Phase 3B Assessments securing the 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Bonds shall be allocated 
as set forth in the 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Assessment Report.  In furtherance 
thereof, at such time as parcels or land or lots are platted, it shall be an express condition of the lien 
established by this Resolution that any and all initial plats of any portion of the lands within the 
District, as the District’s boundaries may be amended from time to time, shall be presented to the 
District Manager for review, approval, and calculation of the percentage of acres and numbers of 
units which will be, after the plat, considered to be developed.  No further action by the Board of 
Supervisors shall be required. The District’s review shall be limited solely to this function and the 
enforcement of the lien established by this Resolution.  The District Manager shall cause the 2021 
Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Assessments to be reallocated to the units being platted and the 
remaining property subject to the 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Assessments in accordance 
with the 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Assessment Report, cause such reallocation to be 
recorded in the District’s Improvement Lien Book, and shall perform the true-up calculations 
described in the 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Assessment Report, which process is 
incorporated herein as if fully set forth.  Any resulting true-up payment shall become due and 
payable that tax year by the landowner(s) of record of the remaining property, in addition to the 
regular assessment installment payable with respect to the remaining developable acres.   
 
 (b)  The District will take all necessary steps to ensure that true-up payments are made in a 
timely fashion to ensure its debt service obligations are met.  The District shall record all true-up 
payments in its Improvement Lien Book. 
 
 (c)  The foregoing is also based on the District's understanding with Landowner that it 
intends to develop the unit numbers and types shown in the 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B 
Assessment Report, on the property subject to the 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B 
Assessments and is intended to provide a formula to ensure that the appropriate ratio of the 2021 
Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Assessments to unplatted acres is maintained if fewer units are 
developed.  However, no action by the District prohibits more than the maximum units shown in the 
2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Assessment Report from being developed.  In no event shall 
the District collect 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Assessments pursuant to this Resolution 
in excess of the total debt service related to the 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Bonds, 
including all costs of financing and interest.  The District recognizes that such events as regulatory 
requirements and market conditions may affect the timing and scope of the development in the 
District.  If the strict application of the True-Up Methodology to any assessment reallocation 
pursuant to this paragraph would result in 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Assessments 



12 

collected in excess of the District's total debt service obligation for the 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, 
Phase 3B Bonds, the Board shall by resolution take appropriate action to equitably reallocate the 
2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Assessments, as applicable.  Further, upon the District’s 
review of the final plat for the property subject to the 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B 
Assessments, any unallocated 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Assessments, as applicable, 
shall become due and payable and must be paid prior to the District’s approval of that plat.  
 
 (d)  The application of the monies received from true-up payments or assessments to the 
actual debt service obligations of the District, whether long term or short term, shall be set forth in 
the supplemental assessment resolution adopted for the 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B 
Bonds.  Such subsequent resolution shall be adopted at a noticed meeting of the District, and shall 
set forth the actual amounts financed, costs of issuance, expected costs of collection, and the total 
amount of the assessments pledged to that issue, which amount shall be consistent with the lien 
imposed by this Resolution.   
 

SECTION 9. GOVERNMENT PROPERTY; TRANSFERS OF PROPERTY TO 
UNITS OF LOCAL, STATE, AND FEDERAL GOVERNMENT.  Property owned by units of 
local, state, and federal government shall not be subject to the 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 
3B Assessments without specific consent thereto.  In addition, property owned by a property owners 
association or homeowners association that is exempt from special assessments under Florida law 
shall not be subject to the 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Assessments.  If at any time, any 
real property on which 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Assessments are imposed by this 
Resolution is sold or otherwise transferred to a unit of local, state, or federal government (without 
consent of such governmental unit to the imposition of 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B 
Assessments, thereon), all future unpaid 2021 Area 3, Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Assessments for 
such tax parcel shall become due and payable immediately prior to such transfer without any further 
action of the District. 
 

SECTION 10.  ASSESSMENT NOTICE. The District’s Secretary is hereby directed to 
record a general Notice of Assessments in the Official Records of St. Johns County, Florida, which 
shall be updated from time to time in a manner consistent with changes in the boundaries of the 
District.   
 

SECTION 11.  SEVERABILITY.  If any section or part of a section of this Resolution be 
declared invalid or unconstitutional, the validity, force and effect of any other section or part of a 
section of this Resolution shall not thereby be affected or impaired unless it clearly appears that such 
other section or part of a section of this Resolution is wholly or necessarily dependent upon the 
section or part of a section so held to be invalid or unconstitutional. 
 

SECTION 12.  CONFLICTS.  All resolutions or parts thereof in conflict herewith are, to 
the extent of such conflict, superseded and repealed. 
 

SECTION 13.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall become effective upon its 
adoption. 
 
 APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 20th day of October, 2021. 



13 

 
      SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY  
      DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
  
 
________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   Chairman, Board of Supervisors 
       
 
Exhibit A: Six Mile Creek Community Development District Supplemental Engineers Report for 
Series 2021 AA2-3B & AA3-2 Capital Improvements dated September 10, 2021 
 
Exhibit B: Supplemental Special Assessment Methodology Report for the Series 2021 Capital 
Improvement Revenue Bonds Assessment Area 3 (Phase 2) and Assessment Area 2 (Phase 3B) dated 
September 15, 2021 



SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

SUPPLEMENTAL ENGINEERS REPORT
For

SERIES 2021 AA2-3B & AA3-2 CAPITAL
IMPROVEMENTS

Prepared for

Board of Supervisors
Six Mile Creek

Community Development District

Prepared by

14775 Old St. Augustine Road
Jacksonville, Florida 32258

904-642-8990

E 21-226                                                                                                  September 10, 2021

ETm 
En9lcind· Thim:, & millczr,lnc. 
VISION • EXPERIENCE • RESULTS 



September 10, 2021

Mr. Gregg Kern
Chairman, Board of Supervisors
Six Mile Community Development District
475 West Town Place, Suite 114
St. Augustine, Florida  32092

Reference: Supplemental Addendum to the Improvement Plan dated December 1, 2006

Dear Mr. Kern:

Pursuant to your request, England, Thims & Miller, Inc. has prepared the enclosed report in an effort to provide
information regarding the anticipated capital improvements to be funded in the year 2021.  This report is a supplement to
the adopted Six Mile Creek CDD Improvement Plan dated December 1, 2006, and the Supplemental Engineer’s Reports
dated May 25, 2007, November 12, 2014, April 12, 2016, June 5, 2017, October 27, 2017, June 3, 2020, and January 19,
2021.

Please don’t hesitate to contact me if you have any questions or comments regarding this report.

Sincerely,

ENGLAND, THIMS & MILLER, INC.

Scott A. Wild, P.E.
Executive Vice President/Shareholder

SAW/shb

Enclosures

www.etminc.com 
tel 904-642-8990 • fax 904-646-9485 

14775 Old St. Augustine Road• Jacksonville, Florida 32258 

ENGINEERS• PLANNERS• SURVEYORS• GIS • LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS 
• • Jacksonville • Lake Mary• Palm Coast 

England-Thim) & mlllC!r, Inc. CA-00002584 LC-0000316 



Page 1

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Six Mile Creek Community Development District (The “Six Mile Creek CDD” or the
“District”) is a 1,289 ± acre community development district located in St. Johns County, Florida.
(Refer to Plate 1, location map).  The land within the District consists of a parcel within the Saint
Johns DRI, referred to herein as the “South Tract”.  The authorized land uses within the District
include residential development as well as substantial open space and recreational amenities.  The
full development within the Six Mile Creek CDD boundaries is anticipated to include
approximately:

TYPE Acreage
Acres

Residential
Units

Residential 780± 2278
Amenity Village 7±
Community Park 30±
Neighborhood Parks System 17±
Wetlands 357±
Upland Buffer 98±
TOTALS 1289± 2278

(Refer to Plate 2 for the map of the District boundaries and Plate 3 for legal description of the District.)

In anticipation of development within its boundaries, on March 30, 2007 the District adopted its
Improvement Plan dated December 1, 2006, describing master and neighborhood infrastructure
improvements the District intended to finance (or advance finance), construct, install and/or
acquire within and adjacent to the boundaries of the District.  Subsequently, the District adopted
the Supplemental Engineer’s Reports dated May 25, 2007, November 12, 2014, April 12, 2016,
June 5, 2017, October 27, 2017, June 3, 2020, and January 19, 2021.  The purpose of this report is
to supplement the existing Improvement Plan and Supplemental Engineer’s Reports in an effort to
identify infrastructure improvements that will be funded in whole or part with proceeds from the
issuance of the Six Mile Creek Community Development District (St. Johns County, Florida)
Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2021 AA2-3B & AA3-2 related to the next phase of
development within the District.1 The proposed infrastructure improvements are within
Assessment Area 2 (Phase 3B), referred to as East Parcel Phase 2 within the TrailMark
development, and Assessment Area 3 (Phase 2), referred to as Phase 10 within the TrailMark
development. The anticipated costs to construct and/or install the Series 2021 AA2-3B & AA3-2
Project are set forth in Tables 1A, 1B and 1C.

1 The District anticipates that it will issue additional series of bonds in the future to fund the construction,
acquisition and installation of portions of the Improvement Plan not funded by the Series 2007, Series 2016, Series
2017, Series 2020, and Series 2021 Bonds.



Page 2

The unit distributions for previous assessment areas are as follows:

Assessment Area 1    Assessment Area 2 (Phase 1) Assessment Area 2 (Phase 2)
43’ lots 27    43’ lots 160 43’ lots   69
53’lots 25    53’ lots   63 53’ lots 216
63’lots 81    70’ lots   21 63’ lots   34
70’ lots 19    80’ lots   61 70’ lots     8
Total  Lots      152    Total Lots              305 80’ lots   74

Total Lots 401

Assessment Area 2 (Phase 3A)    Assessment Area 3 (Phase 1A)          Assessment Area 3 (Phase 1B)
43’ Lots 57     43’ Lots 76             43’ Lots 107
53’ Lots 62     53’ Lots 74             53’ Lots   61
63’ Lots 62     63’ Lots 45             Total Lots              168
Total Lots            181             Total Lots            195

The anticipated unit distribution for the Series 2021 AA2-3B & AA3-2 Bonds is as follows:

Proposed Unit Mix for Series 2021
AA2-3B & AA3-2 Bonds

Assessment Area 2 (Phase 3B)
2021 AA2-3B & AA3-2 Bonds

(Series 2021 AA2-3B & AA3-2 Project)
Lot Size (Feet) Number

43 89
53 79
63 39

TOTAL 207

Proposed Unit Mix for Series 2021
AA2-3B & AA3-2 Bonds
Assessment Area 3 (Phase 2)
2021 AA2-3B & AA3-2 Bonds

(Series 2021 AA2-3B & AA3-2 Project)
Lot Size (Feet) Number

632 23
63 48

TOTAL 71

The unit distribution for the remaining district lands has not yet been determined.

In comparison with the Improvement Plan and Supplemental Engineer’s Reports, the Master and
Neighborhood Infrastructure costs have been updated to present the estimated cost for the Series
2021 AA2-3B & AA3-2 Project.

_____________________

2 Proposed unit mix includes 23 proposed lots within lands being added to the District under a proposed boundary
amendment being completed at this time.



Page 3

Plate 4 depicts the limits and area for Assessment Area 2 (Phase 3B) and Assessment Area 3 (Phase
2).  It also depicts the currently anticipated lot mix and total unit count for and Assessment Area 2
(Phase 3B) and Assessment Area 3 (Phase 2).  Plates 5 & 5A provide the legal description for
Assessment Area 2 (Phase 3B).  Plates 6 & 6A provide the legal description for Assessment Area
3 (Phase 2).

The limits of Assessment Area 1, Assessment Area 2 (Phases 1, 2, 3A, 3B, and 3C), and
Assessment Area 3 (Phases 1A, 1B, 2, 3, and 4) are also depicted on Plate 4, together with the
existing lot mix and total unit count within Assessment Area 1, Assessment Area 2 (Phases 1, 2
and 3A), and Assessment Area 3 (Phases 1A and 1B).



\\etm-file-02\projects\2021\21-226\landdev\supplemental engineers report\4 - background.docx

1

MASTER INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS

The following sections of this report describe those Master Infrastructure Improvements that benefit Assessment
Area 1, Assessment Area 2, Phases 1 through 3B, and Assessment Area 3, Phases 1A through 2, Project areas.
These include transportation and miscellaneous other improvements, such as common area landscape/hardscape
and a master lift station.

TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENTS

The Six Mile Creek CDD presently intends to finance, design and construct certain master transportation facilities
necessary for development within the District boundaries.  These improvements have been designed and will be
constructed to St. Johns County standards.  Landscaping and irrigation of completed roadways will be operated
and maintained by the District, although the roadways themselves will be owned and maintained by St. Johns
County.

This total proposed improvement includes approximately 14,200 linear feet of two-lane urban section roadway,
with appropriate turn lanes (“Loop Road”).  No portion of the Loop Road is within Assessment Area 2 (Phase 3B)
or Assessment Area 3 (Phase 2), nor is it included as part of the 2021 AA2-3B & AA3-2 Project.

MISCELLANEOUS IMPROVEMENTS

Utility Improvements
The Six Mile Creek CDD financed, designed and constructed certain water utility infrastructure necessary for
development within the District boundaries.  These improvements were designed and constructed to St. Johns
County standards, and are owned and maintained by St. Johns County. This includes construction of master lift
stations, water mains, force mains, and gravity sewer mains. It is anticipated that the cost of construction for these
improvements will be partially reimbursed to the District through the utility agreement described below.

In accordance with the Six Mile Creek Water and Sewer Connection Fee Reimbursement Agreement adopted
January 29, 1999 (“Agreement”), St. Johns County will reimburse the cost of construction of the transmission
components of the water and sewer facilities located within and adjacent to the Six Mile Creek CDD.  This
reimbursement will be paid from one-third of the connection fees collected by St. Johns County at the time
connection fees are paid.  The reimbursement for a completed portion of the infrastructure must be completed
within a 12-year period following the construction of the improvement.  It is anticipated that $4,311,421 (of which
$894,438 has been received to date) of the master utility infrastructure cost will be reimbursed to the District
through this Agreement and that the District will use the funds to construct additional portions of the
improvements described in the Improvement Plan.

Common Area Landscape/Hardscape
The Six Mile Creek CDD presently intends to finance, design and construct certain common area landscape and
hardscape improvements to benefit the development within the District boundaries.  These improvements will be
designed and constructed to St. Johns County standards, and will be owned and maintained by the District.
Landscaping will be installed continuously along the length of the Loop Road and within other areas of the
District.  These improvements also include soft costs for all common area improvements.

The Six Mile Creek CDD also intends to finance, design and construct an expansion to the existing amenity
center  to benefit the development within the District boundaries.  These improvements will be designed and
constructed to St. Johns County standards, and will be owned and maintained by the District.  These
improvements also include soft costs for the amenity center expansion improvements



\\etm-file-02\projects\2021\21-226\landdev\supplemental engineers report\4 - background.docx

2

BASIS OF COST ESTIMATE FOR
INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS

The following is the basis for the infrastructure cost estimates:

Ø Water and Sewer Facilities have been designed in accordance with SJCUD and FDEP standards.

Ø The stormwater management system has been designed per SJRWMD and SJC standards.

Ø The engineering, permitting, construction inspection and other soft cost fees have been included in the
estimated cost.

Ø Cost estimates contained in this report are based upon year 2021 dollars.

Ø Costs have been included for street lighting and electrical conduit on all roadways in accordance with
FPL standards for the Series 2021 AA2-3B & AA3-2 Project.

NEIGHBORHOOD INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS

The Series 2021 AA2-3 Project includes the cost of the neighborhood infrastructure improvements for 207 single
family units in Assessment Area 2 (Phase 3B) and 71 single family units in Assessment Area 3 (Phase 2), as
depicted on Plate 4.

The Six Mile Creek CDD presently intends to finance certain infrastructure improvements for each neighborhood
within the District boundaries.  The improvements include complete construction of the basic infrastructure for
each neighborhood, including but not limited to: clearing and grubbing, earthwork, water and sewer underground
utility construction, drainage, stormwater management, grassing, sodding, underground electrical conduit and
neighborhood street lighting.

The cost estimate for the roadways included in the neighborhood infrastructure improvements is based upon curb
and gutter section roadways with variable pavement widths, within variable width rights-of-way.  The clearing,
grubbing and earthwork estimates include all work necessary for the complete right-of-way area, and include
utility easements for underground electrical conduit for roadway street lighting.  Disturbed areas within the rights-
of-way, which are outside of the paved areas, will be sodded and/or seeded and grassed in order to provide erosion
and sediment control in accordance with St. Johns County standards.

Stormwater management cost estimates included in the neighborhood infrastructure improvements provide for the
attenuation and treatment of stormwater runoff from the project roadways in accordance with St. Johns River
Water Management District and St. Johns County standards.  Costs include detention pond construction, outfall
control structures, and any site fill required to provide a complete stormwater management system.

Water and sewer cost estimates included in the neighborhood infrastructure improvements consist of the
underground water transmission system, wastewater (sewer) collection system, and lift station serving the
development.  Costs include piping, manholes, valves, services, and all appurtenances required in order to
construct the system in accordance with St. Johns County Utility Department, and Florida Department of
Environmental Protection standards.

The neighborhood infrastructure improvements have been designed and will be constructed to St. Johns County,
St. Johns County Utility Department, Florida Department of Environmental Protection, and St. Johns River Water
Management District standards.  Roadways shall be owned and maintained by St. Johns County in Assessment
Area 3 (Phase 2) and owned and maintained privately in Assessment Area 2 (Phase 3B).  Water and sewer facilities
shall be owned and maintained by St. Johns County Utility Department.  The neighborhood street lighting shall
be leased from FPL by the District, and the electrical cost to operate it is presently expected to be paid by the
District.  The District shall maintain stormwater management improvements.



\\etm-file-02\projects\2021\21-226\landdev\supplemental engineers report\4 - background.docx

3

TABLE 1A
NEIGHBORHOOD INFRASTRUCTURE SUMMARY OF COSTS FOR

ASSESSMENT AREA 2 (PHASE 3B)
SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

Improvement Description Estimated
Costs

MASTER INFRASTRUCTURE
Traffic Signal $375,000
Common Area Landscape/Hardscape $525,000
Amenity Center Expansion $1,875,000

NEIGHBORHOOD  INFRASTRUCTURE
Sanitary Sewer, Lift Stations and Force Mains $1,462,240
Stormwater Management $1,061,760
Neighborhood Roadways $5,201,740
Street Lighting $180,000
Water Distribution System $814,240
Common Area Landscape/Hardscape $720,000

MASTER & NEIGHBORHOOD INFRASTRUCTURE TOTAL $12,214,980

TABLE 1B
NEIGHBORHOOD INFRASTRUCTURE SUMMARY OF COSTS FOR

ASSESSMENT AREA 3 (PHASE 2)
SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

Improvement Description Estimated
Costs

MASTER INFRASTRUCTURE
Traffic Signal $125,000
Common Area Landscape/Hardscape $175,000
Amenity Center Expansion $625,000

NEIGHBORHOOD  INFRASTRUCTURE
Sanitary Sewer $521,838
Stormwater Management $541,088
Neighborhood Roadways $2,251,088
Street Lighting $110,500
Water Distribution System $381,588
Common Area Landscape/Hardscape $250,000

MASTER & NEIGHBORHOOD INFRASTRUCTURE TOTAL $4,981,102

INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS PERMIT STATUS

Regulatory permits necessary for construction of infrastructure improvements within Assessment Area 2 (Phase
3B) and Assessment Area 3 (Phase 2) have either been applied for or received.  The current status of the
regulatory permits is reflected in Exhibit A.  It is our opinion that there are no technical reasons that would
prohibit the implementation of the plans presented herein and that all permits/approvals not already issued but
are necessary for the Series 2021 AA2-3B & AA3-2 Project should be obtained in the ordinary course of
development.



\\etm-file-02\projects\2021\21-226\LandDev\Supplemental Engineers Report\Permit Summary 2021-07-02.docx

EXHIBIT "A"
PERMIT STATUS

Assessment Area 2 (Phase 3B)
08/12/2021

Item # Permit Agency File Number / Permit
Number Description Grantor Grantee Issue Date Expiration Date

1 ACOE N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

2 SJRWMD In Progress Individual Permit SJRWMD Six Mile Creek Investment Group, LLC Pending

3 SJRWMD In Progress Consumptive Use Permit SJRWMD Six Mile Creek Investment Group, LLC Pending

4 St. Johns County In Progress Construction Plan Approval St. Johns County Six Mile Creek CDD Pending

5  FDEP In Progress Water Distribution System Permit FDEP Six Mile Creek Investment Group, LLC Pending

6 FDEP In Progress Sanitary Sewer Collection System Permit FDEP Six Mile Creek Investment Group, LLC Pending

Assessment Area 3 (Phase 2)
08/12/2021

Item # Permit Agency File Number / Permit
Number Description Grantor Grantee Issue Date Expiration Date

1 ACOE N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

2 SJRWMD In Progress Individual Permit SJRWMD Six Mile Creek Investment Group, LLC Pending

3 St. Johns County In Progress Construction Plan Approval St. Johns County Six Mile Creek CDD Pending

4  FDEP In Progress Water Distribution System Permit FDEP Six Mile Creek Investment Group, LLC Pending

5  FDEP In Progress Sanitary Sewer Collection System Permit FDEP Six Mile Creek Investment Group, LLC Pending



\\etm-file-02\projects\2021\21-226\landdev\supplemental engineers report\4 - background.docx

4

APPENDIX
Description

Plate No.

1 Location Map

2 District Boundary Map

3 Legal Description – District Boundary

4 Master Site Plan

5 Legal Description – Assessment Area 2 (Phase 3B)

6 – 6A Legal Description – Assessment Area 3 (Phase 2)

7 Sanitary Sewer Lift Station

7A Sanitary Sewer Forcemains (Series 2021 AA2-3B & AA3-2 Project)

8 Stormwater Management Plan

8A Stormwater Management Plan (Series 2021 AA2-3B & AA3-2 Project)

9 Neighborhood Roadways

9A Neighborhood Roadways (Series 2021 AA2-3B & AA3-2 Project)

10 Street Lighting

10A Street Lighting (Series 2021 AA2-3B & AA3-2 Project)

11 Water Distribution System

11A Water Distribution System (Series 2021 AA2-3B & AA3-2 Project)

12 Sanitary Sewer Collection System

12A Sanitary Sewer Collection System (Series 2021 AA2-3B & AA3-2 Project)



PROJECT
SITE

LOCATION MAP
SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

England• Thim) 
======= - & millczr ,Inc. 
- - ENGINEERS - PLANNERS 
- - SURVEYORS-LANDSCAPEARCHITECTS 
1111a. ~ 14775 St. Augustine Road 
@"§.§~~~ Jacksonville, Florida 32258 
~,,:jjfff:ifff!;. ::ii:.':...~ Certificate of Authorization No.: 2584 

Phone No. (904) 642-8990 
Fox No. (904) 646-9485 

-111.L 

.ilk. 

-111.L 

0 

I 

~--r-} 
I __ I 

I I 

'.._____J 

Cree 

GRAPHIC SCALE 
3000 6000 

I ;_1 __ _ 
12000 

I cliL 

--

___ JI/a. , VV \. l 
,,: -_JI SIMO 
-IW,_ IS 

S!)(Mllt M 
...... 

Ntc 

""'-
Jll,. -.,, 

-·n 
--_..,., 

--'\ 
.~-

~-✓-

u 
qs 

(1) 
_D 

ETM. NO. 21-226 

'"-I "') 

DATE: AUGUST 12, 2021 

SCALE: 1'' = 6,000' 

PLATE NO: 

-CT: -....JIik.. 

JI/. 



DISTRICT BOUNDARY MAP
SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

GRAPHIC SCALE 
0 1500 3000 

England• Thim) 
======= - & millczr ,Inc. 
- - ENGINEERS - PLANNERS 
- - SURVEYORS-LANDSCAPEARCHITECTS 
1111a. ~ 14775 St. Augustine Road 
@"§.§~~~ Jacksonville, Florida 32258 
~,,:jjfff:ifff!;. ::ii:.':...~ Certificate of Authorization No: 2584 

Phone No. (904) 642-8990 
Fox No. (904) 646-9485 

6000 

AJ 
0 
0 
o_ 

w 

s2·w 

4:2e·w 

s·s2•w 
o· 
·30'16"W 
00' 
3·oo·w 
o· 
·45'57•w 

115.71' 

1282.14 ACRES 
(CDD AREA) 

0 
0 

0 
0:: 

R-2392.01' 
?z14'28'3Q" 
L-=604.31' 
T-303.7r 
CH•6◊2.70' 
B=S05-08'51"w 

OUTPARCEL (NOT 
TO BE INCLUDED IN 
COD) OWNER: SIX 
MILE CREEK 
INVESTMENT GROUP, 
LLC 

+-,I 
+-,I 

Q) 

u 
0 

o__ 

Bakersville 

ETM. NO. 21-226 

DATE: AUGUST 12, 2021 

SCALE: 1'' = 3,000' 

PLATE NO: 2 



Six Mile Creek Community Development District

A part of Sections 31 and 38, Township 6 South, Range 28 East, together with a part of Sections
6, 38 and 41, Township 7 South, Range 28 East, St. Johns County, Florida, being more
particularly described as follows: for a Point of Reference, commence at the intersection of the
Southerly line of said section 41, Township 7 South, Range 28 East, with the Westerly
right-of-way line of County road no. 13a (a 100.00 foot right-of-way as now established): thence
North 71°03'40" West, along the said South line of section 41, a distance of 1065.59 feet to the
Point of Beginning; thence continue North 71°03'40" West, along the Southerly line of said
section 41, a distance of 3030.75 feet; thence North 60°13'49" West, continuing along said
section line, a distance of 1734.02 feet to the common corner to Sections 41, 5 and 6; thence
South 03°24'47" East, along the Easterly line of said section 6, a distance of 3052.10 feet; thence
South 03°20'35" East, along the Easterly line of said section 38, a distance of 2086.25 feet;
thence North 86°59'59" West, a distance of 863.15 feet to the waters of Six Mile Creek; thence
North 46°05'12' West, along the waters of said Six Mile Creek, a distance of 1430.00 feet;
thence North 45°06'48" West, along the waters of Six Mile Creek, a distance of 1973.08 feet;
thence North 15°52'42" West, along the waters of said Six Mile Creek, a distance of 639.84 feet;
thence North 07°08'17" East, a distance of 540.00 feet to a point in the division line between
section 6 and 38; thence North 89°07'35" West, along said division line, a distance of 540.00
feet; thence North 01°20'11" West, along the Westerly line of the North 28 acres of the
Northeast one quarter and Northwest one quarter of said section Six, a distance of 2665.80 feet
to a point in said Six Mile Creek; thence with the waters of said Six Mile Creek, the following
fourteen (14) courses: course no. 1) North 21°46'57" West, a distance of 115.71 feet; course no.
2) North 04°03'00" West, a distance of 471.70 feet; course no. 3) North 15°30'16" West, a
distance of 530.00 feet; course no. 4) North 74°15'52" West, a distance of 160.00 feet; course
no. 5) North 31°54'28" West, a distance of 147.65 feet; course no. 6) North 14°54'52" West, a
distance of 655.70 feet; course no. 7) North 58°35'33" West, a distance of 336.17 feet; course
no. 8) North 38°53'09" West, a distance of 291.63 feet; course no. 9) North 07°47'32" East, a
distance of 480.55 feet; course no. 10) North 31°04'47" West, a distance of 88.74 feet; course
no. 11) North 20°38'46" East, a distance of 219.13 feet; course no. 12) North 32°56'28" West, a
distance of 141.49 feet; course no. 13) North 08°25'22" East, a distance of 515.92 feet; course
no. 14) North 15°06'25" West, a distance of 651.10 feet; thence North 77°45'24" East, leaving
the waters of Six Mile Creek, a distance of 2251.55 feet; thence South 40°06'20" East, a distance
of 3560.03 feet; thence South 85°45'56" East, a distance of 4260.63 feet to a point in the
division line between said section 38 and section 37; thence South 01°06'48" East, along said
Westerly line of section 37, a distance of 258.39 feet to the Southwest corner of said section 37;
thence South 89°40'57" East, along the South line of said section 37, a distance of 1179.79 feet
to the Northwest corner of a 30.00 foot wide drainage easement, as recorded in deed book 182,
page 133; thence South 37°05'42" East, a distance of 930.18 feet; thence South 12°23'05" West,
along a line parallel with and lying 50.00 foot Westerly of when measured at right angles to the
Westerly right-of-way line of state road no. 13a (a 100.00 foot right-of-way as now established),
a distance of 1482.90 feet to the point of curve, concave Easterly, having a radius of 2392.01
feet; thence Southwesterly, continuing along said parallel line and along the arc of said curve, an

arc distance of 604.31 feet, said arc being subtended by a chord bearing of South 05°08'51"
West and a chord distance of 602.70 feet to the point of tangency of said curve; thence South
02°05'24" East, continuing along said parallel line, a distance of 868.99 feet; thence South
87°54'35" West, leaving said parallel line, a distance of 944.62 feet; thence South 02°05'25"
East, a distance of 759.38 feet to the Point of Beginning.

Containing 1288.95 acres more or less.

LEGAL DESCRIPTION - DISTRICT BOUNDARY
SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

En9land • Thim) ETM. NO. 21-226 

- -&fflillczr,lnc. DATE: AUGUST 12, 2021 - - ENGINEERS-PLANNERS - - SURVEYORS-LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS 
1" 3,000' - ..- 14775 St. Augustine Rood SCALE: = 

~~S~~~ Jacksonville, Florido 32258 
~== =,,'=,.~ Certificate of Authorization No.: 2584 

Phone No. (904~ 642-8990 PLATE NO: 3 Fox No. (904) 46-9485 



LEGEND:

ASSESSMENT
AREA 2 (PHASE 2)

(2017 )

ASSESSMENT
AREA 1
(2015 )

ASSESSMENT
AREA 2 (PHASE 2)

(2017 )

ASSESSMENT
AREA 2 (PHASE 1)

(2016)

ASSESSMENT
AREA 2 (PHASE 2)

(2017 )

ASSESSMENT
AREA 3 (PHASE 1A)

(2021)

ASSESSMENT
AREA 3 (PHASE 1B)

(2021)

ASSESSMENT
AREA 2 (PHASE 1)
(2016)

ASSESSMENT
AREA 2 (PHASE 3C)
(FUTURE )

ASSESSMENT
AREA 1
(2015 )

ASSESSMENT
AREA 1
(2015 )

ASSESSMENT
AREA 2 (PHASE 3A)
(2020)

ASSESSMENT
AREA 2 (PHASE 1)
(2016)

ASSESSMENT AREA 3
(PHASES 3 &4 )
(FUTURE)

ASSESSMENT
AREA 1
(2015)

ASSESSMENT
AREA 3 (PHASE 2)
(CURRENT )

ASSESSMENT AREA 1 (152.20 Ac.) [2015]

ASSESSMENT AREA 2 (PHASE 1) (112.68 Ac.) [2016]

ASSESSMENT AREA 2 (PHASE 2) (158.31 Ac.) [2017]

ASSESSMENT AREA 2 (PHASE 3) (272.30 Ac.) [2020/ FUTURE]

ASSESSMENT AREA 3 (PHASE 1) (173.62 Ac.) [2021/ FUTURE]

ASSESSMENT AREA 3 (PHASE 2) (81.11 Ac.) [2021]

ASSESSMENT AREA 3 (PHASES 3 & 4) (180.94 Ac.) [FUTURE]

70-ACRE PARCEL

ASSESSMENT
AREA 2 (PHASE 3B)
(CURRENT )

LOTS
43' 53' 63' 70' 80' TOTAL

27 25 81 19 -1 [2015] 152

160 - 63 21 612 (PHASE 1) [2016] 305

69 216 34 8 742 (PHASE 2) [2017] 401

57 62 62 - - 1812 (PHASE 3A)
[AGE RESTRICTED - 2020]

89 79 39 - - 2072 (PHASE 3B)
[AGE RESTRICTED - FUTURE]

76 55 34 - - 1652 (PHASE 3C)
[AGE RESTRICTED - FUTURE]

76 74 45 - -3 (PHASE 1A) [2021] 195

107 61 - - -3 (PHASE 1B) [2021] 168

ASSESSMENT AREA

- - 71 - -3 (PHASE 2) [2021] * 71

101 68 14 - -3 (PHASE 3) [FUTURE] 183

92 59 21 - -3 (PHASE 4) [FUTURE] 172
* PROPOSED UNIT MIX INCLUDES 23 PROPOSED LOTS WITHIN THE LANDS BEING
ADDED TO THE DISTRICT UNDER A PROPOSED BOUNDARY AMENDMENT BEING
COMPLETED AT THIS TIME.

GRAPHIC SCALE 
1000 2000 4000 

ETM. NO. 21-226 



A PORTION OF THE ANTONIO HUERTAS GRANT, SECTION 41, TOWNSHIP 7 SOUTH, RANGE 28
EAST, ST. JOHNS COUNTY, FLORIDA, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS;

BEGIN, AT THE SOUTHWESTERLY CORNER OF THE PLAT OF TRAILMARK EAST PARCEL-PHASE
1, AS RECORDED IN MAP BOOK 104, PAGES 1 THROUGH 16, INCLUSIVE OF THE PUBLIC
RECORDS OF ST. JOHNS COUNTY; THENCE EASTERLY, AND NORTHEASTERLY, ALONG THE
SOUTHERLY LINE OF SAID PLAT OF TRAILMARK EAST PARCEL-PHASE 1, RUN THE FOLLOWING
FOUR (4) COURSES; COURSE NO. 1: SOUTH 81°39'24" EAST, 1122.36 FEET, TO THE POINT OF
CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING EASTERLY; COURSE NO. 2: EASTERLY, ALONG AND
AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE NORTHERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 312.50
FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 187.33 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING
AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 81°10'11" EAST, 184.54 FEET, TO THE POINT OF TANGENCY OF
SAID CURVE; COURSE NO. 3: NORTH 63°59'47" EAST, 25.02 FEET; COURSE NO. 4: 88°53'49"
EAST, 456.01 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 16°53'10" WEST, 285.18 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 48°01'13"
WEST, 578.97 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 11°23'04" WEST, 377.90 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 82°57'21"
EAST, 37.41 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 07°02'39" WEST, 141.72 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 12°01'58"
WEST, 50.00 FEET, TO THE ARC OF A CURVE LEADING WESTERLY; THENCE WESTERLY, ALONG
AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE SOUTHERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 295.32
FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 46.76 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING
AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 82°30'29" WEST, 46.71 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 02°57'04" WEST,
142.74 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 17°22'21" WEST, 278.60 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 12°57'52" WEST,
164.97 FEET; THENCE NORTH 77°01'54" WEST, 17.28 FEET, TO THE ARC OF A CURVE LEADING
WESTERLY; THENCE WESTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE
SOUTHERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 225.44 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 37.52 FEET, SAID ARC
BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 81°48'51" WEST, 37.48
FEET; THENCE SOUTH 03°50'10" WEST, 50.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 02°54'46" WEST, 182.03
FEET; THENCE SOUTH 18°56'20" WEST, 316.39 FEET, TO THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF AFORESAID
SECTION 41; THENCE NORTH 71°03'40" WEST, ALONG LAST SAID LINE, 1130.88 FEET; THENCE
NORTH 12°26'04" WEST, 1650.12 FEET, TO THE SOUTHEASTERLY LINE OF THE PLAT OF
WHISPER CREEK PHASE 1 UNIT C, AS RECORDED IN MAP BOOK 73, PAGES 28 THROUGH 38,
INCLUSIVE, OF SAID PUBLIC RECORDS; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID
SOUTHEASTERLY LINE OF WHISPER CREEK PHASE 1 UNIT C, AND THE SOUTHEASTERLY LINE
OF THE PLAT OF WHISPER CREEK PHASE 3 UNIT A, AS RECORDED IN MAP BOOK 86, PAGES 41
THROUGH 44, INCLUSIVE, OF SAID PUBLIC RECORDS, RUN THE FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES
AND DISTANCES; COURSE NO. 1: NORTH 70°46'38" EAST, 134.06 FEET; COURSE NO. 2: NORTH
51°12'15" EAST, 197.05 FEET; COURSE NO. 3: NORTH 55°58'18" EAST, 60.21 FEET; COURSE
NO. 4: NORTH 51°12'29" EAST, 164.59 FEET, TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE
LEADING NORTHEASTERLY; COURSE NO. 5: NORTHEASTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC
OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE NORTHWESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 455.00 FEET, AN ARC
DISTANCE OF 184.85 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND
DISTANCE OF NORTH 39°34'10" EAST, 183.58 FEET, TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

CONTAINING 79.93 ACRES, MORE OR LESS.

LEGAL DESCRIPTION - ASSESSMENT AREA 2 (PHASE 3B)
SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

En9land • Thim) ETM. NO. 21-226 

- _ & fflillczr ,Inc. DATE: AUGUST 12, 2021 - - ENGINEERS· PLANNERS - - SURVEYORS - IANDSCAPEARCHllECTS 
1" 2,000' ...,. .- 14775 St, Augustine Road SCALE: = 

&~S~~~ Jacksonville, Florida 32258 ~=-= ::iif:..'=..~ Certificate of Authorization No.: 2584 
Phone No. (904~ 642-8990 
Fox No. (904) 46-9485 PLATE NO: 5 



TRACT C-1, AS SHOWN ON THE SOUTHEASTERLY LINE OF THE PLAT OF
WHISPER CREEK PHASE 4 UNIT B, AS RECORDED IN MAP BOOK 83, PAGES 49
THROUGH 58, INCLUSIVE, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF ST. JOHNS COUNTY,
FLORIDA, TOGETHER WITH A PORTION OF SECTION 6, AND A PORTION OF THE
ANTONIO HUERTAS GRANT, SECTION 41, ALL LYING IN TOWNSHIP 7 SOUTH,
RANGE 28 EAST, ST. JOHNS COUNTY, FLORIDA, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS;

BEGIN, AT THE SOUTHWESTERLY CORNER OF THE PLAT OF WHIPSER CREEK
PHASE 1-UNIT C, AS RECORDED IN MAP BOOK 73, PAGES 28 THROUGH 38,
INCLUSIVE, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF ST. JOHNS COUNTY; THENCE
EASTERLY, AND NORTHEASTERLY, ALONG THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF SAID PLAT
OF WHIPSER CREEK PHASE 1-UNIT C, RUN THE FOLLOWING TWENTY NINE (29)
COURSES; COURSE NO. 1: NORTH 82°04'24" EAST, 65.46 FEET; COURSE NO. 2:
NORTH 86°11'21" EAST, 37.26 FEET; COURSE NO. 3: SOUTH 47°26'57" EAST,
39.22 FEET; COURSE NO. 4: SOUTH 81°09'38" EAST, 420.00 FEET; COURSE NO.
5: SOUTH 73°12'31" EAST, 58.20 FEET; COURSE NO. 6: NORTH 25°48'20" EAST,
140.00 FEET, TO THE ARC OF A CURVE LEADING SOUTHEASTERLY; COURSE NO.
7: SOUTHEASTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE
SOUTHWESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 325.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF
52.50 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND
DISTANCE OF SOUTH 59°34'01" EAST, 52.44 FEET, TO THE POINT OF
COMPOUND CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING SOUTHERLY; COURSE NO. 8:
SOUTHERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE
WESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 10.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 14.22
FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF
SOUTH 14°11'31" EAST, 13.05 FEET, TO THE POINT OF REVERSE CURVATURE
OF A CURVE LEADING SOUTHERLY; COURSE NO. 9: SOUTHERLY, ALONG AND
AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE EASTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF
344.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 142.57 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED
BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF SOUTH 14°40'55" WEST, 141.56
FEET, TO THE POINT OF TANGENCY OF SAID CURVE; COURSE NO. 10: SOUTH
02°48'31" WEST, 75.91 FEET; COURSE NO. 11: SOUTH 87°11'29" EAST, 80.00
FEET; COURSE NO. 12: SOUTH 88°24'02" EAST, 50.01 FEET; COURSE NO. 13:
NORTH 02°48'31" EAST, 40.00 FEET; COURSE NO. 14: NORTH 87°11'29" WEST,

50.00 FEET; COURSE NO. 15: NORTH 02°48'31" EAST, 34.85 FEET, TO THE
POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING NORTHERLY; COURSE NO. 16:
NORTHERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE
EASTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 264.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 100.76
FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF
NORTH 13°44'33" EAST, 100.15 FEET; COURSE NO. 17: SOUTH 65°12'14" EAST,
109.02 FEET; COURSE NO. 18: NORTH 32°55'01" EAST, 14.22 FEET; COURSE
NO. 19: NORTH 40°22'34" EAST, 37.38 FEET; COURSE NO. 20: NORTH
77°11'28" EAST, 111.93 FEET; COURSE NO. 21: NORTH 80°03'08" EAST, 244.02
FEET; COURSE NO. 22: NORTH 22°16'35" EAST, 47.71 FEET; COURSE NO. 23:
NORTH 15°48'46" EAST, 21.94 FEET; COURSE NO. 24: NORTH 38°10'59" EAST,
53.72 FEET, TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING EASTERLY;
COURSE NO. 25: EASTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE,
CONCAVE SOUTHERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 25.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE
OF 29.61 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND
DISTANCE OF NORTH 72°06'36" EAST, 27.91 FEET, TO THE POINT OF
TANGENCY OF SAID CURVE; COURSE NO. 26: SOUTH 73°57'47" EAST, 66.37
FEET; COURSE NO. 27: SOUTH 69°00'03" EAST, 69.03 FEET; COURSE NO. 28:
SOUTH 63°20'44" EAST, 58.78 FEET; COURSE NO. 29: NORTH 70°46'16" EAST,
9.16 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 12°26'04" EAST, 1650.12 FEET, TO THE SOUTHERLY
LINE OF AFORESAID SECTION 41; THENCE NORTH 71°03'40" WEST, ALONG
LAST SAID LINE, 1226.05 FEET; THENCE NORTH 60°13'49" WEST, CONTINUING
ALONG LAST SAID LINE, 1734.02 FEET, TO THE EASTERLY LINE OF SAID
SECTION 6; THENCE SOUTH 03°24'47" EAST, ALONG THE EASTERLY LINE OF
SAID SECTION 6, A DISTANCE OF 1010.28 FEET; THENCE NORTH 89°59'23"
WEST, 167.76 FEET; THENCE NORTH 48°29'01" WEST, 226.39 FEET; THENCE
NORTH 19°45'18" WEST, 858.18 FEET; THENCE NORTH 22°09'18" WEST, 25.31
FEET, TO THE SOUTHEASTERLY LINE OF AFORESAID PLAT OF WHISPER CREEK
PHASE 4 UNIT B; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID SOUTHEASTERLY LINE,
RUN THE FOLLOWING FOURTY-THREE (43) COURSES AND DISTANCES; COURSE
NO. 1: NORTH 58°53'06" EAST, 40.47 FEET; COURSE NO. 2: NORTH 33°15'11"
EAST, 31.01 FEET; COURSE NO. 3: NORTH 35°07'18" EAST, 41.79 FEET; COURSE
NO. 4: NORTH 10°17'38" EAST, 42.38 FEET; COURSE NO. 5: NORTH 40°54'56"
EAST, 45.35 FEET; COURSE NO. 6: NORTH 09°20'47" EAST, 26.66 FEET; COURSE
NO. 7: NORTH 32°53'56" EAST, 31.20 FEET; COURSE NO. 8: NORTH 05°41'56"
EAST, 31.51 FEET; COURSE NO. 9: NORTH 13°25'02" EAST, 38.56 FEET; COURSE

En9land • Thim) (PHASE 2) 
ETM. NO. 21-226 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION - ASSESSMENT AREA 3 - _ • fflillczr ,Inc. DATE: AUGUST 12, 2021 - - ENGINEERS - PLANNERS - - SURVEYORS - LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT SCALE: N/A - .- 14775 St, Augustine Road 

~~~~~~ ~~~~i~~~t~e~t'A~~tJorTz~1fo~ No.: 2584 
Phone No. (904~ 642-8990 PLATE NO: 6 Fox No. (904) 46-9485 



NO. 10: NORTH 59°34'12" EAST, 36.77 FEET; COURSE NO. 11: NORTH
02°27'50" EAST, 32.51 FEET; COURSE NO. 12: NORTH 58°52'14" EAST, 11.57
FEET; COURSE NO. 13: NORTH 75°30'55" EAST, 27.43 FEET; COURSE NO. 14:
NORTH 46°22'47" EAST, 33.19 FEET; COURSE NO. 15: NORTH 76°04'37" EAST,
51.07 FEET; COURSE NO. 16: SOUTH 89°39'07" EAST, 33.53 FEET; COURSE NO.
17: NORTH 40°15'02" EAST, 32.18 FEET; COURSE NO. 18: NORTH 70°27'41"
EAST, 88.42 FEET; COURSE NO. 19: SOUTH 45°26'31" EAST, 90.94 FEET;
COURSE NO. 20: SOUTH 24°59'11" EAST, 22.65 FEET; COURSE NO. 21: SOUTH
42°22'18" EAST, 20.63 FEET; COURSE NO. 22: SOUTH 49°05'19" EAST, 52.55
FEET; COURSE NO. 23: NORTH 07°39'56" EAST, 14.09 FEET; COURSE NO. 24:
NORTH 50°45'42" EAST, 67.90 FEET; COURSE NO. 25: SOUTH 54°19'50" EAST,
69.17 FEET; COURSE NO. 26: NORTH 83°40'27" EAST, 47.45 FEET; COURSE NO.
27: NORTH 87°43'39" EAST, 43.00 FEET; COURSE NO. 28: SOUTH 43°03'55"
EAST, 42.44 FEET; COURSE NO. 29: SOUTH 72°22'56" EAST, 34.01 FEET;
COURSE NO. 30: SOUTH 67°25'36" EAST, 39.12 FEET; COURSE NO. 31: NORTH
86°54'24" EAST, 42.66 FEET; COURSE NO. 32: SOUTH 88°57'08" EAST, 46.54
FEET; COURSE NO. 33: NORTH 83°32'30" EAST, 49.75 FEET; COURSE NO. 34:
NORTH 83°32'32" EAST, 58.52 FEET; COURSE NO. 35: NORTH 88°03'32" EAST,
52.62 FEET; COURSE NO. 36: SOUTH 87°46'45" EAST, 38.28 FEET; COURSE NO.
37: SOUTH 89°40'59" EAST, 43.95 FEET; COURSE NO. 38: SOUTH 69°35'39"
EAST, 62.05 FEET; COURSE NO. 39: SOUTH 81°14'59" EAST, 35.04 FEET;
COURSE NO. 40: NORTH 73°30'02" EAST, 36.88 FEET; COURSE NO. 41: NORTH
70°16'00" EAST, 34.22 FEET; COURSE NO. 42: NORTH 65°39'35" EAST, 12.11
FEET; COURSE NO. 43: NORTH 03°19'04" WEST, 43.33 FEET, TO THE POINT OF
BEGINNING.

CONTAINING 66.92 ACRES, MORE OR LESS.

En9land • Thim) (PHASE 2) 
ETM. NO. 21-226 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION - ASSESSMENT AREA 3 - _ • fflillczr ,Inc. DATE: AUGUST 12, 2021 - - ENGINEERS - PLANNERS - - SURVEYORS - LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT SCALE: N/A - .- 14775 St, Augustine Road 

~~~~~~ ~~~~i~~~t~e~t'A~~tJorTz~1fo~ No.: 2584 
Phone No. (904~ 642-8990 PLATE NO: 6A Fox No. (904) 46-9485 



SANITARY SEWER LIFT STATION
SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

NOTE: LABELED LIFT STATIONS 
HA VE NOT YET BEEN CONSTRUCTED 

England• Thim) 
===-= & fflillczr ,Inc. 
- - ENGINEERS-PLANNERS 
- - SURVEYORS-LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS 

~~~= j~;;:on5v\i1/UF1~~i~~e 3~2si 
~=-==::..~ Certificate of Authorization No.: 2584 
•----• Phone No. (904) 642-8990 

Fa, No. (904) 646-9485 

ffl~~--,\,-!l-L-L.S. 
NO. 2 

GRAPHIC SCALE 
0 1000 2000 4000 

ETM NO. 21-226 

DATE AUGUST 12, 2021 

SCALE 1" = 2,000' 

PLATE NO 7 



SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

l DENOTES SERIES 2021 
AA 2-38 & AA 3-2 
PROJECT FORCEMAIN 

~~ En9land• Thim) 
-&fflillczr,lnc. 

- - ENGINEERS-PLANNERS 
- - SURVEYORS-LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS 
~ ~ 14775 St. Augustine Rood 

~~ia~ ~~~tif~~t~e~riz~itt°or?z~~Po~ No.: 2584 
Phone No. (904) 642-8990 
Fo, No. (904) 646-9485 

SANITARY SEWER FORCEMAINS 
(SERIES 2021 AA 2-3B & AA 3-2 PROJECT) 

GRAPHIC SCALE 
0 1000 2000 4000 

ETM NO. 21-226 

DA TE AUGUST 12, 2021 

SCALE: 7'' = 2,000' 

PLATE NO: 7A 



STORMWATER MANAGEMENT PLAN
SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

~~England• Thim) 
- & fflillczr ,Inc. 

- - ENGINEERS-PLANNERS 
- - SURVEYORS-LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS 

~~~= j~:~;onSv\i1e~u(l~~i~2e 3~2si ~== :.":.--=; Certificate of Authorization No.: 2584 
Phone No. (904) 642-8990 
Fa, No. (904) 646-9485 

DENOTES UNCONSTRUCTED 
STORMWA TER MANAGEMENT GRAPHIC SCALE 
FACILTY 

0 1000 2000 

DENOTES OUTFALL 

ETM NO. 21-226 

4000 

DA TE AUGUST 12, 2021 

SCALE: 7'' = 2,000' 

PLATE NO 8 



SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

England• Thim) 
===-= & fflillczr ,Inc. 
- - ENGINEERS-PLANNERS 
- - SURVEYORS-LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS 

~~~= j~~Z:on5v\i1e~UF1~~i~2e 3~2si 
~===':.~ Certificate of Authorization No.: 2584 

Phone No. (904) 642-8990 
Fo, No. (904) 646-9485 

DENOTES SERIES 2021 
--- AA 2-38 & AA 3-2 PROJECT 

STORMWA TER MANAGEMENT F ACIUTY 

DENOTES SERIES 2021 
AA 2-38 & AA 3-2 
PROJECT OUTFALL 

0 

GRAPHIC SCALE 
1000 2000 

ETM NO. 21-226 

4000 

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 
(SERIES 2021 AA 2-3B & AA 3-2 PROJECT) DA TE AUGUST 12, 2021 

SCALE: 1'' = 2,000' 

PLATE NO: 8A 



NEIGHBORHOOD ROADWAYS
SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

==~ En9land • Thim) 
-&fflillczr,lnc. 

- - ENGINEERS-PLANNERS 
- - SURVEYORS-LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS 

~~~= j~;;:on5v~il/UF1~~i~~e 3~2si 
':f",=: :":..~ Certificate of Authorization No.: 2584 

Phone No. (904) 642-8990 
Fo, No. (904) 646-9485 

DENOTES UNCONSTRUCTED 
NEIGHBORHOOD ROADWAYS 

0 
GRAPHIC SCALE 
1000 2000 4000 

ETM NO. 21-226 

DATE AUGUST 12, 2021 

SCALE 1" = 2,000' 

PLATE NO 9 



SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

England• Thim) 
====== - & fflillczt ,Inc. 
- - ENGINEERS-PLANNERS 
- - SURVEYORS-LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS ;.~~= j~;z:on5v\i1/UF1~~i~2e 3~2si 
~===~~ Certificate of Authorization No.: 2584 

Phone No. (904) 642-8990 
Fa, No. (904) 646-9485 

- DENOTES SERIES 2021 
AA 2-38 & AA 3-2 PROJECT 
NEIGHBORHOOD ROADWAYS 

GRAPHIC SCALE 
0 1000 2000 

ETM NO. 21-226 

4000 

NEIGHBORHOOD ROADWAYS 
(SERIES 2021 AA 2-3B & AA 3-2 PROJECT) DATE AUGUST 12, 2021 

SCALE 1" = 2,000' 

PLATE NO: 9A 



STREET LIGHTING
SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

• DENOTES APPROXIMATE STREET LIGHT LOCATION FOR 
STREET LIGHTS NOT YET INSTALLED 

==== England• Thim) 
- & fflillczr ,Inc. 

- - ENGINEERS-PLANNERS 
- - SURVEYORS-LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS 

~~~~ j~:z:on5v\i1e~UF1~~i~2e 3~2si 
~===~~ Certificate of Authorization No.: 2584 

Phone No. (904) 642-8990 
Fo, No. (904) 646-9485 

GRAPHIC SCALE 
0 1000 2000 4000 

ETM NO. 21-226 

DA TE AUGUST 12, 2021 

SCALE: 1" = 2,000' 

PLATE NO 10 



SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

• DENOTES APPROXIMATE SERIES 2021 
AA 2-3B & AA 3-2 PROJECT 
STREET LIGHT LOCATION 

==== England• Thim) 
- & fflillczr ,Inc. 

- - ENGINEERS -PLANNERS 
- - SURVEYORS -LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS 

~~~= j~:Zs5on5v\i1/UF1~~i~2e 3~2si 
~===':,.""ll; Certificate of Authorization No.: 2584 

Phone No. (904) 642-8990 
Fa, No. (904) 646-9485 

GRAPHIC SCALE 
0 1000 2000 4000 

STREET LIGHTING ETM NO. 21-226 

(SERIES 2021 AA 2-3B & AA 3-2 PROJECT) DA TE: AUGUST 12, 2021 

SCALE: 7'' = 2,000' 

PLATE NO 10A 



WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM
SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

DENOTES UNCONSTRUCTED 
WATER MAIN 

England• Thim) 
===-= & fflillczt ,Inc. 
- - ENGINEERS-PLANNERS 
- - SURVEYORS-LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS 

~~~= j~;z:on5v\i1/UF1~~i~2e 3~2si 
~===~~ Certificate of Authorization No.: 2584 

Phone No. (904) 642-8990 
Fo, No. (904) 646-9485 

0 

GRAPHIC SCALE 
1000 2000 4000 

ETM NO. 21-226 

DATE AUGUST 12, 2021 

SCALE 1" = 2,000' 

PLATE NO: 11 



SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

DENOTES SERIES 2021 
AA 2-38 & AA 3-2 
PROJECT WATER MAIN 

England• Thim) 
~=-= & fflillczr ,Inc. 
- - ENGINEERS-PLANNERS 
- - SURVEYORS-LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS 

~~~= j~:z;on5v\i1e~UF1~~i~2e 3~2si ~== =.':.""ll;: Certificate of Authorization No.: 2584 
Phone No. (904) 642-8990 
Fa, No. (904) 646-9485 

WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM 
(SERIES 2021 AA 2-3B & AA 3-2 PROJECT) 

GRAPHIC SCALE 
0 1000 2000 4000 

ETM. NO. 21-226 

DA TE AUGUST 12, 2021 

SCALE: 7'' = 2,000' 

PLATE NO: 11A 



SANITARY SEWER COLLECTION SYSTEM
SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

DENOTES UNCONSTRUCTED 
SANITARY SEWER 

England• Thim) 
- & fflillczr ,Inc. 

- - ENGINEERS-PLANNERS 
- - SURVEYORS-LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS ;.~~= j~;z:on5v\i1/UF1~~i~2e 3~2si 
~===~~ Certificate of Authorization No.: 2584 

Phone No. (904) 642-8990 
Fo, No. (904) 646-9485 

0 

GRAPHIC SCALE 
1000 2000 4000 

ETM NO. 21-226 

DATE AUGUST 12, 2021 

SCALE 1" = 2,000' 

PLATE NO: 12 



SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

DENOTES SERIES 2021 
AA 2-38 & AA 3-2 
PROJECT SANITARY SEWER 

England• Thim) 
~~ - & fflillczr ,Inc. 
- - ENGINEERS-PLANNERS 
- - SURVEYORS-LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS 

:.S~= j~:z;on5v\i1e~UF1~~i~2e 3~2si ~== :,":,."'ll; Certificate of Authorization No.: 2584 
Phone No. (904) 642-8990 
Fo, No. (904) 646-9485 

SANITARY SEWER COLLECTION SYSTEM 
(SERIES 2021 AA 2-3B & AA 3-2 PROJECT) 

GRAPHIC SCALE 
0 1000 2000 4000 

ETM NO. 21-226 

DA TE: AUGUST 12, 2021 

SCALE: 7'' = 2,000' 

PLATE NO 12A 



                                                    
 

Six Mile Creek 
Community Development District 

 
 
 
 

 
Adjunct Supplemental Special Assessment 

Methodology Report for the Series 2021 Capital 
Improvement Revenue Bonds Assessment Area 3 

(Phase 2) and Assessment Area 2 (Phase 3B) 
  
 

                               September 15, 2021 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Prepared by 
 

Governmental Management Services, LLC 
 
 

 
 
 
 



   2 

 
Table of Contents 

 
 
1.0 Introduction 

1.1 Executive Summary ......................................................................  3 
1.2 Special Benefits and General Benefits ........................................ 5          
1.3 Requirements of a Valid Assessment Methodology .................. 5
           

 
2.0 The Series 2021 Capital Improvement Bonds AA3 Phase 2 & AA2 

Phase 3B 
2.1 Development Plan Overview ....................................................... 6  
2.2      Bond Description              …………………………………………… 7 
 
 

3.0 Assessment Allocation 
3.1 Structure .......................................................................................... 7  
3.2 Assessment Allocation ................................................................... 7          
 
 

4.0 True Up Mechanism     .............................................................................. 8         
  

5.0 Final Assessment Rolls     ........................................................................ 10  
 

6.0 Additional Stipulations………………………………………………………10        
        ........................................................................................................... 
            ..................................................................................................  
7.0 Appendix 
 
            Table 1   Development Program       ……………………………………11 
            Table 2   Series 2021 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds  AA3        
                           Phase 2 & AA2 Phase 3B    ……………………………….…….12 
            Table 3   Par Debt and Debt Service Assessments Series 2021 

Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds  AA 3 Phase 2 & AA2 
Phase 3B    ………………………………………………………...13 

            Table 4   Par Debt and Debt Service Assessments Series 2021 
Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds AA3 Phase 2 with 
Annexed Lands & AA2 Phase 3B  ……………………..……..14 

            Table 5   Assessment Roll Series 2021 Capital Improvement  
Revenue Bonds  AA 3 Phase 2 & AA 2 Phase 3B  …………15  

  
Attachments:  Assessment Area 3 Phase 2 and Assessment Area 2 Phase 
3B - Legal description  



   3 

 
 
 1.0 Introduction 
        

1.1 Executive Summary 
 
1.1.1 The District 

 
Six Mile Creek Community Development District (the “District”), 
a local unit of special-purpose government, was established 
by rule number 42GGG-1 adopted by the Florida Land and 
Water Adjudicatory Commission on March 7, 2007, as 
amended on August 11, 2021. The District encompasses 
approximately 1,288.95 acres of land located within the 
unincorporated area of St. Johns County, Florida, and was 
established for the purpose of, among other things, financing 
and managing the acquisition, construction, maintenance 
and operation of major infrastructure necessary for 
development to occur within the District. 
 
The TrailMark development located within the District is a 
master planned, amenitized, residential community. The 
planned development will include approximately 2,278 
residential units composed of single-family, patio and 
townhomes along with multi-family housing. 
 
1.1.2 Assessment Areas 
 
The District has created three (3) separate Assessment Areas to 
carry out its financing program. Additional Areas may be 
created over time.   
 
Assessment Area 1, consists of approximately 153 acres and 
has been developed into 152 residential lots, all of which have 
been platted.  
 
Assessment Area 2 consists of approximately 543 acres and is 
planned for 1,260 residential lots.  Assessment Area 2 is being 
developed in 3 Phases:  305 lots in Phase 1, 401 lots in Phase 2 
and 554 lots in Phase 3.  
 
 
Assessment Area 3 (also referred to as the 2007 Assessment 
Area) consists of approximately 550 acres and Phase 1 is 



   4 

planned for 339 single family units on approximately 173.62 
acres. Other lands within Assessment Areas 3 will be developed 
in the future.   
 
Effective August 11, 2021, the District’s boundary was 
amended to add 6.8 acres, which are intended to be 
developed with 24 lots within Assessment Area 3, Phase 1.  The 
Supplemental Special Assessment Methodology Report for the 
Series 2021 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds Assessment 
Area 3 (Phase 1) will be supplemented at a later date to levy 
assessments on the additional 6.8 acres. 
 
The District is in the process of amending its boundary to add 
approximately 70.99 acres (the “2021 Expansion Parcel”) into 
the District.  The 2021 Expansion Parcel is anticipated to be 
developed and is planned to include 23 single family units in 
the parcel subject to the lien of the AA3-2 Bond, all of which 
will be located within Assessment Area 3, Phase 2. This report 
will be supplemented when the boundary amendment is 
completed to include the 2021 Expansion Parcel. 
 
 
1.1.3 The 2007, 2015, 2016, 2017, 2020 and 2021 Bonds 
 

                        The District’s Board of Supervisors (the “Board”) adopted the 
Improvement Plan for the Purpose of Special Assessment Bonds 
dated December 1, 2006 (the “CIP”), as supplemented by the 
District’s Supplemental Engineers Report for Series 2007 Capital 
Improvements dated May 25, 2007, the Supplemental 
Engineers Report for 2014 Capital Improvements dated 
November 12, 2014, the Supplemental Engineers Report for the 
Series 2016 Capital Improvements (“2016 Engineers Report”)  
dated April 12, 2016,  the Supplemental Engineers Report for 
the Series 2017 Capital Improvements dated June 5, 2017, the 
Supplemental Engineer’s Report for the Series 2020 Capital 
Improvements dated June 2, 2020, and the Supplemental 
Engineer’s Report for the Series 2021 Capital Improvements 
dated January 19, 2021 (collectively, the Engineer’s Report”), 
which describe the public infrastructure improvements 
financed in part by the District’s issuance of Bonds secured by 
special assessments levied on the lands within the District (the 
“CIP”). 

 



   5 

The District has previously issued its Capital Improvement 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2007 (the “2007 Bonds”), its Capital 
Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2015 Refunding Bonds 
(the 2015 Bonds), its Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2016A (the “2016A Bonds”), its Capital Improvement 
Revenue Bonds Series 2017A (Assessment Area 2, Phase 2) (the 
“2017A Bonds”) and its Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2017B (Assessment area 2, Phase 2)(the “2017B Bonds”), 
its Capital Improvement and Refunding Bonds Series 2020 
(Assessment Area 2, Phase 3A) (the “2020 Bonds”), and its 
Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2021 (Assessment 
Area 3, Phase 1) (the “2021 Bonds”) to finance portions of the 
CIP.  
 
This Report addresses the assessments securing the Assessment 
Area 2, Phase 3B and Assessment Area 3 Phase, 2 Bonds. The 
Six Mile Creek Community Development District Supplemental 
Engineers Report for Series 2021 AA2-3B & AA3-2 Capital 
Improvements dated September 10, 2021(“2021 AA2-3B &AA3-
2 Engineer’s Report”) describes the project, which will be 
partially funded by the $10,885,000  Capital Improvement 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2021 comprised of the Assessment Area 
3 Phase 2 Bonds of $2,660,000 (the “AA3-2 Bonds”) and the 
Assessment area 2 Phase 3B Bonds of $8,225,000 (the “AA2- 3B 
Bonds” and together with the AA3- 2 Bonds, the “AA3-2 and 
AA2-3B Bonds”).  The AA3-2 Bonds will be secured by 
assessments levied on District Lands within Assessment Area 3 
Phase 2 (the “AA3-2 Assessments) and the AA2-3B Bonds will 
be secured by assessments levied on District Lands within 
Assessment Area 2 Phase 3B  (the “AA2-3B Assessments” and 
together with the AA3-2 Assessments, the “AA3-2 and AA2-3B 
Assessments”). 
 

                       
 
A detailed estimated Sources and Uses of funds for the AA3-2 
and AA2-3B Bonds is contained in Table 2.  

 
 

1.2 Special Benefits and General Benefits 
 

Improvements undertaken by the District as described in the 
CIP create special and peculiar benefits, different in kind and 



   6 

degree than general benefits, for properties within its borders 
as well as general benefits to the public at large.  

 
As contained in the Master Assessment Report the benefit from 
the CIP was based upon $131,449,000 of construction costs for 
the system of improvements. The 2014 Engineer’s Report 
estimates construction costs of $156,326,750 for the CIP, in part 
because it describes additional improvements. Because the 
CIP is a system of improvements, the additional improvements 
increase the overall benefit to all developable lands within the 
District. Notwithstanding the additional improvements 
described in various Supplemental Engineer’s Reports, the 
benefit findings and methodology contained in the Master 
Methodology report still apply and are incorporated herein by 
reference. 

 
1.3 Requirements of a Valid Assessment Methodology 

 
Special assessments under Florida law, to be valid, must meet 
two requirements. The first requirement is that the properties 
assessed must receive a special benefit from the 
improvements paid for by the assessments. The second 
requirement is that the assessments must be fairly and 
reasonably allocated to the properties being assessed. 
 
Florida law provides for a wide application of special 
assessments that meet these two characteristics of special 
assessments.  
 

 
2.0 The AA3-2 and AA2 3B Bonds Assessment Area 3 Phase 2 and 

Assessment Area 2 Phase 3B 
                      

2.1 Development Plan - Overview 
 

The Developer of the property within the District has defined 
the land uses for the property. The land uses are described in 
in Table 1 (Appendix) (“Development Plan”) associated with 
the AA3-2 and AA2-3B Bonds. The Development Plan may 
change dependent upon future market conditions. The lands 
securing the AA3-2 Bonds is planned for 71 lots, 23 of which are 
to be located on the 2021 Expansion Parcel. The lands securing 
the AA2-3B Bonds is planned for 207 lots. If the planned 
annexation of the 2021 Expansion Parcel takes place, then the 



   7 

District will spread the lien of the special Assessments securing 
the AA3-2 Bonds upon such lands in accordance with this 
Report and the Master Report. 
 
 

2.2 Bond Description 
 

The AA3-2 and AA2-3B Bonds are planned to be issued with a 
thirty-year term and an anticipated average coupon rate of 
5%. Interest is capitalized for 24 months and the Debt Service 
Reserve Fund (“DSRF”) is equal to the annual Maximum Annual 
Debt Service (“MADS”) of $149.100 for the AA3-2 Bonds and 
$461,258 for the AA2-3B Bonds. 
 
The AA3-2 Bonds are planned to be issued at a par amount of 
$2,660,000 and the AA2-3B Bonds are planned to be issued at 
a par amount of $8,225,000. See estimated bond terms on 
Table 2. 
  

 
3.0 Assessment Allocation 
 

3.1      Structure 
 

The debt required to finance the CIP is allocated to the 
benefited lands within the District consistent with the Master 
Assessment Report. As noted above, the 2014 Engineer’s 
Report estimates construction costs of $156,326,750 for the CIP 
increasing the overall benefit to all developable lands within 
the District. The AA3-2 Project costs are estimated at $6,359,950 
and the AA2-3B 3B Project costs are estimated at $11,289,980. 
The AA3-2 and AA2-3B Bonds will provide for construction funds 
in the approximate amount of $2,302,966 and $6,078,602  
respectively.  The remaining portion of the proceeds from the 
AA2-3B Bonds will be used to redeem a portion of the Series 
2016B Bonds, approximately, $1,010,000, which are currently 
outstanding on Assessment Area 2 Phase 3B.  
 
A component of the AA2-3B Project is a new amenity center 
(the “Phase 3 Amenity”).  It is planned that the Phase 3 Amenity 
will be utilized and funded by the landowners in Assessment 
Area 2, Phase 3, but future development in Assessment Area 2, 
Phase 3 may change the utilization and funding depending 
upon the type of development.  Individuals who live within the 



   8 

District but outside of Assessment Area 2, Phase 3 will be 
required to pay an annual user fee in order to use the Phase 3 
Amenity.  At this time, the Phase 3 Amenity is planned to be 
funded solely by debt and O&M assessments levied on the 
development units in Assessments Area 2, Phases 3A and 3B.   

  
3.2 Assessment Allocation 

 
Based upon the CIP, the District’s assessment consultant and 
underwriter determined the amount of Bonds required to fund 
the infrastructure costs. 
 
The CIP consists of roadway improvements, potable water, 
wastewater, landscaping, monumentation, signage and 
community recreation improvements that benefit all lands 
within the District. The CIP consists of a system of improvements 
that benefits all developable property equally. The 2007 Bonds 
were issued to finance a portion of the acquisition and 
construction of the 2007 Improvement Plan, which comprises a 
portion of the CIP.  The AA3-2 and AA2-3B Bonds are being 
issued to fund a portion of the CIP. As with prior bond issues, it 
is anticipated that future bond issues will occur to finance 
future projects associated with the remaining CIP.   
 
As noted above, the AA2-3B Project includes the Phase 3 
Amenity, which as currently planned benefits only the property 
within Assessment Area 2, Phases 3A and 3B.  With the 
exception of the Phase 3 Amenity, the CIP consists of a system 
of improvements that benefits all developable property 
equally.  Give the construction costs of the AA2-3B Project 
improvements, even though the Phase 3 Amenity is not part of 
the system of improvements, the AA2-3B Assessments meet the 
requirements set forth in Sections 1.2 and 1.3 of this Report. 

 
 
Assessments securing the AA3-2 Bonds will be levied on 66.92 
gross acres in Assessment Area 3, Phase 2 and Assessments 
securing the AA2-3B Bonds will be levied on the 79.93 gross 
undeveloped acres in Assessment Area 2, Phase 3B.   

 
 
As land is developed and platted, the AA3-2 and AA2-3B 
Assessments  will be allocated on a first platted basis to 
developed and platted lots with an identifiable folio number. 



   9 

The AA3-2 Bonds are expected to be allocated to and fully 
absorbed by the 71 planned lots after annexation. The AA2-3B 
Bonds are expected to be allocated to and fully absorbed by 
the 207 planned lots.   
 
If the 2021 Expansion Parcel is not added to the District’s 
boundary, then it is anticipated that the Developer will prepay 
a portion of the debt on each of the 48 lots in Assessment Area 
3, Phase 2. Alternatively, the developer may not make such 
prepayments and the assessment amounts per lot remain 
unchanged. Such prepayment amounts have not been 
established at this time. 
 
 

 
4.0 True – Up Mechanism  

 
In order to assure that the District’s debt will not build up on 
unsold acres, and to assure that the requirements that the non-
ad valorem assessments will be constitutionally lienable on the 
property will continue to be met, the District shall determine the 
following. 
 
To assure that there will always be sufficient development 
potential in the undeveloped property to assure payment of 
debt service after a plat or site plan approval, the following 
test will be applied. The test is that the par debt per acre 
remaining on the undeveloped property within Assessment 
Area 3 Phase 2 and Assessment Area 2 Phase 3B is never 
allowed to increase above its maximum per acre level.  
 
The Assessment Area 3 Phase 2 Bonds are planned to be issued 
at par for $2,660,000 . Assessment Area 3 Phase 2 , planned for 
71 units as contained on Table 1, is  66.92  acres. The maximum 
debt per acre is $39,749 for the Assessment Area 3 Phase 2 
Bonds. Therefore, at the time of platting, if only a portion of the 
parcel is platted, then the remaining undeveloped property 
within the parcel cannot exceed a per acre debt of $39,749. If 
the remaining undeveloped property has debt in excess of 
$39,749 per acre, a true-up payment will be due upon platting 
or site plan approval. If the entire parcel is platted and the 
assignment of debt to the platted lots is not sufficient to absorb 
the total debt a true-up payment will be due upon platting or 
site plan approval.  



   10 

 
The Assessment Area 2 Phase 3B Bonds are planned to be 
issued at par for $8,225,000. Assessment Area 2 Phase 3B, 
planned for 207 units as contained on Table 1, is 79.93  acres. 
The maximum debt per acre is $102,903 for the Assessment 
Area 2 Phase 3B Bonds. Therefore, at the time of platting, if only 
a portion of the parcel is platted, then the remaining 
undeveloped property within the parcel cannot exceed a per 
acre debt of $102,903. If the remaining undeveloped property 
has debt in excess of $102,903 per acre, a true-up payment will 
be due upon platting or site plan approval. If the entire parcel 
is platted and the assignment of debt to the platted lots is not 
sufficient to absorb the total debt a true-up payment will be 
due upon platting or site plan approval.  

 
 

5.0 Final Assessment Rolls 
 
Final assessment rolls reflecting the allocation of special 
assessments securing repayment of the Assessment Area 3 
Phase 2 and Assessment Area 2 Phase 3B  Bonds are attached 
hereto as the lands to be developed into 71 and 207 lots 
respectively. As previously noted, If the planned annexation of 
the 2021 Expansion Parcel, which is anticipated to include   23 
single family units within Assessment Area 3, Phase 2, takes 
place, then the District will spread the lien of the AA3-2 
Assessments to such lands in accordance with this Report and 
the Master Report. Table 4 provides for the Par Debt and Debt 
Service Assessments for AA3-2 and AA2-3B Bonds  which 
includes the 2021 Expansion Parcel and additional 23 
development units in Assessment Area 3, Phase 2. 
 

6.0     Additional Stipulations 

Certain financing, development, and engineering data was 
provided by members of District staff and/or the Developer. 
The allocation methodology described herein was based on 
information provided by those professionals. Governmental 
Management Services, LLC makes no representations 
regarding said information transactions beyond restatement of 
the factual information necessary for compilation of this report. 
For further information about the Bonds, please refer to the 
Master Trust Indenture or the Supplemental Trust Indenture. 



Prepared By: Governmental Management Services, LLC

Table 1
Six Mile Creek Community Development District

Development Program Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds Series 2021
(Assessment Area 3  Phase 2 & Assessment Area 2 Phase 3B)

Land Use AA3 Phase 2 AA2 Phase 3B

Single Family 
Residential:

43' lot 0 89

53' lot 0 79

63' lot 48 39

Current Units 48 207

43' Annex 23 0

Total Units With Annexed Lots 71 207



Prepared By: Governmental Management Services, LLC

 Table 2
Six Mile Creek Community Development District

Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds Series 2021
(Assessment Area 3 Phase 2 & Assessment Area 2 Phase 3B) 

               Sources and Uses of Funds

Sources: AA3 Phase 2 AA2 Phase 3B Total

Bond Proceeds - Par Amount $6,200,000 $16,495,000 $22,695,000
Premium $0 $0 $0

Total Sources of Funds $6,200,000 $16,495,000 $22,695,000

Uses:

Construction Funds $4,981,102 $12,214,980 $17,196,082
Debt Service Reserve Fund MADS (1) $403,200 $1,073,070 $1,476,270
Interest Reserve $620,000 $1,649,500 $2,269,500
Cost of Issuance $195,698 $515,264 $710,962
B Bond Payoff $0 $1,042,186 $1,042,186

Total Uses of Funds $6,200,000 $16,495,000 $22,695,000

Average Coupon Interest Rate 5.00% 5%

Term 30 years 30 years

CAPI period 24 months 24 months

(1) Net of maximum early payment discount and collection costs.



Prepared By: Governmental Management Services, LLC

Table 3
Six Mile Creek Community Development District

Par Debt and Debt Service Allocations - Series AA3 Phase 2 & Assessment Area 2 Phase 3B
2021 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds

Land Use 2021 Bond 2021 Bond 2021 Bond
 Par Total  Net per Unit Total  Gross per Unit

Single Family AA3 Phase 2 Debt per Unit Par Debt Annual  Annual Net Annual
Residential: No. of Units  2021 Bond  2021 Bond Debt Service Debt Service Debt Service (1)

43' lot 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

53' lot 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

63' lot 48 $129,167 $6,200,000 $8,400 $403,200 $8,936

Total AA3 Phase 2 (2) 48 $6,200,000 $403,200

AA2 Phase 3B
No. of Units

43' lot 89 $64,452 $5,736,228 $4,193 $373,177 $4,461

53' lot 79 $85,064 $6,720,049 $5,534 $437,150 $5,887

63' lot 39 $103,557 $4,038,723 $6,737 $262,743 $7,167

Total AA3 Phase 2 207 $16,495,000 $1,073,070

(1) Include 4% provision for early payment discount and 2% collection costs for St Johns County.

(2 Assessment Area 3 Phase 2 does not  include annexed lots I process of 23.



Prepared By: Governmental Management Services, LLC

Table 4
Six Mile Creek Community Development District

Par Debt and Debt Service Allocations - Series AA3 Phase 2
2021 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds

Including Annexed Lands

Land Use 2021 Bond 2021 Bond 2021 Bond
 Par Total  Net per Unit Total  Gross per Unit

Single Family Debt per Unit Par Debt Annual  Annual Net Annual
Residential: No. of Units  2021 Bond  2021 Bond Debt Service Debt Service Debt Service (1)

43' lot 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

53' lot 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

63' lot 71 $87,324 $6,200,000 $5,679 $403,200 $6,041

Total 71 $6,200,000 $403,200

(1) Include 4% provision for early payment discount and 2% collection costs for St Johns County.



Prepared By: Governmental Management Services, LLC

Table 5
Six Mile Creek Community Development District

Assessment Roll Series AA3 Phase 2 & Assessment Area 2 Phase 3B 2021 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds

                         Annual Assessments

Assessment Area 3 Phase 2 2021 2021 2021 2021
Asmnt Gross Asmnt Net Asmnt Total Net Bond Debt Total 2021

Account # Owner Lot Type Units Per Unit (2) Per Unit Assessments Per Unit Bond Debt

029010-0000 (1) 43' 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

029010-0000 (1) 53' 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

029010-0000 (1) 63' 48 $8,936 $8,400 $403,200 $129,167 $6,200,000

AA3 Phase 2 48 $403,200 $6,200,000

Assessment Area 2 Phase 3B 2021 2021 2021 2021
Asmnt Gross Asmnt Net Asmnt Total Net Bond Debt Total 2021

Account # Owner Lot Type Units Per Unit (2) Per Unit Assessments Per Unit Bond Debt

029010-0000 (1) 43' 89 $4,461 $4,193 $373,177 $64,452 $5,736,228

029010-0000 (1) 53' 79 $5,887 $5,534 $437,180 $85,064 $6,720,049

029010-0000 (1) 63' 39 $7,167 $6,737 $262,743 $103,557 $4,038,723

AA2 Phase 3B 207 $1,073,100 $16,495,000

(1) Owner is Six Mile Creek Investment Group, LLC

(2) Gross assessment per unit includes 4% for early payment discount and 2% for St Johns County collection costs.



TRACT C-1, AS SHOWN ON THE SOUTHEASTERLY LINE OF THE PLAT OF 
WHISPER CREEK PHASE 4 UNIT B, AS RECORDED IN MAP BOOK 83, PAGES 49 
THROUGH 58, INCLUSIVE, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF ST. JOHNS COUNTY, 
FLORIDA, TOGETHER WITH A PORTION OF SECTION 6, AND A PORTION OF THE 
ANTONIO HUERTAS GRANT, SECTION 41, ALL LYING IN TOWNSHIP 7 SOUTH, 
RANGE 28 EAST, ST. JOHNS COUNTY, FLORIDA, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY 
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS; 

BEGIN, AT THE SOUTHWESTERLY CORNER OF THE PLAT OF WHIPSER CREEK 
PHASE 1-UNIT C, AS RECORDED IN MAP BOOK 73, PAGES 28 THROUGH 38, 
INCLUSIVE, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF ST. JOHNS COUNTY; THENCE 
EASTERLY, AND NORTHEASTERLY, ALONG THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF SAID PLAT 
OF WHIPSER CREEK PHASE 1-UNIT C, RUN THE FOLLOWING TWENTY NINE (29) 
COURSES; COURSE NO. 1: NORTH 82°04'24" EAST, 65.46 FEET; COURSE NO. 2: 
NORTH 86°11'21" EAST, 37.26 FEET; COURSE NO. 3: SOUTH 47°26'57" EAST, 
39.22 FEET; COURSE NO. 4: SOUTH 81 °09'38" EAST, 420.00 FEET; COURSE NO. 
5: SOUTH 73°12'31" EAST, 58.20 FEET; COURSE NO. 6: NORTH 25°48'20" EAST, 
140.00 FEET, TO THE ARC OF A CURVE LEADING SOUTHEASTERLY; COURSE NO. 
7: SOUTHEASTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE 
SOUTHWESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 325.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 
52.50 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND 
DISTANCE OF SOUTH 59°34'01" EAST, 52.44 FEET, TO THE POINT OF 
COMPOUND CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING SOUTHERLY; COURSE NO. 8: 
SOUTHERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE 
WESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 10.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 14.22 
FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF 
SOUTH 14°11'31" EAST, 13.05 FEET, TO THE POINT OF REVERSE CURVATURE 
OF A CURVE LEADING SOUTHERLY; tOURSE NO. 9: SOUTHERLY, ALONG .AND 
AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE EASTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 
344.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 142.57 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED 
BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF SOUTH 14°40'55" WEST, 141.56 
FEET, TO THE POINT OF TANGENCY OF SAID CURVE; COURSE NO.10: SOUTH 
02°48'31" WEST, 75.91 FEET; COURSE NO. 11: SOUTH 87°11'29" EAST, 80.00 
FEET; COURSE NO. 12: SOUTH 88°24'02" EAST, 50.01 FEET; COURSE NO.13: 
NORTH 02°48'31" EAST, 40.00 FEET; COURSE NO. 14: NORTH 87°11'29" WEST, 

50.00 FEET; COURSE NO. 15: NORTH 02°48'31" EAST, 34.85 FEET, TO THE 
POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING NORTHERLY; COURSE NO.16: 
NORTHERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE 
EASTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 264.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 100.76 
FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF 
NORTH 13°44'33" EAST, 100.15 FEET; COURSE NO. 17: SOUTH 65°12'14" EAST, 
109.02 FEET; COURSE NO. 18: NORTH 32°55'01" EAST, 14.22 FEET; COURSE 
NO. 19: NORTH 40°22'34" EAST, 37.38 FEET; COURSE NO. 20: NORTH 
77°11'28" EAST, 111.93 FEET; COURSE NO. 21: NORTH 80°03'08" EAST, 244.02 
FEET; COURSE NO. 22: NORTH 22"16'35" EAST, 47.71 FEET; COURSE NO. 23: 
NORTH 15°48'46" EAST, 21.94 FEET; COURSE NO. 24: NORTH 38"10'59" EAST, 
53.72 FEET, TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING EASTERLY; 
COURSE NO. 25: EASTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, 
CONCAVE SOUTHERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 25.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE 
OF 29.61 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND 
DISTANCE OF NORTH 72"06'36" EAST, 27.91 FEET, TO THE POINT OF 
TANGENCY OF SAID CURVE; COURSE NO. 26: SOUTH 73°57'47" EAST, 66.37 
FEET; COURSE NO. 27: SOUTH 69°00'03" EAST, 69.03 FEET; COURSE NO. 28: 
SOUTH 63°20'44" EAST, 58.78 FEET; COURSE NO. 29: NORTH 70°46'16" EAST, 
9.16 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 12°26'04" EAST, 1650.12 FEET, TO THE SOUTHERLY 
LINE OF AFORESAID SECTION 41; THENCE NORTH 71°03'40" WEST, ALONG 
LAST SAID LINE, 1226.05 FEET; THENCE NORTH 60°13'49" WEST, CONTINUING 
ALONG LAST SAID LINE, 1734.02 FEET, TO THE EASTERLY LINE OF SAID 
SECTION 6; THENCE SOUTH 03°24'47" EAST, ALONG THE EASTERLY LINE OF 
SAID SECTION 6, A DISTANCE OF 1010.28 FEET; THENCE NORTH 89°59'23" 
WEST, 167.76 FEET; THENCE NORTH 48°29'01" WEST, 226.39 FEET; THENCE 
NORTH 19°45'18" WEST, 858.18 FEET; THENCE NORTH 22°09'18" WEST, 25.31 
FEET, TO THE SOIJTHEASTERLY LINE OF AFORESAID PLAT OF WHISPER CREEK 
PHASE 4 UNIT B; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID SOUTHEASTERLY LINE, 
RUN THE FOLLOWING FOURTY-THREE (43) COURSES AND DISTANCES; COURSE 
NO. 1: NORTH 58°53'06" EAST, 40.47 FEET; COURSE NO. 2: NORTH 33°15'11" 
EAST, 31.01 FEET; COURSE NO. 3: NORTH 35°07'18" EAST, 41.79 FEET; COURSE 
NO. 4: NORTH 10°17'38" EAST, 42.38 FEET; COURSE NO. 5: NORTH 40°54'56" 
EAST, 45.35 FEET; COURSE NO. 6: NORTH 09°20'47" EAST, 26.66 FEET; COURSE 
NO. 7: NORTH 32°53'56" EAST, 31.20 FEET; COURSE NO. 8: NORTH 05°41'56" 
EAST, 31.51 FEET; COURSE NO. 9: NORTH 13°25'02" EAST, 38.56 FEET; COURSE 

En9~and•Thim) I LEGAL DESCRIPTION - ASSESSMENT AREA 3 (PHASE 2) _ _ a. m111czr ,Inc. 
ETM. NO. 21-226 

DATE: AUGUST 12, 2021 
- - ENGINEERS - PLANNERS 

=., .= ~~§igY~~sA~ u~~~s~~~; ARCHITECTS I SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
~E~E~~ Jocksonv,lle, ~onda 32256 
~,=.:==.'=:..""'= Certificate of Authoriz:otion No.;2564 

~~~nN/(gJl?~4i~~42l90 

SCALE: N/A 

PLATE NO: 6 



NO. 10: NORTH 59°34'12" EAST, 36.77 FEET; COURSE NO.11: NORTH 
02°27'50''. EAST, 32.51 FEET; COURSE NO. 12: NORTH 58°52'14" EAST, 11.57 
FEET; COURSE NO. 13: NORTH 75°30'55" EAST, 27.43 FEET; COURSE NO. 14: 
NORTH 46°22'47" EAST, 33.19 FEET; COURSE NO. 15: NORTH 76°04'37" EAST, 
51.07 FEET; COURSE NO. 16: SOUTH 89°39'07" EAST, 33.53 FEET; COURSE NO. 
17: NORTH 40°15'02" EAST, 32.18 FEET; COURSE NO.18: NORTH 70°27'41" 
EAST, 88.42 FEET; COURSE NO. 19: SOUTH 45°26'31" EAST, 90.94 FEET; 
COURSE NO. 20: SOUTH 24°59'11" EAST, 22.65 FEET; COURSE NO. 21: SOUTH 
42°22'18" EAST, 20.63 FEET; COURSE NO. 22: SOUTH 49°05'19" EAST, 52.55 
FEET; COURSE NO. 23: NORTH 07°39'56" EAST, 14.09 FEET; COURSE NO. 24: 
NORTH 50°45'42" EAST, 67.90 FEET; COURSE NO. 25: SOUTH 54°19'50" EAST, 
69.17 FEET; COURSE NO. 26: NORTH 83°40'27" EAST, 47.45 FEET; COURSE NO. 
27: NORTH 87°43'39" EAST, 43.00 FEET; COURSE NO. 28: SOUTH 43°03'55" 
EAST, 42.44 FEET; COURSE NO. 29: SOUTH 72°22'56" EAST, 34.01 FEET; 
COURSE NO. 30: SOUTH 67°25'36" EAST, 39.12 FEET; COURSE NO. 31: NORTH 
86°54'24" EAST, 42.66 FEET; COURSE NO. 32: SOUTH 88°57'08" EAST, 46.54 
FEET; COURSE NO. 33: NORTH 83°32'30" EAST, 49.75 FEET; COURSE NO. 34: 

NORTH 83°32'32" EAST, 58.52 FEET; COURSE NO. 35: NORTH 88°03'32" EAST, 
52.62 FEET; COURSE NO. 36: SOUTH 87°46'45" EAST, 38.28 FEET; COURSE NO. 
37: SOUTH 89°40'59" EAST, 43.95 FEET; COURSE NO. 38: SOUTH 69°35'39" 
EAST, 62.05 FEET; COURSE NO. 39: SOUTH 81 °14'59" EAST, 35.04 FEET; 
COURSE NO. 40: NORTH 73°30'02" EAST, 36.88 FEET; COURSE NO. 41: NORTH 
70°16'00" EAST, 34.22 FEET; COURSE NO. 42: NORTH 65°39'35" EAST, 12.11 
FEET; COURSE NO. 43: NORTH 03°19'04" WEST, 43.33 FEET, TO THE POINT OF 

BEGINNING. 

CONTAINING 66.92 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 

-

' ' 

eng~and •Thim) LEGAL DESCRIPTION - ASSESSMENT AREA 3 (PHASE 2) ETM. NO. 
21

-
226 

_ _ a.m111czr,lnc. DATE, AuGusT 12. 2021 
- - ENGINEERS - PLANNERS I 
- - SUR\IE:YORS - LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS ;:;:,,.,,_,;; J:;z.5

00
~:;,,'."~:;);•f,~\% SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT SCALE N/A ' 

:"",=".:==:.=.-=:: Certificcte of Authorization No.:2584 

~~~n~/(sdlf'\!4~~~j~90 PLATE NO: 6A 



A PORTION OF THE ANTONIO HUERTAS GRANT, SECTION 41, TOWNSHIP 7 SOUTH, RANGE 28 
EAST, ST. JOHNS COUNTY, FLORIDA, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS; 

BEGIN, ATTHE SOUTHWESTERLY CORNER OF THE PLAT OF TRAILMARK EAST PARCEL-PHASE 
1, AS RECORDED IN MAP BOOK 104, PAGES 1 THROUGH 16, INCLUSIVE OF THE PUBLIC 
RECORDS OF ST. JOHNS COUNTY; THENCE EASTERLY, AND NORTHEASTERLY, ALONG THE 
SOUTHERLY LINE OF SAID PLAT OF TRAILMARK EAST PARCEL-PHASE 1, RUN THE FOLLOWING 
FOUR (4) COURSES; COURSE NO. 1: SOUTH 81"39'24" EAST, 1122.36 FEET, TO THE POINT OF 
CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING EASTERLY; COURSE NO. 2: EASTERLY, ALONG AND 
AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE NORTHERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 312.50 
FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 187.33 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING 
AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 81°10'11" EAST, 184.54 FEET, TO THE POINT OF TANGENCY OF 
SAID CURVE; COURSE NO. 3: NORTH 63"59'47" EAST, 25.02 FEET; COURSE NO. 4: 88°53'49" 
EAST, 456.01 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 16"53'10" WEST, 285.18 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 48°01'13" 
WEST, 578.97 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 11"23'04" WEST, 377.90 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 82°57'21" 
EAST, 37.41 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 07°02'39"' WEST, 141.72 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 12°01'58" 
WEST, 50.00 FEET, TO THE ARC OF A CURVE LEADING WESTERLY; THENCE WESTERLY, ALONG 
AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE SOUTHERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 295.32 
FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 46.76 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING 
AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 82°30'29" WEST, 46.71 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 02°57'04" WEST, 
142.74 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 17°22'21"' WEST, 278.60 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 12"57'52" WEST, 
164.97 FEET; THENCE NORTH 77°01'54"' WEST, 17.28 FEET, TO THE ARC OF A CURVE LEADING 
WESTERLY; THENCE WESTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE 
SOUTHERLY, HAV!NG A RADIUS OF 225.44 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 37.52 FEET, SAID ARC 
BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 81"48'51" WEST, 37.48 
FEET; THENCE SOUTH 03"50'10" WEST, 50.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 02"54'46" WEST, 182.03 
FEET; THENCE SOUTH 18°56'20" WEST, 316.39 FEET, TO THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF AFORESAID 
SECTION 41; THENCE NORTH 71 "03'40" WEST, ALONG LAST SAID LINE, 1130.88 FEET; THENCE 
NORTH 12°26'04" WEST, 1650.12 FEET, TO THE SOUTHEASTERLY LINE OF THE PLAT OF 
WHISPER CREEK PHASE 1 UNIT C, AS RECORDED IN MAP BOOK 73, PAGES 28 THROUGH 38, 
INCLUSIVE, OF SAID PUBLIC RECORDS; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID 
SOUTHEASTERLY LINE OF WHISPER CREEK PHASE 1 UNIT C, AND THE SOUTHEASTERLY LINE 
OF THE PLAT OF WHISPER CREEK PHASE 3 UNIT A, AS RECORDED IN MAP BOOK 86, PAGES41 
THROUGH 44, INCLUSIVE, OF SAID PUBLIC RECORDS, RUN THE FOLLOWING FIVE (S) COURSES 
AND DISTANCES; COURSE NO. 1: NORTH 70"46'38" EAST, 134.06 FEET; COURSE NO. 2: NORTH 
51"12'15" EAST, 197.05 FEET; COURSE NO. 3: NORTH 55"58'18" EAST, 60.21 FEET; COURSE 
NO. 4: NORTH 51 °12'29" EAST, 164.59 FEET, TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE 
LEADING NORTHEASTERLY; COURSE NO. 5: NORTHEASTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC 
OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE NORTHWESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 455.00 FEET, AN ARC 
DISTANCE OF 184.85 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND 
DISTANCE OF NORTH 39°34'10" EAST, 183.58 FEET, TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

CONTAINING 79.93 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 

England• Thim) 
- - & fflillczr,lnc. 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION - ASSESSMENT AREA 2 (PHASE 3B) I ETM. NO, 
21

-
226 I 

DATE: AUGUST 12, 2021 
- - ENGINEERS-PLANNERS 
- - SURVEYORS-1..ANOSCN'EARCHl'l'ECTS 

~~~= 1i~J;onSv\i1/"?i~~~~e3§3~i ~-=-==-==-~ CertEfk:ote c,f Au\rlori;;o\ion No ;2564 

~~~nNc,~(gJ£fi§4~~ijl
90 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT SCALE: 1" ~ 2,000' 

PLATE NO: 5 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



RESOLUTION 2022-02 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE SIX 
MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT RATIIFYING, 
THE SETTING AND PUBLICATION OF THE PUBLIC HEARING ON 
THE PETITION TO AMEND THE BOUNDARY OF THE DISTRICT; 
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Six Mile Creek Community Development District (“District”) is a local unit 
of special-purpose government established pursuant to the Uniform Community Development 
District Act of 1980, as codified in Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, for the purpose of planning, 
financing, constructing, operating and/or maintaining certain infrastructure improvements; and 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution 2021-14, the District petitioned the Florida Land and 
Water Adjudicatory Commission (“FLWAC”) to amend its boundaries, and FLWAC subsequently 
directed the District to hold the public hearing thereon; and  
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, the public hearing must be 
published once a week for four (4) consecutive weeks in a newspaper of general circulation in 
St. Johns County; and  
 

WHEREAS, to avoid delay in setting the public hearing and to comply with the statutory 
publication requirements, a public hearing has been set for November 9, 2021 at 3:00 p.m. at 
World Golf Village Renaissance St. Augustine Resort, 500 South Legacy Trail, St. Augustine, 
Florida 32092; and 
 

WHEREAS, the District Counsel caused the notice of the public hearing to be published 
in a newspaper of general circulation in St. Johns County, Florida, consistent with the 
requirements of Chapters 190, Florida Statutes; and  
  

WHEREAS, the District’s Board of Supervisors (the “Board”) desires to ratify the actions 
in setting and noticing the boundary amendment hearing. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS OF THE SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 

 
 SECTION 1. RATIFICATION OF BOUNDARY AMENDMENT HEARING.  The setting of 
the boundary amendment hearing and the publication of the notice of boundary amendment 
hearing are hereby ratified.   
 



 SECTION 2. SEVERABILITY.  The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more 
provisions of this Resolution shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining 
portions of this Resolution, or any part thereof. 
 
 SECTION 3. EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall take effect upon its passage and 
adoption by the Board. 
 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 20th day of October, 2021. 
 
 
ATTEST:      SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
_____________________________   By:___________________________ 
Secretary    
       Its:____________________________ 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



September 28, 2021 

Board of Supervisors 
Six Mile Creek Community Development District 
5385 N. Nob Hill Road 
Sunrise, FL 33351 

951 Yamato Road• Suite 280 
Boca Raton, Florida 33431 
(561) 994-9299 • (800) 299-4728 
Fax (561) 994-5823 
www.graucpa.com 

We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the services we are to provide Six Mile Creek Community Development 
District, St. Johns County, Florida ("the District") for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2021, with the option of four (4) 
additional one-year renewals. We will audit the financial statements of the governmental activities and each major fund, 
including the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the basic financial statements of Six Mile 
Creek Community Development District as of and for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2021, with the option of four (4) 
additional one-year renewals. In addition, we will examine the District's compliance with the requirements of Section 218.415 
Florida Statutes. 

Accounting standards generally accepted in the United States of America provide for certain required supplementary 
information (RSI), such as management's discussion and analysis (MD&A), to supplement the District's basic financial 
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial 
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. As part of our engagement, we will apply certain 
limited procedures to the District's RSI in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. These limited procedures will consist of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information 
and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, 
and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We will not express an opinion or provide 
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an 
opinion or provide any assurance. 

The following RSI is required by generally accepted accounting principles and will be subjected to certain limited procedures, 
but will not be audited: 

1) Management's Discussion and Analysis. 

2) Budgetary comparison schedule 

The following other information accompanying the financial statements will not be subjected to the auditing procedures applied 
in our audit of the financial statements, and our auditor's report will not provide an opinion or any assurance on that 
information: 

1) Compliance with FL Statute 218.39 (3) (c) 

Audit Objectives 

The objective of our audit is the expression of opinions as to whether your financial statements are fairly presented, in all 
material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and to report on the fairness of the 
supplementary information referred to in the second paragraph when considered in relation to the financial statements as a 
whole. Our audit will be conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States, and will include tests of the accounting records of the District and other procedures we consider necessary to 
enable us to express such opinions. We will issue a written report upon completion of our audit of the District's financial 
statements. We cannot provide assurance that an unmodified opinion will be expressed. Circumstances may arise in which it 
is necessary for us to modify our opinion or add emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraphs. If our opinion on the financial 
statements is other than unmodified, we will discuss the reasons with you in advance. If, for any reason, we are unable to 
complete the audit or are unable to form or have not formed an opinion, we may decline to express an opinion or issue a 
report, or may withdraw from this engagement. 

We will also provide a report (that does not include an opinion) on internal control related to the financial statements and 
compliance with the provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
material effect on the financial statements as required by Government Auditing Standards. The report on internal control and 
on compliance and other matters will include a paragraph that states (1) that the purpose of the report is solely to describe the 
scope of testing of internal control and compliance, and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the District's internal control on compliance, and (2) that the report is an integral part of an audit performed in 



Six Mile Creek Community Development District Page 2 

accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District's internal control and compliance. The paragraph 
will also state that the report is not suitable for any other purpose. If during our audit we become aware that the District is 
subject to an audit requirement that is not encompassed in the terms of this engagement, we will communicate to 
management and those charged with governance that an audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards 
and the standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards may not satisfy the relevant legal, 
regulatory, or contractual requirements. 

Examination Objective 

The objective of our examination is the expression of an opinion as to whether the District is in compliance with Florida Statute 
218.415 in accordance with Rule 10.556(10) of the Auditor General of the State of Florida. Our examination will be conducted 
in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and will include 
tests of your records and other procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express such an opinion. We will issue a 
written report upon completion of our examination of the District's compliance. The report will include a statement that the 
report is intended solely for the information and use of management, those charged with governance, and the Florida Auditor 
General, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. We cannot provide 
assurance that an unmodified opinion will be expressed. Circumstances may arise in which it is necessary for us to modify our 
opinion or add emphasis-of~matter or other-matter paragraphs. If our opinion on the District's compliance is other than 
unmodified, we will discuss the reasons with you in advance. If, for any reason, we are unable to complete the examination or 
are unable to form or have not formed an opinion, we may decline to express an opinion or issue a report, or may withdraw 
from this engagement. 

Management Responsibilities 

Management is responsible for the financial statements and all accompanying information as well as al! representations 
contained therein. Further, management is responsible for compliance with Florida Statute 218.415 and will provide us with the 
information required for the examination. The accuracy and completeness of such information is also management's 
responsibllity. As part of the audit, we will assist with preparation of your financial statements and related notes in conformity 
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles based on information provided by you. These nonaudit services do not 
constitute an audit under Government Auditing Standards and such services wil! not be conducted in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards. You agree to assume all management responsibilities relating to the financial statements and 
related notes and any other nonaudit services we provide. You will be required to acknowledge in the management 
representation letter our assistance with preparation of the financial statements and related notes and that you have reviewed 
and approved the financial statements and related notes prior to their issuance and have accepted responsibility for them. In 
addition, you will be required to make certain representations regarding compliance with Florida Statute 218.415 in the 
management representation letter. Further, you agree to oversee the nonaudit services by designating an individual, 
preferably from senior management, who possesses suitable skill, knowledge, or experience; evaluate the adequacy and 
results of those services; and accept responsibility for them. 

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal controls, including evaluating and monitoring 
ongoing activities, to help ensure that appropriate goals and objectives are met; following laws and regulations; and ensuring 
that management is reliable and financial information is reliable and properly reported. Management is also responsible for 
implementing systems designed to achieve compliance with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements. 
You are also responsible for the selection and application of accounting principles, for the preparation and fair presentation of 
the financial statements and all accompanying information in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, 
and for compliance with applicable laws and regulations and the provisions of contracts and grant agreements. 

Management is also responsible for making all financial records and related information available to us and for the accuracy 
and completeness of that information. You are also responsible for providing us with (1) access to all information of which you 
are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, (2) additional information that we 
may request for the purpose of the audit, and (3) unrestricted access to persons within the government from whom we 
determine it necessary to obtain audit evidence. 

Your responsibilities include adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and for confirming to us in the 
written representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by us during the current 
engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the 
financial statements taken as a whole. As part of our engagement, we may propose standard adjusting, or correcting journal 
entries to your financial statements. You are responsible for reviewing the entries and understanding the nature of the 
proposed entries and the impact they have on the financial statements. 

You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect fraud, and for informing 
us about all known or suspected fraud affecting the government involving (1) management, (2) employees who have 
significant roles in internal control, and (3) others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. 
Your responsibilities include informing us of your knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the 
government received in communications from employees, former employees, granters, regulators, or others. In addition, you 
are responsible for identifying and ensuring that the government compiles with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, 
agreements, and grants and for taking timely and appropriate steps to remedy fraud and noncompliance with provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts or grant agreements, or abuse that we report. 



Six Mile Creek Community Development District Page 3 

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a process for tracking the status of audit findings and 
recommendations. Management is also responsible for identifying and providing report copies of previous financial audits, 
attestation engagements, performance audits or other studies related to the objectives discussed in the Audit Objectives 
section of this letter. This responsibility includes relaying to us corrective actions taken to address significant findings and 
recommendations resulting from those audits, attestation engagements, performance audits, or other studies. You are also 
responsible for providing management's views on our current findings, conclusions, and recommendations, as well as your 
planned corrective actions, for the report, and for the timing and format for providing that information. 

With regard to the electronic dissemination of audited financial statements, including financial statements published 
electronically on your website, you understand that electronic sites are a means to distribute information and, therefore, we are 
not required to read the information contained in these sites or to consider the consistency of other information in the 
electronic site with the original document. 

Audit Procedures-General 

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; 
therefore, our audit will involve judgment about the number of transactions to be examined and the areas to be tested. An 
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We will 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable rather than absolute assurance about whether the financial statements are 
free of material misstatement, whether from (1) errors, (2) fraudulent financial reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or (4) 
violations of laws or governmental regulations that are attributable to the government or to acts by management or employees 
acting on behalf of the government. Because the determination of abuse is subjective, Government Auditing Standards do not 
expect auditors to provide reasonable assurance of detecting abuse. 

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, combined with the inherent limitations of internal control, and because we will 
not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is a risk that material misstatements may exist and not be 
detected by us, even though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing 
standards and Government Auditing Standards. In addition, an audit is not designed to detect immaterial misstatements or 
violations of laws or governmental regulations that do not have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. Our 
responsibility as auditors is limited to the period covered by our audit and does not extend to later periods for which we are not 
engaged as auditors. 

Our procedures wi11 include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in the accounts, and may 
include tests of the physical existence of inventories, and direct confirmation of receivables and certain other assets and 
liabilities by correspondence with selected individuals, funding sources, creditors, and financial institutions. We will request 
written representations from your attorneys as part of the engagement, and they may bill you for responding to this inquiry. At 
the conclusion of our audit, we will require certain written representations from you about your responsibilities for the financial 
statements; compliance with laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements; and other responsibilities required by 
generally accepted auditing standards. 

Audit Procedures-Internal Control 

Our audit will include obtaining an understanding of the government and its environment, including internal control, sufficient to 
assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements and to design the nature, timing, and extent of further 
audit procedures. Tests of controls may be performed to test the effectiveness of certain controls that we consider relevant to 
preventing and detecting errors and fraud that are material to the financial statements and to preventing and detecting 
misstatements resulting from illegal acts and other noncompliance matters that have a direct and material effect on the 
financial statements. Our tests, if performed, will be less in scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on internal 
control and, accordingly, no opinion will be expressed in our report on internal control issued pursuant to Government Auditing 
Standards. 

An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. 
However, during the audit, we will communicate to management and those charged with governance internal control related 
matters that are required to be communicated under AICPA professional standards and Government Auditing Standards. 

Audit Procedures-Compliance 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, we will 
perform tests of the District's compliance with the provisions of applicable laws, regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants. 
However, the objective of our audit will not be to provide an opinion on overall compliance and we will not express such an 
opinion in our report on compliance issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards. 

Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other 

We understand that your employees will prepare all cash or other confirmations we request and will locate any documents 
selected by us for testing. 

The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Grau & Associates and constitutes confidential information. 
However, subject to applicable laws and regulations, audit documentation and appropriate individuals will be made available 



Six Mile Creek Community Development District Page4 

upon request and in a timely manner to a cognizant or oversight agency or its designee, a federal agency providing direct or 
indirect funding, or the U.S. Government Accountability Office for purposes of a quality review of the audit, to resolve audit 
findings, or to carry out oversight responsibilities. We will notify you of any such request. lf requested, access to such audit 
documentation will be provided under the supervision of Grau & Associates personnel. Furthermore, upon request, we may 
provide copies of selected audit documentation to the aforementioned parties. These parties may intend, or decide, to 
distribute the copies or information contained therein to others, including other governmental agencies. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, the parties acknowledge that various documents reviewed or produced during the conduct of the audit may be 
public records under Florida law. The District agrees to notify Grau & Associates of any public record request it receives that 
involves audit documentation. 

Furthermore, Grau & Associates agrees to comply with all applicable provisions of Florida law in handling such records, 
including but not limited to Section 119.0701, Florida Statutes. Auditor acknowledges that the designated public records 
custodian for the District is the District Manager ("Public Records Custodian"). Among other requirements and to the extent 
applicable by law, Grau & Associates shall 1) keep and maintain public records required by the District to perform the service; 
2) upon request by the Public Records Custodian, provide the District with the requested public records or allow the records to 
be inspected or copied within a reasonable time period at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, 
Florida Statutes; 3) ensure that public records which are exempt or confidential, and exempt from public records disclosure 
requirements, are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of the contract term and following the contract 
term if Auditor does not transfer the records to the Public ·Records Custodian of the District; and 4) upon completion of the 
contract, transfer to the District, at no cost, all public records in Grau & Associate's possession or, alternatively, keep, 
maintain and meet all applicable requirements for retaining public records pursuant to Florida laws. When such public records 
are transferred by Grau & Associates, Grau & Associates shall destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or 
confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements. All records stored electronically must be provided to the 
District in a format that is compatible with Microsoft Word or Adobe PDF formats. 

IF GRAU & ASSOCIATES HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, 
TO ITS DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT, CONTACT THE PUBLIC RECORDS 
CUSTODIAN AT: 

GMS-NF, LLC 
475 WESTTOWN PLACE, SUITE 114 
ST, AUGUSTINE, FL 32092 
TELEPHONE: 904-940-5850 

This agreement provides for a contract period of one (1) year with the option of four (4) additional, one-year renewals upon the 
written consent of both parties. Our fee for these services will not exceed $6,000 for the September 30, 2021 audit. The fees 
for the fiscal years 2022, 2023, 2024 and 2025 will not exceed $6,100, $6,200, $6,300 and $6,400, respectively, unless there 
is a change in activity by the District which results in additional audit work or if Bonds are issued. 

We will complete the audit within prescribed statutory deadlines, which requires the District to submit its annual audit to the 
Auditor General no later than nine (9) months after the end of the audited fiscal year, with the understanding that your 
employees will provide information needed to perform the audit on a timely basis. 

The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for a minimum of five years after the report release date. If we 
are aware that a federal awarding agency or auditee is contesting an audit finding, we will contact the party(ies) contesting the 
audit finding for guidance prior to destroying the audit documentation. 

Our invoices for these fees will be rendered each month as work progresses and are payable on presentation. Invoices will be 
submitted in sufficient detail to demonstrate compliance with the terms of this agreement. ln accordance with our firm policies, 
work may be suspended if your account becomes 60 days or more overdue and may not be resumed until your account is paid 
in full. If we elect to terminate our services for nonpayment, our engagement will be deemed to have been completed upon 
written notification of termination, even if we have not completed our report. You will be obligated to compensate us for all time 
expended and to reimburse us for all out-of-pocket costs through the date of termination. The above fee is based on 
anticipated cooperation from your personnel and the assumption that unexpected circumstances will not be encountered 
during the audit. If significant additional time is necessary, we will discuss it with you and arrive at a new fee estimate. 

The District may terminate this agreement, with or without consent, upon thirty (30) days written notice of termination to Grau 
& Associates. Upon any termination of this agreement, Grau & Associates shall be entitled to payment of all work and/or 
services rendered up until the date of the notice of termination subject to any offsets the District may have against Grau & 
Associates. 

We will provide you with a copy of our most recent external peer review report and any letter of comment, and any subsequent 
peer review reports and letters of comment received during the period of the contract. Our 2019 peer review report 
accompanies this letter. 



Six Mile Creek Community Development District Page 5 

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to Six Mile Creek Community Development District and believe this letter 
accurately summarizes the significant terms of our engagement. If you have any questions, please let us know. If you agree 
with the terms of our engagement as described in this letter, please sign the enclosed copy and return it to us. 

Very truly yours, 

Grau & Associates 

Antonio J. Grau 

ectOT~h• oede,staad;og of s;, M;le C,eek Commoe;ty Oe,elopmeot rnsi,;ct. 

By: -------t--t,.-----------:i;;;,,,----------



Six Mile Creek Community Development District 

• 

FICPA Peor Review Program 
Administered in Florida 
bv The Florida lnsmute of CPAs 

February 20, 2020 

Antonio Grau 
Grau & Associates 
951 Yamato Rd Ste 280 
Boca Raton, FL 33431-1809 

Dear Antonio Grau: 

@AICPA: Peer Review 
Program 

AICPA Poor Rovlow Program 
Administered In Florida 

by the Florida Institute of CPAs 

Page 6 

It is my pleasure to notify you that on February 20, 2020, the Florida Peer Review Committee accepted the 
report on the most recent System Review of your firm. The due date for your next review is December 31, 
2022. This is the date by which all review documents should be completed and submitted to the administering 
entity. 

As you know, the report had a peer review rating of pass. The Committee asked me to convey its 
congratulations to the firm. 

Thank you for your cooperation. 

Peer Review Team 
FICPA Peer Review Committee 
paul@ficpa.org 
800-342-3197 ext. 251 

Florida Institute of CPAs 

cc: Daniel Hevia, Racquel McIntosh 

Firm Number: 900004390114 Review Number: 571202 

3800 Esplanade Way, Su,te 2!0 I Tallahassee. FL 3231 tj 800.342.3197. In Florida 1850.224.27271 Fax: 850.222.81901 www.f1cpa.org 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 1 

HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT 
 

 This Agreement is made and entered into this ___ day of October, 2021, by and among: 
 

United Parcel Service, an Ohio corporation, whose mailing address is 2855 
Industry Center Road, St. Augustine, Florida (“UPS”); and 
 
Six Mile Creek Community Development District, a local unit of special-
purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, and 
located in St. Johns County, Florida, whose mailing address is 475 West Town 
Place, Suite 114, World Golf Village, St. Augustine, Florida 32092 (“District”). 

 
Recitals 

 
 Whereas, the District was established for the purpose of planning, financing, 
constructing, installing, operating, and/or maintaining certain infrastructure improvements and 
recreational facilities; and 
 
 Whereas, the District retains ownership of certain property within the District (the “POD 
Location”); and 
 
 Whereas, UPS desires to park a 18’x 20’ POD storage unit in the POD Location and use 
the District’s roads for the purpose of storing and delivering packages to residents within the 
District (the “POD’); and 
 
 Whereas, UPS also desires to use golf carts and small trailer(s) in order to deliver the 
packages; and 
 
 Whereas, the District has agreed to allow the use of the POD Location by UPS only if 
UPS agrees to indemnify and hold the District harmless from damages and expenses that may be 
incurred as a direct or indirect result of such use of the POD Location; and 
 
 Now, therefore, based upon good and valuable consideration and the mutual covenants 
of the parties, the receipt of which and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the District 
and UPS agree as follows: 
 
 Section 1. Recitals.  The recitals so stated are true and correct and by this reference 
are incorporated into and form a material part of this Agreement. 
 
 Section 2. POD Location and District Road Utilization.  UPS may place its POD 
and utilize golf carts in and around the POD Location and on District roads during the time 
period of October 15, 2021 through January 12, 2022 under the terms and conditions contained 
herein.  The cost of repair or replacement of any damage to any of the District’s property as a 
direct or indirect result of UPS’s use of the POD Location and the District’s roads shall be paid 
by UPS. 
 
 Section 3. Indemnification.   



 2 

 
A. UPS agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the District and its 

officers, agents, employees, successors, assigns, members, affiliates, or 
representatives from any and all liability, claims, actions, suits, liens, 
demands, costs, interest, expenses, damages, penalties, fines, judgments 
against the District, or loss or damage, whether monetary or otherwise, 
arising out of, wholly or in part by, or in connection with the services to be 
performed by UPS, its subcontractors, its employees and agents in 
connection with this Agreement, including litigation, mediation, arbitration, 
appellate, or settlement proceedings with respect thereto.  Additionally, 
nothing in this Agreement requires UPS to indemnify the District for the 
District’s percentage of fault if the District is adjudged to be more than 50% 
at fault for any claims against the District and UPS as jointly liable parties; 
however, UPS shall indemnify the District for any and all percentage of 
fault attributable to UPS for claims against the District, regardless whether 
the District is adjudged to be more or less than 50% at fault. UPS further 
agrees that nothing herein shall constitute or be construed as a waiver of the 
District's limitations on liability contained in section 768.28, Florida 
Statutes, or other statute. 

 
B. Obligations under this section shall include the payment of all settlements, 

judgments, damages, liquidated damages, penalties, forfeitures, back pay 
awards, court costs, arbitration and/or mediation costs, litigation expenses, 
attorneys’ fees, paralegal fees (incurred in court, out of court, on appeal, or 
in bankruptcy proceedings), any interest, expenses, damages, penalties, 
fines, or judgments against the District. 

 
 Section 4. Sovereign Immunity.  The District and UPS agree that nothing in this 
Agreement shall constitute or be construed as a waiver of the District’s limitation on liability 
contained in Section 768.28 Florida Statutes. 
 
 Section 5. Insurance. 
 
  A. UPS shall maintain throughout the term of this Agreement the following 

insurance: 
 

(1) Worker’s Compensation Insurance in accordance with the laws of 
the State of Florida. 

  
   (2) Commercial General Liability Insurance covering UPS’s legal 

liability for bodily injuries, with limits of not less than $1,000,000 
combined single limit bodily injury and property damage liability, 
and covering at least the following hazards: 

 
    (I) Independent Contractors Coverage for bodily injury and 

property damage in connection with any subcontractors’ 
operation. 

 



 3 

   (3) Employer’s Liability Coverage with limits of at least $1,000,000 
(one million dollars) per accident or disease. 

   
   (4) Automobile Liability Insurance for bodily injuries in limits of not 

less than $1,000,000 combined single limit bodily injury and for 
property damage, providing coverage for any accident arising out 
of or resulting from the operation, maintenance, or use by UPS of 
any owned, non-owned, or hired automobiles, trailers, or other 
equipment required to be licensed. 

 
B. The District, its staff, consultants and supervisors shall be named as an 

additional insured.  UPS shall furnish the District with the Certificate of 
Insurance evidencing compliance with this requirement.  No certificate 
shall be acceptable to the District unless it provides that any change or 
termination within the policy periods of the insurance coverages, as 
certified, shall not be effective within thirty (30) days of prior written 
notice to the District.  Insurance coverage shall be from a reputable 
insurance carrier, licensed to conduct business in the State of Florida, and 
such carrier shall have a Best’s Insurance Reports rating of at least A-VII. 

 
 Section 6.  Severability. If any word, phrase, sentence, part, subsection, section, or 
other portion of this Agreement, or any application thereof, to any person or circumstance is 
declared void, unconstitutional, or invalid for any reason, then such word, phrase, sentence, part, 
subsection, other portion, or the proscribed application thereof, shall be severable, and the 
remaining portions of this Agreement, and all applications thereof, not having been declared 
void, unconstitutional, or invalid shall remain in full force, and effect. 
 
 Section 7. Governing Law and Venue. This Agreement shall be construed 
according to the laws of the State of Florida. Venue for any administrative and/or legal action 
arising under this Agreement shall be in St. Johns County, Florida. 
 
 Section 8. Amendments to Agreement. Both the District, and UPS, acknowledge 
that this Agreement constitutes the complete agreement and understanding of both parties. Both 
the District, and UPS, acknowledge that any amendment to this Agreement shall be in writing, 
and shall be executed by duly authorized representatives of both the District and UPS. 
 
 Section 9. Compliance with Public Records Laws. UPS understands and agrees 
that all documents of any kind provided to the District in connection with this Agreement may be 
public records, and, accordingly, UPS agrees to comply with all applicable provisions of Florida 
law in handling such records, including but not limited to Section 119.0701, Florida Statutes. 
UPS acknowledges that the designated public records custodian for the District is its District 
Manager (“Public Records Custodian”).  Among other requirements and to the extent applicable 
by law, UPS shall 1) keep and maintain public records required by the District to perform the 
service; 2) upon request by the Public Records Custodian, provide the District with the requested 
public records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time period at a 
cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes; 3) ensure that 
public records which are exempt or confidential, and exempt from public records disclosure 
requirements, are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of the contract term 
and following the contract term if UPS does not transfer the records to the Public Records 



 4 

Custodian of the District; and 4) upon completion of the contract, transfer to the District, at no 
cost, all  public records in UPS’ possession or, alternatively, keep, maintain and meet all 
applicable  requirements for retaining public records pursuant to Florida laws.  When such public 
records are transferred by UPS, UPS shall destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt 
or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements.  All records stored 
electronically must be provided to the District in a format that is compatible with Microsoft 
Word or Adobe PDF formats.   
 
IF UPS HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF 
CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO UPS’ DUTY TO PROVIDE 
PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THIS CONTRACT, CONTACT THE 
CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT (904) 940-5850, 
JOLIVER@GMSNF.COM, OR 475 WEST TOWN PLACE, SUITE 114, ST. 
AUGUSTINE, FLORIDA 32092. 
 
 Section 10. Termination. The District may terminate this Agreement immediately 
with cause by providing written notice of termination to UPS.  The District shall provide thirty 
(30) days written notice of termination without cause.   
 
 In witness whereof, the District and UPS have caused these presents to be executed on 
the day and year first written above.   
 
 
 
 
 

(SIGNATURES APPEAR ON FOLLOWING PAGE) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 5 

Executed in the presence of:   Six Mile Creek Community  
      Development District 
 
 
        
_________________________________ _________________________________________ 
Print Name: _______________________ Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 
       
_________________________________ 
Print Name: _______________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
      United Parcel Service, Inc. 
 
             
_________________________________ By:______________________________________ 
Print Name: _______________________ Print Name:_______________________________ 
      Its:______________________________________ 
_________________________________ 
Print Name: _______________________ Attest:___________________________________ 
      Print Name:_______________________________ 
      Title:____________________________________ 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TWELFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

B. 



C:\Users\BlairS\Desktop\ALL CDD'S - Copy\Sixmile CDD (Whisper Creek)\Mtg. Agendas\20Oct2021.doc 10/13/2021 

Six Mile Creek Community Development District 

October 20, 2021 

1. Consideration of Requisitions 275 – 276 2016A Bond Series

2. Ratification of Requisition No. 124

(2020 Bond Series Account)

3. Consideration of Requisitions 125 - 132 (2020 Bond Series Account)

4. Consideration of Requisitions 70 - 80
(2021 Bond Series Account)

5. Ratification of Work Authorization No. 57
TrailMark Drive (Phases 9 and 11) Landscape Architectural Services

Scott A. Wild 

District Engineer 

England-Thims & Miller, Inc. 



Date of 

Requisition Req # Payee Reference INVOICE AMOUNT

10/20/2021 275 Six Mile Creek CDD Six Mile Creek CDD-General Fund (Repayment for Nitelites) 5,333.00$                      

10/20/2021 276 Onsight Industries Trailmark Phase 6 Mailbox - Invoice 002-20-284396D (Sept 2021) 11,601.00$                    

16,934.00$             

Date of 

Requisition Req # Payee Reference INVOICE AMOUNT

10/12/2021 124 Carlton Construction, Inc. Trailmark Entry & Parks - Application for Payment No. 8 (Aug 2021) 111,887.47$                  

111,887.47$           
Date of 

Requisition Req # Payee Reference INVOICE AMOUNT

10/20/2021 125 ETM East Parcel Phase 1 Amenities and Amenity Center - Construction Documents Invoice 199912 (WA#41) (Sep 2021) 3,254.23$                      

10/20/2021 126 ETM Master Site Planning  (WA#51) Invoice 199768 (Sept 2021) 2,867.26$                      

10/20/2021 127 ECS Florida, LLC Geotechnical Services - Trailmark East Parcel Phase 2 Drawdown Analysis - Invoice 914600 (Sept 2021) 2,600.00$                      

10/20/2021 128 Vallencourt Construction Co., Inc. Trailmark East Parcel Phase 1 - Application for Payment No. 13 (Sept 2021) 40,867.05$                    

10/20/2021 129 Vallencourt Construction Co., Inc. Trailmark East Parcel Phase 1 - Application for Payment No. 14 RET (Sept 2021) 652,638.78$                  

10/20/2021 130 Environmental Resource Solutions Trailmark East Parcel Phase 2 - Environmental services Invoice 38065 (Sept 2021) 1,805.00$                      

10/20/2021 131 Hopping Green & Sams Professional Services related to Project Construction-Invoice 125048 (July 2021) 164.50$                         

10/20/2021 132 Basham & Lucas Design Group, Inc. Trailmark Amenity - Invoice 8612 (Sept 2021) 9,314.74$                      

710,257.33$           

Date of 

Requisition Payee Reference INVOICE AMOUNT

10/20/2021 70 ETM TrailMark Phase 11 (WA#45) Invoice 199765 (Sept 2021) 12,260.96$                    

10/20/2021 71 ETM Phases 9A, 9B and 9C CEI Services - WA#53 - Invoice 199780 (Sept 2021) 9,964.52$                      

10/20/2021 72 ETM Consumptive Use Water Permit (WA#21, Amendment 3) Irrigation Design (9A,9B &9C) - Invoice 199807 (Sept 2021) 714.00$                         

10/20/2021 73 ETM TrailMark Phase 11 & East Parcel Phase 2 Proposal Documents & RFP Process (WA#54) Invoice 199908 (Sept 2021) 1,816.50$                      

10/20/2021 74 Vallencourt Construction Trailmark East Parcel Phase 9 - Application for Payment No. 7 (Sept 2021) 449,127.32$                  

10/20/2021 75 Gemini Engineering & Scienses, Inc. Trailmark Phase 9 CLOMR-F - Invoice 21018-2 (Sept 2021) 500.00$                         

10/20/2021 76 Environmental Resource Solutions Trailmark Phase 11 - Environmental services Invoice 38064 (Sept 2021) 2,502.50$                      

10/20/2021 77 Xylem Water Solutions USA, Inc. Trailmark Phases 9A, 9B and 9C - Direct Owner Purchase 9,451.00$                      

10/20/21 78 Ferguson Waterworks Trailmark Phases 9A, 9B and 9C - Direct Owner Purchase 138,667.00$                  

10/20/21 79 Rinker Materials Trailmark Phases 9A, 9B and 9C - Direct Owner Purchase 15,970.48$                    

10/20/2021 80 Forterra Direct Purchase Materials - Trailmark Phases 9A, 9B and 9C 10,028.53$                    

651,002.81$           

TOTAL REQUISITIONS TO BE APPROVED October 20, 2021 1,490,081.61$        

2016A BOND SERIES TO BE APPROVED

2020 Bond Series
2021 Bond Series

2020 BOND SERIES TO BE RATIFIED (Developer Funded)

2020 BOND SERIES TO BE APPROVED

2021 BOND SERIES TO BE APPROVED

2020 BOND SERIES TO BE APPROVED (Developer Funded)

2021 BOND SERIES TO BE APPROVED

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

2016A Bond Series

Wednesday, October 20, 2021

REQUISITION SUMMARY

2016A Bond Series

2020 BOND SERIES TO BE RATIFIED (Developer Funded)

SMC REQ LIST  Oct 20 2021



Scope of Work 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
WORK AUTHORIZATION NO. 57 

Trail Mark Drive (Phases 9 and 11) 
Landscape Architectural Services 

21-340 

England-Thims & Miller, Inc. (ETM) shall provide general consulting engineering services for the Six Mile 
Creek Community Development District as directed by the Board of Supervisors or their designee. General 
consulting services shall include, but not be limited to: 

Task I - Landscape Architectural Services 

ETM shall prepare a landscape design package for the project consistent with St Johns County. This design 
package includes the design of embellished landscape elements such as shrubs, grasses, groundcovers, 
and sodding limits within the right of way and common areas along the Phase 9 and Phase 11 portions of 
TrailMark Drive. The landscape construction documents shall include: 

• Landscape plans and specifications for bidding and construction. 

Lump Sum Fee ........................................................................................................................................ $41 800.00 

Cost such as subconsultants, printing, telephone, delivery service, mileage and travel shall be invoiced at 
direct cost. 

Approval , .(\ 

Submitted by: __ i,,.-~~A_. \J_·~---
England, Thims & Miller, Inc. 

Date: October 61 2021 

Date: 10/6/21 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FOURTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

A. 



Six	Mile	Creek
Community	Development	District

Unaudited Financial	Reporting
September 30,	2021

• • • • • ••••••• • • • • • 



Totals
  Debt Capital (Memorandum Only)
 General Reverie (East Parcel) Service Projects 2021

ASSETS:   
Cash $62,528 --- --- --- $62,528
Prepaid Expenses $31,569 --- --- --- $31,569
Investments:
Custody Account $70,432 --- --- --- $70,432
Series 2007

Reserve --- --- $25,402 --- $25,402
Construction --- --- --- $2,177 $2,177

Series 2015
Reserve --- --- $159,656 --- $159,656
Revenue --- --- $88,100 --- $88,100

Series 2016A
Reserve --- --- $443,550 --- $443,550
Revenue --- --- $361,699 --- $361,699
Construction --- --- --- $631,396 $631,396
Cost of Issuance --- --- --- $2,570 $2,570

Series 2016B
Reserve --- --- $129,838 --- $129,838
Revenue --- --- $61,382 --- $61,382
Interest --- --- $1,341 --- $1,341
Prepayment --- --- $44,370 --- $44,370
Construction --- --- --- $1 $1

Series 2017A
Reserve --- --- $703,838 --- $703,838
Revenue --- --- $467,697 --- $467,697
Construction --- --- --- $0 $0
Construction - NW Parcel --- --- --- $906 $906

Series 2017B
Reserve --- --- $20,664 --- $20,664
Revenue --- --- $13,850 --- $13,850
Prepayment --- --- $67,140 --- $67,140
Interest --- --- $0 --- $0
Construction --- --- --- $2 $2

Series 2020
Reserve --- --- $414,875 --- $414,875
Revenue --- --- $274,081 --- $274,081
Construction --- --- --- $0 $0
Cost of Issuance --- --- --- $6,699 $6,699

Series 2021
Reserve --- --- $566,450 --- $566,450
Revenue --- --- $15 --- $15
Capitalized Interest --- --- $248,070 --- $248,070
Construction --- --- --- $4,491,831 $4,491,831
Cost of Issuance --- --- --- $2,501 $2,501

Due from Capital Projects ($17,715) --- --- $956 ($16,759)
Due from Developer $110,483 $19,271 --- --- $129,754
Due from General Fund --- --- --- $5,153 $5,153
Due from Reverie $19,271 --- --- --- $19,271

TOTAL ASSETS $276,568 $19,271 $4,092,016 $5,144,192 $9,532,047

LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable $50,160 --- --- --- $50,160
Due to General Fund --- $19,271 --- --- $19,271
Due to Capital Projects $5,153 --- $956 $6,109
FUND BALANCES:  
Unrestricted for Debt Service Series 2007 --- --- $25,402 --- $25,402
Restricted for Debt Service Series 2015 --- --- $247,756 --- $247,756
Restricted for Debt Service Series 2016A --- --- $805,249 --- $805,249
Restricted for Debt Service Series 2016B --- --- $236,930 --- $236,930
Restricted for Debt Service Series 2017A --- --- $1,171,535 --- $1,171,535
Restricted for Debt Service Series 2017B --- --- $101,654 --- $101,654
Restricted for Debt Service Series 2020 --- --- $688,956 --- $688,956
Restricted for Debt Service Series 2021 --- --- $814,535 --- $814,535
Restricted for Capital Projects Series 2007 --- --- --- $2,177 $2,177
Restricted for Capital Projects Series 2016A --- --- --- $637,163 $637,163
Restricted for Capital Projects Series 2016B --- --- --- $1 $1
Restricted for Capital Projects Series 2017A --- --- --- $2,862 $2,862
Restricted for Capital Projects Series 2017B --- --- --- $2 $2
Restricted for Capital Projects Series 2020 --- --- --- $6,699 $6,699
Restricted for Capital Projects Series 2021 --- --- --- $4,494,332 $4,494,332
Unassigned $221,256 $0 --- --- $221,256

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY $276,568 $19,271 $4,092,016 $5,144,192 $9,532,047

Governmental Fund Types

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Combined Balance Sheet
September 30, 2021

1



Six Mile Creek
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

General Fund
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

For the period ending 

ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 9/3021  THRU 9/3021 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Special Assessments - Tax Roll $709,200 $709,200 $713,410 $4,210
Special Assessments - Direct Billed $89,533 $89,533 $89,532 ($1)
Special Assessment - Lot Closings $0 $0 $33,725 $33,725

 Developer Contributions $197,674 $197,674 $283,704 $86,030  

Miscellaneous Revenue $0 $0 $2,432 $2,432 *

Rental Income $0 $0 $5,500 $5,500
Interest $0 $0 $7 $7

   
TOTAL  REVENUES $996,407 $996,407 $1,128,311 $131,904

EXPENDITURES:

ADMINISTRATIVE:
Supervisors Fees $12,000 $12,000 $9,600 $2,400
FICA Expense $918 $918 $734 $184
Engineering Fees $16,000 $16,000 $14,933 $1,067
Arbitrage $3,600 $3,600 $1,200 $2,400
Trustee Fees $21,550 $21,550 $16,701 $4,849
Dissemination $5,000 $5,000 $5,300 ($300)
Attorney Fees $22,000 $22,000 $30,307 ($8,307)
Annual Audit $5,315 $5,315 $5,315 $0
Assessment Administration $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $0
Management Fees $29,000 $29,000 $29,000 ($0)
Information Technology $1,200 $1,200 $1,200 $0
Telephone $300 $300 $711 ($411)
Postage $1,500 $1,500 $795 $705
Insurance $6,525 $6,525 $6,218 $307
Printing & Binding $2,500 $2,500 $3,096 ($596)
Travel Per Diem $250 $250 $0 $250
Legal Advertising $5,000 $5,000 $9,169 ($4,169)
Meeting Room Fees $0 $0 $4,500 ($4,500)
Bank Fees $800 $800 $979 ($179)
Other Current Charges $500 $500 $157 $343
Office Supplies $350 $350 $191 $159
Dues, Licenses, Subscriptions $175 $175 $175 $0

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE $139,483 $139,483 $145,282 ($5,799)

OPERATION & MAINTENANCE:
Property Insurance $22,400 $22,400 $22,601 ($201)
Electric $43,000 $43,000 $40,231 $2,769
Water & Sewer $8,000 $8,000 $0 $8,000
Landscape Maintenance $263,995 $263,995 $258,714 $5,281
Landscape - Mulch & Plant Installation $0 $0 $9,625 ($9,625)
Landscape Contingency $40,000 $40,000 $95,238 ($55,238)
Irrigation Maintenance $20,000 $20,000 $19,108 $892
Lake Maintenance $22,000 $22,000 $20,100 $1,900
Lake Contingency $5,000 $5,000 $0 $5,000
Security Patrol $55,000 $55,000 $35,145 $19,855
Street Sweeping $8,000 $8,000 $500 $7,500
General Maintenance $10,000 $10,000 $16,340 ($6,340)
Dog Park - General Maintenance $5,000 $5,000 $1,758 $3,242
Kayak Launch - General Maintenance $5,000 $5,000 $415 $4,585

TOTAL OPERATION & MAINTENANCE $507,395 $507,395 $519,775 ($12,380)

September 30, 2021

2



Six Mile Creek
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

General Fund
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

For the period ending 

ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 9/3021  THRU 9/3021 VARIANCE

AMENITY CENTER
Utilities
     Telephone $6,000 $6,000 $5,358 $642
     Electric $16,000 $16,000 $14,095 $1,905
     Water/Irrigation $26,000 $26,000 $36,412 ($10,412)
     Gas $1,000 $1,000 $1,087 ($87)
     Trash Removal $2,500 $2,500 $2,261 $239
Security
     Security Alarm Monitoring $1,100 $1,100 $419 $681
     Security Monitoring $12,400 $12,400 $14,246 ($1,846)
     Access Cards $1,000 $1,000 $0 $1,000
Management Contracts
     Facility Management $43,680 $43,680 $38,640 $5,040
     Amenity Staff - Rentals $0 $0 $650 ($650)
     Landscape Maintenance $26,165 $26,165 $20,816 $5,349
     Landscape Seasonal (Annuals & Pinestraw) $8,000 $8,000 $0 $8,000
     Landscape Contingency $8,000 $8,000 $3,686 $4,314
     Field Management/Administrative $59,104 $59,104 $54,179 $4,925
     Pool Maintenance $16,500 $16,500 $18,179 ($1,679)
     Pool Repairs $7,500 $7,500 $8,211 ($711)
     Janitorial Services $13,740 $13,740 $13,740 $0
     Janitorial Supplies $3,500 $3,500 $3,651 ($151)
     Facility Maintenance $15,000 $15,000 $8,184 $6,816
     Fitness Equipment Lease $13,784 $13,784 $1,149 $12,635
     Pest Control $1,500 $1,500 $1,800 ($300)
Pool Permits $500 $500 $350 $150
Repairs & Maintenance $10,000 $10,000 $5,749 $4,251
Maintenance Reserves $10,000 $10,000 $0 $10,000
New Capital Projects $10,000 $10,000 $0 $10,000
Special Events $10,000 $10,000 $7,175 $2,825
Holiday Decorations $10,856 $10,856 $9,863 $993
Fitness Center Repairs/Supplies $3,500 $3,500 $7,430 ($3,930)
Office Supplies $500 $500 $0 $500
Operating Supplies $10,000 $10,000 $7,257 $2,743
ASCAP/BMI Licenses $1,700 $1,700 $732 $968

TOTAL AMENITY CENTER $349,529 $349,529 $285,319 $64,210

OTHER SOURCES/(USES)
Transfer Out $0 $0 ($335) ($335)

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES/USES $0 $0 ($335) ($335)

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $996,407 $996,407 $950,712 $45,695

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) $0 $177,599

Fund Balance - Beginning $0 $43,657

Fund Balance - Ending $0 $221,256

September 30, 2021

3



Six Mile Creek Community Development District
General Fund

Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May Jun. Jul. Aug. Sept. Total
Revenues:

Special Assessments - Tax Roll $0 $35,378 $288,041 $248,570 $62,754 $12,424 $60,077 $0 $6,166 $0 $0 $0 $713,410
Special Assessments - Direct Billed $22,383 $0 $0 $0 $22,383 $5,438 $16,945 $0 $0 $22,383 $0 $0 $89,532
Special Assessments - Lot Closings $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $33,725 $33,725
Developer Contributions $89,576 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $83,646 $110,483 $283,704
Miscellaneous Revenue $50 $500 $30 $0 $138 $155 $439 $25 $225 $341 $425 $105 $2,432
Rental Income $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,500 $575 $500 $1,050 $900 $575 $400 $0 $5,500
Interest $0 $0 $0 $0 $1 $1 $1 $1 $1 $1 $0 $0 $7

Total Revenues $112,009 $35,878 $288,071 $248,570 $86,776 $18,593 $77,962 $1,076 $7,292 $23,300 $84,471 $144,313 $1,128,311

Expenditures:

Administrative
Supervisor Fees $800 $800 $400 $200 $1,200 $1,000 $1,000 $800 $800 $800 $800 $1,000 $9,600
FICA Expense $61 $61 $31 $15 $92 $77 $77 $61 $61 $61 $61 $77 $734
Engineering Fees $1,151 $348 $516 $483 $2,019 $2,267 $1,560 $954 $2,069 $1,553 $1,113 $900 $14,933
Arbitrage $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $600 $0 $0 $600 $0 $1,200
Trustee Fees $0 $0 $0 $4,310 $0 $0 $0 $8,081 $0 $4,310 $0 $0 $16,701
Dissemination $417 $417 $417 $417 $417 $717 $417 $417 $417 $417 $417 $417 $5,300
Attorney Fees $4,383 $1,429 $1,421 $1,579 $4,769 $6,152 $2,993 $2,884 $2,614 $2,084 $0 $0 $30,307
Annual Audit $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,315 $0 $5,315
Assessment Administration $5,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,000
Management Fees $2,417 $2,417 $2,417 $2,417 $2,417 $2,417 $2,417 $2,417 $2,417 $2,417 $2,417 $2,417 $29,000
Information Technology $100 $100 $100 $100 $100 $100 $100 $100 $100 $100 $100 $100 $1,200
Telephone $77 $19 $45 $19 $48 $0 $106 $106 $68 $95 $33 $97 $711
Postage $108 $15 $289 $41 $103 $36 $65 $77 $32 $5 $24 $2 $795
Insurance $6,218 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,218
Printing & Binding $19 $455 $151 $253 $0 $518 $66 $278 $164 $307 $405 $479 $3,096
Travel Per Diem $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Legal Advertising $426 $0 $0 $0 $76 $0 $377 $230 $0 $1,310 $0 $6,749 $9,169
Meeting Room Fee $0 $0 $500 $0 $500 $500 $500 $500 $500 $500 $500 $500 $4,500
Bank Fees $100 $79 $47 $95 $61 $87 $81 $46 $122 $62 $88 $111 $979
Other Current Charges $0 $0 $102 $0 $56 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $157
Office Supplies $1 $22 $7 $19 $6 $15 $2 $26 $49 $17 $11 $15 $191
Dues, Licenses, Subscriptions $175 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $175

Total Administrative $21,452 $6,161 $6,442 $9,947 $11,863 $13,885 $9,759 $17,576 $9,414 $14,038 $11,884 $12,862 $145,282

Operation & Maintenance
Property Insurance $22,533 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $68 $0 $0 $0 $0 $22,601
Electric $3,201 $3,155 $3,178 $3,049 $2,967 $3,067 $3,369 $3,797 $3,386 $3,703 $3,731 $3,629 $40,231
Water & Sewer $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Landscape Maintenance $21,738 $21,463 $21,463 $21,463 $21,463 $29,284 $21,463 $21,463 $21,463 $19,152 $19,152 $19,152 $258,714
Landscape - Mulch & Plant Installation $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $9,625 $0 $0 $0 $0 $9,625
Landscape Contingency $750 $0 $10,875 $950 $0 $19,368 $20,979 $4,000 $28,120 $10,196 $0 $0 $95,238
Irrigation Maintenance $732 $0 $2,516 $3,190 $1,956 $342 $0 $2,149 $4,158 $0 $0 $4,064 $19,108
Lake Maintenance $1,675 $1,675 $1,675 $1,675 $1,675 $1,675 $1,675 $1,675 $1,675 $1,675 $1,675 $1,675 $20,100
Lake Contingency $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Security Patrol $5,433 $5,628 $5,561 $3,424 $3,020 $1,920 $1,640 $1,580 $1,880 $2,340 $1,860 $860 $35,145
Street Sweeping $500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $500
General Maintenance $0 $820 $467 $0 $6,642 $0 $0 $3,550 $1,500 $1,056 $1,000 $1,305 $16,340
Dog Park - General Maintenance $0 $0 $0 $0 $501 $0 $227 $206 $206 $206 $206 $206 $1,758
Kayak Launch - General Maintenance $40 $300 $0 $0 $0 $0 $75 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $415

Total Operation & Maintenance $56,601 $33,040 $45,734 $33,750 $38,224 $55,656 $49,428 $48,113 $62,387 $38,328 $27,624 $30,891 $519,775

4



Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May Jun. Jul. Aug. Sept. Total
Amenity Center
Utilities
     Telephone $445 $446 $464 $456 $471 $451 $451 $378 $479 $142 $697 $477 $5,358
     Electric $1,111 $1,026 $1,267 $1,171 $1,129 $1,104 $1,222 $1,168 $1,245 $1,358 $1,154 $1,138 $14,095
     Water/Irrigation $1,576 $1,077 $4,834 $6,765 $7,757 $4,268 $1,531 $967 $1,518 $4,832 $695 $591 $36,412
     Gas $37 $121 $181 $167 $28 $139 $51 $64 $93 $98 $66 $41 $1,087
     Trash Removal $172 $172 $172 $193 $194 $196 $194 $194 $194 $194 $194 $194 $2,261
Security
     Security Alarm Monitoring $35 $35 $35 $35 $35 $35 $35 $35 $35 $35 $35 $35 $419
     Security Monitoring $1,096 $2,192 $1,096 $1,096 $1,096 $1,096 $1,096 $1,096 $1,096 $1,096 $1,096 $1,096 $14,246
     Access Cards $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Management Contracts
     Facility Management $4,200 $3,360 $3,360 $3,360 $3,360 $3,360 $3,360 $3,360 $3,360 $4,200 $3,360 $0 $38,640
     Amenity Staff - Rentals $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $168 $294 $105 $84 $0 $650
     Landscape Maintenance $2,180 $2,180 $2,180 $2,180 $2,180 $3,373 $2,180 $2,180 $2,180 $0 $0 $0 $20,816
     Landscape Contingency $220 $220 $220 $220 $220 $220 $220 $1,238 $227 $227 $227 $227 $3,686
     Field Management/Administrative $4,925 $4,925 $4,925 $4,925 $4,925 $4,925 $4,925 $4,925 $4,925 $4,925 $4,925 $0 $54,179
     Pool Maintenance $1,375 $1,375 $1,375 $1,375 $1,375 $1,375 $1,375 $1,575 $1,575 $3,829 $1,575 $0 $18,179
     Pool Repairs $38 $7 $372 $71 $385 $112 $1,240 $253 $0 $1,555 $4,178 $0 $8,211
     Janitorial Services $1,145 $1,145 $1,145 $1,145 $1,145 $1,145 $1,145 $1,145 $1,145 $1,145 $1,145 $1,145 $13,740
     Janitorial Supplies $254 $444 $106 $383 $283 $332 $0 $712 $444 $438 $132 $122 $3,651
     Facility Maintenance $2,144 $3,036 $1,403 $108 $230 $23 $411 $178 $81 $0 $570 $0 $8,184
     Fitness Equipment Lease $1,149 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,149
     Pest Control $0 $0 $270 $720 $0 $0 $270 $0 $270 $0 $0 $270 $1,800
Pool Permits $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $350 $0 $0 $0 $0 $350
Repairs & Maintenance $0 $983 $0 $374 $514 $3,779 $0 $0 $0 $99 $0 $0 $5,749
Maintenance Reserves $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
New Capital Projects $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Special Events $523 $433 $1,686 $16 $783 $391 $294 $587 $200 $1,302 $60 $900 $7,175
Holiday Decorations $0 $9,863 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $9,863
Fitness Center Repairs/Supplies $6,435 $325 $165 $0 $150 $0 $150 $0 $55 $0 $150 $0 $7,430
Office Supplies $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Operating Supplies $125 $69 $1,399 $29 $497 $124 $180 $0 $1,529 $348 $70 $2,888 $7,257
ASCAP/BMI Licenses $0 $0 $364 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $368 $0 $0 $732

Total Amenity Center $29,187 $33,434 $27,019 $24,788 $26,758 $26,448 $20,331 $20,574 $20,946 $26,296 $20,414 $9,124 $285,319

Other Sources/Uses
Transfer Out $0 $0 $0 $0 ($335) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 ($335)

Total Other Sources/Uses $0 $0 $0 $0 ($335) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 ($335)

Total Expenditures $107,240 $72,635 $79,195 $68,485 $77,179 $95,988 $79,518 $86,263 $92,747 $78,662 $59,921 $52,877 $950,712

Excess Revenues (Expenditures) $4,769 ($36,757) $208,876 $180,085 $9,597 ($77,395) ($1,557) ($85,187) ($85,455) ($55,362) $24,550 $91,436 $177,599

Six Mile Creek Community Development District
General Fund

5



Six Mile Creek
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Reverie Fund (East Parcel)
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

For the period ending 

ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 9/3021  THRU 9/3021 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 

 Developer Contributions $49,000 $49,000 $19,271 ($29,729)
   

TOTAL  REVENUES $49,000 $49,000 $19,271 ($29,729)

EXPENDITURES:

AMENITY CENTER
Utilities
     Telephone $0 $0 $384 ($384)
     Electric $0 $0 $1,249 ($1,249)
     Water/Irrigation $0 $0 $75 ($75)
     Cable $0 $0 $0 $0
     Gas $0 $0 $0 $0
     Trash Removal $0 $0 $0 $0
Security
     Security Monitoring $0 $0 $1,807 ($1,807)
     Access Cards $0 $0 $4,152 ($4,152)
Management Contracts
     Facility Management $0 $0 $0 $0
     Field Management/Administrative $0 $0 $0 $0
     Pool Attendants
     Pool Maintenance $0 $0 $0 $0
     Pool Chemicals $0 $0 $0 $0
     Janitorial Services $0 $0 $0 $0
     Facility Maintenance $0 $0 $0 $0
Repairs & Maintenance $0 $0 $0 $0
Maintenance Reserves $0 $0 $0 $0
New Capital Projects $0 $0 $0 $0
Special Events $0 $0 $0 $0
Holiday Decorations $0 $0 $0 $0
Fitness Center Repairs/Supplies $0 $0 $0 $0
Office Supplies $0 $0 $0 $0
ASCAP/BMI Licenses $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL AMENITY CENTER $0 $0 $7,667 ($7,667)

GROUNDS MAINTENANCE
Hydrology Quality/Mitigation $0 $0 $0 $0
Landscape Maintenance $18,000 $18,000 $11,209 $6,791
Landscape Contingency $5,000 $5,000 $0 $5,000
Lake Maintenance $8,000 $8,000 $395 $7,605
Grounds Maintenance $5,000 $5,000 $0 $5,000
Pump Repairs $3,000 $3,000 $0 $3,000
Streetlight Repairs $2,000 $2,000 $0 $2,000
Irrigation Repairs $3,000 $3,000 $0 $3,000
Miscellaneous $5,000 $5,000 $0 $5,000

TOTAL GROUNDS MAINTENANCE $49,000 $49,000 $11,604 $0

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $49,000 $49,000 $19,271 $29,729

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) $0 $0

Fund Balance - Beginning $0 $0

Fund Balance - Ending $0 $0

September 30, 2021

6



Six Mile Creek Community Development District
Reverie Fund (East Parcel)

Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May Jun. Jul. Aug. Sept. Total
Revenues:

Developer Contributions $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $19,271 $19,271

Total Revenues $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $19,271 $19,271

Expenditures:

Amenity Center
Utilities
     Telephone $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $175 $70 $70 $70 $384
     Electric $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $235 $360 $298 $356 $1,249
     Water/Irrigation $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $44 $13 $18 $75
     Cable $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
     Gas $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
     Trash Removal $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Security
     Security Monitoring $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $903 $903 $1,807
     Access Cards $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,152 $0 $4,152
Management Contracts
     Facility Management $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
     Field Management/Administrative $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
     Pool Attendants $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
     Pool Maintenance $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
     Pool Chemicals $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
     Janitorial Services $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
     Facility Maintenance $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Repairs & Maintenance $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Maintenance Reserves $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
New Capital Projects $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Special Events $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Holiday Decorations $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Fitness Center Repairs/Supplies $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Office Supplies $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
ASCAP/BMI Licenses $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Total Amenity Center $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $410 $474 $5,436 $1,347 $7,667

Grounds Maintenance
Hydrology Quality/Mitigation $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Landscape Maintenance $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,605 $5,605 $11,209
Landscape Contingency $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Lake Maintenance $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $395 $395
Grounds Maintenance $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Pump Repairs $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Streetlight Repairs $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Irrigation Repairs $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Miscellaneous $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Total Grounds Maintenance $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,605 $6,000 $11,604

Total Expenditures $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $410 $474 $11,041 $7,346 $19,271

Excess Revenues (Expenditures) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 ($410) ($474) ($11,041) $11,925 $0

7



6 ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 9/3021 THRU 9/3021 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Interest $0 $0 $3 $3

TOTAL REVENUES $0 $0 $3 $3

EXPENDITURES:

Series 2007
Debt Service Obligation $0 $0 $0 $0

 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $0 $0 $0 $0

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) $0 $3

OTHER SOURCES/(USES)

Interfund Transfer Out $0 $0 $0 $0
Other Debt Service Costs $0 $0 ($9,199) ($9,199)

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES/(USES) $0 $0 ($9,199) ($9,199)

Net Change in Fund Balance $0 ($9,196)

Fund Balance - Beginning $0 $34,598

Fund Balance - Ending $0 $25,402

 
 

Fund Balance Calculation  

Reserve $25,402  
$25,402  

September 30, 2021

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Debt Service Fund - Series 2007A
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

8



6 ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 9/3021 THRU 9/3021 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Assessments - Tax Roll $214,408 $214,408 $215,687 $1,279
Interest Income $500 $500 $17 ($483)

TOTAL REVENUES $214,908 $214,908 $215,704 $645,520

EXPENDITURES:

Series 2015
Special Call - 11/1 $0 $0 $5,000 ($5,000)
Interest Expense - 11/1 $61,109 $61,109 $61,109 $0
Principal Expense - 05/1 $90,000 $90,000 $90,000 $0
Interest Expense - 05/1 $61,109 $61,109 $60,984 $125
Special Call - 05/1 $0 $0 $5,000 ($5,000)

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $212,219 $212,219 $222,094 ($9,875)

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) $2,689 ($6,390)

Fund Balance - Beginning $88,410 $254,145

Fund Balance - Ending $91,099 $247,756

 
 

Fund Balance Calculation  

Series 2015
Reserve $159,656  
Revenue $88,100

$247,756  

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Debt Service Fund - Series 2015
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

September 30, 2021

9



6 ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 9/3021 THRU 9/3021 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Assessments $444,917 $444,917 $447,570 $2,653
Interest Income $500 $500 $40 ($460)

TOTAL REVENUES $445,417 $445,417 $447,610 $2,193

EXPENDITURES:

Series 2016A
Interest Expense - 11/1 $167,984 $167,984 $167,984 $0
Principal Expense - 11/1 $105,000 $105,000 $105,000 $0
Interest Expense - 05/1 $166,016 $166,016 $166,016 $0
Special Call - 05/1 $0 $0 $5,000 ($5,000)

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $439,000 $439,000 $444,000 ($5,000)

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) $6,417 $3,610

Fund Balance - Beginning $447,594 $801,639

Fund Balance - Ending $454,011 $805,249

 
 

Fund Balance Calculation  

Series 2016A
Reserve $443,550  
Revenue $361,699

$805,249  

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Debt Service Fund - Series 2016A
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

September 30, 2021

10



6 ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 9/3021 THRU 9/3021 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Assessments - Direct $136,300 $136,300 $124,534 ($11,766)
Assessments - Prepayments $0 $0 $240,552 $240,552
Interest Income $250 $250 $12 ($238)

TOTAL REVENUES $136,550 $136,550 $365,099 $228,549

EXPENDITURES:

Series 2016B
Special Call - 11/1 $40,000 $40,000 $150,000 ($110,000)
Interest Expense - 11/1 $69,325 $69,325 $69,325 $0
Interest Expense - 05/1 $68,150 $68,150 $64,919 $3,231
Special Call - 05/1 $0 $0 $205,000 ($205,000)

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $177,475 $177,475 $489,244 ($311,769)

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) ($40,925) ($124,145)

Fund Balance - Beginning $113,887 $361,074

Fund Balance - Ending $72,962 $236,930

 
 

Fund Balance Calculation  

Series 2016B
Reserve $129,838  
Revenue $61,382
Interest $1,341
Prepayment $44,370

$236,930  

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Debt Service Fund - Series 2016B
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

September 30, 2021

11



6 ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 9/3021 THRU 9/3021 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Assessments $704,394 $704,394 $707,567 $3,173
Interest Income $250 $250 $54 ($196)

TOTAL REVENUES $704,644 $704,644 $707,621 $2,977

EXPENDITURES:

Series 2017A
Interest Expense - 11/1 $261,791 $261,791 $261,791 $0
Principal Expense - 11/1 $180,000 $180,000 $180,000 $0
Interest Expense - 05/1 $258,528 $258,528 $258,528 $0

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $700,319 $700,319 $700,319 $0

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) $4,325 $7,302

Fund Balance - Beginning $439,929 $1,164,233

Fund Balance - Ending $444,254 $1,171,535

 
 

Fund Balance Calculation  

Series 2017A
Reserve $703,838  
Revenue $467,697

$1,171,535  

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Debt Service Fund - Series 2017A
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

September 30, 2021

12



6 ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 9/3021 THRU 9/3021 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Assessments - Direct $29,158 $29,158 $27,773 ($1,385)
Assessments - Prepayments $0 $0 $74,870 $74,870
Interest $100 $100 $6 ($94)
Transfer In $0 $0 $335 $335

TOTAL REVENUES $29,258 $29,258 $102,985 $73,727

EXPENDITURES:

Series 2017B
Special Call - 11/1 $525,000 $525,000 $525,000 $0
Interest Expense - 11/1 $28,623 $28,623 $28,623 $0
Special Call - 2/1 $0 $0 $25,000 ($25,000)
Interest Expense - 2/1 $0 $0 $334 ($334)
Interest Expense - 05/1 $14,579 $14,579 $13,910 $669
Special Call - 05/1 $0 $0 $5,000 ($5,000)

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $568,201 $568,201 $597,867 ($29,666)

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) ($538,943) ($494,882)

Fund Balance - Beginning $553,623 $596,536

Fund Balance - Ending $14,680 $101,654

 
 

Fund Balance Calculation  

Series 2017B
Reserve $20,664  
Revenue $13,850
Prepayment $67,140
Interest $0

$101,654  

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Debt Service Fund - Series 2017B
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

September 30, 2021

13



6 ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 9/3021 THRU 9/3021 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Assessments $414,875 $414,875 $414,875 $0
Interest Income $100 $100 $29 ($71)

TOTAL REVENUES $414,975 $414,975 $414,904 ($71)

EXPENDITURES:

Series 2020
Interest Expense - 11/1 $94,668 $94,668 $94,668 $0
Interest Expense - 05/1 $140,828 $140,828 $140,828 $0
Transfer Out $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $235,496 $235,496 $235,496 $0

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) $179,479 $179,408

Fund Balance - Beginning $94,668 $509,547

Fund Balance - Ending $274,147 $688,956

 
 

Fund Balance Calculation  

Series 2020
Reserve $414,875  
Revenue $274,081

$688,956  

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Debt Service Fund - Series 2020
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

September 30, 2021

14



6 ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 9/3021 THRU 9/3021 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Bond Proceeds $697,240 $697,240 $697,240 $0
Net Premium $117,273 $117,273 $117,273 $0
Interest $0 $0 $21 $21

TOTAL REVENUES $814,513 $814,513 $814,535 $22

EXPENDITURES:

Series 2021
Interest Expense - 05/1 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $0 $0 $0 $0

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) $814,513 $814,535

Fund Balance - Beginning $0 $0

Fund Balance - Ending $814,513 $814,535

 
 

Fund Balance Calculation  

Series 2020
Reserve $566,450  
Revenue $15
Capitalized Interest $248,070

$814,535  

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Debt Service Fund - Series 2021
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

September 30, 2021

15



ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 9/3021 THRU 9/3021 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Interest Income $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL REVENUES $0 $0 $0 $0

EXPENDITURES:

Capital Outlay $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $0 $0 $0 $0

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) $0 $0

OTHER SOURCES/(USES)

Interfund Transfer In $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES/(USES) $0 $0 $0 $0

Net Change in Fund Balance $0 $0

Fund Balance - Beginning $0 $2,176

Fund Balance - Ending $0 $2,177
 
 

Fund Balance Calculation  

Construction $2,177  
$2,177

September 30, 2021

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Capital Projects Fund - Series 2007A
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

16



ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 9/3021 THRU 9/3021 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Miscellaneous Revenue $0 $0 $404,639 $404,639
Interest Income $0 $0 $22 $22

TOTAL REVENUES $0 $0 $404,661 $404,661

EXPENDITURES:

Capital Outlay - Construction $0 $0 $60,951 ($60,951)

Total Expenditures $0 $0 $60,951 ($60,951)

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) $0 $343,710

OTHER SOURCES/(USES)

Interfund Transfer In/(Out) $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES/(USES) $0 $0 $0 $0

Net Change in Fund Balance $0 $343,710

Fund Balance - Beginning $0 $293,453

Fund Balance - Ending $0 $637,163
 
 

Fund Balance Calculation  

Construction $631,396
Cost of Issuance $2,570  
Due from General Fund $4,153
Due to Capital Projects Series 2017A ($956)

$637,163

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Capital Projects Fund - Series 2016A
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

September 30, 2021

17



ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 9/3021 THRU 9/3021 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Interest Income $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL REVENUES $0 $0 $0 $0

EXPENDITURES:

Capital Outlay - Construction $0 $0 $0 $0

Total Expenditures $0 $0 $0 $0

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) $0 $0

OTHER SOURCES/(USES)

Interfund Transfer In/(Out) $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES/(USES) $0 $0 $0 $0

Net Change in Fund Balance $0 $0

Fund Balance - Beginning $0 $1

Fund Balance - Ending $0 $1
 
 

Fund Balance Calculation  

Construction $1
$1

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Capital Projects Fund - Series 2016B
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

September 30, 2021

18



ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 9/3021 THRU 9/3021 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Developer Contributions $0 $0 $1,185,827 $1,185,827
Interest $0 $0 $4 $4

TOTAL REVENUES $0 $0 $1,185,831 $1,185,831

EXPENDITURES:

Capital Outlay - Construction $0 $0 $0 $0
Capital Outlay - Construction NW Parcel $0 $0 $1,331,344 ($1,331,344)

Total Expenditures $0 $0 $1,331,344 ($1,331,344)

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) $0 ($145,513)

OTHER SOURCES/(USES)

Interfund Transfer In/(Out) $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES/(USES) $0 $0 $0 $0

Net Change in Fund Balance $0 ($145,513)

Fund Balance - Beginning $0 $148,375

Fund Balance - Ending $0 $2,862
 
 

Fund Balance Calculation  

Construction $0
Construction - NW Parcel $906
Due from Capital Projects Series 2016A $956
Due from General Fund $1,000

$2,862

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Capital Projects Fund - Series 2017A
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

September 30, 2021

19



ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 9/3021 THRU 9/3021 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Interest $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL REVENUES $0 $0 $0 $0

EXPENDITURES:

Capital Outlay - Construction $0 $0 $0 $0

Total Expenditures $0 $0 $0 $0

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) $0 $0

OTHER SOURCES/(USES)

Interfund Transfer In/(Out) $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES/(USES) $0 $0 $0 $0

Net Change in Fund Balance $0 $0

Fund Balance - Beginning $0 $2

Fund Balance - Ending $0 $2
 
 

Fund Balance Calculation  

Construction $2
$2

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Capital Projects Fund - Series 2017B
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

September 30, 2021

20



ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 9/3021 THRU 9/3021 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Developer Contributions $0 $0 $3,454,840 $3,454,840
Interest $0 $0 $13 $13

TOTAL REVENUES $0 $0 $3,454,853 $3,454,853

EXPENDITURES:

Capital Outlay - Construction $0 $0 $3,983,735 ($3,983,735)

Total Expenditures $0 $0 $3,983,735 ($3,983,735)

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) $0 ($528,882)

OTHER SOURCES/(USES)

Interfund Transfer In/(Out) $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES/(USES) $0 $0 $0 $0

Net Change in Fund Balance $0 ($528,882)

Fund Balance - Beginning $0 $535,581

Fund Balance - Ending $0 $6,699
 
 

Fund Balance Calculation  

Construction $0
Cost of Issuance $6,699

$6,699

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Capital Projects Fund - Series 2020
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

September 30, 2021

21



ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 9/3021 THRU 9/3021 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Bond Proceeds $0 $0 $9,452,760 $9,452,760
Interest $0 $0 $186 $186

TOTAL REVENUES $0 $0 $9,452,945 $9,452,945

EXPENDITURES:

Capital Outlay - Construction $0 $0 $4,574,477 ($4,574,477)
Capital Outlay - Cost of Issuance $0 $0 $384,136 ($384,136)

Total Expenditures $0 $0 $4,958,613 ($4,958,613)

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) $0 $4,494,332

Net Change in Fund Balance $0 $4,494,332

Fund Balance - Beginning $0 $0

Fund Balance - Ending $0 $4,494,332
 
 

Fund Balance Calculation  

Construction $4,491,831
Cost of Issuance $2,501

$4,494,332

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Capital Projects Fund - Series 2021
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

September 30, 2021

22



Six Mile Creek Community Development District
Developer Contributions/Due to Developer

Funding Prepare Check# Received Payment Total General General General General Capital 2017 Capital 2020 Capital 2021 Capital Outlay Over and
Request Date Date Amount Funding Fund Fund Fund Fund (Due to (Due to (Due to (Due to (short)

# Request Portion (FY19) Portion (FY20) Portion (FY21) Portion (FY22) Developer) Developer) Developer) Developer) Balance Due

16 8/30/19 1795 10/4/19 $61,328.97 $61,328.97 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $61,328.97 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
17 9/11/19 1795 10/419 $48,483.34 $48,483.34 $48,483.34 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
18 9/25/19 WIRE 11/4/19 $37,512.87 $37,512.87 $6,236.87 $31,276.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
19 9/26/19 1830 12/13/19 $68,021.35 $68,021.35 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $68,021.35 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

AJE#1 9/30/19 N/A N/A $0.00 $0.00 ($102,399.00) $102,399.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
1 10/14/19 WIRE 11/4/19 $76,579.69 $76,579.69 $20,149.88 $56,429.81 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
2 10/31/19 1830 12/13/19 $35,177.54 $35,177.54 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $35,177.54 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
3 12/19/19 1854 1/6/20 $54,233.89 $54,233.89 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $54,233.89 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
4 1/2/20 1856 1/21/20 $32,670.00 $32,670.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $32,670.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
5 1/17/20 1861 2/3/20 $50,855.88 $50,855.88 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $50,855.88 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
6 2/25/20 WIRE 4/10/20 $49,601.84 $49,601.84 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $49,601.84 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
7 4/20/20 WIRE 5/27/20 $316,971.51 $316,971.51 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $316,971.51 $0.00 $0.00
8 8/28/20 WIRE 9/28/20 $32,259.42 $32,259.42 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $32,259.42 $0.00 $0.00
9 9/4/20 WIRE 9/28/20 $79,003.14 $79,003.14 $0.00 $50,320.14 $28,683.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

10 10/16/20 975080 11/10/20 $41,935.00 $41,935.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $41,935.00 $0.00 $0.00
1 10/16/20 975080 11/10/20 $42,965.49 $42,965.49 $0.00 $1,322.00 $41,643.49 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
2 11/30/20 975097 12/23/20 $19,248.53 $19,248.53 $0.00 $0.00 $19,248.53 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
3 12/2/20 975097 12/23/20 $46,856.78 $46,856.78 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $46,856.78 $0.00 $0.00
4 12/21/20 WIRE 1/20/21 $4,208.64 $4,208.64 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,208.64 $0.00 $0.00
5 12/23/20 WIRE 1/20/21 $442,994.47 $442,994.47 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $442,994.47 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
6 1/29/21 WIRE 2/24/21 $541,222.51 $541,222.51 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $541,222.51 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
7 1/29/21 WIRE 2/24/21 $242,133.10 $242,133.10 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $242,133.10 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
8 1/29/21 WIRE 2/24/21 $25,166.43 $25,166.43 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $25,166.43 $0.00 $0.00
9 2/18/21 WIRE 3/9/21 $370,752.88 $370,752.88 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $370,752.88 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

10 2/18/21 WIRE 3/9/21 $287,730.25 $287,730.25 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $287,730.25 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
11 3/12/21 WIRE 3/30/21 $97,155.63 $97,155.63 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $97,155.63 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
12 3/12/21 WIRE 3/30/21 $650,944.16 $650,944.16 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $650,944.16 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
13 4/21/21 WIRE 5/28/21 $288,160.68 $288,160.68 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $228,160.68 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
14 4/21/21 WIRE 5/28/21 $249,262.72 $249,262.72 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $249,262.72 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
15 5/26/21 WIRE 6/16/21 $544,539.78 $544,539.78 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $544,539.78 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
16 5/26/21 WIRE 6/16/21 $213,995.91 $213,995.91 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $213,995.91 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
17 6/10/21 WIRE 8/3/21 $6,348.49 $6,348.49 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,348.49 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
18 6/10/21 WIRE 8/3/21 $461,280.99 $461,280.99 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $461,280.99 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
19 7/20/21 WIRE 8/3/21 $135,211.43 $135,211.43 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $135,211.43 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
20 8/12/21 WIRE 8/31/21 $123,008.62 $123,008.62 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $123,008.62 $0.00

21- VOID 8/17/21 WIRE 9/14/21 $23,047.05 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $23,047.05
22 8/17/21 WIRE 9/14/21 $83,645.54 $83,645.54 $0.00 $0.00 $83,645.54 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
23 8/19/21 WIRE 9/14/21 $6,178.23 $6,178.23 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,178.23 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
24 8/19/21 WIRE 9/14/21 $103,232.88 $103,232.88 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $103,232.88 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
25 9/19/21 WIRE 9/30/21 $85,924.01 $85,924.01 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $85,924.01 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
26 9/19/21 WIRE 9/30/21 $24,977.03 $24,977.03 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $24,977.03 $0.00
27 9/30/21 $92,042.76 $0.00 $0.00 $92,042.76 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($92,042.76)
1 10/8/21 $52,473.46 $0.00 $0.00 $18,440.08 $34,033.38 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($52,473.46)

Due to Developer $6,104,826.67 $6,226,295.84 ($27,528.91) $241,746.95 $283,703.40 $34,033.38 $1,537,716.43 $3,481,241.16 $467,397.78 $147,985.65 ($121,469.17)

Total Developer Contributions FY21 $283,703.40

*FY19 column does not include Funding Requests #1-15 on FY19 summary schedule.

23



Date Requisition # Contractor Description Requisition
Fiscal Year 2020

259A 3/5/20 Besch and Smith Civil Group, Inc. Application #1 - Curb & Asphalt Repairs for Trailmark Phase 2A & 4C 70,172.00$        
260A 3/5/20 Besch and Smith Civil Group, Inc. Application #2 - Curb & Asphalt Repairs for Trailmark Phase 2A & 4C 90,000.00$        
261A 4/1/20 Besch and Smith Civil Group, Inc. Trailmark Phase 2A Fire Hydrant 3,382.40$          
262A 6/23/20 ETM Surveying & Mapping, Inc. Invoice #18624 - Trailmark Phase 4C Platting 1,980.00$          
263A 7/10/20 Besch and Smith Civil Group, Inc. Application #3 - Curb & Asphalt Repairs for Trailmark Phase 2A & 4C 7,579.54$          
264A 7/10/20 Besch and Smith Civil Group, Inc. Application #4 - Curb & Asphalt Repairs for Trailmark Phase 2A & 4C 18,639.11$        
265A 8/25/20 Six Mile Creek CDD Reimbursement for MODCP Application Fee 132.00$             
266A 8/25/20 Six Mile Creek CDD Reimbursement for ROW Permit Fee 392.00$             

TOTAL 192,277.05$      

Fiscal Year 2020
10/1/19 Interest 34.96$               

10/30/19 St.Johns Cty Board Commissioners Chk# 573799 Utility Reimbursement 73,628.48$        
11/1/19 Interest 30.41$               
12/1/19 Interest 38.22$               
1/2/20 Interest 39.50$               
2/3/20 Interest 39.39$               

2/14/20 St.Johns Cty Board Commissioners Chk# 576202 Utility Reimbursement 58,127.41$        
3/2/20 Interest 35.80$               
4/1/20 Interest 11.94$               
4/1/20 St.Johns Cty Board Commissioners Chk# 578604 Utility Reimbursement 36,712.06$        
5/1/20 Interest 1.77$                 
6/1/20 Interest 2.05$                 
7/1/20 Interest 1.18$                 

7/29/20 St.Johns Cty Board Commissioners Chk# 581107 Utility Reimbursement 74,953.78$        
8/3/20 Interest 1.06$                 
9/1/20 Interest 1.22$                 

TOTAL 243,659.23$      

236,303.89$      
243,659.23$      

(192,277.05)$    

287,686.07$      

Date Requisition # Contractor Description Requisition
Fiscal Year 2021

6/8/21 267A Carlton Construction, Inc. Invoice #1593 - Trailmark Extra Work - Progress Billing No.2 3,602.53$          
6/16/21 268A Carlton Construction, Inc. Invoice #1564 - Trailmark Extra Work - Progress Billing No. 1 3,602.75$          
6/28/21 269A Onsight Industries Invoice #002-21-295298-1 - Trailmark Street Sign Repairs 4,459.05$          
6/28/21 270A Onsight Industries Invoice #002-21-294820-1 - Trailmark Additional Park Benches 6,564.00$          
7/21/21 271A Outdoor Lighting Solutions, LLC Invoice #60665 - Lighting Solutions 5,395.00$          
7/21/21 272A Outdoor Lighting Solutions, LLC Invoice #60623 - Lighting Solutions 5,395.00$          
9/17/21 273A Vallencourt Construction Co., Inc. Invoice #7309-1 - Trailmark Meter Repairs 1,232.78$          
9/29/21 274A Southeast Timber Mulching LLC Invoice #1495 - Trailmark Phase 6 Underbrush Area 30,700.00$        

TOTAL 60,951.11$        

Fiscal Year 2021
10/1/20 Interest 1.18$                 

10/30/20 St.Johns Cty Board Commissioners Chk# 584204 Utility Reimbursement 104,017.48$      
11/2/20 Interest 1.25$                 
12/1/20 Interest 1.61$                 
1/4/21 Interest 1.66$                 

1/28/21 St.Johns Cty Board Commissioners Chk# 587721 Utility Reimbursement 61,722.22$        
2/1/21 Interest 1.70$                 
3/1/21 Interest 1.74$                 
4/1/21 Interest 1.93$                 
5/1/21 Interest 1.86$                 

5/27/21 St.Johns Cty Board Commissioners Chk# 590524 Utility Reimbursemnt 86,518.19$        
6/1/21 Interest 1.98$                 
7/1/21 Interest 2.20$                 

7/29/21 St.Johns Cty Board Commissioners Chk# 592607 Utility Reimbursement 152,380.81$      
8/2/21 Interest 2.26$                 
9/1/21 Interest 2.82$                 

TOTAL 404,660.89$      

287,686.07$      
404,660.89$      
(60,951.11)$      

631,395.85$      

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2016A

Acquisition/Construction Fund at 9/30/19
Interest Earned thru 9/30/20

Acquisition/Construction Fund at 9/30/20
Interest Earned thru 9/30/21

Requisitions Paid thru 9/30/21

Remaining Acquisition/Construction Fund

Requisitions Paid thru 9/30/20

Remaining Acquisition/Construction Fund

25



Date Requisition # Contractor Description Requisition
Fiscal Year 2020

TOTAL -$                  

Fiscal Year 2020
10/1/19 Interest -$                  
11/1/19 Interest -$                  
12/1/19 Interest -$                  
1/2/20 Interest -$                  
2/3/20 Interest -$                  
3/2/20 Interest -$                  
4/1/20 Interest -$                  
5/1/20 Interest -$                  
6/1/20 Interest -$                  
7/1/20 Interest -$                  
8/1/20 Interest -$                  

TOTAL -$                  

1.20$                 
-$                  
-$                  

1.20$                 

Date Requisition # Contractor Description Requisition
Fiscal Year 2021

TOTAL -$                  

Fiscal Year 2021
10/1/20 Interest -$                  
11/2/20 Interest -$                  
12/1/20 Interest -$                  
1/4/21 Interest -$                  
2/1/21 Interest -$                  
3/1/21 Interest -$                  
4/1/21 Interest -$                  
5/1/21 Interest -$                  
6/1/21 Interest -$                  
7/1/21 Interest -$                  
8/1/21 Interest -$                  
9/1/21 Interest -$                  

TOTAL -$                  

1.20$                 
-$                  
-$                  

1.20$                 

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2016B

Acquisition/Construction Fund at 9/30/19
Interest Earned thru 9/30/20

Acquisition/Construction Fund at 9/30/20
Interest Earned thru 9/30/21

Requisitions Paid thru 9/30/21

Remaining Acquisition/Construction Fund

Requisitions Paid thru 9/30/20

Remaining Acquisition/Construction Fund

26



Date Requisition # Contractor Description Requisition
Fiscal Year 2021

TOTAL -$                  

Fiscal Year 2021
10/1/20 Interest -$                  
11/2/20 Interest -$                  
12/1/20 Interest -$                  
1/4/21 Interest -$                  
2/1/21 Interest -$                  
3/1/21 Interest -$                  
4/1/21 Interest -$                  
5/1/21 Interest -$                  
6/1/21 Interest -$                  
7/1/21 Interest -$                  
8/1/21 Interest -$                  
9/1/21 Interest -$                  

TOTAL -$                  

0.23$                 
-$                  
-$                  

0.23$                 

Requisitions Paid thru 9/30/21

Remaining Acquisition/Construction Fund

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2017A

Acquisition/Construction Fund at 9/30/20
Interest Earned thru 9/30/21

27



Date Requisition # Contractor Description Requisition
Fiscal Year 2021

10/26/20 25 Vallencourt Construction Co. Inc. Appl# 5 - Trailmark East Parcel PH6 & Lot 4D Lot Fill 242,841.14$      
10/26/20 26 England-Thims & Miller Inc. Invoice #194693 - Phase 6 CEI Services (WA#43) 3,422.01$          
12/14/20 27 England-Thims & Miller Inc. Invoice #0195322 - Phase 6 CEI Services (WA#43) 2,152.00$          
12/14/20 28 England-Thims & Miller Inc. Invoice #0195704 - Phase 6 CEI Services (WA#43) 3,041.41$          
12/14/20 29 England-Thims & Miller Inc. Invoice #0195942 - Phase 6 CEI Services (WA#43) 5,913.50$          
12/21/20 30 Vallencourt Construction Co. Inc. Appl# 6 - Trailmark East Parcel PH6 & Lot 4D Lot Fill 136,689.61$      
2/19/21 31 England-Thims & Miller Inc. Invoice #0196490 - Phase 6 CEI Services (WA#43) 2,914.18$          
2/24/21 32 Vallencourt Construction Co. Inc. Appl# 7 - Trailmark East Parcel PH6 & Lot 4D Lot Fill 242,133.10$      
3/9/21 33 England-Thims & Miller Inc. Inv# 0196856 - Phase 6 CEI Services (WA#43) - January 2021 7,702.81$          
3/9/21 34 Vallencourt Construction Co. Inc. Application #8 - Trailmark East Parcel Phase 6 & 4D Lot Refill - January 2021 363,050.07$      

3/30/21 35 Vallencourt Construction Co. Inc. Application #9 - Trailmark East Parcel Phase 6 & 4D Lot Refill - February 2021 92,607.96$        
3/30/21 36 England-Thims & Miller Inc. Invoice # 0197173 - Phase 6 CEI Services (WA#43) - February 2021 4,547.67$          
5/28/21 37 Vallencourt Construction Co. Inc. Application #10 - Trailmark East Parcel Phase 6 & 4D Lot Refill - March 2021 228,540.15$      
5/28/21 38 Clary & Associates Invoice # 2021-56 - Phase 6 Map & Description - January 2021 450.00$             
5/28/21 39 England-Thims & Miller Inc. Invoice #0197595 - Phase 6 CEI Services (WA#43) - March 2021 12,081.07$        
5/28/21 40 England-Thims & Miller Inc. Invoice #0196242 - Phase 6 CEI Services (WA#43) - November 2020 8,191.50$          
6/16/21 41 England-Thims & Miller Inc. Invoice #0197877 - Phase 6 CEI Services (WA#43) - April 2021 6,236.70$          
6/16/21 42 Vallencourt Construction Co. Inc. Application #11 - Trailmark East Parcel Phase 6 & 4D Lot Refill - April 2021 207,759.21$      
8/3/21 43 England-Thims & Miller Inc. Invoice #0198318 - Phase 6 CEI Services (WA#43) - May 2021 6,348.49$          

9/14/21 44 England-Thims & Miller Inc. Invoice #0199161 - Phase 6 CEI Services (WA#43) - July 2021 1,835.80$          
9/14/21 45 England-Thims & Miller Inc. Invoice #0198670 - Phase 6 CEI Services (WA#43) - June 2021 4,342.43$          

TOTAL 1,582,800.81$   

Fiscal Year 2021
10/1/20 Interest 1.63$                 
11/2/20 Interest 1.48$                 
12/1/20 Interest 0.62$                 
1/4/21 Interest 0.41$                 
2/1/21 Interest 0.02$                 

2/24/21 Wire FY21 Funding Request #7 242,133.10$      
3/1/21 Interest 0.01$                 
3/9/21 Wire FY21 Funding Request #9 370,752.88$      

3/30/21 Wire FY21 Funding Request #11 97,155.63$        
4/1/21 Interest -$                  
5/1/21 Interest -$                  

5/28/21 Wire FY21 Funding Request #14 249,262.72$      
6/1/21 Interest -$                  

6/16/21 Wire FY21 Funding Request #16 213,995.91$      
7/1/21 Interest -$                  
8/1/21 Interest -$                  
8/3/21 Wire FY21 Funding Request #17 6,348.49$          
9/1/21 Interest -$                  

9/14/21 Wire FY21 Funding Request #23 6,178.23$          

TOTAL 1,185,831.13$   

397,875.71$      
1,185,831.13$   

(1,582,800.81)$ 

906.03$             

Requisitions Paid thru 9/30/21

Remaining Acquisition/Construction Fund

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2017A-NW Parcel

Acquisition/Construction Fund at 9/30/20
Interest Earned thru 9/30/21

28



Date Requisition # Contractor Description Requisition
Fiscal Year 2021

TOTAL -$                  

Fiscal Year 2021
10/1/20 Interest -$                  
11/2/20 Interest -$                  
12/1/20 Interest -$                  
1/4/21 Interest -$                  
2/1/21 Interest -$                  
3/1/21 Interest -$                  
4/1/21 Interest -$                  
5/1/21 Interest -$                  
6/1/21 Interest -$                  
7/1/21 Interest -$                  
8/1/21 Interest -$                  
9/1/21 Interest -$                  

TOTAL -$                  

1.88$                 
-$                  
-$                  

1.88$                 

Requisitions Paid thru 9/30/21

Remaining Acquisition/Construction Fund

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Capital Improvement Revenue & Refunding Bonds, Series 2017B

Acquisition/Construction Fund at 9/30/20
Interest Earned thru 9/30/21

29



Date Requisition # Contractor Description Requisition
Fiscal Year 2021

10/26/20 27 Dock Medics of Florida, LLC Kayak Launch 11,950.00$        
10/26/20 28 St. Johns County Application Subcon 202000008 13,960.00$        
10/26/20 29 Sterling Specialties, Inc. Invoice #10979 - Whisper Creek Dog Park 24,750.00$        
10/26/20 30 Hopping, Green & Sams Invoice #117762-  Project Construction Services 164.50$             
10/26/20 31 Vallencourt Construction Appl# 6 - Trailmark East Parcel Phase 1 370,458.52$      
10/26/20 32 Vallencourt Construction Appl# 7 - Trailmark East Parcel Phase 1 509,838.99$      
10/26/20 33 Avid Trails, LLC Invoice #2020-02 50,405.50$        
10/26/20 34 Avid Trails, LLC Invoice #2020-01 76,735.00$        
10/26/20 35 Environmental Services, Inc. Invoice #TE17017 3,000.00$          
10/26/20 36 Environmental Services, Inc. Invoice #TD98913 3,750.00$          
10/26/20 37 Avid Trails, LLC Invoice #Trailmark-08 7,564.00$          
10/26/20 38 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Invoice #194692 - East Parcel Phase 1 CEI Services (WA#42) 9,814.39$          
10/26/20 39 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Invoice #194668 -  East Parcel Phase 2 Preliminary Engineering (WA#44) 17,588.35$        
10/26/20 40 Avid Trails, LLC Invoice #trailmark-07 7,500.00$          
10/26/20 41 Basham & Lucas Design Group, Inc. Invoice #8192 - Trailmark Entry & Phase 1 5,152.00$          
10/26/20 42 Carlton Construction, Inc. Appl# 1 7,355.03$          
10/26/20 43 Basham & Lucas Design Group, Inc. Invoice #8229 - Trailmark Entry & Phase 1 3,440.00$          
10/30/20 44 Vallencourt Construction Appl# 8 - Trailmark East Parcel Phase 1 218,229.79$      
12/14/20 45 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Invoice #0195320 - East Parcel PH1 Amenities & Amenity Center (WA#41) 6,390.00$          
12/14/20 46 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Invoice #0195321 - East Parcel Phase 1 - CEI Services (WA#42) 4,098.01$          
12/14/20 47 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Invoice #0195703 - East Parcel Phase 1 - CEI Services (WA#42) 5,315.51$          
12/14/20 48 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Invoice #0195696 - East Parcel PH1 Amenities & Amenity Center (WA#41) 6,649.55$          
12/14/20 49 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Invoice #0195885 - Phase 11 Construction (WA#48) 1,875.00$          
12/14/20 50 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Invoice #0195948 - East Parcel PH1 Amenities & Amenity Center (WA#41) 3,615.00$          
12/14/20 51 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Invoice #0195947 - East Parcel Phase 1 - CEI Services (WA#42) 10,223.71$        
12/14/20 52 Basham & Lucas Design Group, Inc. Invoice #8260 - Trailmark Entry & Phase 1 1,250.00$          
12/14/20 53 Onsight Industries, LLC Invoice #0002-20-282499-1 - Park Benches 7,460.85$          
12/14/20 54 Hopping, Green & Sams Invoice #118424 - Project Construction Services 423.00$             
12/14/20 55 Carlton Construction, Inc. Application #2 - Trailmark Entry & Parks 1,358.44$          
12/14/20 56 Carlton Construction, Inc. Application #3 - Trailmark Entry & Parks 2,521.53$          
12/22/20 57 Vallencourt Construction Appl# 9 - Trailmark East Parcel PH1 - Partial Payment 89,589.39$        
12/22/20 58 Avid Trails, LLC Invoice #Trailmark-09 - Signage 7,500.00$          
12/22/20 59 Hopping, Green & Sams Invoice #119003 - Project Construction Services 493.50$             
1/22/21 57A Vallencourt Construction Appl# 9 - Trailmark East Parcel PH1 - Balance 442,994.47$      
1/20/21 60 Weyerhaeuser NP Company Mitigation Bank Credit Purchase - Trailmark Phase from St. Johns Mitigation Bank 86,400.00$        
1/20/21 61 Basham & Lucas Design Group, Inc. Inv# 8323 - Trailmark Entry & Phase I (20-06A) - January 2021 2,393.75$          
1/20/21 62 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Inv# 0196489 - East Parcel Phase I - CEI Services (WA#42) - December 2020 4,871.18$          
1/20/21 63 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Inv# 0196233 - Master Site Plannng (WA#51) - November 2020 369.50$             
1/20/21 64 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Inv# 0196382 - Master Site Planning (WA#51) - December 2020 1,375.50$          
1/20/21 65 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Inv# 0196240 - East Parcel Phase I Amenities & Amenity Center - November 2020 20,747.58$        
1/20/21 66 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Inv# 0196488 - East Parcel Phase I Amenities & Amenity Center - December 2020 7,770.00$          
1/20/21 67 North Florida Landscape Inv# 22061 - Landscape Services - Landscape Parking Lots Phase 1I - Januay 2021 4,158.00$          
1/20/21 68 North Florida Landscape Inv# 22060 - Well Drilling for Recharge System at Pond #3 - December 2020 1,150.00$          
1/20/21 69 Hopping, Green & Sams Inv# 119568 - Project Construction Services - November 2020 329.00$             
1/20/21 70 Vallencourt Construction Application #10 - Trailmark East Parcel Phase I - December 2020 396,328.00$      
1/20/21 71 Carlton Construction, Inc. Application #4 - Trailmark Entry & Parks 1,300.00$          
1/20/21 72 Basham & Lucas Design Group, Inc. Inv# 8277 - Trailmark Entry & Phase I (20-06A) - December 2020 12,030.00$        
1/20/21 73 ECS Florida, LLC Inv# 849515 - Geotechnial Services - Trailmark Development - November 2020 2,000.00$          
3/9/21 74 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Inv# 0196855 - East Parcel Phase 1 - CEI Services (WA#42) - January 2021 7,058.81$          
3/9/21 75 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Inv# 0196241 - East Parcel Phase 1 - CEI Services (WA#42) - November 2020 3,038.75$          
3/9/21 76 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Inv# 0196854 - East Parcel Phase I - Amenities & Amenity Center (WA#41) - January 2021 3,971.78$          
3/9/21 77 Carlton Construction, Inc. Application #1 - Trailmark Entry & Parks - January 2021 172,623.04$      
3/9/21 78 Vallencourt Construction Application #11 - Trailmark East Parcel Phase 1 - January 2021 71,686.87$        
3/9/21 79 Sterling Specialties, Inc. Inv# 11401 - Trailmark Whisper Creek Dog Park  (Balance) - January 2021 28,310.00$        
3/9/21 80 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Inv# 0196853 - Consumptive Uses of Water Permit (WA#21 Amendment #2) - January 2021 1,041.00$          

3/30/21 81 Vallencourt Construction Application #12 - Trailmark East Parcel Phase 1 - February 2021 314,297.46$      
3/30/21 82 Carlton Construction, Inc. Application #2 - Trailmark Entry & Parks - February 2021 176,173.63$      
3/30/21 83 Avid Trails, LLC Invoice #Trailmark 2020-04 - Trail Construction - Trailhead Adventure Trail Balance - February 2021 69,686.50$        
3/30/21 84 Avid Trails, LLC Invoice #Trailmark-10 - Trail Design - Trailmark Design Development Work - February 2021 11,233.75$        
3/30/21 85 Avid Trails, LLC Invoice #Trailmark 2020-03 -Trailmark 2020 Bike Trail Agreement Balance - February 2021 68,601.00$        
3/30/21 86 Hopping, Green & Sams Invoice #120223 - Project Construction Services - December 2020 211.50$             
3/30/21 87 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Invoice #0197172 - Consumptive Uses of Water Permit (WA#21, Amendment#2) - February 2021 610.00$             
3/30/21 88 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Invoice #0197170 - East Parcel Phase 1 -CEI Services (WA#42) - February 2021 8,055.32$          
3/30/21 89 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Invoice #0197076 - Trailmark East Parcel Phase 2, No.50 - February 2021 2,075.00$          
5/28/21 90 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Invoice #0197591 - East Parcel Phase 1 - CEI Services (WA#42) - March 2021 4,676.02$          
5/28/21 91 Carlton Construction, Inc. Application #3 - Trailmark Entry & Parks - March 2021 282,756.16$      
5/28/21 92 Hopping, Green & Sams Invoice #121084 - Project Construction Services - January 2021 728.50$             
6/16/21 93 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Invoice #0197820 - Master Site Planning (WA#51) - April 2021 2,106.70$          
6/16/21 94 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Invoice #0197874 - East Parcel Phase 1 CEI Services (WA#42) - April 2021 302.00$             
6/16/21 95 Hopping, Green & Sams Invoice #121802 - Project Construction Services - February 2021 540.50$             
6/16/21 96 Carlton Construction, Inc. Application #4 - Trailmark Entry & Parks - April 2021 538,320.51$      
6/16/21 97 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Invoice #0197445 - Master Site Planning (WA#51) - March 2021 3,270.07$          
8/3/21 98 Basham & Lucas Design Group, Inc. Invoice #8479 - Trailmark Entry & Phase 1 Projet - May 2021 2,052.50$          
8/3/21 99 Basham & Lucas Design Group, Inc. Invoice #8473 - Trailmark Amenity CD - May 2021 68,640.00$        
8/3/21 100 Six Mile Creek CDD Invoice #MCPR20-24 - Reimbursement for Meter Fees - May 2021 3,364.15$          
8/3/21 101 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Invoice #0198328 - East Parcel Phase 1 (WA#42) - May 2021 74.00$               
8/3/21 102 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Invoice #0198220 - Master Site Planning (WA#51) - May 2021 2,096.12$          
8/3/21 103 Carlton Construction, Inc. Application #5 - Trailmark Entry & parks - May 2021 384,913.22$      
8/3/21 104 Hopping, Green & Sams Invoice #122685 - Project Construction Services - March 2021 141.00$             
8/3/21 105 Hopping, Green & Sams Invoice #123550 - Project Construction Services - April 2021 446.50$             
8/3/21 106 Carlton Construction, Inc. Application# 6 - Trailmark Entry & Parks - June2021 126,459.93$      
8/3/21 107 Basham & Lucas Design Group, Inc. Invoice #8444 - Trailmark Entry & Phase 1 - April 2021 5,147.50$          
8/3/21 108 Basham & Lucas Design Group, Inc. Invoice #8488 - Trailmark Entry & Phase 1 - May 2021 557.50$             
8/3/21 109 ECS Florida, LLC Invoice #893433 - Trailmark Amenity Building - July 2021 2,600.00$          

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Capital Improvement Revenue & Refunding Bonds, Series 2020
Assessment Area 2, Phase 3A

30



9/14/21 110 Hopping, Green & Sams Invoice #124409 - Project Construction Services - May 2021 457.32$             
9/14/21 111 Carlton Construction, Inc. Application #7 - Trailmark Entry & Parks - July 2021 19,979.72$        
9/14/21 112 Basham & Lucas Design Group, Inc. Invoice #8564 - Trailmark Entry & Phase I - July 2021 7,290.00$          
9/14/21 113 Basham & Lucas Design Group, Inc. Invoice #8527 - Trailmark Entry & Phase I - July 2021 10,757.92$        
9/14/21 114 Basham & Lucas Design Group, Inc. Invoice #8490 - Trailmark Amenity - June 2021 50,700.00$        
9/14/21 115 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Invoice #0199160 - East Parcel Ph I Amenities & Amenity Center (WA#41) - July 2021 8,899.00$          
9/14/21 116 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Invoice #0198669 - East Parcel Ph I Amenities & Amenity Center (WA#41) - June 2021 3,564.04$          
9/14/21 117 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Invoice #0198586 - Master Site Planning (WA#51) - June 2021 984.88$             
9/14/21 118 ECS Florida, LLC Invoice #900249 - Geotechnical Services - Trailmark Amenity Building - July 2021 600.00$             
9/30/21 119 Basham & Lucas Design Group, Inc. Invoice #8570 - Trailmark Amenity - August 2021 15,795.00$        
9/30/21 120 Basham & Lucas Design Group, Inc. Invoice #8571 - Trailmark Amenity - July 2021 59,580.00$        
9/30/21 121 Environmental Resources Solutions Invoice #37991 - Trialmark East Phase 2 Environmental Services - August 2021 1,455.00$          
9/30/21 122 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Invoice #0199451 - East Parcel Phase 1 Amenities & Amenity Center - August 2021 8,754.63$          
9/30/21 123 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Invoice #0199370 - Master Site Planning (WA#51) August 2021 339.38$             

TOTAL 5,031,660.72$   

Fiscal Year 2021
10/1/20 Interest 6.11$                 
11/2/20 Interest 5.17$                 
12/1/20 Interest 0.61$                 
1/4/21 Interest 0.37$                 

1/20/21 Wire FY21 Funding Request #5 442,994.47$      
2/24/21 Wire FY21 Funding Request #6 541,222.51$      
3/1/21 Interest -$                  
3/9/21 Wire FY21 Funding Request #10 287,730.25$      

3/30/21 Wire FY21 Funding Request #12 650,944.16$      
4/1/21 Interest -$                  
5/1/21 Interest -$                  

5/28/21 Wire FY21 Funding Request #13 288,160.68$      
6/1/21 Interest

6/16/21 Wire FY21 Funding Request #15 544,539.78$      
7/1/21 Interest -$                  
8/1/21 Interest -$                  
8/3/21 Wire FY21 Funding Request #18 461,280.99$      
8/3/21 Wire FY21 Funding Request #19 135,211.43$      
9/1/21 Interest -$                  

9/14/21 Wire FY21 Funding Request #24 103,232.88$      
9/30/21 Wire FY21 Funding Request #25 85,924.01$        

TOTAL 3,541,253.42$   

1,490,407.67$   
3,541,253.42$   

(5,031,660.72)$ 

0.37$                 

Requisitions Paid thru 9/30/21

Remaining Acquisition/Construction Fund

Acquisition/Construction Fund at 9/30/20
Interest Earned thru 9/30/21

31



Date Requisition # Contractor Description Requisition
Fiscal Year 2021

3/25/21 1 Six Mile Creek Investment Group, LLC Reimbursement #1 - Advanced Expenses for Phase 9 550,922.54$      
3/25/21 2 ECS Florida, LLC Inv# 861514 - Partial Geotechnical Engineering Services 24,500.00$        
3/25/21 3 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Inv# 0196857 - Proposal Documents & RFP for Phases 9A, 9B & 9C 1,608.50$          
3/25/21 4 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Inv# 0196725 - Trailmark Phase 11 (WA#45) 2,498.50$          
3/25/21 5 Environmental Services, Inc. Inv# TE66751 - Conservation Easement Coordination Phase 9 940.00$             
3/25/21 6 ECS Florida, LLC Inv# 866895 - Geotechnical Engineering Services 3,500.00$          
3/25/21 7 Environmental Services, Inc. Inv# TE78591 - Conservation Easement Coordination Phase 9 715.00$             
3/25/21 8 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Inv# 0196194 - Phase 9 Construction Documents (WA#37) 2,480.58$          
3/25/21 9 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Inv# 0197174 - Proposal Documents & RDP for Phases 9A, 9B & 9C 405.00$             
3/25/21 10 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Inv# 0197071 - Trailmark Phase 11 (WA#45) 3,835.98$          
3/25/21 11 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Inv# 0197069 - Trailmark Phase 9B 5,161.69$          
3/25/21 12 Clary & Associates Inv# 2021-160 - Trailmark Phase 9 - Re-stake Control 750.00$             
5/27/21 13 Vallencourt Construction Co., Inc. App#1 - Trailmark Ph 9A & 9B clearing from East Parcel Ph 1 247,700.72$      
4/30/21 14 Vallencourt Construction Co., Inc. APP#13 - Trailmark Ph 9A & 9B clearing from East Parcel Ph 1 145,380.65$      
4/5/21 15 Six Mile Creek Investment Group, LLC Reimbursement #2 - Advanced Expenses for Phase 9 138,217.23$      

4/30/21 16 Clary & Associates Inv# 2021-50 - Trailmark Phase 9A Map 7 Description 450.00$             
4/30/21 17 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Inv# 0197597 - Proposal Docs & RFP Process for Phases 9A, 9B & 9C (WA#46) 1,350.00$          
4/30/21 18 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Inv# 0197599 - Trailmark Phase 10 (WA#47) 900.00$             
4/30/21 19 ECS Florida, LLC Inv# 857928 - Partial Geotechnical Engineering Services 16,200.00$        
4/30/21 20 ECS Florida, LLC Inv# 848738 - Trailmark Ph 9 Roads & Pump Station - Geotechnical Services 3,400.00$          
4/30/21 21 Environmental Services, Inc. Inv# TE92753 - Conservation Easement Coordination Phase 9 845.00$             
4/30/21 22 Clary & Associates Inv# 2020-756 - Traimark Phase 9 Topographic Survey of 100' Grid of 313 Acres 173,000.00$      
4/30/21 23 St. Johns County Trailmark Phase 9B Construction Inspection Fee 5,038.00$          
4/30/21 24 St. Johns County Trailmark Phase 9B Utility Construction Inspection Fee 6,218.00$          
4/30/21 25 St. Johns County Trailmark Phase 9B Tree Bank Fund 212,650.00$      
6/1/21 26 Clary & Associates Invoice #2020-757 - Trailmark Phase 9 Protected Tree Survey 96,000.00$        
6/1/21 27 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Invoice #197825 -Phase 9A, 9B & 9C CEI Services (WA#53) 3,104.24$          
6/1/21 28 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Invoice #197890 - Trailmark East Parcel Phase 2 (WA#50) 21,800.80$        
6/1/21 29 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Invoice #197846 - Trailmark Phase 11 (WA#45) 30,675.72$        
6/1/21 30 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Invoice #197865 - Trailmark Phase 9B 2,057.00$          
6/1/21 31 Vallencourt Construction Co., Inc. App#2 - Trailmark East Parcel Phase 9 527,298.11$      
6/1/21 32 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Invoice #197434 - Trailmark Phase 9B 3,589.69$          
6/1/21 33 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Invoice #197438 - Trailmark Phase 11 (WA#45) 30,017.72$        
6/1/21 34 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Invoice #197444 - Trailmark Phase 9B 14,895.98$        

6/11/21 35 Vallencourt Construction Co., Inc. App#3 - Trailmark East Parcel Phase 9 475,440.09$      
6/11/21 36 Environmental Services, Inc. Invoice #TF15826 - Trailmark Phase 9 ACOE 6,000.00$          
6/11/21 37 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Invoice #198334 - Trailmark Phase 12 6,154.29$          
7/21/21 38 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Invoice #198330 - Trailmark Phase 10 (WA#47) 1,542.00$          
6/11/21 39 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Invoice #198212 - Trailmark Phase 11 34,737.95$        
6/11/21 40 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Invoice #198269 - Trailmark Phases 9A, 9B & 9C CEI Services (WA#53) 12,027.73$        

6/15/21 41 Rinker Materials
Invs #22887712, 22907774, 22897347, 22916342, 22928181, 22934831, 22944237, 

22955103, 22965127, 22974789 201,486.22$      
6/24/21 42 Ferguson Waterworks Invs #1847993, 1848002, 1850914,1851036, 1851071 146,028.75$      
6/24/21 43 Forterra Pipe & Precast Invs #11791596, 11792296, 11792380, 11793329, 11793489, 11796029, 11796304 27,655.76$        
7/21/21 44 Environmental Services, Inc. Invoice #TF25547 - Site Assessment Report 2,000.00$          
7/21/21 45 VOID VOID -$                  
7/21/21 46 ECS Florida, LLC Invoice #893312 - Partial Invoice for Geotechnical Services 2,500.00$          

7/21/21 47 Forterra Pipe & Precast
Invs #11797656, 11798078, 11798351, 11798872, 11798915, 11799111, 11799172, 

11799826, 11799884, 11800007 98,023.59$        
7/21/21 48 Ferguson Waterworks Invoice #1850971 - Direct Purchase of Materials 24,857.28$        
7/21/21 49 Rinker Materials Invoice #22983670 - Direct Purchaes of Materials 1,995.84$          
8/20/21 50 Gemini Engineering & Sciences Invoice #21018-1 - Trailmark Phase 9 CLOMR-F - July 2021 4,000.00$          
9/23/21 51 Vallencourt Construction Co., Inc. Application #5 - Trailmark East Parcel Phase 9 - July 2021 698,355.46$      
8/20/21 52 Environmental Services, Inc. Invoice #37936 - Trailmark Phase 11 - July 2021 1,860.00$          
8/20/21 53 ECS Florida, LLC Invoice #900232 - Geotechnical Services - Trailmark Ph11A & 11B Pond Berms 1,300.00$          

54 VOID VOID VOID
8/20/21 55 ECS Florida, LLC Invoice #900231 - Geotechnical Services - Trailmark Development - July 2021 500.00$             
8/20/21 56 Ferguson Waterworks Invoice #1850971-1 - Direct Purchase of Materials 42,082.92$        
8/20/21 57 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Invoice #199008 - Trailmark Phase 11 (WA#45) - July 2021 18,040.00$        
8/20/21 58 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Invoice #199019 - Phases 9A, 9B & 9C CEI Services (WA#53) - July 2021 5,458.59$          
8/20/21 59 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Invoice #198605 - Phases 9A, 9B & 9C CEI Services (WA#53) - June 2021 11,275.56$        
8/20/21 60 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Invoice #198582 - Trailmark Phase 11 (WA#45) - June 2021 25,214.36$        

9/2/21 61 Forterra Pipe & Precast
Invs #11800755, 18001244, 11801868, 11801877, 11801922, 11802542, 11803226, 

11803303, 11803539, 11804026, 11804448, 11804735, 11805073, 11806156 101,638.15$      
9/9/21 62 Vallencourt Construction Co., Inc. Application #4 - Trailmark East Parcel Phase 9 - June 2021 65,154.28$        

9/17/21 63 Vallencourt Construction Co., Inc. Application #6 - Trailmark East Parcel Phase 9 - August 2021 115,154.95$      
9/17/21 64 Hopping, Green & Sams Invoice #124709 - Project Construction - June 2021 94.00$               
9/17/21 65 Environmental Resource Solutions Invoice #37990 - Trailmark Phase 11 Environmental Services - August 2021 1,765.92$          
9/17/21 66 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Invoice #199393 - Trailmark Phase 11 - August 2021 7,285.38$          
9/17/21 67 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Invoice #199385 - Phases 9A, 9B & 9C CEI Services (WA#53) - August 2021 13,039.64$        
9/17/21 68 Ferguson Waterworks Invoice #1850971-2, 1850971-3, 1851003 - Direct Purchase of Materials 69,325.00$        

9/17/21 69 Forterra Pipe & Precast
Invs #11807238, 11808203, 11808569, 11810176, 11810179, 11810492, 11811225, 

11811248, 11811769 74,376.54$        

TOTAL 4,574,476.90$   

Fiscal Year 2021
3/1/21 Interest 6.21$                 
4/1/21 Interest 37.93$               
5/1/21 Interest 34.23$               
6/1/21 Interest 32.81$               
7/1/21 Interest 25.82$               
8/1/21 Interest 24.77$               
9/1/21 Interest 23.08$               

TOTAL 184.85$             

9,066,123.28$   
184.85$             

(4,574,476.90)$ 

4,491,831.23$   

Requisitions Paid thru 9/30/21

Remaining Acquisition/Construction Fund

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Capital Improvement Revenue & Refunding Bonds, Series 2021
Assessment Area 3, Phase 1

Acquisition/Construction Fund at 2/24/21
Interest Earned thru 9/30/21

32



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

B. 



GROSS ASSESSMENTS 2,021,092$       754,447$            228,094$          473,316$          565,235$          
NET ASSESSMENTS 1,899,826$       709,180$            214,408$          444,917$          531,321$          

2015 2016A 2017A
DATE GROSS ASSESSMENTS DISCOUNTS/ COMMISSIONS INTEREST NET AMOUNT GENERAL FUND DEBT SERVICE DEBT SERVICE DEBT SERVICE TOTAL

RECEIVED DIST. RECEIVED PENALTIES PAID INCOME RECEIVED 37.33% 11.29% 23.42% 27.97% 100%

11/2/20 1 2,588.82$                      135.91$        49.06$             -$                    2,403.85$         897.33$              271.29$            562.95$            672.28$            2,403.85$         
11/12/20 2 24,607.39$                    984.30$        472.46$           -$                    23,150.63$       8,641.83$           2,612.70$         5,421.60$         6,474.50$         23,150.63$       
11/24/20 3 73,574.19$                    2,942.98$     1,412.62$        -$                    69,218.59$       25,838.39$         7,811.79$         16,210.18$       19,358.24$       69,218.59$       
12/4/20 4 115,670.46$                  4,626.87$     2,220.87$        -$                    108,822.72$     40,622.09$         12,281.38$       25,484.99$       30,434.26$       108,822.72$     

12/16/20 5 704,424.28$                  28,085.59$   13,526.77$      -$                    662,811.92$     247,418.97$       74,802.80$       155,222.72$     185,367.43$     662,811.92$     
1/8/21 6 707,720.80$                  28,309.18$   13,588.23$      -$                    665,823.39$     248,543.12$       75,142.66$       155,927.97$     186,209.64$     665,823.39$     

1/19/21 Int -$                               -$              -$                 72.10$                 72.10$              26.91$                8.14$                16.88$              20.16$              72.10$              
2/22/21 7 176,678.86$                  5,136.51$     3,430.85$        -$                    168,111.50$     62,753.81$         18,972.52$       39,369.73$       47,015.44$       168,111.50$     
3/11/21 8 34,334.13$                    372.60$        679.23$           -$                    33,282.30$       12,423.84$         3,756.13$         7,794.32$         9,308.00$         33,282.30$       
4/8/21 Int -$                               -$              -$                 15.63$                 15.63$              5.83$                  1.76$                3.66$                4.37$                15.63$              

4/13/21 9 165,129.20$                  918.76$        3,284.21$        -$                    160,926.23$     60,071.65$         18,161.61$       37,687.02$       45,005.95$       160,926.23$     
6/15/21 10 16,854.48$                    -$              337.09$           -$                    16,517.39$       6,165.72$           1,864.10$         3,868.18$         4,619.39$         16,517.39$       

-$                               -$              -$                 -$                    -$                 -$                    -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                  
-$                               -$              -$                 -$                    -$                 -$                    -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                  
-$                               -$              -$                 -$                    -$                 -$                    -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                  

TOTALS 2,021,582.61$               71,512.70$   39,001.39$      87.73$                 1,911,156.25$  713,409.50$       215,686.88$     447,570.20$     534,489.66$     1,911,156.25$  

SIX MILE CREEK INVESTMENT GROUP LLC $677,485.58 $89,532.78 $173,077.80 $414,875.00

DATE DUE CHECK NET AMOUNT GENERAL SERIES SERIES
 RECEIVED DATE NO. ASSESSED RECEIVED FUND 2017A 2020

10/6/20 10/15/20 WIRE 22,383.20$          22,383.19$       22,383.19$         -$                 -$                 
2/1/21 1/1/21 109580752 22,383.20$          22,383.19$       22,383.19$         -$                 -$                 

VARIOUS 4/1/21 VARIOUS 257,564.32$        506,488.88$     22,382.76$         69,231.12$       414,875.00$     
8/6/21 7/1/21 WIRE 22,383.20$          22,383.21$       22,383.21$         -$                 -$                 

9/30/21 352,771.68$        103,846.68$     -$                    103,846.68$     -$                 
677,485.58$        677,485.15$     89,532.35$         173,077.80$     414,875.00$     

SIX MILE CREEK
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT RECEIPTS - FY2021

TAX COLLECTOR

DIRECT BILLED ASSESSMENTS

24



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

C. 



  

Fund Date Check No.'s Amount
General Fund 9/14/21 3681-3685 132,458.16$                      

9/15/21 3686-3694 61,143.10$                        
9/22/21 3695-3699 8,810.96$                          
9/28/21 3700-3707 12,368.53$                        
9/30/21 3708-3710 110,900.04$                      

325,680.79$                      

Payroll September 2021
Darren Glynn 50074 184.70$                             
Gregg Kern 50075 184.70$                             

Michael Taylor 50076 184.70$                             
Robert Weatherly 50077 184.70$                             

Wendy Hartley 50078 184.70$                             
923.50$                             

326,604.29$             

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Summary of Check Register

September 9, 2021 to September 30, 2021



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 10/13/21          PAGE   1
*** CHECK DATES 09/09/2021 - 09/30/2021 ***       GENERAL FUND

BANK A GENERAL FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 9/14/21 00156 6/11/21 8490     202109 300-13100-10100                                     *           50,700.00
TRAILMARK AMENITY JUN21

7/27/21 8527     202109 300-13100-10100                                     *           10,757.92
TRAILMRK ENTRY&PHASE1 JUL

7/27/21 8564     202109 300-13100-10100                                     *            7,290.00
TRAILMRK ENTRY&PHASE1 JUL

BASHAM & LUCAS DESIGN GROUP INC                                68,747.92 003681
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/14/21 00157 7/31/21 APP#7    202109 300-13100-10100                                     *           19,979.72

TRAILAMRK ENTRY&PARK JULY
CARLTON CONSTRUCTION INC                                       19,979.72 003682

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/14/21 00022 7/07/21 198586   202109 300-13100-10100                                     *              984.88

MASTER SITE PLAN(WA51)JUN
7/09/21 198669   202109 300-13100-10100                                     *            3,564.04

PH1 AMENITIES(WA#41)JUN21
7/09/21 198672   202109 300-13100-10100                                     *            9,230.00

TRAILMARK PH10(WA#47)JUN
7/09/21 198673   202109 300-13100-10100                                     *            4,887.05

TRAILMARK PH12(WA#49)JUN
7/12/21 198670   202109 300-13100-10100                                     *            4,342.43

PHASE 6 CEI SVC(WA#43)JUN
8/09/21 199160   202109 300-13100-10100                                     *            8,899.00

PH1 AMENTIES(WA#41)JUL21
8/09/21 199161   202109 300-13100-10100                                     *            1,835.80

PHASE 6 CEI SVC(WA#43)JUL
8/09/21 199170   202109 300-13100-10100                                     *            8,930.00

TRAILMARK PH10(WA#47)JUL
ENGLAND-THIMS & MILLER, INC                                    42,673.20 003683

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/14/21 00127 8/04/21 900249   202109 300-13100-10100                                     *              600.00

TRAILMARK AMENITY JUL21
ECS FLORIDA, LLC                                                  600.00 003684

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/14/21 00002 6/30/21 124409   202109 300-13100-10100                                     *              457.32

BASHAM&LUCAS WA2/MATERIAL
HOPPING GREEN & SAMS                                              457.32 003685

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/15/21 00170 9/01/21 7511508  202109 320-53800-46200                                     *           19,151.83

LANDSCAPE SERVICES SEP21
BRIGHTVIEW LANDSCAPE SERVICES, INC.                            19,151.83 003686

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/15/21 00019 9/13/21 14374    202109 300-15500-10000                                     *           23,482.00

FY22 PROPERTY INSURANCE
9/13/21 14374    202109 300-15500-10000                                     *            6,436.00

FY22 GEN.LIAB/PUBLIC OFF.
EGIS INSURANCE ADVISORS LLC                                    29,918.00 003687

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

SIXM SIX MILE CREEK TVISCARRA 



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 10/13/21          PAGE   2
*** CHECK DATES 09/09/2021 - 09/30/2021 ***       GENERAL FUND

BANK A GENERAL FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 9/15/21 00022 9/01/21 199373   202108 310-51300-31100                                     *            1,113.34
GEN.CONSLT.ENG.SVC(WA#52)

ENGLAND-THIMS & MILLER, INC                                     1,113.34 003688
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/15/21 00005 9/07/21 04551-38 202108 340-53800-43000                                     *              206.65

16 DAYBREAK DR - AUG21
9/07/21 23340-53 202108 340-53800-43000                                     *               66.47

255 RUSTIC MILL DR-AUG21
9/07/21 72968-38 202108 340-53800-43000                                     *               12.90

18 WOODWIND CT - AUG21
9/07/21 97807-53 202108 340-53800-43000                                     *               12.24

82 BERRY BLOSSOM WAY
FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT                                             298.26 003689

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/15/21 00001 9/01/21 146      202109 310-51300-34000                                     *            2,416.67

MANAGEMENT FEES SEP21
9/01/21 146      202109 310-51300-35100                                     *              100.00

INFORMATION TECH SEP21
9/01/21 146      202109 310-51300-31300                                     *              416.67

DISSEMINATION FEE SEP21
9/01/21 146      202109 310-51300-51000                                     *               15.09

OFFICE SUPPLIES
9/01/21 146      202109 310-51300-42000                                     *                1.53

POSTAGE
9/01/21 146      202109 310-51300-42500                                     *              479.10

COPIES
9/01/21 146      202109 310-51300-41000                                     *               96.59

TELEPHONE
GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES                                3,525.65 003690

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/15/21 00028 9/01/21 121      202109 320-53800-46700                                     *            1,145.00

JANITORIAL SERVICES-SEP21
RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES,INC.                              1,145.00 003691

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/15/21 00137 9/15/21 RN091521 202109 320-53800-34500                                     *              120.00

SECURITY SRVC - 09/11/21
9/15/21 RN091521 202109 320-53800-34500                                     *              200.00

SECURITY SRVC - 09/14/21
ROBERT MICHAEL NELSON                                             320.00 003692

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/15/21 00034 9/07/21 21101409 202108 330-53800-43200                                     *               66.35

801 TRAILMARK DR - AUG21
TECO PEOPLES GAS                                                   66.35 003693

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/15/21 00164 8/30/21 15984    202108 340-53800-46200                                     *            5,604.67

LANDSCAPE MAINT AUG21
TREE AMIGOS OUTDOOR SERVICES INC                                5,604.67 003694

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

SIXM SIX MILE CREEK TVISCARRA 



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 10/13/21          PAGE   3
*** CHECK DATES 09/09/2021 - 09/30/2021 ***       GENERAL FUND

BANK A GENERAL FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 9/22/21 00122 9/12/21 355280   202108 310-51300-32200                                     *            5,315.00
FY20 AUDIT SERVICES

BERGER,TOOMBS,ELAM,GAINES & FRANK                               5,315.00 003695
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/22/21 00002 9/15/21 125047   202107 310-51300-31500                                     *            1,471.00

BRD MTG/ENVERA AGR/ASMT
9/15/21 125049   202107 310-51300-31500                                     *              612.50

BOUNDRY AMND.PET/FUND AGR
HOPPING GREEN & SAMS                                            2,083.50 003696

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/22/21 00068 9/20/21 IN-18838 202109 300-15500-10000                                     *            1,150.66

UPGRADE/FIX CAM & MONITOR
PRO-VIGIL, INC.                                                 1,150.66 003697

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/22/21 00137 9/20/21 RN092021 202109 320-53800-34500                                     *              100.00

SECURITY SRVC - 09/18/21
9/20/21 RN092021 202109 320-53800-34500                                     *               80.00

SECURITY SRVC - 09/19/21
ROBERT MICHAEL NELSON                                             180.00 003698

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/22/21 00004 5/17/21 I0335575 202105 310-51300-48000                                     *               10.00

AFFIDAVIT 5/17/21 BOS MTG
9/06/21 3374451- 202109 310-51300-48000                                     *               71.80

NOT.OF MEETING 09/15/21
CA FLORIDA HOLDINGS, LLC                                           81.80 003699

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/28/21 00170 9/23/21 7549683  202109 320-53800-46300                                     *            1,453.44

TRBLSHT/INST.DECODE/SPLIC
BRIGHTVIEW LANDSCAPE SERVICES, INC.                             1,453.44 003700

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/28/21 99999 9/28/21 VOID     202109 000-00000-00000                                     C                 .00

VOID CHECK
******INVALID VENDOR NUMBER******                                  .00 003701

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/28/21 00033 8/30/21 SMCCDD08 202108 320-53800-12100                                     *            4,925.37

MANAGEMENT FEES AUG21
8/30/21 SMCCDD08 202108 320-53800-12200                                     *            3,360.00

ONSITE PERSONNEL AUG21
8/30/21 SMCCDD08 202108 320-53800-47200                                     *               24.40

DOLLAR TREE-CANDY/PAPER
8/30/21 SMCCDD08 202108 320-53800-47200                                     *               35.43

TARGET-CANDY/TOWEL/GAMES
8/30/21 SMCCDD08 202108 330-53800-46501                                     *              159.75

FRESH WATER SYTM-TUBING
8/30/21 SMCCDD08 202108 330-53800-46501                                     *               11.80

PINCH A PENNY-2 GAL NACLO

SIXM SIX MILE CREEK TVISCARRA 



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 10/13/21          PAGE   4
*** CHECK DATES 09/09/2021 - 09/30/2021 ***       GENERAL FUND

BANK A GENERAL FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

8/30/21 SMCCDD08 202108 320-53800-47500                                     *               56.99
TURNER WGV-VINYL TUBING

8/30/21 SMCCDD08 202108 320-53800-47500                                     *               62.96
TURNER WGV-PUTTY/BULB PAN

8/30/21 SMCCDD08 202108 320-53800-47500                                     *              450.00
FENWICK-INST.FLUSH VALVE

8/30/21 SMCCDD08 202107 320-53800-47200                                     *               80.00
MARGARITA MAN-DRINK MIXES

8/30/21 SMCCDD08 202107 330-53800-51000                                     *               12.00
UPS-BOOK OF STAMPS

8/30/21 SMCCDD08 202107 330-53800-51000                                     *               69.94
PUBLIX-BEER/3 BAGS OF ICE

8/30/21 SMCCDD08 202107 330-53800-51000                                     *              122.53
PUBLIX-ALCOHOL/MARGARITA

8/30/21 SMCCDD08 202107 330-53800-51000                                     *               40.04
WALMART-3BAG OF CLEAR CUP

8/30/21 SMCCDD08 202107 330-53800-51000                                     *               17.04
DOLLAR TREE-HYDRANGEA/CVR

8/30/21 SMCCDD08 202107 330-53800-51000                                     *               17.91
HOBBY LOBBY-CRD/PARTY/ART

EVERGREEN LIFESTYLES MANAGEMENT,LLC                             9,446.16 003702
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/28/21 00099 9/16/21 61005    202109 320-53800-46100                                     *              205.00

COM BRASS ABV GRD WELL LT
OUTDOOR LIGHTING SOLUTIONS, LLC                                   205.00 003703

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/28/21 00028 9/21/21 122      202109 320-53800-46900                                     *              122.02

TP/PAPER TWL/GLOVE/LYSOL
RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES,INC.                                122.02 003704

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/28/21 00098 9/22/21 51218    202109 300-15500-10000                                     *              500.00

ROOM RENT 10/20/21,SPEAKR
RENAISSANCE WORLD GOLF VILLAGE                                    500.00 003705

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/28/21 00024 9/19/21 556887-1 202109 330-53800-43100                                     *              557.74

805 TRAILMARK DR - SEP21
9/19/21 556887-1 202109 330-53800-43100                                     *               32.78

295 BACK CREEK DR - SEP21
9/19/21 556887-1 202109 300-13100-10400                                     *               17.76

255 RUSTIC MILL DR-SEP21
ST.JOHNS COUNTY UTILITY DEPT.                                     608.28 003706

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/28/21 00117 9/17/21 22344256 202109 330-53800-51000                                     *               11.54

CARD HOLDER REFILL/COFFEE
9/21/21 22352217 202109 330-53800-51000                                     *               22.09

2 BINDER,DRING,VIEW,LTR
W.B. MASON CO.,INC.                                                33.63 003707

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

SIXM SIX MILE CREEK TVISCARRA 



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 10/13/21          PAGE   5
*** CHECK DATES 09/09/2021 - 09/30/2021 ***       GENERAL FUND

BANK A GENERAL FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 9/30/21 00156 7/27/21 8571     202109 300-13100-10100                                     *           59,580.00
TRAILMARK AMENITY JUL21

8/20/21 8570     202109 300-13100-10100                                     *           15,795.00
TRAILMARK AMENITY AUG21

BASHAM & LUCAS DESIGN GROUP INC                                75,375.00 003708
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/30/21 00022 9/01/21 199370   202109 300-13100-10100                                     *              338.38

MSTR SITE PLAN(WA#51)AUG
9/01/21 199411   202109 300-13100-10100                                     *           12,427.03

TRAILMARK EAST PARCEL PH2
9/03/21 199451   202109 300-13100-10100                                     *            8,754.63

EAST PARCEL PH1 AMNTY AUG
9/03/21 199453   202109 300-13100-10100                                     *           12,550.00

TRAILMARK PH10(WA#47)AUG
ENGLAND-THIMS & MILLER, INC                                    34,070.04 003709

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/30/21 00174 8/31/21 37991    202109 300-13100-10100                                     *            1,455.00

TRAILMARK EAST PH2 AUG21
ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCE SOLUTIONS                                1,455.00 003710

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

TOTAL FOR BANK A                325,680.79

TOTAL FOR REGISTER              325,680.79

SIXM SIX MILE CREEK TVISCARRA 



REQUIS!T10N NO. 114 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT l)!STRICT 
(ST. JOHNS COUNTY, FLORmA) 

$7,020,000 
CAPITAL l~'lPFtOVEMENT 

AND REFUNDil.~G REVENUE BONDS, 
SERIES 2o20 

(ASSESS~IENT AREA 2, PHASE 3A) 
The undersigned, a Responsible Officer of Six Mile Creek Community Development 

District (the "District") hereby submits the following requisition for disbursement under a:nd 
pursuant to the terms of the Master Trust Indenture from the District to lJ. S. Bank National 
Association, as trustee (the "Trustee"), dated as of July l, 2007, as supplemented by a Seventh 
Supplemental Trust Indenture, dated as of June 1, 2020 (collectively, the "Indenture"; all 
capitalized terms used herein shall have the meani:ag ascribed to such term in the Indenture): 

(A) Requisition Number: 114 

(B) Name and address ofPayee: B.,wha:~L & Lucas Design G~oup, Inc. 
7645 Gate Pi!rkway Suite 101 
Jackso'.wme, FL 32256 

(C) Amount Payable: $50,700.00 

(D) Purpose for which paid or incurred (refor also to specific contract if amount is due and 
payable pursuant to a contract involving progress payments, or, state Cost of Issuance, if 
applicable): Trailmark Amenity- Invoice 8490 (July 2021) 

(E) Fund or Account from which disburs,,rn.em: to be made; 

Phase 3A Acquisition and C)nstruction Account 

The undersigned hereby certifies that: 

1. obligations in the stated amount set forth above have been incurred by the District, 

2. each disbursement set forth above i:; a proper charge against the Phase 3A 
Acquisition and Construction Acce:111.t; 

3. each disbursement set forth above was incurrs:d in connection with the acquisition 
and/or construction of the Project; 

4. each disbursement represents a Cost of the Project which has not pirevim.sly been 
paid. 

The undersigned hereby further ecrtific:; that tl-:ere has not been filed with or served upon 
the District notice of any lien, right to lien, or at'iachrnent upon, or claim affecting the right to 



The undersigned hereby further certifies tha+. there has not been filed with or served upon 
the District notice of any lien, right to lien, or attachment upon, or ciaim affecting the right to 
receive payment of, any of the moneys payable to the Payee set forth above, whkh has not been 
released or will not be released simultaneously with the payment hereof. 

The undersigned hereby further certifies that such requisition contains no item representing 
payment on account of any retained percentag.~ which the District is at the date of such certificate 
entitled to retain. 

Attached hereto are originals of the invoice(s) from the vendor of the property acquired or 
the services rendered with respect to which disbursement is hereby requested. 

SIX MILE CREEK COM"id.UNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DIST.f.tICT 

CONSULTING ENGINEER'S .. A.PPl:OV AL 

The undersigned Consulting Engineer hereby certifies that this disbursement is for a Cost of the 
Project and is consistent with: (i) the applicable acquisition or constmction contract; (ii) the plans 
and specifications fur ;:he portion of the Project with respect i:o which such disbursement is being 
made; and (iii) the report of the Consulting Engineer, as such report shaH have b~en amended or 
modified on the date hereof. 

Dated: ea\ i l \~ ---------

Consulting Engineer 



BASHA1'v1 
.f&LUCAS 

Invoice 
I DATE j INVOICE# [ __ 
I 6/1 t/2021 8490 

4 DESIGN GROUP, INC 
~ PLA:>lNING •ARCHITECTURE• LANDSCAPE 

7645 Gate Parkway Suite 101 ------------

Jacksonville, FL 32256 
(904) 731-2323 

www.bashamlucas.com 

BILL TO 
1 Six Mile Creek COD 
James Oliv,er 
47!i \f'lest Town ?lace 

l:.uite 114 
rt. Augustine, Fl 32092 

-·-· - ------·--
PROJECT Reverie @ Trailmark Amenity CDs (20-06B) 

1----------'--------~----~ -----.-------! I I 
CONTRACT SERVICES CONTRACT i TO DATE Total% I AMOUNT DUE 

Part 1: Construction Documents of the Clubhouse 119,400.00 I 59,700.00 60.00% I 11,940.00 
Part 2: Amenity Area Hardscape Construction 29,800.00 8,940.00 60.00% 8,940.00 
Documents 
Part 3: Amenity Area Site Electrical Engineering 
Part 4: Amenity Area Landscape Architecture & 
Irrigation Design 

Part 6: Swimming Poolts) Engineering Documents 
(max 5,000 s.f. pool area) 
Part 7: Fine Grading Design of the Pool Area 
Part 8: Lightening Protection Diagram 
Part 9: Exterior Coior/Material Selection for Entry & 
Amenity Area Improvements 
Part 10: Amenity Area Signage 
Reimbursable Expenses {NTE $2,000.00) 

5,200.00 
11,900.00 

18,600.00 

4,200.00 
1,800.00 
3,900.00 

4,100.00 

80.00% 
60.00% 

60.00% 

60.00% 
60.0QO,,;, 
60.00% 

60.00% 

3,120.00 
7,140.00 

11,160.00 

2,520.00 
1,080.00 
2,340.00 

2,460.00 
0.00 

$50,700.00 



REQlJlSITION NO. 113 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
(ST. JOHNS COUNTY, FLOiUl)A) 

$7,020~000 
CAPITAL IJ1P .JOVE.:'v1ENT 

AND REFUNDING RE,V1 '.NUE .8ONDS1 

SEHlES 2020 
(ASSESSMEN1' AREA 2, PHASE 3A) 

The undersigned, a Responsible Officer of Six Mile Creek Community Development 
District (the "District") hereby submits the following requisition for disbursement under and 
pursuant to the te1ms of the Master Trust Indenture from the District to U. S. Bank National 
Association, as trustee (the 'Trustee"), dated as of July ], 2007, as supplementeJ by a Seventh 
Supplemental Trust Indenture, dated as of June I, 2020 (collectively, the "'Indenture"; all 
capitalized terms used herein shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the Indenture): 

(A) Requisition Number: 113 ~156 

(B) Name and address of Payee: Uasham & Lucas Design Group, Inc. 
7645 Gate Patkway Suite 101 
JacksonvHfo, FL 32256 

:JQ,·'11·\0I 

(C) Amount Payable: $10,757.92 

(D) Purpose for which paid or incurred (refer also to specific contract if amount is due and 
payable pursuant to a contract involving progress payments, or, state Cost of Issuance, if 
applicable): Trailmark Am~tti(Y-Ir.voice 8527 (July 2021) 

(E) Fund or Account from which disburserncm to be made: 

Phase 3A Acquisition and Construction Account 

The undersigned hereby certifies that: 

1. obligations in the stated amount set forth above have been incurred by the District, 

2. each disbursement set forth. above is a proper charge against the Phase 3A 
Acquisition and Construction Account; 

3. each disbursement set forth above was incurred in connection with the acquisition 
and/or construction of the Project; 

4. each disbursement represents a Cost of the Project which has not previously been 
paid. 

The undersigned hereby further certifies that there has not been filed with or served upon 
the District notice of any lien, right to l.ien, ot attachment upon, or daim affecting the right to 



The undersigned hereby further certifies that there has not been flied with or served upon 
the District notice of any lien, right to lien, or at\.achment upon, or claim affecting the right to 
receive payment of, any of the moneys payable to the Payee set forth above, which has not been 
released or will not be released simultaneously with the payment hereof. 

The undersigned hereby further certifies that such requisition contains no item representing 
payment on account of any retained percentage which the District is at the date of such certificate 
entitled to retain. 

Attached hereto are originals of the invoice(s) from the vendor of the property acquired or 
the services rendered with respect to which disbursement is hereby requested. 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMF;NT DISTRICT 

£,r,./ ~ 
By:~:--~c:. ~:,,•:¾::

Gregg Kern 
Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 

CONSULTING E-NGINEf:}~'S APP HOV AL 

The undersigned Consulting Engineer hereby certifies that this disburserneGt is for a Cost of the 
Project and is consistent with: (i) the applicable acquisition or construction conttact; (ii) the plans 
and specifications for the portion of the Project with respect to which such disbursement is being 
made; and (iii) the report of the Consulting Engineer, us sm;h report shaH hl:'\ve been amended or 
modified on the date hereof. 

Dated: ea l \ l \:2,-( 
---'..------'----



BASHAM 
1,& LUCAS 
A DESIGN GROUP, INC. 

PLANNING• ARCHITECTURE· LANDSCAPE 

7645 Gate Parkway Suite 101 
Jacksonville, FL 32256 

(904) 731-2323 

www.basham!ucas.com 

I SILL. TO 

Six Mile Creek COD 
Jaimes Oliver 
475 West Town Place 

iSuite 114 

Invoice 
DATE INVOICE# 

7/27/2021 8527 

i St Aunustine, FL 32lB2 
j ..... • 

' 

-----------------. 
PROJECT I Reverie @ T:ailmark Amenity C Os {20-068} 

--· .- ----------1 
' CONTRACT SEZxVlCES CO:>.TRS.CT l TO DATE I 

i Total% j AMOUNTDUE 

Part 1: Construction Documents of the Clubhouse 119,400.00 71,640.00 60.00% 0.00 
Part 2: Amenity Area Hardscape Construction 29,300.00 17,880.00 80.00% 5,960.00 
Documents 
Part 3: Amenity Area Site E!ect:c;s; Engineering 512CG.OO 3,'l20.0(J i 

I Part 4: Amenity Area Landscape Architecture & 11,900.00 7,140.00 
Irrigation Design l 

60.00% 0.00 
100.00% 4,760.00 

Part 6: Swimming Pool(s} Engineering Documents 18,6CO.OO 11,160.00 60.00% 0.00 
(max 5,000 s.f. pool area) 
Part 7: Fine Grading Design of the Pool Area 4,200.00 2,520.00 60.00% 0.00 
Part 8: Lightening Protection Diagram 1,800.00 1,080.00 60.00% 0.00 
Part 9: Exterior Color/Material Selection for Entry & 2,900.00 2,340.00 60,00% 0.00 
Amenity Area Improvements 
Part 10: Amenity Area Signage 4,100.00 2.460.00 60.00% 0.00 
Part 11: Reimbursable ExpenSes (NTE $2,000} 

49.1 miles to and from Trailmark 27.50 
18.6 miles to and from Micamy 10.42 
Total Reimbursable Expenses 37.92 

I 
I 
I 
I 

I I I 
I 

I 
I - I 

I ro· $10,757.92 



REQUISITION NO. 112 

SIX MU.,}~ CREEK COM.MUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRh:T· 
(ST. ,JOHNS COUNTY, FLORIDA) 

$7,020,000 
CAPITAL L\lPROVEMENT 

AND REFUNDING REVENUE GONDS, 
SE:tIES 2020 

(ASSESSM.ENT f..REA 2, PHASE 3A) 
The undersigned, a Responsible Officer of Six Mile Creek Community Development 

District (the "District") hereby submits the following requisition for disbursement under and 
pursuant to the terms of the Master Trust Indenture from the District to U. S. Bank National 
Association, as trustee (the "Trustee"), dated as of July I, 2007, as supplemented by a Seventh 
Supplemental Trust Indenture, dated as of June l, 2020 (collectively. the «Indenture"; all 
capitalized tenns used herein shall have the meaning ascribed to such tenn in the Indenture): 

(A) Requisition Number: 112 

(B) Name and address of Payee: Basham & L!U.cas De~ign Group, foe. 
7645 Gate Parkway Suite 101 
.lacksor.viJ1, .. \ :FL 32256 

(C) Amount Payable: $ 7,290.00 

(D) Purpose for which paid or incurred (refer also to specific contra.ct if amount is due and 
payable pursuant to a contract involving progress payments, or, state Cost of Issuance, if 
applicable): Traihnark Interior n,:sigL - btvoice 8564 (~luly 2021) 

(E) Fund or Account from which disbursement to be .made: 

Phase 3A Acquisition and Construction Account 

The undersigned hereby certifies that: 

I. obligations in the stated amount set forth above have been incurred ;JY the District, 

2. each disbursement set forth above is a proper charge against {he Phase 3A 
Acquisition and Construction f,:.::count; 

3. each disbursement set forth above was incurred in connection with the acquisition 
and/or construction of the Project; 

4. each disbursement represents a Cost of the Project which has not previously been 
paid. 

The undersigned hereby fmther certifies that there has not been filed with or served upon 
the District notice of any lien. right to lien, or attach::nent upon, or claim affe,;tfr,g the right to 



The undersigned hereby further certifies that there has not been filed with or served upon 
the District notice of any lien, right to lien, or attachment upon, or claim affecting the right to 
receive payment of, any of the moneys payable to the Payee set forth above, which has not been 
released or will not be released simuhan-eously with the payment hereof. 

The undersigned hereby further certifies that such requisition contains no item representing 
payment on account of any retained percentage which the District is at the date of such certificate 
entitled to retain. 

Attached hereto are originals of the invoice(s) from the vendor of the property acquired or 
the services rendered with respect to which disbursement is hereby requested. 

SJX IVHLE CREEK COlVEvlUNIT~:· 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

/_ .. ;'" ~p,,. 
By. ~ ,,,I, _,. ---~,. ~-~e~ _.,,, ":--' .. ~-

Gregg Kern 
Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 

CONSULTING Ef{GINEER'S AJ?PROVAL 

The undersigned Consulting Engineer hereby certifies that this disbursement is for a Cost of the 
Project and is consistent with: (i) the applicable acquisition or construction contract; (ii) the plans 
and specifications for the portion of the Project with respect to which such disbursement is being 
made; and (iii) the report of the Consulting Engineer, as such report shall have been amended or 
modified on the date hereof. 

Dated: ~ \ \ f \.:2-{ --.------'-----

-- 7 "' 1 • E • co11su tmg . ~ngmeer 

\ 



BASHAM 
1nvoice 

DATE i INVOICE# I 

~~!½i~1~ 112712021 1 as64 

7645 Gate Parkway Suite 101 
Jacksonville, FL 32256 

(904) 731-2323 

www.bashamlucas.com 

PROJECT I 
CONTRACT SERViCES 

Interior Design Construction Documents 

BILL TO 

Six MU.e C,·eek COD 
James Oliver 
475 West Town Place 
Suite 114 
, St. Augustine, FL 32092 
; 
! 

Tiark Inter Des CD(20-06C) Revierie@Traih 
l 

CONTr'{ACT j TO DATE Tobi 0/o I AMOUNT DUE 

24,300.00 1 30.00% 7,290.00 

I 

I 
I 

I 

I 
l 

··-
_J_ 

TOT L 7,290.00 



REQUISITION NO. 111 

SIX MILE cru:EK COMMUNITY DEVELOPM.ENT r·ISTRICT 
(ST. JOHNS COUNTY, FLOlUDA) 

$7,020,000 
CAPITAL 11\,iPHOVEMENT 

A..~D REFUNDING REVENUE IlONDS, 
SE t<lES 2020 

(ASSESSMENT A~A 2, PHASE 3A) 
The undersigned, a Responsible Officer of Six Mile Creek Community Development 

District (the "District") hereby submits the following requisition for disbursement under and 
pursuant to the terms of the Master Trust Indenture from the District to U. S. Bank National 
Association, as trustee (the "Trustee"), dated as of July I, 2007, as supplemented by a Seventh 
Supplemental Trust Indenture, dated as of June 1, 2020 (collectiveiy, the "Indenture"; all 
capitalized terms used herein shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the Indenture): 

(A) Requisition Number: 111 ~.\&'). 

(B) Name and address of Payee: 
Carlton Construction, Inc. 
• 615 US Highway 17, Suite 1 
Fleming Island, '!?L 32003 

JM•\J\. \0' 

(C) Amount Payable: $ 19~979.72 

(D) Purpose for which paid or incurred (refer also to specific contract if amount is due and 
payable pursuant to a contract involving progress payments, or, state Cost of Issuance, if 
applicable): Trailmark Entry,\:; P2rk~ -Applicatio;1 for Payment Ne-. 7 (July 2021) 

(E) Fund or Account from which disbursement to be made: 

Phase 3A Acquisition and Construction Acco~nt 

The undersigned hereby certifies that: 

1. obligations in the stated amount set forth above have been incurred by the District, 

2. each disbursement set forth atove is a proper charge against tbe Phase 3A 
Acquisition and Construction Accot.nt; 

3. each disbursement set forth above was incurred in connection with the acquisition 
and/or construction of the Proj~ct; 

4. each disbursement represents a Cost of the Project which has not previously been 
paid. 



The undersigned hereby further certifies 1hat there has not been filed with or served upon 
the District notice of any lien, right to lien, or attachment upon, or claim affecting the right to 
receive payment of, any of the moneys payable to the Payee set forth above, which has not been 
released or will not be released simultaneously with the payment hereof. 

The undersigned hereby further certifies that such requisition contains no item representing 
payment on account of any retained percentage which the District is at the date of such certificate 
entitled to retain. 

Attached hereto are originals of the hwoice(s) from the vendor of the property acquired or 
the services rendered with respect to which disbursement is hereby requested. 

SJX l\HLE CREEK COMJHUNITY 
i1EVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Gregg Kem 
Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 

CONSULTING ENGINEER'S APPROVAL 

The undersigned Consulting Engineer hereby certifies that this disbursement is for a Cost of the 
Project and is consistent with: (i) the applicabie acquisition er construction contract; (ii) the plans 
and specifications for the portion of the Project with respect to which such disbursement is being 
made; and (iii) the report of the Consuliing Engineer, as such report shal! have been amended or 
modified on the date hereof. 

I \ , 

~

r ~ \
1

::t-t•Zt 
Dated: , i.:---I _____ ___. _____ _ 

Consulting Engineer 



APPLlCA.TIOH AND CERTIFtCA110N FOR PAYME:NT 

TO OWNER Six MUe Cfffk Comm11nlty 0.Wk>Ptnent DiffllCIJ~CT: 
475 West Tow11 Plac.e 
suite 114 

Tralfm•rk Entry & Parks 
475 West Town Place 
Suite 114 

APPLICATION NO: 7 Distribution to: 

St. Augustine FL 32092 St. Augustine FL 32092 

~ 
OWNER 

ARCHITECT 

PERIOD TO: 07/31/2021 

FROM CONTAACTOR:C..-tt<:>n Con'1n,uitlor1, Inc. 
4615 U.S. Highway 17 
Suite 1 

VtAAFtCHITECT: S.ham & Lu~u OHfgn Group, Inc. 
7645 Gate Parkw•Y 
Sult& 10'1 PROJECT NOS: 20·06 COITTRACTOR 

CONSULTANT Fi•mlng lsl~d F'L 32003 Jae;!uu:mvme FL 322.S& 

C0NTRM:r FOR: Trallmarl<: Entry & Parks 

CON~CTOR"S APPLICATION FOR PAYMl:NT 

1. Or{IQ!NAL CONTRACt SUM 

2, Net tMngllf by Chan~e Or-de111 

3 CON"tRACT SUM TQ OA'i!: {Uno 1 ~ 2j 

I' .. TOTAL. COMPLETE[) & STORED TO oAr~ 
(CO!ul'nn G Or\ tltl:,ll, \I siu,.il) 

5. RE'tAINAGE: 
a. ~OQ % of Complllit.-d ~Jori( 

(Cotumn O + 15 on li~t&li!d :;hoot} 

b. ~ % of Stored Mi,(Grial 
(Qotumn F on detailed sMet) 

itilrd R.;·!J:ci1lege (L1nf'lS tl., + 5b or 
'fc,l;;l In Colvrnn I of dc.trJ.it~ eh&Eltf 

6 T01AL t..ARNEO LESS KrlAINAGF. 
(Line 4 fea!l Lin• 5 Tota!} 

7. Lt:0.$$ PREVIOUS C~RTIFICATeS ['(ti~ i7AVM!::NT 
(I.Ina 6 from rmorCertlflcete) 

8. CllttREl'IIT ~AVME!'l!t !':HJE 

g, tii'.l.ANd: TO FINIS!;, INGUJDING R"1' AINA.GE 
(Une 3 less Utie 6) 

tS9.01.5.1.':l 
~ .. -

0.00 

ll_.~!Z,S2ft6'i 

11~~2.40 

__ ,.,a:lo,s.ie.a, 

_J,t,r,ttJ,251.39 

1r~19z&.rn 
1,1ll1,v1,21 

--.... ....... ,-- ... -= 

i ,,.;;; ·1 ,246.4~ ---19,979.72 

~~.nuo 

C~itt,t~~_gr2t1~~~J~M~~~; ~-:J~~~~ L:.~~~ ncNs ' 
fo1~;hangut .. pproveoTn f 181,.488.83 Mea,oe•1.43 
Previout manth by ('.1wner --t---: ~ 

~~ve~hi: ~~· ·-·~-L. ·--~~~~~I$ ··c-a~M~~~ 
NET C~!ANGES by Change Oma•· l 181,489.83 I -68,067.43 
---- ·-"~- - -iorAt I • ~ --;-;;,-422.40 

CONTRACT DATE: 

C<JWTR/.t.CTO~•s CERTIFICATION OF WO.ftK 
The undersigned Contractor certifies that to the best of Iha Contractor's knowledge, 
lnfo.111atk;n and belief the Work coven.h.l by this Application fQf Payment has been 
completed In accordance with the Contract Documents, that all amounts have been paid by 
the Contractor for Wor!c for \Wlich previous Certificate& for Payment were issued and 
payment.; received from the Owner, and that current payment shown herein ls now due. 

✓~ ... ;::::;,,,_, 7~·28-2021 
CONTRACTOR:_____ ,.. ' ..,,, Daw .. ·_--------

Slate of: County of: 

Subscribed. arrd ~/lf:f )e me this J'o d!VY of 

NotaryP11bllc: • • e • ~;;_,,~ ------------------

Ju/;, )tii ( 

My Comrni$$ion EJCplres: / .J. ~ 1 · J J.- KATHRYN SHIMASAKI 
Notary Pub!lc, State of Florida 

A( !CHt, <.:.:'!'S Ct:.RT:f'fCATE FCJR ?!\. '!'r • NT My Comm. Expires 17.mS/'.Wd 
1;1 air.;.e.:;rd..:11c.; with the Conttaet Clocurn~ibl., t:ffil<i on on-site obse,,k'i.3\ftf.~rt~{JG2tr1!f~2 
co:t1prlt.!ng tha uboVG &l}p\lcat!on, tho /. rehltect certifies to th$ best of Iha Architect's 
1mowv.dge. !r;formiltion ao.d b8l1Gf the WOfk !'las progmsed as Indicated, the quality of 
1M Work i.; !;, acoordanc.:e with the Contrec:t Ooeurnents, ane! li'te Contractor I& entitled to 
payment of the AMOUNT CERTIFIED. 

h,r, </1J '1'L N~UN1' CERTIFIED .......................................................... ~ l f ( \ • 
(Attech rtxpla11ation if a:mount oerih?ed ul/Ters from amount applied for), Jnif.iaJ all figures 
.:;,r. f/;/s Appiit;;,.iJ.;,i; o:N;i 1in /Ir;, Cr.ntlnuetlon Sheet that ere chnnged fo conform with 
the "i, IOUnt oortll111d. ' 

ARCtt!,g,1r1. (.rr.· '~.(~~'; •.•. 
11 

(7:'J. i.-- ?fq{Jf ay:_ ~--2 '" • ·\../~_,, _____ oate:2J~ 
I • - " ~ 

i'hli: Certificate la non negotiable. The AMOUNT CERTIFIED ls payable only to the 
Contractor named her&in. Issuance, payment end acceptance of payment are without 
prejudice to any rights of lhe Owner or Contractor on this Conlfact. 



PROGRESS l31LUNG 

Schedule of Wor1< Completed 

tli,~ri+rtJOn of Wurk &ch«dufed Chang~ Contfact Prtvittos Cun-ant Comp. Stored Mat. Total Comp. % eatan-ce Retained 
Project Management 70,000.00 235.06 70,235.06 '1'0,795.35 -560.29 70,235.06 100.00 7.023.51 
Performance B~nd 18,662--47 1.064.72 19,727.19 11:l,721.19 19,727.19 100.00 1,972.72 
Si'nalf Tools 350.00 350.00 350.00 350.00 100.00 35.00 
Procore Managl'i!Tleflt Software 2,100.00 2,100,00 2,100.00 2. 100.00 100.00 210.00 
Sutldcrs Risk Insurance 6,311,00 6,311.00 e,:m.oo 6,311.00 100.00 631.10 
Uability lnsuranc~ 13,118.87 987.84 9,146.71 8,662.79 483.92 9,146.71 100.00 914.67 
MaU!ng/Shipp!ng 48.00 48.00 48.00 48.00 100.00 4.80 
Blueprinting 640.00 640,00 840.00 640.00 100.00 64.00 
Safety 1,000.00 204.65 1,204.65 1,204.65 1,204.65 100.00 120.47 
Te111porary Barrfcade& 2,000.00 -74.55 1,925.45 1,925.45 1,925.45 100.00 192.55 
Temporary Job!lite Toilet 1,320.00 611.57 1,99'i.57 1,911.02 74.55 1,091.57 100.00 199.16. 
Suomittals 500.00 1.82 501,82 500.00 1-.82 501.82 100.00 50.18 
Permits 4,601.00 452,57 5,053,57 4,134.53 819.04 5,053.57 100.00 505.36 
Survoylng ti Layout 18,188.00 i,066.00 19,254.00 '19,254.00 19,254.00 100.00 '1,925.40 
1en1p Electric '1,000.00 •61ij.04 iM.96 'i,000,00 ·619.04 180.96 100.00 18.10 
femp Vt:.~ter 31202.00 29,247, 11 ~;a,449.11 l2,449.11 32,449.11 100.00 3.244.91 
Wafar Trfiiter /:'IOO.uC •-656.29 ~33,"i1 133.71 133.11 100.00 1:t3'f 
Field Office & Shed 2,200.00 2,20(L00 2,200.00 2,200.00 i00.00 220.00 
Equipment Rentai 3,uOo.00 666.29 3,&ee.ao 3,666.29 3,6:66.29 100,00 366.63 
Project Sign 150.00 750.00 750,00 750.00 100.00 75.00 
ici::t..Nntet '.n-0.00 720.00 720,00 720.00 100.00 72.00 
Tert,p Locks 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 100.00 15.00 
Daily Cleaning 2AC0.00 /{10,20 j, ,i;io,20 3,190.20 3, 190.20 100.00 3'!9.02 
Dumpster a.000,00 -1,423.55 4,576.45 4,576.45 4,576.45 100.00 451.G5 
!!itiid Otilce SUPplh:1s 400.00 -140.-17 2.:;,9_53 333.35 -73.02 259.53 10().00 25,95 
Closeout docurnento 400.00 400.00 400.tJO 400.0Q 100.00 40.00 
Pu,icli Out ·1.ooa.00 1'3,82 1,073.82 '1,000.00 nL82 1,073.82 rno.oo 107.38 
f'in.;f Cioan l,000.00 7rnJ,00 3,700.00 3,700.00 3,700.00 100.00 370.00 
Photographs $00.00 500.00 500.iJO 500.00 100.00 50.00 
CM Site Work 86;()27.00 o6,027.00 65,580.50 65,580,60 99.32 446.40 6,558.06 
Misc. £~tework & Mulch a,:::so.oo -3.(}57.77 5,192.23 4,863$2 4,863.52 93.87 328.71 486.35 
3lt.; Gmding Allt,Wi.mle 1.DClCLOO c775.00 1,225.00 1,055.90 1,055.90 $6.20 169.10 105.59 
$sie,J:va Cleilth1G @ 8E;~f Gan:; 10,u~S.OO :s,O'lS.00 14,000.00 1-1,0(•0.00 14,000.CO 100.0() i ,400.C'J 

Pru,"' ? 



PROGRESS BILLING 

Schedul~ of Worn Completed 

U..i.t~.l~on of W.;,k t.eh:.i.fuled Changt1b Contract PrsviotM. Current Comp. Stored Mat. Total Camp. % 8alan,ee R&tainNf 
Co11crete Sidewalks 20,795.00 20,795.00 20,357.60 20,357.60 97.90 437.40 2,035.76 
Concrete Pavers at Entry 30.250.00 4,179.82 26,070.18 25.900.00 25,900.00 99.35 170.18 2,590.00 
Flagstone Pavers 25,500.00 -1,537.23 23,962.77 21,600.00 21,600.00 90.14 2,362.77 2,160.00 
Site Drainage 22,275.00 79.82 22,354.82 2.2,354.82 22,354.82 100.00 2,235.48 
Phasa 2 Chain Unk Fencing 26.895.00 26,895.00 25,500.00 25,500.00 94.81 1,395.00 2,550.00 
Neighborhood Entry Gate Syste 30,250.00 10,199.n 41,049.72 41,049.72 41,049.72 mo.co 4,104.97 
Dog Park. Fencing 18,250.00 18,657.15 36,907.15 36;907.15 36,907.15 100.00 3,690.72 
Wood Fencing at Entry 6;255.00 -5,240.00 1,015.00 1,,015.00 1,015.00 100.00 101.50 
Aluminum Fencing 104,323,27 -20,961.31 83,361.95 83,361.96 83,361.96 100.00 8,336.20 
Entry Gate Frame & Trim 16,550.00 -8:84.25 15,665.75 14,556.30 14.556.30 92.92 1,109.45 1,455.63 
Landscaping 370,33(1.00 71,358.75 441,688.75 441,688.75 441,688.75 100.00 44, 168,88 
Irrigation 209,141.00 -30,592.91 178,548.09 176,843.00 176,843.00 99.05 1,705.09 17,684.30 
Concre~ Foundations 39,965.00 39,965.00 35,665.00 3,228.00 38,893.00 97.32 1,072.00 3,889.30 
Site Concrete 4,290.00 414.81 4,704.81 4,290.00 4,290.00 91.18 414.8"i 429.00 
Conc;ote Slabs on Site 3,500.00 3,500.00 3,431,,17 3,431.17 98 .. 03 68.83 343.12 
CMLW~4asonry 30,255.00 30,255.00 30,255.00 !ID,255.00 100.00 3,025.50 
Slorte Vcne~r 70,896.00 •1tJ.(1Qfi.t'•) 51,800.00 51,800.00 51,llOO,CO 10G.00 5,180.00 
PreCast Stone 3i,850.00 31,650.00 30,393.30 30,393.30 95.43 1,456.70 3,039.33 
Svuctvral Steel 26,800.00 t.i,200.00 31,000.00 31,000.00 31,000.00 100,00 3,i00.00 
f,lisc. Steal and FaEteners 3,B;i0.00 7tntoo 4,538.00 3,ct350.00 3,850.00 83.0"1 '188.00 365.00 
R<r..igh Fta,\llng 3"/,400.00 2,113.00 39,513.00 39,513.00 39,513 . .00 '100.00 3,951.30 
Mir,,c.. :Lumber.& Trim .Paol<age 2,300;00 2,466.15 4,766,75 4,766.75 4,766.75 '\00.DO 476,.68 

Heavy Timbers & Brackets 57,3!;0.00 1,803.29 59,153.29 59,153.29 59,153.29 100.00 5,915.33 
Metal Roofing 14,4!'.0.00 3S9.00 14,849.DO 14,849.00 14,849.oo rno.oo 1,484.90 
,Gut(ara 4,2.Ml.OO 4,250.00 3,508.62 3,,508.82 82:56 741.38 350.86 

S(!alants and Caulks 1,000.00 ,,GOO.DO 1,200.00 336.CO 1.536.00 98.00 64.00 153..60 

Vi.Ni ldo:.vs (-},250.00 0,;260,CO lt86C.30 8,'860.30 95.79 31',\'.1.70 t:1813.03 
Pointing 23,460.00 ·915.00 22,545.00 22,545.00 22.545.00 t00.00 2,254.50 
Theme Painting 21,045.00 i,987.~ 23,932.00 23,932.00 23,932.00 100.00 2,393.20 
Mail Klosl, and Mailbox Allowanc 2.00 24,501.39 ,24,503.3¼cl 12,250.70 12,2soJ.m 24,,501.39 99.99 2,.00 2,450.14 

Street Signs (by others) 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 mo.oo 0.10 
\~l,'"':tt:-~;.:ft')f\:!J Sl: ... ~~GJ '1,t'.50.fiO -'."1:\.72 1.,773.iti 1,739.'.'5 t,739.25 ~5013 34.03 H3.93 
Mom;:neflt Sign L.ogofletters H.450.00 14.50 8,4G<'i.eO 8,464.50 MC4.50 100.00 84G.45 

P::1:r,,-• ~ 



PROGRESS BILLING 

Schedule of Wort< Comple~ 

OHCf!l}tton of Wot~~ Sct1a<tl.sfed C(!.;,-,{.iet Cah::;g.t Pnrvloua Current Comp. Stored Met. Total Comp, % aa,~nce ~'-'talood 
Floor Logo Allowanoo 500.00 62,22. 562.22 562.22 562.22 100.00 56.22 
Fumlshings 10,410.00 -3,512.26 8,897.74 6,897.74 6,897.74 100.00 689.77 
FF&E @ Oog; Pam. 28,500.00 1,668.1S 30,168.19 30,168.19 30,168.19 100.00 3,016.82 
Decorative Pond Fountain 10,000.00 675.00 10,675.00 10,675.00 10,675.00 100.00 1,067.50 
Maif Kiosk 11,179.00 11,179.00 6,179.00 5,000.00 11,179.00 100.00 1,117.90 
Site !:\luml>ing 10,250.00 -9,716.79 8,533.21 6,53~t21 e,sa2.21 100.00 8.53,32 
Site E:1ectrica! 83,614.00 21,888.00 105,502.00 105,502.00 105,502.00 100.00 10,550.20 
Gate Access System 6,000,00 ~3,481.95 2,516.05 2,518.05 2,518.05 100.00 251.81 
Contractor Contingency 25,000.00 25,000.00 25,000.00 
CM Fee 115,000.00 5,40_1.07 120.401,07 rn.;,475.00 1,385.00 117,660.00 97.89 2,541.07 11,786.00 ----

r~t..1$.: 1.~r:.~1:..t!1 111, n.~o 1,$30,)4J.01 1,&68,051.70 22, 1M:.(i$: ~.&90,25'1.3$ 9't,H 40,6966 .. 189,025.13 

J:).ia,op• ,;,t,n/d 



R2QUbiflO.N NO. 117 

SIX MILE CREEK COl\'ll\fiJNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTJ:UCI' 
(ST. JO.HNS COUNTY, FLO[U:DA) 

$7}}20,.0GO 
CAPITAL I~, .Pi{OV:El\1ENT 

AND REFUNlD~NG REVENUE ~JONDS, 
SEJJES2020 

(ASSESSi'/iEN':f A .. 1JJS,\ 2~ p~:AS:li: 3A) 
The undersigned, a Responsible Offfoer o:f Six Mifo Creek Community Development 

District (the "District") hereby submits the following requisition for disbursement under and 
pursuant to the tenns of the Master Trust lnden1ure from the District to U. S. B~cik National 
Association, as austee (the "Trustee"), dated 0s of Ju1y 1, 2007, as supplemented by a Seventh 
Supp\emental Trust Indenture, dated as of Sune l, 2020 (collectively, the "Indenture"; all 
capitalized terms used herein shall have the mt:::mbg ascribed to such term in the lndent1re): 

(A) 

(B) 

Requisition Number: U 7 

Name arid address of Payee: ETM 
First C:::bnr:, 
..A..:BA :<.!>atb,g #0531003U! 
Jacksonvm:P., Ji'L 
Account #9{!61592290 - England, Thims .?'.'.;. 1d!ler, Inc. 

(C) Amount Payable: $ 9):.4.88 

(D) Purpose fi)r ~rhich paid or inc1.mrec (refer also ·:o specific contract if amount is due and 
payable pursuant to a contract invoivirig progress payments, or, state Ccst of Issuance, if 
applicable): .Master Site Ph.mr1h1g ('l,"/1t~#51) lnvoici 19.SSM (J!m,e 2021) 

(E) Fund or Account from ivhich disourse::,-ent m oe made: 

Phase 3A Acqui.s:tion and C0:::1strnct10n Account 

The undersigned hereby certifies that: 

1. obligations in the stated arnoun"t set frnth above have been incurred by the District, 

2. each disbursement set forth gt,ove i:; 1'1. rcoper charge against ti'. e Pha::,e 3A 
Acquisition and Construct:oL A::~ou:1t; 

3. each disbursement set frnth above wz,s incun.-ed in connection wit;:, th~ acquisition 
and/or construction of the Pr0ject; 

4. each disbursement represents c Co:.E of c:he Project which has not previously been 
paid. 



The undersigned hereby further certifles that ttere has not been filed with or served upon 
the District notice of any lien, right to lien, or attachment upon, or claim affecting the right to 
receive payment of: any of the moneys payable to the, Payee set forth above, \Vhich has not been 
released or will not be released simultaneously wifr~ the payment hereof. 

The undersigned hereby further certifies thst sud1 requisition contains no item representing 
payment on account of any retained percent&.ge which the District is at the date of such certificate 
entitled to retain. 

Attached hereto are originals of the invoice(s) from the vendor of the property acquired or 
the services rendered with respect to which disburse:nent is hereby requested. 

SL'{ Mll,E CREKK COM1V1UNITY 
DE'VELOP:WlENT DISTRICT 

CONSULTING ENGiNLER'S APPROVAL 

The undersigned Consulting Engineer hereby certifies that this cfo,burser.·ient is f._1r a Cost of the 
Project and is consistent with: (i) the appEcabI~ acquisition or construction contract; (ii) the phms 
and specifications for the portion of the Project with respe,:;t to ·whict such disbmse~nent is being 
made; and (iii) the report of the Consulti!1g Er;gineer, as suet :::-epo~ shaU have i:x:e,1. :imended or 
modified on the dat.e hereof. 

Dated: 



Six Mile Creek COD 
C/0 GMS, LLC 
1408 Hamlin Ave. Unite E 
St. Cloud, FL 34771 

Project 20291.00000 Msster _ - FL::r ,r,,,;£, 

frgf!:5;!!0,!I~ ~!:!'i!:.e!. r!:~,~~!'~~ ~r.:;1!.:~,~Jgr;!! ~11}.,S£:. 
Task 01 Master Site P!a,,ning 
Professional Personnel 

Principal - Vice President 
Wild, Scott 

Sr. Graphics Technician 
Merrell, Scott 

Engineering/Landscape Designer 

6/12/2021 

7/312021 

Simonelli, Dino 6/12/2021 

Total Billings 
Budget 
Remaining 

Totals 
Total labor 

Currer,t 
984.50 

2.0D 

2.00 

1 .fiO 
5.50 

245.00 

149.0Q 

Prior 

9,197.00 

July 7, 2021 
Project No: 

Amount 

490.00 

298.00 

196.50 
984.50 

To-Data 
1G,18'i.50 
25,000.00 
14,818.50 

Total this iask 

2:0291.00000 
(;1~!85-86 

984.50 

$984.50 

-------------------------------------------------· Task XP Expenses 
Expenses 

Reproductions 
Tofai Expenses 

Oustanding Invoices 

'lumber 
0198220 
Total 

Date 
6/312021 

82Jance 
2,096.12 
2,0tl6.12 

1.15 times 

1:r:cm£H-S• PLP.~:r.s O s:,;;·NEvo:1~, ;~is• D}JrJS:t.?Et.e:;)-ltTP::is 
t4ii'-5Ud£'!.~),:'h,:~•h,Z!-i.-~ca··.~ :=k1~321SS•!:!004-.f42-0a?C•<1.:!:f~M5 

CA{'-':~iWJ.¼ LG«.,\<315 

.33 
.38 

$.38 

$984.88 



SIX l';:lLE CREEK COMr.-:!UNTfY DEVELOPl\lENT DISTRICT 
(ST .. JOHNS COUNTY, FLORIDA) 

$7,020,ii00 
CAPITAL IlvIPRDVEl'vlENT 

AND REFUNDING REVENUE 1JONDS, 
SE'.(UES 2020 

(ASSESSl\s.ENT Ar<EA 21 PHASE 3A) 
The undersigned, a Responsible Officer of Six. Mili! C,-eek Community D•~velopment 

District (the "District") hereby submits th(~ Zotlowing requisition for disburseme:r,J under and 
pursuant to the terms of the Master Trust Indenture from the District to U. S, Bank National 
Association, as trustee (the '"Trustee"), dated as of July 1, 2007, es supplemenreo by a Seventh 
Supplemental Trust Indenture, dated as of :mnt 1, 2020 (coHectively, the "Indenture"; an 
capitalized terms used herein shall have the m0aning ascribed to such term in the Indenture): 

(A) Requisition Number: 116 

(B) Name and address of Payee: ETM 
Ffrst Citi.•,0.;'.~ 
ADA Rrmtiiig #053lfrJ300 
Jackscnvme, FL 
Account #90£1592290 - England, Thims .& :.mfor, Inc. 

(C) Amount Payable: $ 31564.04 

(D) Purpose for which paid or incurred (refer also to specific contract if amount is due and 
payable pursuant to a contract involving progress payments, or, state Cost of Issuance, if 
applicable): East Parcel Phase i A:r:.ernittes anc At"('H.ity Cet.ttf:r - C,r,:wtr.:ction 
.Documents Invoice 198669 (WA#41) (Jt.:.e 2021) 

(E) Fund or Account from which disbursemen: t) be m::tde: 

Phase 3A Acquisition and Construction Account 

The undersigned hereby certifies that: 

1. obligations in the stated amount set '.'.'orth above have been incurred !:,y the District, 

2. each disbursement set forth above is a proper ;;harge against tte Phase 3A 
Acquisition and Construct:on ,J:.::::u:.:.11t; 

3. each disbursement set forth Itbove; was incurred in connection with tLe acqdsition 
and/or construction of the Project; 

4. each disbursement represents a Cost of the Project which has not previously been 
paid. 



The undersigned hereby further c~rtifies that there has not been filed ·with or served upon 
the District notice of any lien, right to lien, or attachment upon, or claim affectil:ig the right to 
receive payment of, any of the moneys pay2h1e to the Payee set forth above, which has not been 
released or will not he released simultaneoui:-ii_y with the payrnent hernof. 

The undersigned hereby further certifies that such requishion conta.ins no it~m representing 
payment on account of any retained percentage which the District is at the date of such certificate 
entitled to retain. 

Attached hereto are originals of the invoice(s) from the vendor of the property acquired or 
the services rendered with respect to which disbursement is hereby requested. 

SIX MILE CREEK COMNIUNITY 
DE'FELOPMENT DISTRICT 

,,.,¥~··,,,,. .,,~· 

• ~,e:::~ '::r _Bv: /~,,--~! ,-~ .,,,...;:..-,~ ._._ .J < ~ ~-;;,•. ' - ~ 

Gregg Kem 
Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 

CONSULTING ENGINE'E!:;'s APP~OVAL 

The undersigned Consulting Engineer hereby certifies that this disbursement is a Cost of the 
Project and is consistent with: (i) the applicabie acquisition or construction contra.ct; (ii) the plans 
and specifications for the portion of the Project with respect to which such disbursement is being 
made; and (iii) the report of the Consulting Engine~r, as such report shall have bcz:n. amended or 
modified on the date hereof. 

\ \ 

Dated: ~; 1 I \7....-; 
--..----'-l -----

·---7 
Co~sulting Engineer 



Six Mile Creek CDD 
C/OGMS, LLC 
1408 Hamlin Ave. Unite E 
St. Cloud, FL 34771 

July 9, 2021 
Project No: 19373.00000 

J:98669 

Project 19373.00DOO East Parcei 1 ,:\me.~mes enc Amenit~l Center-Construction 
Documents (VV A!:-'f 1} 

Professional Services r,md 1~sd thmugh_June 3-0, W?..t - --- -----------------------------------------· 
Task Lump Sum 

Task 

1.Construction Plan Prep-Common Area Ame 
2.Construction Plan Prep-Amenity Center 
3.Landscape Design(Code Design)-Amenity 
4.SJC Non-DRC P!an Appmva! 
5.SJC Plan and SJCUD Approva! 
6.FDEP Water and Se·1Net Permits-Amenity C 
7.SJRWMD Environmental Resourre Permit-
A 

Total Fee 

Task XP Expanses 
Expenses 

Reproductions 
Total Expenses 

Ccz..1tr.:s1ct 
Amoc,nt 

16,SOO.CD 
38,700.00 
4,800.00 
4,500.00 
&,:::ioo.oo 
2,500.00 
5,000.00 

79~2:0C.DG 

Pen;en.t E11rru,d 
Comolete To Date 

100.00 16,800.00 
98.00 37,926.00 

0.00 0.0.J 
100.00 4,500.00 
30.00 2;400.00 

0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 

61,626.GO 

Tofai this Task 

1.15 times 

Total this Task 

Previously Current 
i.rn!ed Eilled 

16,cQO.OO 0.00 
36,765.00 1,161.00 

0.00 0.00 
4,500.00 0.00 

0.00 2,400.00 
0.00 0.00 
a.co 0.00 

5g~c,s:1~00 3,561.00 

3,561.00 

$3,561.00 

2.64 
2.64 3.04 

$3.04 

frr✓cice fo,tal this ?er'iod $3,564.04 
- ·-=.'i.--

rnrt.,'f.tnS• i,'~>.M·.1?.1S~&.:'':.Y0~S • CiS•L~·!!lSCAP:E: 6:,F,C:~fif.,~iS 
1•477SGid:?1.IWJ,~·he IW.!d'~ ,;hMrf-<_,?-, Fk.tG:.:~•id004-W-s9},~!ax604·,C,4,Y.ASS 

Ct. ; )'.J:t~~ LC-co:c:w; 



REQUISITION NO. 45 
(2017 NW PAl<CEL SUBACCOUNT) 

SIX MILE CREJi:K CO.lviMUNll'Y DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
(ST. JOHNS COUNTY, FLO:!lIDA) 

$10,620,000 
Capital Improvement Reve1rne Ronds 

Series 2017A (Assebmout Area 2, Phase 2) 
The undersigned, a Responsible Officer of Six Mile Creek Community Development 

District (the "District") hereby submits the following requisition for disbursement under and 
pursuant to the terms of the Master Trust Indenture from the District to U. S. Bank National 
Association, as trustee (the "Trustee"), dated as of July l, 2007, as supplemented by a Fifth 
Supplemental Trust Indenture, dated as of December l, 2017 and a Sixth Supplemental Trust 
Indenture, dated as of December 1, 2017 (collectively, the "Indenture"), (al1 capitalized terms used 
herein shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the Indenture): 

(A) Requisition Number: 45 

(B) Name of Payee: ETM 
}~irst Citizens 
ABA lfouting #053Ur03tJ 
Jacksonvme, FL 
Account #9061592290 - England, Thims [,2 :o1Hler, lnc. 

(C) Amount Payable: Total: $ 4,342.43 

(D) Purpose for which paid or incurred (refer also to specific contract if amount 
is due and payable pursuant to a contract involving progress payments, or, 
state Costs of Issuance, if appiicable ): Phase 6 CEI Services (:N A#43) 
Invoice 198670 (.June 2021) 

(E) Fund or Account from which disbursement to be made: 

NW Parcel Subaccount of the 2017 A Acquisition and 
Construction Account 

The undersigned hereby certifies that: 

1. obligations in the stated amount set forth above have been incurred by the District, 

2. each disbursement set forth above is a proper charge against the NW Parcel 
Subaccount of the 2017 A Acquisition and Construction Account; 

3. each disbursement set forth above was incurred in connection with the acquisition 
and/or construction of the Pmject; 

F-1 
43613352;1 
43613352;1 



4. each disbursement represents a Cost of the !=1roject which has not pn:viously been 
paid. 

The undersigned hereby further certifies that there has not been filed with or served upon 
the District notice of any lien, right to lien, or attachment upon, or claim affecting the right to 
receive payment of, any of the moneys payable to the Payee set forth above, which has not been 
released or will not be released simultaneously with the payment hereof. 

The undersigned hereby further certifies that such requisition contains no item representing 
payment on account of any retained percentage which the District is at the date of such certificate 
entitled to retain. 

Attached hereto are originals of the ;nvoice(s) from the vendor of the property acquired or 
the services rendered with respect to which disbursement is hereby requested. 

SIX I11IILE CREEK COlV1MUNITY 
DEVELOP1\1ENT DISTRICT 

. .,✓.,.,,::::::-~ ..,..,,,f;.. ',;~ .. 
, ~ ~,;-,Y-

~
' • ~ 

B .. • -.... :....-::.~ ...... --- 'l •.. y. ~· • ~~ ~-~-=··-,,__· -----
Gregg Kem 
Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 

CONSULTING ENGINEER'S APPROVAL 

The undersigned Consulting Engineer hereby certifies that tf.iis disbursement is for a Cost of the 
Project and is consistent with: (i) the applicable acquisition or construction contract; (ii) the plans 
and specifications for the portion of the Project with respect to which such disbursement is being 
made; and (iii) the report of the Consulting Engineer, as such report shall have been amended or 
modified on the date hereof. 

The undersigned Consulting Engineer hereby certifies that this disbursement is for a Cost of the 
Project (i) specifically related to the development of the NW Parcel, and ·(ii) for roadways, water, 
sewer, or stormwater improvements. [and that, upon such disbursement, the po1tion of the 2017 
Project specifically related to the development of the NW Parcel has been completed] [2017 
Project has been completed]. 

43613352;1 
43613352;1 

Consulting Engineer 

F-2 



Six Mile Creek CDD 
C/O GMS, LLC 
1408 Hamlin Ave. Unite E 
St. Cloud, FL 34771 

Project 20008.00000 Phase 6 CEl Se;-vices {WA#43) 
ProfessiorJalServices reno:~i-ed thr91_:£!'1 June 30. 20'ZJ. 

July 12, 2021 
Project No: 
lnvoice Ne: 

20008.00000 
0198670 

- - - - - - - - - -.,. - - - - ..,_ ... , ... ..,_.. - - - - - "'°' ... - - - - - ,.._ - - - - - - - - - - - - - I 

Task 01 

Total Billings 
Contract Limit 
Remaining 

Task 02 
Professional Personnel 

Project Manager 
Brecht, John 
Brecht, John 

Totals 
Total LFbor 

Total Billings 
Contract Limit 
Remaining 

Task 03 

Total Billings 
Contract Limit 
Remaining 

CE! Services 
Current 

0.00 

Prior 
37,640.50 

To-Date 
37,640.50 
37,810.00 

169.50 

Progress Meetings 

6/5/2021 
7/3/2021 

Hours 

1.00 
.75 

1.75 

315.0'.) 

Owner Requested Plan Revisions 
Current 

0.00 

'rota! this Ta~k 

Rate 

180.00 
180.00 

Prior 
5,424.50 

Amount 

180.00 
135.00 
315.00 

·ro-Dato 

5,739.50 
8,790.00 
3,050.50 

Total this Ta~k 

Prior 
9,638.50 

To-Date 
9,638.50 

10,000.00 
361.50 

0.00 

315.00 

$315.00 

0.00 

-------------------------------------------------· Task 
Expenses 

Mileage 

04 

Delivery / Messenger Svc 

Reimbursable Expenses 

(lf":itYJ:.tRS•?LJ..~~ifrS4 WrlV£Y(.)R.'1•GS•lfd\9'.t".-,.pfAi!c;il!~lS 
~m0a&~i°t3'?a~•.ha.t- '~ F"~SZ:Se.•1!!'1»,842:-ft~•t»:~~ 

CA<.a!JX:sa.! !.C❖lXi316 

14.00 
22.37 



Other Taxes & Licenses 364.00 
Total Expenses 1.15 times 400.37 

Tota! this Task 

Task 05 Plat Coordination 
Professional Personnel 

Engineer 
George, Katie 
George, Katie 

Project Manager 
Brecht, John 
Brecht, John 

Assistant Project Manager 
Mil!er, Emily 

Sr. Inspector 
Brooks, Jeffrey 
Donchez, James 
Donchez, James 

Administrative Support 
George, Katie 
Paul, Jessica 

Totals 
Total Labor 

Total Billings 
Contract Limit 
Remaining 

Outstanding Invoices 
Number 
0198318 
Total 

!·fours R~te Amount 

6/19/2021 2.25 154.00 346.50 
6/26/2021 4.00 154.00 616,00 

6/19/2021 3.25 180.00 585.00 
6/26/2021 2.00 180.00 360.00 

6/5/2021 1.75 146.00 255.50 

6/26/2021 3.00 148.00 444.00 
6/12/2021 .50 148 .. 00 74.0Cl 
6/19/2021 1.00 148.00 148.00 

6/12/2021 5.00 82.00 410.00 
6/19/2021 4.00 82.00 328.00 

26.75 3,567.00 

Current Prior To-Oat) 

3,567.00 11,104.00 14,671.00 
15,000.00 

329.00 

Total this Task 

Invoice Total this Period 

Date 511iance 
617/2021 6,348.49 

6,348.49 

England· Thitn!i & ffiilcr,lnc. 
(OO;s'fffiS• SW!'iE'!S. S{,'i1'E'IORS. mS•lAllDSCA>'t ARCflilfGJS 

iiTT5!1ASl."",ft<&.ci•.-c "F-,:258•!i;-,-•ra,-JMB, 

Gfl,{'~:£4 lC·OOOQ:316 

460.43 

$4e0.43 

3,567.00 

$3,567.00 

$41342.43 

Page2 



Six Mile Creek CDD 
C/O GMS, LLC 
1408 Hamlin Ave. Unite E 
St. Cloud, FL 34771 

Project 20276.00000 Trailmark Phase 10 (WA#47), 
Professional Services rendered through June 30. 2021 

July 9, 2021 
Project No: 
Invoice No: 

20276.00000 
0198672 

-------------------------------------------------· Task 01 Site Plan Revisions 
Professional Personnel 

Hours Rate Amount 
Principal - Vice President 

Wild, Scott 6/19/2021 2.00 245.00 490.00 
Wild, Scott 6/26/2021 2.00 245.00 490.00 
Wild, Scott 7/3/2021 2.00 245.00 490.00 

Project Manager 
Brecht, John 6/19/2021 1.00 180.00 180.00 
Brecht, John 6/26/2021 .50 180.00 90.00 
Brecht, John 7/3/2021 .50 180.00 90.00 

Totals 8.00 1,830.00 
Total Labor 1,830.00 

Current Prior To-Date 
Labor 1,830.00 1,595.00 3,425.00 

Contract Limit 4,500.00 
Remaining 1,075.00 

Total this Task $1,830.00 

-----------~-------------------------------------· Task 01.1 Lump Sum (Phases 02-08) 

Contract Percent 
Task Amount Complete 

2.Master Development Plan (MOP) Modifica 7,500.00 0.00 
3.Construction Plan Prep (Collector Road 8,000.00 0.00 
4.Construction Plan Preparation 37,000.00 20.00 
5.Landscape Design (Code Design) 4,900.00 0.00 
6.SJC and SJCUD Plan Approval , 12,500.00 0.00 
7.FDEP Water and Sewer Permits 5,000.00 0.00 
8.SJRWMD Environmental Resource Permit ·14,400.00 0.00 

Total Fee 89,300.00 

Total Fee 

en9land· Thim:»&ffiillczr,lnc. 
ENGINEERS• PlAN?IIERS • ~URVE'!'ORS • GIS • LANDSCAPE A.RCHffEGTS 

14775 Otd St August:1e Read• Jatk~n,.,:~, f:mirla 32256, tel 904-642-09S) • fa:i. OC4-64e-94S5 

CA-00t.i025e4 LC-0000316 

Earned Previously Current 
Billed To Date Billed 

0.00 0,00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

7,400.00 0.00 7,400.00 
0.00 0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

7,400.00 0,00 7,400.00 

7,400.00 



Task XP 

Outstanding Invoices 
Number 
0198330 
Total 

Total this Task $7,400.00 

Expenses 
Total this Task 0.00 

Invoice Total this Period $9,230.00 ========= 

Date 
617/2021 

Balance 
1,542.00 
1,542.00 

England· Thim) & mmar, Inc. 
ENGiNE£HS • Pl.Al 'IE!IS • SJAVEYDRS• GIS • LANDSCAPE .•RCHECTS 

1477SOld Slhig~,·~e Road •Jack:.'°'r:',:J:e_, ~ida 32258• iel 9CH42-SOOC •iax@4-64€-9485 

CA·OC-C-025-94 LC-0000316 

Page 2 



Six Mile Creek CDD 
C/O GMS, LLC 
1408 Hamlin Ave. Unite E 
St. Cloud, FL 34771 

July 9, 2021 
Project No: 
Invoice No: 

Project 20277.00000 Trailmark Phase 12 Construction Documents (WA#49) 

20277.00000 
0198673 

Professional Services rendered through June 30. 2021 . ----~----- ----------------------------------· Task 01 Site Plan Revisions 
Professional Personnel i'l2 

I-tours Rate Amount 
'.)()O \3\ • \D\ 

Principal - Vice President 
Wild, Scott 6/5/2021 2.00 245.00 490.00 
Wild, Scott 6/12/2021 1.00 245.00 245.00 

Engineering/Landscape Designer 
Simonelli, Dino 6/5/2021 i9.00 131.00 2,489.00 
Simonelli, Dino 6/12/2021 i2.50 131.00 1,637.50 

Totals 34.50 4,861.50 
Total Labor 4,861.50 

Current Prior To-Date 
Labor 4,861.50 0.00 4,861.50 

Contract Limit 7,500.00 
Remaining 2,638.50 

Total this Task $4,861.50 

Task 01.1 Lump Sum (02-08) 

Task 
Contract Percent 
Amount Complete 

Earned Previously 
to Date Billed 

2.Master Development Plan (MOP) Modifica 7,500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
3.Construction Plan Preparation 82,000.00 7.50 6,150.00 6,150.00 
4.Lift Station Design 15,200.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
5.Landscape Design (Code Design) 7,400.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
6.SJC & SJCUD Plan Approval i2,500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
7.FDEP Water & Sewer Permits 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
8.SJRWMD Environmental Resource Permit 19,200.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Total Fee 148,800.00 6,150.00 6,150.00 

Total Fee 

Total this Task 

England· Thim:,&mlllar,inc. 
ENGINEERS• PLAUEAS •SURVEYOR$• GIS • LIJ,DsCAPE ARCkITECTS 

14?75.0ldSLAugus"•,e?.oaci•JE.cks<Jn,,:,:,F[c;i:btnsa,ti;l904-642-a9SJ•1axOC'4-S46·9455 

C.G-C-C0025S4 lC-.J000316 

Current 
Billed 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

0.00 

0.00 



Task 
Expenses 

Reproductions 

XP Expenses 

Total Expenses 1.0 times 

Total this Task 

25.55 
25.55 25.55 

$25.55 

Invoice Total this Period $4,887.05 
=====-=== 

ENGINEERS• FLAt:_.iEAS • SiJAVEYORS • G!S • LANDSCAPE ARGl-'1TECTS 
14775 Od SL Augus,.;:e Road• vacksci!\~ 'ii:. RO!'id:t 32258 • tel 904·642-6900 • i:.x 004-646-9485 

CA·C®..'12584 LC-QCOOS"16 

Page2 



REQUISITION NO. 115 

SIX MILE C {EEK COMMUNITY 1)EVELOPI'.1ENT D!STiUCT 
(ST. JOHNS COUl'iTY, 1:-1,or1mA) 

$7,020,000 
CAPITAL I~:IPf OVEMENT 

AND REFUNDiKG R€VENlJE eONDS) 
SE1HES 2020 

{ASSESS.\:lENT AREA 2! PHASE 3A) 
The undersigned, a Responsible Officer of Six Mile Creek Community Development 

District (the "District") hereby submits the following requisition for disbursement under and 
pursuant to the tenns of the Master Trust Indenture from the District to U. S. Bank National 
Association, a..~ trustee (the "Trustee"), dated as of Juiy 1, 2007, as supplemented by a Seventh 
Supplemental Trust Indenture, dated 2.s of June 1, 2020 (collectively, the "Indenture"; all 
capitalized terms used herein shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the Indenture): 

(A) Requisition Number: 115 

(B) Name and address of Payee: ETM 
JFirst Citizens 
ASA Routing# ·53100300 
Jacksor.tviHe, FL 
Account #9061592291.l - E:ngland, Thi:us .~ ,.Jmer, hi,.;., 

(C) Amount Payable: $ 8,899.00 

(D) Purpose for which paid or incuffed (rder also to specific contract if ameunt is due and 
payable pursuant to a contract involving progress payments, or, state Cost of Issuance, if 
applicable): East Par~el Phasf; 1 A . .1enities aul Ai.ienity Center - Construction 
Documents Invoice 199160 (\VA.#4~.) {Ju'.'.y 2021) 

(E) Fund or Account from which disbursement to be made: 

Phase 3A Acquisition and Construction Account 

The undersigned hereby certifies that: 

1. obiigations in the stated amc,mt set forth above have been incur.rec: by foe District, 

2. each disbursement set fon:h a~JOY:: i~: a prcpi!r charge against th~ Phase 3A 
Acquisition and Construction Acc::.i..mt; 

3. each disbursement set forth above \Vas incurred in connection with the acquisition 
and/or construction of the Prqject; 

4. each disbursement represents a Cost of the Project vvhich hgs not previously been 
paid. 



The undersigned hereby further certifies t½at fa.~re has not been filed with or served upon 
the District notice of any lien, right to 1 icr1, or attachti1ent ..ipon, or claim affcclin.g the right to 
receive payment of, any of the moneys payable to the Payee set forth above, which has not been 
released or will not be released simultaneously with the payment hereof. 

The undersigned hereby further certifies that such requisition contains no item representing 
payment on account of any retained percentage which the District is at the date of such certificate 
entitled to retain. 

Attached hereto are originals of the :nvoice(s) from the vendor of the property acquired or 
the services rendered with respect to which disbursement is hereby requested. 

S!X l\,HLE C1{EEK COMMU1''1TY 
ZHLVELOPMEl~T DISTR!CT 

The undersigEed Coi:;sulting Engineer hereby certifies that this disbursement is fer a Cost of the 
Project and is cor,sistent with: (i) the applicable acquisition or construction contract; (ii) the plans 
and specifications fer the portion of the Project with respect to which such disburs.ement is being 
made; and (iii) the report of the Consulting Engineer, &s such report shall have been amended or 
modified on the date hereof. 

Dated: 

IC l. h • 0m1.Ltm.g .wngmeer 



Six Mile Creek COD 
C/0 GMS, LLC 

August9,2021 
Project Nn: 'i 9373.00000 

!}'99160 1408 Hamlin Ave. Unite E 
St. Cloud, FL 34771 

Project 19373.00DOO er - :, , p.,T,snity Center-Cocmtruction 
Documents, 

Professional &~ces rer.-t:: '•\'ed_throu:if-~ ..J.!J.bL:l1 ...... ~o;.:·.' -------------------------------------------------· 
Task Lurr:p Sum 

Task 

1.Construction Plan Prep--Comrr:on Area Ame 
2.Construction Plan Prep-Amenity Center 
3.Landscape Design(Code Design)-Amenity 
4.SJC Non-DRC Plan Approval 
5.SJC Plan and SJCUD Approval 
6.FDEP Water and Sewer Permits-Amenity C 
7.SJRWMD Environmental Resource Permit
A 

Total Fee 

Task XP Expenses 

Contrt:1.ct Percent 
Arr,ou::;t Complete 

iti,800.0() 
2.8,700.0Q 

l;.,2,QO.QiJ 

4,500.00 
8,000.00 
2,500.00 
5,000.00 

100.00 
1C0.00 
75.00 

100.00 
60.00 

0.00 
50.00 

Ea:m:;;;d Previously Current 
Billed To Date mtled 

'i6,8.00.00 
38,700.00 

3,225.00 
4,500.00 
4,800.00 

0.00 
2,500.00 

16,500.00 
37;326.00 

0.00 
4,600.00 
2,4Q0.00 

0.00 
0.00 

0.00 
774.00 

3,225.00 
0.00 

2,400.00 
0.00 

2,500.00 

70,525.00 81,fiW.CO 8,899.00 

8,899.00 

$8,SSi#.OO 

You.I this Task 0.00 

Outstanding Invoices 
Number 
0198669 
Total 

Date 
7/9{2021 

00\UEEM• PL/..Nl;::23 • S~1,Z~t.\'C.RS • 3iS~LPJ;:G".::t..AFl: AiiCl·ff!IGTS 
14i1SO<dStl!.'.(JJ~~ ih::i•.1d:f11. *., Fi~'.~'.:'>'.'?."6Ii4 ai ~.tJ,1~-~X:da-:fC~-S~ 

L4 ~--,/;.:~. :.)..C("®'lG 

58,899.00 



REQUISITION NO. 44 
(2017 N\V PARCEL SUBACCOlJNT) 

SIX MILE CREEK corvlMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTR\CT 
(ST. JOHNS COUNTY, FLORIDA) 

$10,620,000 
Capital Improvt:ment Revenue Bonds 

Series 2017 A (Assessment Area 2, Phase 2) 
The undersigned, a Responsible Officer of Six Mile Creek Community Development 

District (the "District") hereby submits the following requisition for disbursement under and 
pursuant to the terms of the Master Trust Indenture from the District to U. S. Bank National 
Association, as trustee (the "Trustee"), dated as of July l, 2007, as supplemented by a Fifth 
Supplemental Trust Indenture, dated as of December I, 2017 and a Sixth Supplemental Trust 
Indenture, dated as of December 1, 2017 (collectively, the "Indenture"), (all capitalized terms used 
herein shall have the meaning ascribed to such tem1 in the Indenture): 

(A) Requisition Number: 44 

(B) Name of Payee: ETM 
·First Citizens 
ABA Routing #0531003h0 
Jacksonvme, FL 

'.76{)•\)\ • \0 \ 

Account #9061592290 ~ England, Thims fl· ~:.1ilJer, Inc. 

(C) Amount Payable: Total: $1,835.80 

(D) Purpose for which paid or incurred (refer also to specific contract if amount 
.is due and payable pursuant to a contract involving progress payments, or, 
state Costs of Issuance, if applicable): Phase 6 CEI Services (WA#43) 
Invoice 199161 (,July 2021) 

(E) Fund or Account from which disbursement to be made: 

NW Parcel Subaccoutit of the 2017 A Acquisition and 
Construction Account 

The undersigned hereby certifies that: 

l. obligations in the stated amount set forth above have been incurred by the District, 

2. each disbursement set forth above is a proper charge against the NW Parcel 
Subaccount of the 2017A Acquisition and Construction Account; 

3. each disbursement set forth above was incurred in connection with the acquisition 
and/or construction of the Project; 

F-1 
43613352;1 
43613352;1 



4. each disbursement represents a Cost of the Project which has not previously been 
paid. 

The undersigned hereby further certifies that there has not been filed with or served upon 
the District notice of any lien, right to lien, or attachment upon, or claim affecting the right to 
receive payment of, any of the moneys payable to the Payee set forth above, which has not been 
released or will not be released simultaneously with the payment hereof. 

The undersigned hereby further certifies that such requisition contains no item representing 
payment on account of any retained percentage which the District is at the date of such certificate 
entitled to retain. 

Attached hereto are originals of the invoice(s) from the vendor of the property acquired or 
the services rendered with respect to which disbursement is hereby requested. 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

L ✓~~· 
By: £?-.aJ~ · --:-~:· ..?. it-

Gregg Kem 
Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 

CONSULTING ENGINEER'S APPROVAL 

The undersigned Consulting Engineer hereby certifies that this disbursement is for a Cost of the 
Project and is consistent with: (i) the applicable acquisition or construction contract; (ii) the plans 
and specifications for the portion of the Project with respect to which such disbursement is being 
made; and (iii) the report of the Consulting Engineer, as such report shall have been amended or 
modified on the date hereof. 

The undersigned Consulting Engineer hereby certifies that this disbursement is for a Cost of the 
Project (i) specifically related to the develop,1;.efft of the :N-Vi Pared, and (ii) for rca.-..~ ways, water, 
sewer, or stormwater improvements. [ and that, upon such disbursement, the portion of the 2017 
Project specifically related to the development of the NW Parcel has been cornp!eted] [2017 

Project has been completed]. Q ;, \ \ (\ 

Dated: 15/ l 4 j-1..1 
---,.,-~--------

43613352;1 
43613352;1 

F-2 

1 ~ ••~-. d\ " .\Jl\.f\) I...._,'~" ~ \ / " f" .:r--e. 

Consulting Engineer 



Six Mile Creek COD 
C/OGMS, LLC 
1408 Hamlin Ave. Unite E 
St. Cloud, FL 34771 

Project 20008.00000 F'hase 6 CEJ SB'V~C€S (W/1.#43) 

August 9, 2021 
Project No: 
Invoice Ne: 

20008.00000 
0199161 

Profession.l'!.LServices rendered throu)Jh July 31, 20:?.:t ------- -- -------- ---------------------------· 
Task 01 CEi Services 
Professional Personnel 

Sr. Inspector 
Donchez, James 

Totals 
T otE-1 Labor 

Total Billings 
Contract Limit 
Remaining 

Task 02 
Professional Personnel 

Principal - Vice President 
Wild, Scott 

Project Manager 
Brecht, John 
Brecht, John 

Totals 
Total Labor 

Total Billings 
Contract Limit 
Remaining 

7/24/2021 

Hours 

Current 
74.00 

.50 

.50 

Progress Meetings 

111ours 

7/17/2021 2.00 

7/17/2021 1.75 
7/24/2021 1.00 

4.75 

Current 
985,00 

Rate 

148.00 

Prior 

37,640.50 

Amount 

74.00 
74.00 

To-Date 

37,714.50 
37,810.00 

95.50 

Total this Task 

R,Jte Amount 

245.00 490.00 

180.00 315.00 
180.00 180.00 

985.00 

Prior To-Date 

5,739.50 6,724.50 
8,790.00 
2,065.50 

Tota! this Task 

74.00 

$74.00 

985.00 

$985.00 

-------------------------------------------------· Task 03 Owner Requested Plan Revisions 

ENGM.ERS. ;:!).~ .. -~. Sl.;M'tOOS• G!S•lAflOS"",,J',P.£ Q-C·mr..;rs 
I.WiO'.dSllJ;:_,~~•.f'~,fi:XW~•!efS..i(-SQ..f!S£'J~tu1C9'.14.f.4&.~ 

CA-4~584 L~3t6 



Professional Personnel 

Project Manager 
Brecht, John 
Brecht, John 

Totals 
Total Labor 

Total Billings 
Contract Limit 
Remaining 

Task 
Expenses 

04 

other Taxes & Licenses 

Hours 

7/10/2021 .50 
7/24/2021 1.50 

2.00 

Current 
360.00 

Reimbursable Expenses 

Rate Amount 

180.00 90.00 
180.00 270.00 

360.00 
360.00 

Prior To-Date 
9,638.50 9,998.50 

10,000.00 
1.50 

Total this Task $360.00 

172.00 
Total Expenses 1.15 times 172.CC· 197.80 

$197.80 

Task 05 
Professional Personnel 

Assistant Project Manager 
Miller, Emily 

Totals 
Total Labor 

Total Billings 
Contract Limit 
Remaining 

Outstanding Invoices 
Number 
0198318 
0198670 
Total 

Plat Coordination 

7/31/2021 

Hours 

Current 
219.00 

1.50 
1.50 

Total this Task 

Rate 

146.00 

Prior 
14,671.00 

Amount 

219.00 
219.00 

To-Date 
14,890.00 
15,000.00 

110.00 

Total this Task 

219.00 

$219.00 

Invoice Total this Period $1,835.80 ===--=======:::::::: 

Date 
6/7/2021 

7/12/2021 

Balance 
6,348.49 
4,342.43 

10,690.92 

england• Thim:, & ffiiBer,lnc. 
[lluHEEilS• PLANN[RS•~l-0?.e•il!S• w:r,sc/;l'l' ARCfITT'E<-:TS 

1-47750dStkg.J.,.."°\',e:~"Ja~'.?.r!!ill'h.:u'253•~004-Ml~•!ax~-s«• 

rJ-coooi,g.,,c.=15 

Page2 



Six Mile Creek CDD 
C/0 GMS, LLC 
1408 Hamlin Ave. Unite E 
St. Cloud, FL 34771 

Project 20276.00000 Trailmark Phase 10 (WA#47) 

August 9, 2021 
Project No: 
Invoice No: 

20276.00000 
0199170 

Professional Services rendered through July 31. 2021 ---------------------------~---------------------· Task 01 Site Plan Revisions 
Professional Personnel 

Project Manager 
Brecht, John 
Brecht, John 

Totals 
Total Labor 

Labor 

7/17/2021 
7/24/2021 

Hours 

1.50 
2.00 
3.50 

Current 
630.00 

Rate 

180.00 
180.00 

Prior 
3,425.00 

Amount 

270.00 
360.00 
630.00 

To-Date 
4,055.00 
4,500.00 

630.00 

Contract Limit 
Remaining 445.00 

Total this Task $630.00 

Task 01.1 Lump Sum (Phases 02-08) 

Contract Percent Earned Previously Current 
Task Amount Complete To Date Billed Billed 

2.Master Development Plan (MDP) Modifica 7,500.00 10.00 750:00 .0.00 750.00 
3.Construction Plan Prep (Collector Road 8,000.00 25.00 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 
4.Construction Plan Preparation 37,000.00 35.00 12,950.00 7,400.00 5,550.00 
5.Landscape Design (Code Design) 4,900.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
6.SJC and SJCUD Plan Approval 12,500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
7.FDEP Water and Sewer Permits 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
8.SJRWMD Environmental Resource Permit 14,400.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Total Fee 89,300.00 15,700.00 7,400.00 8,300.00 

Total Fee 8,300.00 

total this Task $8,300.00 

-----------------~-------------------------------· Task XP Expenses 

Total this Task 

Englarid· Thim) & ffiillar, Inc. 
ENGINEERS• ?L4t:: iEFtS, SURVEYORS• GIS • LANDSCAPE A.RCHiTECTS 

14775 ad St 4.i.~us. :e Road• JE.cl.soil'. ·:c, Fl0:id;1 3225& • tEI 9C4-Bit.'l..i3900 • ia:: BJ.4.646-9485 

C.b.-Clf.i025M LC-00~16 

0.00 



Outstanding Invoices 
Number 
0198672 
Total 

Invoice Total this Period $8,930.00 ====:::::::=:!::=:::::::;;::= 

Date 
7/9/2021 

Balance 
9,230.00 
9,230.00 

ENtntJEERS • PW:'.i!ERS • SURVE'fORS • CiiS • LANDSCAPE ARChTECTS 
14715 Old SI. A.Jgus:.:.,e Ro!Ki • J!a~lr),'11.;::e, R,:ida msa • tel 90-4-642-699() • f<:x 904.e,•g-9485 

CA-CC-002584 LC--000~16 

Page 2 



SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY Dl~VKLOPMI~NT DISTRICT 
(ST. JOHNS COUNTY, FLORIDA) 

$7,020,090 
CAPITAL ~E,W _,;:OVE~'lENT 

AND REFUND~ NG' ld,~VENUE HONU'S, 

(Ac._;.;:Et~s·111t"fi'l\1"° J ·;>~;-l• ?_ u:,; . .r 'SE1' 3A) 13u J.:JI H'J.. :,!'1 l .·'J. -'-'-"'-'i-'l -•, il, l"!r. 

The undersigned, a Responsible Officer cf Six Mile Creek Community Development 
District (the "District") hereby submits tb.e following requisition for disbursement under and 
pursuant to the terms of the Master Trust Indenture from the District to U. S. Bank National 
Association, as trustee (the "'Trustee"), dated as of July 1, 2007, as supplemented by a Seventh 
Supplemental Trust Indenture, dated as of June 1, 2020 (collectively, the «Indenture"; all 
capitalized terms used herein shall have the rn-:;ani:lg a.scribed to such term in t.11.e Indenture): 

{A) Requisition Number: JJJ\ #-1'2'1-
JOo• l'J\ ,\0\ 

(A) Name aitd address of Payee: ECS Fk:ridt:1-, LLC 
14026 T:Ytin,d ;rbolt P1:ace, Suf.te ti{H: 
Chantiil-::, -y A 20151 

(B) A.mount Payable: 600.00 

(C) Purpose for \Vhich paid or incurred ('~efor dso to s::,ecific contract if arn::nmt is due and 
payable pursuant to a contract involvi1.1g progress payments, or, state Cost of Issuance, if 
applicable): Gu!otedmk~l Servke:: •- :,·.,1.:hu~1rk A:m,~dty '3,.;;_i1~i."g •· lr.soice 90u249 
(.July 2021) 

(E) Fund or Account from which disbur~c:~:12nt to be made: 

Phase 3A Acquisition 2nd Construction Account 

The undersigned hereby certifies that: 

1. obligations in the stated am,11mt set frlrt11 above have been incurred by the District, 

2. each disbursement se·~ forth above is a proper charge against ~he Phase 3A 
Acquisition and Construction .Account; 

3 h d• b ,._ ' "" ...i-1 _, - 'I • • • -1- h .. -. eac JS ursemeI:.i set I01 .,_n, svovc ",V:-~s mctwr-::; .. m connecnon vm.ii; t e acqu1s1t1on 
and/or construction of the Proju:;t; 

4. each disbursement represent~; a Co3t of the Project which has not previously been 
paid. 



The undersigned hereby forther certifies that t.11ere has ;.1ot been filed vlith or served upon 
the District notice of any lien, right to lien, or attad1-me:nt Epon, or claim affe::,ing the right to 
receive payment of, any of the moneys payabk:; to the Paye-: set forth above, wh;cb. has not been 
released or will not be released simultaneously with the pay::nent hereof. 

The undersigned hereby further certifie;g ths.t such requisition con~ins :no ixen., representing 
payment on account of any retained percentF.:ge which the District is at the date of such certificate 
entitled to retain. 

Attached hereto are originals of the i:nvoice(s) from the vendor of the property acquired or 
the services rendered with respect to which disbursement is hereby requested. 

SIX ;-:1HJE Ci~E~:K COl\fM,.UNII'Y 
t~EV":t,,LOPM~NT DISTfHCT 

The undersigned Consulting Engineer hereby certifies that this disbursement is fo; a Cost of the 
Project and is consistent with: (i) the applicable acquisitim: er construction contr:~~; (ii) the plans 
and specifications for the portion of the Project with respcc~ to which such dishc:rse.ment is being 
made; and (iii) the report of the Consulting Engineer, as such ::-eport shaU have ~:;e~n &'TI.ended or 
modified on the date hereof. 

Date: August 19, 2021 



PL~SE REMIT T;--,.- .. ,,_ ,_,,.,.~,,., ..... ~ .. -~-l~rtf~~~ . . . ' XI 

ECS FLORIDA, LLC I 8/4/2021 , 900249 
14026 THUNDERBOLT PLACE, SUITE 600 
CHANTILLY, VA 20151 

TO: Mr. Gregg Kem 

PRO.:ECT NAMc: T:a:!Mark Amenity Builc:iq; 
St. Johns County, Fl 

Six Mile Creek Community Development 
c/o Scott Wild, P.E - England-Thims & M1:!er 
14775 O!d Saint Augustine Road 
Jacksonvil:e, FL 32258 

>fflll"'l ~I<"' ~•1-.,1[".~• • JO,v·I.i1inJlC.ii~- .. 

PLEASE DETACH AND RETURN DUPLICATE COPY WITH YOUR REMITTANCE I Pl. . • ; . •• • ~ -· 

CUSTOMER co□E 
1 
PROJECT NO. BILLED THRU DATE l TER.1v1s - ::l Th~=~~m:~::-.t· $600.00 

35:513905 1 35:31861 7/31/202'1 DUE J?ON iRECf::ll,T ·: 

For Geolechnicc:. Serv1:::es 

If you have ar.y quesfo;,s ,egarding this invoice, 
please contact Ch:tis Egar ,;;2 904.380.0960 

Budget Estimate: 

Previously Invoiced: 

Amt. This Invoice: 

Amt. Remaining: 

$3,2CG.0O 

$2,600.00 

$600.00 

$0.00 

Subtct2l: 

Invoice Total - Please Remit => 

$600.00 
$600.00 

A FINANCE CHARGE OF 1.5% PER MONTH (18% A;,iNlJAU .. Y} l..'!Li:"sEAODED TO ALL IMVOICESC'N~'IAID AFTER 30 DAYS 



REQUISITION NO. llO 

SIX MILE CREEK COM1\IIUNITY D£VELOPMENT DISTRICT 
(ST. JOHNS COUNTY, FLOf-'.:IDA) 

$7,020,000 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT 

AND REJ?UNDING REVENUE BONDS, 
SERIES2020 

(ASSESSMENT AREA 2, PHASE 3A) 
The undersigned, a Responsible Officer of Six Mile Creek Community Development 

District (the "District") hereby submits the following requisition for d.isbursernent under and 
pursuant to the terms of the Master Trust Indenture from the District to U. S. Bank National 
Association, as trustee (the "Trustee"), dated as of July 1, 2007, as supplemented by a Seventh 
Supplemental Trust Indenture, dated as of June l, 2020 (collectively, the "Indenture"; all 
capitalized terms used herein shall have the meaning ascribed to such ten11 in the Indenture): 

(A) Requisition Number: 110 ~2 

(B) Name and address of Payee: 

(C) Amount Payable: $ 457.32 

Hopping Green & Sm-rs, PA 
PO Box6526 
TaUaha.ssee, SL 32314 

;J()Q .\J\-\0\ 

{D) Purpose for which paid or incurred (refer also to specific contract if amount is due and 
payable pursuant to a contract involving progress payments, or, state Cost of Issuance, if 
applicable): Professional Services related to P:roj~ct Const:ructioi1-Invoke 124409 
(May 2021) 

(E) Fund or Account from which disbursement to be made: 

Phase 3A Acquisition and Construction Account 

The undersigned hereby certifies that: 

l. obligations in the stated amount set forth above have been incurred by the District, 

2. each disbursement set forth above is a proper charge againsi the Phase 3A 
Acquisition and Construction Account; 

3. each disbursement set forth above vvas incurred in connection with the a-~quisition 
and/or construction of the Project; 

4. each disbursement represents a Cost of the Project which has not previously been 
paid. 



The undersigned hereby further certifies that there has not been filed with or served upon 
the District notice of any lien, right to lien, or attachment upon, or claim affecting the right to 
receive payment of, any of the moneys payable to the Payee set forth above, which has not been 
released or will not be released simultaneously with the payment hereof. 

The undersigned hereby further certifies that such requisition contains no item representing 
payment on account of any retained percentage which the District is at the date of such ce1ti ficate 
entitled to retain. 

Attached hereto are originals of the invoice(s) from the vendor of the property acquired or 
the services rendered with respect to which disbursement is hereby requested. 

SIX i\HLE CREEK COMM'.UNITY 
DEVELOr:i'.t:fENT DiSTRICT 

_,,, ~--·· 
.. ff/_~~--~ ~~/, 

By. ~;~,r=:,;>--.:.--~=- -=-"'--•-----
Gregg Kei-n 
Chairperson) Board of Supervisors 

CONSULTING ENGINEEJ?'S APPROVAL 

The undersigned Consulting Engineer hereby certifies that this disbursement is fur a Cost of the 
Project and is consistent with: (i) the applicable acquisition or construction contract; (ii) the plans 
and specifications for the portion of the Project with respect to which such disbursement is being 
made; and (iii) the report of the Consulting Engineer, as such rep01t shall have been amended or 
modified on the date hereof. 

' 
Dated: -~-' \_'1-i-\2-{_,___ __ 

\ J 

Consulting Engineer 



Hopping Green & Sarns 
Attorneys and Counseloo; 

119 S. Monroo Stre&t. Ste. 300 
P.O. Box 6526 

Tallahassee, FL 32314 
850.222. 7500 

June 30, 2021 
Six Mile Creek CDD 
c/o GOVERNMENT MANAGEMENT SERVICES, LLC 
1408 Hamlin Avenue, Unit E 

Bill Number 124409 
Billed through 05/31/2021 

st. Cloud, FL 34771 

Project Construction 
Sl:XCDD 00103 WSH 

fOR eROFESSlONAL SERVICES RENDERED 
05/06/21 WSH Confer with Kern and prepare Wo.-k Authorization #2 for Basham & Lucas 

Agreement. 

05/07 /21 WSH Finalize work authorization; confer with Kem regarding same. 

05/12/21 WSH Review and revise work authorization for Basham & Lucas contract; confer with 
Kern regarding same. 

05/19/21 WSH Review and respond to correspondence regarding purchase orders for direct 
purchase materials. 

Total fees for this matter 

DISBURSftv'fl:iiiiS 
Conference cans 

Total disbursements for this matter 

Haber, Wesley S. 

TOTAL FEES 
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS 

TOTAL CHARGES FOR THIS MATI'iER 

BILUNG SUMMARY 

Haber, Wesley S. 

TOTAL FEES 
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS 

TOTAL CHARGES FOR THIS bIU. 

1.80 hrs 235 /hr 

1.80 hrs 235 /hr 

0.60 hrs 

0.40 hrs 

0.60 hrs 

0.20 hrs 

$423.00 

34.32 

$34.32 

$423.00 

$423.00 
$34.32 

$457.32 

$423.00 

$423.00 

$34.32 

$457.32 



BrightView 
Landscape Services 

Six Mile COD 
475 W Town Pl Ste 114 
St Augustine FL 32092 

Job Number Description 

346100520 Six Mile COD Trailmark 

Six Mlle CDD Trailmark 

For September 

\}\'iO 

Jcil1~(1J., Ser,t'u,s Stp21 
~-SJ&·U62 

APPROVED 
By Alex Boyer at 1 :39 pm, Sep 02, 2021 

O&M- andscape contract 

INVOICE 

Customer #: 22539664 
Invoice#: 7511508 
Invoice Date: 9/1/2021 
CustPO#: 

Total invoice amount 
Tax amount 
Balance due 

Amount 

19,151.83 

19,151.83 

19,151.83 

Terms: Net 15 Days If you have any que~tions regarding this invoice, please calt 904--292-0716 

·----·-----~------------· ·-·-- ------------ -------------·------------------------- --------------

Payment Stub 
Customer Account#: 22539664 
Invoice#: 7511508 ' 
Invoice Date: 9/112021 

Six Mile COO 
475 W Town Pl Ste 114 
St Augustin~ FL 32092 

Please detach stub and (!lmit with your payment 

j I Amount Due: $19,151.83 

ihank you for allowing us to serve you 

Please reference the invoice # on your check 
and make payable to: 

BrightView Landscape Services, Inc. 
P.O. Box 740655 

Atlanta, GA 30374-0655 



Customer Six Mile Creek Community 
Development District 

Acct# 187 

Date 09/13/2021 
Customer 
Se.rvice Kristina Rudez 

Page 1 of 1 

Payment Information 

Invoice Summary $ 29,918.00 
Payment Amount Six Mile Creek Community Development District 

c/o Governmental Management Services Payment for: lnvoice#14374 
219 E Livingston St 100121193 
Orlando, FL 32801 

X 
Pleased 

Customer: Six Mile Creek Community Development District 

Invoice Effective 

14374 10/01/2021 

Transaction 

Renew policy 

Description 

Policy #100121193 10/01/2021-10/01/2022 
Florida Insurance Alliance 

Thank You 

Amount 

Package - Renew policy 29,918.00 
Due Date: 9/13/2021 

FOR PAYMENTS SENT OVERNIGHT: 
Egis Insurance Advisors LLC, Fifth Third Wholesale Lockbox, Lockbox #234021, 4900 W. 95th St Oak/awn, IL 60453 

Remit Payment To: Egis Insurance Advisors, LLC (321 )233-9939 
Lockbox 234021 PO Box 84021 
Chicago, IL 60689-4002 sclimer@egisadvisors.com 

Date 

09/13/2021 

Total 

$ 29,918.00 

Thank u 

RECEIVEr 

SEP 13 2021 



Six Mile Creek Investment Group, LLC 
C/O GMS, LLC 
1408 Hamlin Ave. Unite E 
St. Cloud, FL 34771 

i k SEP O 8 2U21 
BY:, __ ~ 

September 1, 2021 
Project No: 20327.00000 
Invoice No: 0199373 

Project 20327.00000 Six Mile Creek CDD-2020/2021 ~~rai 92!J_§uJ1i~g En~neering 
~eryiges (WA#52} 

Professional Services rendered through August 31. 2021 -----------------------~----------~--~-----~-----· 
Task 01 Professional Services 
Professional Personnel -tl:-22. 

Hours Rate Amount JIO·Jl1 JI\ 
Project Manager 

Brecht, John 8/21/2021 2.75 180.00 495.00 
CEI Sr. Inspector 

Brooks, Jeffrey 8/14/2021 2.00 148.00 296.00 
Adminstrative Support 

Blair, Shelley 8/14/2021 1.00 84.00 84.00 
Blair, Sheliey 8/21/2021 2.00 84.00 168.00 
Blair, Shelley 8/28/2021 .50 84.00 42.00 

Totals 8.25 1,085.00 
Total Labor 1,085.00 

Current Prior To--Date 
Total Billings 1,085.00 11,306.25 12,391.25 

Contract Limit 16,000.00 
Remaining 3,608.75 

Total this Task $1,085.00 

-------------------------------------------~-----· Task 
Expenses 

Mileage 

XP Expenses 

Total Expenses 1.15 times 

Total this Task 

24.64 
24.64 28.34 

$28.34 

Invoice Total this Period $1,113.34 
=====::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: 

England· Thim) & miller. Inc. 
ENG"'iEEf;S • FL~:'.-iERS • SURVEYO?.S •G!S • LA!'ID~Pf ARCHITECTS 

l-17i5 ad SL A~u~..ii~ ?.Cl~, Ja:)stn~-.e. ~id! '.2?5t•i~ 9C!-~2-M90, r:x g.)4~e-~ 

C.!.·COOC!ae4 LC-W'"A>316 



• FPL. 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, 
Here's what you owe for this billing period. 

CURRENT BILL 

FPL.com Page 1 0001 0008 081458 

KEEP IN MIND 

Electric Bill Statement 
For: Aug 6, 2021 to Sep 7, 2021 (32 days) 
Statement Date: Sep 7, 2021 
Account Number: 04551-38016 
Service Address: 

16 DAYBREAK DR 
SAINT AUGUSllNE, FL 32092 

E001 

$206.65 
• Payment received after November 29, 2021 is considered LATE; a late 

payment charge of 1 % will apply. 

TOTAL AMOUNT YOU OWE 

Sep 28, 2021 
NEW CHARGES DUE BY 

( BILL SUMMARY ··1 
• Amount of your last bill 165.20 

1. ~~~~::~ ~~ I 
, (See page 2 for bill details.) . 
•• ................................................................................................................... .. 

Customer Service: 
Outside Florida: 

(386) 252-1541 
1-800-226-3545 

Report Power Outages: 
Hearing/Speech Impaired: 

1-800-4OUTAGE (468-8243) 
711 (Relay Service) 

----------------------••• .. •••••--••••• .. •••••·-•••••-u••-••••-•••••• .. ••••••••••-•- .. --------

• FPL. 

0001 0008 081458 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
C/0 REVERIE 
1408 HAMLIN AVE UNITE 
SAINT CLOUD FL 34771-8588 

'"'I', 11•1I11, 111111111I111 IM 11 I I I• 11,, I, I 11 I I I I I I I II I, ,I 1111, 

Visit FPL.com/PayBill 
for ways to pay. 

I 27 

--

13040455138 □ 16956602000 □ 0 

The amount enclosed includes 
the following donation: 
FPL Care To Share: __ 

Make check payable to FPL 
In U.S. funds and mall along with 
this coupon to: 

FPL 
GENERAL MAIL FACILITY 
MIAMI FL 33188-0001 

( 04551-38016 ] (.._ __ $_2_06_._65 _ _,) ( Sep 28, 2021 $ 

ACCOUNT NUMBER TOTAL AMOUNT YOU OWE NEW CHARGES DUE BY AMOUNT ENCLOSED 



• Customer Name: 
SIX MILE CREEK 
COMMUNllY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Account Number: 

04551~8016 

FPL 

BILL DETAILS 

Amount of your last bill 
Payment received - Thank you 

Balance before new charges 

New Charges 
Rate: GS-1 GENERAL SVC NON-DEMAND/ BUSINESS 
Customer charge: $10.61 
Non-fuel: {$0.065570perkWhJ $133.24 
Fuel: ($0.028360perkWh) $57.63 

Electric service amount 

Gross receipts tax 

Taxes and charges 

Total new charges 

Total amount you owe 

201.48 

5.17 

5.17 

165.20 
-165.20 

$0.00 

$206.65 

$206.65 

FPL.com Page 2 0002 0008 081458 

METER SUMMARY 

Meter reading- MeterACD5597. Next meter reading Oct 6, 2021. 

Usage Type Current Previous = 
kWh used 04609 02577 

ENERGY USAGE COMPARISON 
This Month 

Service to 
kWh Used 
Service days 
kWh/day 
Amount 

Sep 7, 2021 
2032 

32 
64 

$206.65 

Last Month 
Aug 6, 2021 

1602 
30 
53 

$165.20 

Stay connected Savings to sing about Don't get burned 
The FPL Mobile App is the easiest way to stay Use FPL Business Energy Manager to manage Beware of phone scammers threatening to 

connected with us when a disaster strikes. 

Stay ready - get the app today! 

FPL.com/MobileApp 

energy use. shut off power unless immediate payment is 

FPLcom/BusinessEnergyManager made with a prepaid card• 

FPL.com/Protect 

When you pay by check, you authorize FPL to process your payment electronically or as a draft. If your payment is processed electronically, 
your checking account may be debited on the same day we receive the check and your check will not be returned with your checking account 
statement. FPL does not agree to any restrictions, conditions or endorsements placed on any bill statement or payments such as check, money 
order or other forms of payment. We will process the payment as if these restrictions or conditions do not exist. 

E001 

Usage 
2032 



• FPL 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, 
Here's what you owe for this billing period. 

CURRENT BILL 

$66.47 
TOTAL AMOUNT YOU OWE 

Sep 28, 2021 
NEW CHARGES DUE BY 

r ~ 

:

j·:.· BILL SUMMARY .1: 
Amount of your last bill 145.75 
Payments received -145.75 

Balance before new charges 0.00 

Total new charges 66.47 

Total amount you owe $66.47 

\. (See page 2 for bill details.) 

••••••••••••·•·•••••••••••••••••••••• .. ························································ ................... _ •• 

Customer Service: 
Outside Florida: 

(386) 252-1541 
1-800-226-3545 

=== ....................................... _________ _ 

• FPL. 

0003 0008 081458 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
C/0 REVERIE 
1408 HAMLIN AVE UNITE 
SAINT CLOUD FL 34771-8588 

I 27 

FPL.com Page 1 0003 0008 081458 

KEEP IN MIND 

Electric Bill Statement 
For: Aug 6, 2021 to Sep 7, 2021 (32 days) 
Statement Date: Sep 7, 2021 
Account Number: 23340-53333 
Service Address: 

255 RUSTIC MILL DR 
SAINT AUGUSTINE, FL 32092 

E001 

• Payment received after November 29, 2021 is considered LATE; a late 
payment charge of 1 % will apply. 

~ 
340·53t·43 

r i-.--, - --• •· ''\ 17' ,r-Jr·•· 
••• •· --•. '--' . =" l 

. ' 

[ ~:E,.. 1 0 2021 i1 

Report Power Outages: 
Hearing/Speech Impaired: 

1-800-4OUTAGE (468-8243) 
711 (Relay Service) 

1304233405333327466000000 

The amount enclosed includes 
the following donation: 
FPL Care To Share: __ 

Make check payable to FPL 
in U.S. funds and mail along with 
this coupon to: 

FPL 
GENERAL MAIL FACILITY 
MIAMI FL 33188-0001 

Visit FPL.com/PayBill 
for ways to pay. 23340-53333 )[ ~ __ $_66_._47 __ ~) [ Sep 28, 2021 ) _$ _____ _ 

ACCOUNT NUMBER TOTAL AMOUNT YOU OWE NEW CHARGES DUE BY AMOUNT ENCLOSED 



• Customer Name: 
SIX MILE CREEK 
COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Account Number: 
23340-53333 

FPL. 

BILL DETAILS 

Amount of your last bill 
Payment received - Thank you 

Balance before new charges 

New Charges 
Rate: GS-1 GENERAL SVC NON-DEMAND/ BUSINESS 
Customer charge: $10.61 
Non-fuel: ($0.065570perkWh) $37.84 
Fuel: ($0.028360 per kWh) $16.36 

Electric service amount 

Gross receipts tax 

Taxes and charges 

Total new charges 

Total amount you owe 

64.81 

1.66 

1.66 

145.75 
-145.75 

$0.00 

$66.47 

$66.47 

FPL.com Page 2 0004 0008 081458 

METER SUMMARY 

Meter reading - Meter ACD1994. Next meter reading Oct 6, 2021. 

Usage Type Current Previous = 
kWh used 02356 01779 

ENERGY USAGE COMPARISON 
This Month 

Service to 
kWh Used 
Service days 
kWh/day 
Amount 

Sep 7, 2021 
577 
32 
18 

$66.47 

Last Month 
Aug 6, 2021 

1400 
30 
47 

$145'.75 

Stay connected Savings to sing about Don't get burned 
The FPL Mobile App is the easiest way to stay Use FPL Business Energy Manager to manage Beware of phone scammers threatening to 

connected with us when a disaster strikes. energy use. shut off power unless immediate payment is 

Stay ready - get the app today! 

FPL.com/MobileApp 
FPL.com/BusinessEnergyManager made with a prepaid card. 

FPL.com/Protect 

When you pay by check, you authorize FPL to process your payment electronically or as a draft. If your payment is processed electronically, 
your checking account may be debited on the same day we receive the check and your check will not be returned with your checking account 
statement. FPL does not agree to any restrictions, conditions or endorsements placed on any bill statement or payments such as check, money 
order or other forms of payment. We will process the payment as if these restrictions or conditions do not exist. 

E001 

Usage 
577 



• FPL. 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, 
Here's what you owe for this billing period. 

CURRENT BILL 

$12.90 
TOTAL AMOUNT YOU OWE 

Sep 28, 2021 
NEW CHARGES DUE BY 

Amount of your last bill 
Payments received 

BILL SUMMARY 

Balance before new charges 

Total new charges 

Total amount you owe 

11.55 
-11.55 

0.00 

12.90 

$12.90 

(See page 2 for bill details.) 

···············································································································-··· 

Customer Service: 
Outside Florida: 

(386) 252-1541 
1-800-226-3545 

FPL.com Page 1 0005 0008 081458 

KEEP IN MIND 

Electric Bill Statement 
For: Aug 6, 2021 to Sep 7, 2021 (32 days) 
Statement Date: Sep 7, 2021 
Account Number: 72968-38019 
Service Address: 

18 WOODWIND CT 
SAINT AUGUSTINE, FL 32092 

E001 

• Payment received after November 29, 2021 is considered LATE; a late 
payment charge of 1 % will apply. 

Report Power Outages: 
Hearing/Speech Impaired: 

~f!:':'r""~il1'<\firc:''. 
~ u---~ l.:a.n, u ~--- L~-r SEP 10 2021 
BY: ______ -·------· 

1-800-4OUTAGE (468-8243) 
711 (Relay Service) 

----------··-···························-----------------------------

• FPL. 

~ 
~ 

0005 0008 081458 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
C/0 REVERIE 
1408 HAMLIN AVE UNITE 
SAINT CLOUD FL 34771-8588 

Visit FPL.com/PayBill 
for ways to pay. 

I 27 13 □ 47296838 □ 198 □ 921 □□□□□□ 

The amount enclosed includes 
the following donation: 
FPL Care To Share: 

Make check payable to FPL 
in U.S. funds and mail along with 
this coupon to: 

FPL 
GENERAL MAIL FACILITY 
MIAMI FL 33188-0001 

72968-38019 ] [ $12.90 ) [ Sep 28, 2021 
~-----

$ 

ACCOUNT NUMBER lOTAL AMOUNT YOU OWE NEW CHARGES DUE BY AMOUNT ENCLOSED 



• FPL. 

Customer Name: Account Number: 
SIX MILE CREEK 72968-38019 
COMMUNl1Y 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

FPL.com Page 2 0006 0008 081458 E001 

BILL DETAILS METER SUMMARY 

Meter reading - Meter ACD3136. Next meter reading Oct 6, 2021. 
Amount of your last bill 11.55 
Payment received - Thank y_o_u _____________ -_1_1_.5_5 

Usage Type 
kWh used 

Current 
00028 

Previous 
00007 

= Usage 
21 

Balance before new charges $0.00 

New Charges 
Rate: GS-1 GENERAL SVC NON-DEMAND/ BUSINESS 
Customer charge: $10.61 
Non-fuel: ($0.065570 per kWh) $1.37 
Fuel: /$0.028360 per kWh) $0.60 

Electric service amount 

Gross receipts tax 

Taxes and charges 

Total new charges 

Total amount you owe 

12.58 

0.32 

0.32 

$12.90 

$12.90 

ENERGY USAGE COMPARISON 
This Month 

Service to 
kWh Used 
Service days 
kWh/day 
Amount 

Sep 7, 2021 
21 
32 

1 
$12.90 

Last Month 
Aug 6, 2021 

7 
30 

0 
$11.55 

Stay connected Savings to sing about Don't get burned 
The FPL Mobile App is the easiest way to stay Use FPL Business Energy Manager to manage Beware of phone scammers threatening to 

connected with us when a disaster strikes. 

Stay ready - get the app today! 

FPL.com/MobileApp 

energy use. shut off power unless immediate payment is 

made with a prepaid card. 
FPL.com/BusinessEnergyManager 

FPL.com/Protect 

When you pay by check, you authorize FPL to process your payment electronically or as a draft. If your payment is processed electronically, 
your checking account may be debited on the same day we receive the check and your check will not be returned with your checking account 
statement. FPL does not agree to any restrictions, conditions or endorsements placed on any bill statement or payments such as check, money 
order or other forms of payment. We will process the payment as if these restrictions or conditions do not exist. 



• FPL. 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, 
Here's what you owe for this billing period. 

CURRENT BILL 

$12.24 
TOTAL AMOUNT YOU OWE 

Sep 28, 2021 
NEW CHARGES DUE BY 

.. ·~ 
BILL SUMMARY 

Amount of your last bill 11.94 
Payments received -11.94 

Balance before new charges 0.00 

Total new charges 12.24 

Total amount you owe $12.24 

(See page 2 for bill details.) 

··············································································································-·· 

Customer Service: 
Outside Florida: 

• FPL. 

0007 0008 081458 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
C/0 REVERIE 
1408 HAMLIN AVE UNITE 
SAINT CLOUD FL 34771-8588 

(386) 252-1541 
1-800-226-3545 

I 

1 

' 

27 

FPL.com Page 1 0007 0008 081458 

KEEP IN MIND 

Electric Bill Statement 
For: Aug 6, 2021 to Sep 7, 2021 (32 days) 
Statement Date: Sep 7, 2021 
Account Number: 97807-53332 
Service Address: 

82 BERRY BLOSSOM WAY 
SAINT AUGUSTINE, FL 32092 

E001 

• Payment received after November 29, 2021 is considered LATE; a late 
payment charge of 1 % will apply. 

11-.5 
340:SJ~-4] 

~'~ ;J,"'> r1•, fir--
:; ,.._.,....._,_..L:,-,.-.. \_,,, • 
,: 
, :l f I SEP 1 0 2021 
BY:______ _ ____ _ 

Report Power Outages: 
Hearing/Speech Impaired: 

1-800-4OUTAGE (468-8243) 
711 (Relay Service) 

130497807533323422100 □□ 00 

The amount enclosed includes 
the following donation: 
FPL Care To Share: 

Make check payable to FPL 
in U.S. funds ang mail along with 
this coupon to: 

FPL 
GENERAL MAIL FACILITY 
MIAMI FL 33188-0001 

Visit FPL.com/PayBill 
for ways to pay. 

( 97807-53332 J ( $12.24 ) ( Sep 28, 2021 
-----~ 

$ 

ACCOUNT NUMBER TOTAL AMOUNT YOU OWE NEW CHARGES DUE BY AMOUNT ENCLOSED 



• FPL. 

Customer Name: Account Number: 
SIX MILE CREEK 97807-53332 
COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

FPL.com Page 2 0008 0008 081458 E001 

BILL DETAILS METER SUMMARY 

Meter reading - Meter ACD3752. Next meter reading Oct 6, 2021. 
Amount of your last bill 
Payment received - Thank you 

11.94 
-11.94 

Usage Type 
kWh used 

Current 
00035 

Previous 
00021 

= Usage 

Balance before new charges 

New Charges 
Rate: GS-1 GENERAL SVC NON-DEMAND/ BUSINESS 
Customer charge: $10.61 
Non-fuel: ($(J.065570perkWl1J $0.92 
Fuel: {$0,028360 per kWh) $0.40 

Electric service amount 

Gross receipts tax 

Taxes and charges 

Total new charges 

Total amount you owe 

11.93 

0.31 

0.31 

$0.00 

$12.24 

$12.24 

ENERGY USAGE COMPARISON 
This Month 

Service to 
kWh Used 
Service days 
kWh/day 
Amount 

Sep 7, 2021 
14 
32 

0 
$12.24 

last Month 
Aug 6, 2021 

11 
30 

0 
$11.94 

Stay connected Savings to sing about Don't get burned 
The FPL Mobile App is the easiest way to stay Use FPL Business Energy Manager to manage Beware of phone scarnmers threatening to 

connected with us when a disaster strikes. energy use. shut off power unless immediate payment is 

Stay ready - get the app today! 

FPL.com/MobileApp 
FPL.com/BusinessEnergyManager 

made with a prepaid card. 

FPL.com/Protect 

When you pay by check, you authorize FPL to process your payment electronically or as a draft. If your payment is processed electronically, 
your checking account may be debited on the same day we receive the check and your check will not be returned with your checking account 
statement. FPL does not agree to any restrictions, conditions or endorsements placed on any bill statement or payments such as check, money 
order or other forms of payment. We will process the payment as if these restrictions or conditions do not exist. 

14 



Governmental Management Services, LLC 
1001 Bradford Way 
Kingston, TN 3n63 

Bill To: 
Six Mile Creek COD 
475 West Town Place 
Suite 114 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 

Description 

Management Fees • September 2021 
lnformatton Technology - September 2021 
Dissemination Agent Services • September 2021 
Office Supplies 
Postage 
Copies 
Telephone 

~Jl.0 i'IJ • J\I 
1S1 

.cl\J 
JI 
'-\'l 
\,,\'2,j 
\.\ \ 

Hours/Qty. 

,Invoice 
;, 

' Invoice#: 146 
Invoice Date: 9/1/21 . 

Due Date: 9/1/21 
Case: 

P.O. Number: 
- ~ r-, f,:--· 

- I r, SEP O 8 2021 i..'., 
BY: ___ ,,, _____ _ 

Rate 

2,416.67 
100.00: 
416.67 

15.09 
1.53 

479.10 
96.59 

Amount 

2,416.67 
100.00 
416.67 

15.09 
1.53 

479.10 
96.59 

Total $3,525.65 

Payments/Credits $0.00 

Balance Due $3,525.65 



Riverside Management Services, Inc 
9855 Florida Mining Blvd. W. 
Building 300, Sutte 305 
Jacksonville, FL 32257 

BJHTo: 
Six Mile Creek 
475 West Town Place Si.lite 114 
SI. Augustine, FL 32092 

!"tV\\ ice 

fnvolce t: 121 
fnvolce Date: 9/1/.2021 

Due Date: 9/1/2021 
Csse: 

P.O~ Number: 

Hours/Qty •late Amount 

, - ,., ... oal - ,.,45.00 

I 
I 

__ l _ _,__ 
Total $11145.00 

Payments/Credits $0.00 

Balance Due 



ST JOHNS COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
DETAIL INVOICE 

TRAILMARK SUBDIVISION 

!~~~ TRAILMARK INVOICE ,,i, 
**PLEASE FILL IN ALL YELLOW BOXES** 

~.,, -· -.,, 
\• J~ (I>'" ~ iNVOtCES ARE DUE EACH MONDAY BY 8AM - SEND TO RMNHSON@)SJSO.ORG 

REMIT PAYMENT TO: IIU TO: INVOICE# ' 
Robert M. Nelson Six Mile Creek COD SERVICE DATE: 

475 West Town Place, Suite 114 INVOICE DATE: 9/15/21 

St. Augustine, FL 32092 TOTAL DU£: $320.00 
*BLUE BOXES PAYROLL USE ONLY* DUE DATE: UPON RECEtPT 

DATE CAD# TIMEIN TIMEOUT 
TOTAL 

TOTALDUE 
HOURS 

Saturday, September 11, 2021 SJS021CAD183584 9:30a 12:30p 3 $120.00 
Tuesday, September 14, 2021 SJS021CAD 9:15a 2:15p 5 $200.00 

SJS021CAD 
SJS021CAD 

, 

SJS021CAD 
SJS021CAD 
SJS021CAD 

ACTIVITY/ COMMENTS: HOUR RATE $40.00 8 $320 00 

#)3? 
APPROVED Traffic Stops - 3 !;ecur.·£_; Srvc. -

'!,20,~Jt·Jl(S BJ' .Alex Boyer at 9:26 am, Sep 15, 2021 
Golf ca rt violations - 0 

Weathered Edge Drive traffic infractions observed - 0 
O&M- Security Patrol 

Citizen Assist - 2 

PATROLLED NEIGHBORHOOD/POWER LINE RD (TRAILS ALSO)/KAYAK LAUNCH/BACK 

GATE/CONSTRUCTION SITES. NOTHING SUSPICIOUS SEEN OR REPORTED. 
. C r"'b !Ir.'::'. ~ "i\ ff r= 

H
--

SEP 15 2021 
-

BY=------··----

revised 2-10-2020 



.. 
0 
~ .. 
g, 

Q. 

f 
C, 

i 
C, 
C, 
C, 

-"1'TECC>. 
illfll"""""~ PEOPLES GAS 

.. AN EMERA COMPANY 

WHISPER CREEK AMENITY CTR-PHASE3 
801 TRAILMARK DR - A~l\ 
ST AUGUSTINE, FL 32092-0000 

Your Account Summary 
Previous Amount Due 

Payment(s) Received Since Last Statement 

Current Month's Charges 

Total Amount Due 

~'.14 
5 JO :S'J5 l\J.i_ 

$57.25 

-$57.25 

$66.35 

$66.35 

,. . ~ 

~ 

Amount not paid by due date may be assessed a late payment charge and an additional deposit. 

ACCOUNT INVOICE 
peoplesgas.com I f W (j) 8•11 in 

Statement Date: 09/07/2021 
Account: 211014091725 

Current month's charges: $66.35 
Total amount due: $66.35 
Payment Due By: 09/28/2021 

One Less 

Paperless Billing -
Contact free; 
worry free! 
Sign up for free today! 

peoplesqas.com/paperless 

Save Energy with Natural Gas. 
Save even more with our increased rebates. 
Find rebate criteria and steps to redeem at peoplesgas.com/bizrebates 

To ensure prompt credit. please return stub portion of this bill with your payment. Make checks payable to TECO. 

TECC>. 
illlll"""""III//II PEOPLES GAS 

.. AN EMERA COMPANY 

WAYS TO PAY YOUR BILL 

t. 
mail phone online 

See reverse side for more information 

011005583 01 AB 0.45 34771 FTEC0109072123040410 00000 04 01000000 010 04 26929 002 

11

• Im+· 1

1 1·11111

11 •

11 hi 111 I .. I .. 1111 11 • llml .. 11
1

1111
1

1
1 •

11 
WHISPER CREEK AMENITY CTR-PHASE3 
1408 HAMLIN AVE, UNITE 
SAINT CLOUD, FL 34771-8588 

Account: 211014091725 

Current month's charges: $66.35 
Total amount due: $66.35 
Payment Due By: 09/28/2021 

Amount Enclosed $. ______ _ 

672371161987 

MAIL PAYMENT TO: 
TECO 
P.O. BOX 31318 
TAMPA, FL 33631-3318 

672371161987211 □ 14091725000 □ 000066350 Page 1 of 4 



- TECC>. 
~. PEOPLES GAS 

.. AN E:Mr;;RA COMPANY 

Contact Information 
Residential Customer Care 
813-223-0800 (Tampa) 
863-299-0800 (Lakeland) 
352-622-0111 (Ocala) 
954-453-0777 (Broward) 
305-940-0139 (Miami) 
727-826-3333 (St. Petersburg) 
407-425-4662 (Orlando) 
904-739-1211 (Jacksonville) 
877-832-6747 (All other counties) 

Commercial Customer Care 

866-832-6249 

Mail Payments to 
TECO 
P.O. Box 31348 

Hearing Impaired/TTY 
711 

Tampa, FL 33631-3318 

Natural Gas Outage 
877-832-6747 

All Other Correspondence 
Peoples Gas 
P.O. Box 111 

Natural Gas Energy 
Conservation Rebates 
877-832-6747 

Tampa, FL 33601-0111 

Understanding Your Natural Gas Charges 
BTU - British thermal unit- a unit of heat measurement. 

Budget Billing - Optional plan takes the highs and lows out of 
monthly natural gas bills. This "leveling" billing plan averages your last 
12 monthly billing periods so you can pay about the same amount for 
your service each month. 

Buried Piping Notification - Federal regulations require that Peoples 
Gas notify our customers who own buried piping of the following: 1) 
When excavating near buried gas piping, the piping should be 
located in advance; 2) The gas supplier does not own or maintain the 
customer's buried piping; 3) Buried piping that is not maintained may 
be subject to corrosion and/or leakage. Buried piping should be 
inspected periodically and any unsafe conditions repaired. Licensed 
plumbers, heating and air conditioning contractors, or Peoples Gas 
can conduct inspections. 

Conversion Factor - This factor is used to adjust for variations from 
standard delivery pressure and standard delivery temperature where 
applicable. 

Customer Charge - A fixed monthly amount to cover the cost of 
providing gas service. This charge is billed monthly regardless if any 
gas is used. 

Distribution Charge - Covers the costs of moving gas from its source 
to your premise, other than the cost of gas itself. 

Estimated - If Peoples Gas was unable to read your gas meter, 
"ESTIMATED" will appear. Your gas use has been estimated based on 
previous usage. The meter is scheduled to be read next month, and 
any difference between the estimate and actual use will be adjusted 
accordingly. 

Florida Gross Receipts Tax - A tax is imposed on gross receipts 
from utility services that are delivered to retail customers in Florida, in 
accordance with Chapter 203 of the Florida Statutes. The tax is levied 
on utility companies, which collect the tax from all customers, unless 
exempt, and remit to the state. 

Florida State Tax - A privilege tax imposed on every person who 
engages in the business of selling or renting tangible personal 
property at retail in the state, in accordance with Chapter 212 of the 
Florida Statutes. 

For more information about your bill, please visit peoplesgas.com. 

Your payment options are: 

Franchise Fee A fee levied by a municipality for the right to utilize 
public property for the purpose of providing gas service. Like taxes, 
the fee is collected by Peoples Gas and is paid to the municipality. 

Late Payment Charge - The late payment charge is 1.5% of the 
past due amount. 

Main Extension Charge - A flat monthly fee to recover the cost of 
extending mains to a particular area when the cost exceeds the 
maximum allowable construction cost. 

Measured Volume - Your natural gas usage in CCF (one hundred 
cubic feet) or MCF (one thousand cubic feet). These are the 
standard units of gas measurement. 

Municipal Public Service Tax - In addition to the Franchise Fee, 
many municipalities levy a tax on the gas you use. It is collected by 
Peoples Gas and paid to the municipality. 

PGA Charge - Purchased Gas Adjustment- the cost of gas 
purchased for you by Peoples Gas and delivered to your premises. 

Rate Schedule - The amount (rate) you pay depends on your 
customer category. The cost of providing service varies with the 
customer group. 

Share - A program co-sponsored by Peoples Gas and the 
Salvation Army where customers can help pay the energy bills of 
customers in need. A one-time contribution can be made, or your 
monthly elected contribution will appear on your bill. Your 
contribution is tax deductible and is matched by Peoples Gas. 

Swing Charge - Covers the costs that are incurred by Peoples Gas 
to balance the difference between a customer's actual daily usage 
and the gas delivered by your gas supplier (pool manager). 

Therm -A unit of heat equal to one hundred thousand (100,000) 
BTUs. 

Total Amount Due - This month's charges will be past due after 
the date shown. THIS DATE DOES NOT EXTEND THE DATE ON 
ANY PREVIOUS BALANCE. It is important that you pay your bill 
before this date in order to avoid interruption of service. 

• Schedule free one-time or recurring payments at peoplesgas.com using a checking or savings account. 
• Mail your payment in the enclosed envelope. Please allow sufficient time for delivery. 
• Pay in person at a local payment agent. For a listing of authorized payment agents, visit peoplesgas.com or call Customer Care at the 

number listed above. 
• Pay by credit or debit card using KUBRA EZ-PAY at peoplesgas.com or call 866-689-6469. 

(A convenience fee will be charged to your bank account or credit card.) 

When making your payment, please have your bill or account number available. 

Please note: If you choose to pay your bill at a location not listed on our website or provided by Peoples Gas, you are paying someone who is 
not authorized to act as a payment agent of Peoples Gas. You bear the risk that this unauthorized party will relay the payment to Peoples Gas 
and do so in a timely fashion. Peoples Gas is not responsible for payments made to unauthorized agents, including their failure to deliver or 
timely deliver the payment to us. Such failures may result in late payment charges to your account or service disconnection. 

Por favor, visite peoplesgas.com para ver esta informaci6n en espafiol. 
Page 2 of 4 



C .1 4TECC>. 
~. PEOPLES GAS 

.,. AN EMERA COMPANY 

Account: 211014091725 
Statement Date: 09/07/2021 
Current month's charges due 09/28/2021 

ACCOUNT INVOICE 

If._ 'P8•• in 

Details of Current Month's Charges - Service from - 08/05/2021 to 09/01/2021 

Service for: 801 TRAILMARK DR, ST AUGUSTINE, FL 32092-0000 

Meter 
Number 

SHD95922 

Read Date 

09/01/2021 

Customer Charge 

Distribution Charge 

Swing Service Charge 

Florida Gross Receipts Tax 

Natural Gas Service Cost 

Current 
Reading 

926 

Total Current Month's Charges 

Previous 
Reading 

863 

= Measured 
Volume 

63CCF 

66.3 THMS @ $0.47303 

66.3 THMS @ $0.03880 

Rate Schedule: Small General Service - Transportation 

x BTU x Conversion = 

1.052 1.0000 

$30.60 

$31.36 

$2.57 

$1.82 

$66.35 

$66.35 

Billing 
Period Total Used 

66.3 Therms 28 Days 

Peoples Gas Usage History 

Therms Per Day 
sEP (Average) 2021 _____ 2.4 

AUG ___ 1,7 

JUL ___ 1,6 

JUN-0.9 

APR ______ 3.0 

MAR--•1.5 
FEB _______ 3.8 

JAN 4., 

DEC----•2.6 
N□V-Q,3 

OCT ■ 0.1 

SEP• 0.3 
2020 

Page 3 of 4 



Page4 of 4 



• ree m1go 
-~--=-'ea - -=-

Outdoor Services 

Billed To: Six Mile Creek CDD 
1408 Hamlin Ave 
Unit E 
St. Cloud FL 34771 

Description 

August Monthly Landscape Maintenance 

Notes: 

SEP O 9 2021 ,. 
I 
Lt 

Project: 20288 

Invoice 
Invoice#: 15984 

Date: 08/30/2021 

Six Mile Creek CDD Reverie Trailmark 

1408 Hamlin Ave 
Unit E 
St. Cloud FL 34771 

Quantity 

1.00 

Price 

5,604.67 

Invoice Total: 

Ext Price 

5,604.67 

$5,604.67 

5000-18 Highway 17 No. 235 Fleming Island, FL 32003 Office: (904) 778-1030 Fax: (904) 778-1045 

Email:cryan@treeamigosoutdoor.com Website: www.TreeAmigosOutdoor.com 
Page 

1 of 1 



f~b Berger, Toombs, Elam, 
-OJ Gaines & Frank 

Certified Public Accountant,; PL 

600 Citrus Avenue 
Suite 200 
Fort Pierce, Florida 34950 

772/461-6120. 
FAX: 772/468-9278 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
575 WESTTOWN PL, ST 114 
ST: AUGUSTINE, FL 32092 

Invoice No. 
Date 
Client No. 

355280 
09/12/2021 
20938 

Services rendered in connection with the audit of the Basic Financial Statements 
as of and for the year ended September 30, 2020. 

Member AICPA 

~l'22 '6)2,1 

Jyo t9uJ;f_ Strv.'c.t~ 

JID.Jl7-T~ i 

Total Invoice Amount 

c:CE VE rl S!::P I 7 2021 
SY:,.,,,-"""""""" _____ _ 

Please enter client number on your check. 
Finance charges are calculated on balances over 30 days old at an annual percentage rate of 18%. 

Fort Pierce / Stuart 

Member AICPA Division For CPA Firms 
Private Companies Practice Section 

$ 5,315.00 

Member FICPA 



~V"".'.'~111'.""".'I""' -., -

Hopping Green & Sams ~_,--· 

f'i SEP 1 6 2021 
Attorneys and Counselors 

119 S. Monroe Street, Ste. 300 
P.C. Box 6526 

Ta!!ahassee, FL 32314 
8.50.222.7500 

~Y: __ -- ---· 

================================== STATEMENT ==========================="'===== 

September 15, 2021 
Six Mile Creek CDD 
c/o GOVERNMENT MANAGEMENT SERVICES, LLC 
1408 Hamlin Avenue, Unit E 

Bill Number 125047 
Billed through 07/31/2021 

St. Cloud, FL 34771 

General CounseB 
SIXCDD 00001 WSH 

FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED 
07/01/21 WSH Review and revise agreement with Tree Amigos for Reverie. 

07/02/21 

07/07/21 

07/08/21 

07/09/21 

07/12/21 

07/13/21 

07/14/21 

07/21/21 

07/27/21 

07/28/21 

07/30/21 

WSH 

WSH 

KfJ 

WSH 

WSH 

WSH 

WSH 

WSH 

WSH 

WSH 

WSH 

Confer with Kern regarding agreement for cameras. 

Participate in conference call regarding agenda for July meeting; confer with 
Kern regarding Envera agreement; review and revise May and June minutes. 

Prepare budget funding agreement; con-fer with Haber. 

Prepare budget and O&M assessment notices; confer with Otver r~garding 
same. 

Confer with Oliver and Fulks regarding O&M assessment notices. 

Confer with Oiiver regarding O&M assessment notices and al!ocation; prepare 
for Board meeting. 

Prepare for and participate in Board meeting. 

Confer with O!iver r,=garding assessrr:ent notices for 0&1\1. 

Confer with counsel for Envera regarding agreement; confer with Kern 
regarding same. 

Confer with Envera representative regarding finalization of agreement for 
Reverie. 

Finalize review and confer with Kern and Envera regarding agreement; confer 
with Fulks and Oliver regarding allocation of assessments. 

Total fees for this matter 

MATTER SUMMARY 

Jusevitch, Karen F.- Paralegal 0.30 hrs 125 /hr 

0.40 hrs 

0.30 i1rs 

0.80 hrs 

l).30 hrs 

0.50 hrs 

0.30 hrs 

0.70 hrs 

!.50 hrs 

1.:30 .,rs 

0.50 hrs 

(i.30 hrs 

0.50 hrs 

$1,471.00 

$37,50 



Six Mile Creek CDD - General C Bill No. 125047 p';,ge 2 

----------=======------=====-========================================================== 
Haber, Wesley S. 

TOTAL FEES 

TOTAL CHARGES FOR THIS MATTER 

BILLING SUMMARY 

Jusevitch, Karen F.- Paralegal 
Haber, Wesley S. 

TOTAL FEES 

TOTAL CHARGES FOR THIS BILL 

6.10 hrs 

0.30 hrs 
6.10 hrs 

235 /hr 

125 /hr 
235 /hr 

Please include the bil number with your payment. 

$1,433.50 

$1,471.00 

$1,411.100 

$37.50 
$1,433.50 

$1,471.00 

$1,411.1!)0 



Hopping Green £1' Sams 
Attorneys and Counselors 

119 S. Monroe Street, Ste. 300 
P.O. Box 6526 

Tallahassee, FL 32314 
850.222. 7500 

~r~,.,,....-- ~" -
t1 lj"_4_ 

' SEP 16 2021 
BY_ 

================================= STATEMENT ==========c===========,,======== ·=== 

September 15, 2021 
Six Mile Creek CDD 
c/o GOVERNMENT MANAGEMENT SERVICES, LLC 
1408 Hamlin Avenue, Unit E 

Bill Number 125049 
Billed through 07/31/2021 

St. Cloud, FL 34771 

Boundary Amendment 
SIXCDD 00105 WSH 

FOR PROFESSIONAL SEIR.VICE:S RENDERED 
07/07/21 WSH Review and revise resolution approving boundary amendment. 

07/09/21 WSH Finalize resolution and prepare funding agreement. 

07/15/21 WSH 

07/21/21 WSH 

Confer with Oliver regarding boundary amendment petition and SERC. 

Review and revise boundary amendment petition. 

07/23/21 KFJ 

07/30/21 WSH 

Confer wlth Haber regarding boundary amendment petition. 

Review and revise boundary amendment petition. 

Total fees for this matter 

MATTER SUMMARY 

Jusevitch, Karen F.- Paralegal 
Haber, Wesley S. 

TOTAL FEES 

TOTAL CHARGES FOR THIS MATTER 

BILLING SUMMARY 

Jusevitch, Karen F.- Paralegal 
Haber, Wesley S. 

TOTAL FEES 

TOTAL CHARGES FOR THIS BILL 

0.20 hrs 
2.50 hrs 

0.20 hrs 
2.50 hrs 

125 /hr 
235 /hr 

125 /hr 
235 /hr 

Please include the bill number with your payment. 

0.50 hrs 

0.40 hrs 

Q.50 hrs 

0.60 hrs 

0.20 hrs 

0.50 hrs 

$612.50 

$25.00 
$587.S0 

$612.50 

$6l.2.50 

$25.00 
$587.50 

$612.50 



1 APPROVE 
By Alex Boyer at 9:01 am, Sep 20, .2021 Invoice. 

#IN-188380 Pro-Vigil, Inc. 
4646 Perrin Creek 
STE 280 

Amenity- Security Monitoring 

San Antonio TX 78217 

Bill To 

Six Mile Creek, CDD 
1408 Hamlin Ave., Unit E 
St. Cloud FL 34771 
United States 

Ship To 

Six Mile Creek, COD 
805 TrailMark Drive 
St. Augustine FL 32092 
United States 

PO# 

9/20/2021 

AMOUNT DUE 

$1,150.66 
Due Date: 10/05/2021 

Terms 
Net 15 

Due Date 
10/05/2021 Six Mile Creek COD 

Customer ID 
CU-20794:1 

Contract Number 

3032 

Qty Item 

Site: CU-20794:1 Six Mile Creeks, COD: Six Mile Creek, COD 

1.00 S50005 Upgrade· Synology 4-Bay NAS 
DiskStation D5916+ (4-Bay) 
1 Unit at $37.04 

1.00 S10032 Fixed- Damage Waiver 
1 Unit at $90.07 

1.00 S10023 Fixed - Guaranteed Protection Plan (GPP) 
1 Unit at $67.7 

7.00 S50016 Upgrade-Axis M3025-VE Network 
Camera 
7Unitat$10.19 

1.00 S10129 Fixed - Carefree Maintenance and 
Replacement' 
1 Unit at $86.06 

3.00 S10034 Fixed - IP Camera Hosting Fixed 
3 Unit at $51.63 

6.00 S10021 Fixed - Live Monitoring (12 Hours per 
Day) 
6 Unit at $144.57 

1.00 S50017 Upgrade - Axis C3003-E Network Horn 
Speaker 
1 Unit at $24.07 

,r::r-e,rr-n~ /'/~;-=-:. 

u~;7o" ;~2~~:·,; 
I\ u 
BY:.-------

II II I Ill II II 1111111111111111 Ill 
IN-188380 

Billing Peri.ad Billing Period 
Start Date End Date Rate 

9/20/2021 

9/20/2021 

9/20/2021 

9/20/2021 

9/20/2021 

9/20/2021 

9/20/2021 

9/20/2021 

10/17/2021 $37.04 

10/17/2021 $90.07 

10/17/2021 $67.70 

10/17/2021 $10.19 

10/17/2021 $86.06 

10/1712021 $51.63 

10/17/2021 $144.57 

10/17/2021 $24.07 

Subtotal 

Discount 

Tax Total 

Amount Paid 

Amount Due 

Amount 

$37.04 

$90.07 

$67.70 

$71.33 

$86.06 

$154,89 

$867.42 

$24.07 

$1,398.58 

($247.92) 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$1,150.66 

1 of 2 



.@ PRO-VfGlL 
Pro-Vigil, Inc. 
4646 Perrin Creek 
STE 280 
San Antonio TX 78217 

We're pleased to announce that we've adopted a new solution that allows you to 
submit payment online. Simply click the link below to pay via credit card or ACH. 
We're looking forward to the transition and hope you enjoy the simplified 
process. For questions about invoices please call 866-616-1318 from 8 am to 5 
pm CT, M-F, or email AR@pro-vigil.com. • 

For non-electronic payments please remit to: 
Lockbox Remittance (Check): 
PRO-VIGIL INC. 
PO. BOX 677107 
DALLAS TX 75267 - 7107 

11111111111111111 II I II 11111 Ill 
IN-188380 

Invoice 
#IN-188380 

9/20/2021 

2 of 2 



·~ 

ST JOHNS COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE 

DETAIL INVOICE 

TRAILMARK INVOICE 
**PLEASE FILL IN ALL YELLOW BOXES** 

TRAILMARK SUBDIVISION 

~i -

~· 
J,·.JJOICES ARE DUE EACH MONDAY BY SAM -SEND TO RMNELSON@SJSO.ORG 

~~ 
REMIT PAYMENT TO: BILL TO: INVOICE# 
Robert M. Nelson Six Mile Creek CDD SERVtCE DATE: 

475 West Town Place, Suite 114 'NVOKE DATE: 9/20/21 
St. Augustine, fl 32092 TOTAL DUE: S180.00 
*BlUE BOXES PAYROLL USE ONLY* DUE DATE: UPON RECEIPT 

DATE CAD# TIMEIN TIMEOUT 
TOTAL 

TOTAL DUE 
HOURS 

Saturday, September 18, 2021 SJS021CAD189496 4p 6:30p 2.5 $100.00 
Sunday, September 19, 2021 SJS021CAD190235 4p 6p 2 $80.00 

SJS021CAD 

SJS021CAD 

SJS021CAD 

SJS021CAD 
SJS021CAD 

ACTIVITY/ COMMENTS: HOUR RATE $40.00 4.5 $18(.;Jld 

r 

Traffic Stops - 4 
! AP;, ·OVt:D t ,. ~ . - ,... 

Golf cart violatic:1s - 0 
By Afex Boyer at 10:42 am, Sep 20~ 2021 

Weathered Edge Ddve traffic infractions observed - 0 
O&M- Security Patrol 

Citizen Assist-· 0 

PATROLLED NEIGHBORHOOD/POWER LINE RD (TRAILS ALSO)/KAYAK LAUNCH/BACK 

GATE/CONSTRUCTION SITES. NOTHING SUSPICIOUS SEEN OR REPORTED. 

i\:l3't 
~ ~ ll!'l qTIE"r-

- • • .... ~ .. \al i.:."-

£.wri~ Srve,. - SEP 20 2021 :.2o·S3i-34.S 
(: ... ____ ..,. ·---

revised 2-10-2020 



Questions on this invoice call: 

(866) 470-7133 Option 2 

~ l!!.I NEWSPAPER l!:l!!I l!!J ~ ~ BILLED 1!!J TIMES ~ l:!.I 
START STOP REFERENCE DESCRIPTION PRODUCT SAU SIZE UNITS RUN RATE AMOUNT 

04/30 Balance Forward $521.49 

05/11 P172469 Payment - Lockbox 3502 $-291.69 

05/20 P173239 Payment - Lockbox 3516 $-71.80 

05/25 P173791 Payment - Lockbox 3524 $-157.07 

05/10 05/10 103354394-05102021 Notice of Meeting SA St Augustine Record 1.00 X 4. 0000 4 1 $8.98 $35.92 

05/10 05/10 103354394-05102021 Notice of Meeting SA St Aug Record Online 1.00 X 4.0000 4 1 $8.97 $35.88 

05/17 05/17 103355750-05172021 Affidavit ~ 
05/17 05/17 103355750-05172021 BOS MTG 5/26/21 SA St Augustine Record 1.00 X 4.0000 4 1 $8.98 $35.92 

05/17 05/17 103355750-05172021 BOS MTG 5/26/21 SA St Aug Record Online 1.00 X 4.0000 4 1 $8.97 $35.88 

05/31 05/31 103357185-05312021 Notice of Meeting Six Mile Creek SA St Augustine Record 1.00 X 4.2500 4.25 1 $8.98 $38.17 
Community Development District 
The Six Mile Creek Community 
Development District Audit Review 
Committee will meet on Wednesd 

05/31 05/31 103357185-05312021 Notice of Meeting Six Mile Creek SA St Aug Record Online 1.00 X 4.2500 4.25 1 $8.97 $38.12 
Community Development District 
The Six Mile Creek Community 
Development District Audit Review 
Committee will meet on Wednesd 

·1Ece1ve• PREVIOUS AMOUNT OWED: $521.49 

NEW CHARGES THIS PERIOD: $229.89 • ''N 1 2021 .,,.., 
CASH THIS PERIOD: ($520.56) 

DEBIT ADJUSTMENTS THIS PERIOD: $0.00 t .,, I~ 
1:1 

CREDIT ADJUSTMENTS THIS PERIOD: $0.00 ,,,,, 
F'i,t·. 

We appreciate your business. 

So that we may serve you better, please remit the amount due. New business is dependent on prompt payments. Please include the 

remittance stub and input your account number on your check. Thank you. 

~Lj 
JlbJIJ-¼~ 

INVOICE AND STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT AGING OF PAST DUE ACCOUNTS • UNAPPLIED AMOUNTS ARE INCLUDED IN TOTAL AMOUNT DUE sar 
21 I CURRENT NET AMOUNT 22 I 

$86.29 

"I 
1 J 

MAKE CHECKS PAYABLE TO 

The St. Augustine Record 

30OAYS 60DAYS 

$144.63 $0.00 

BILLING PERIOD I• I BILLED ACCOUNT NUMBER 

05101/:?021 - 05/31/2021 I 15653 

The St. Augustine Record Dept 1261 
PO Box 121261 
Dallas, TX 75312-1261 

, 1 BILLING PERIOD 

OVER SO DAYS • UNAPPLIED AMOUNT " I TOTAL AMOUNT DUE 

$0.00 $0.10 $230.82 
ADVERTISER INFORMATION 

1,1 ADVERTISER/CLIENT NUMBER I 2 I ADVERTISER/CLIENT NAME 

I 15653 I SIX MILE CREEK CDD C/O GMS LLC 

Payment is due upon receipt. 

PLEASE DETACH AND RETURN LOWER PORTION WITH YOUR REMITTANCE 

2 J ADVERTISER/CLIENT NAME 

05/01/2021 - 05/31/2021 SIX MILE CREEK CDD C/O GMS LLC 

COMPANY ,. I TOTAL AMOUNT DUE • UNAPPLIED AMOUNT I• I TERMS OF PAYMENT 

SA 7 $230.82 
The St. Augustine Record Dept 1261 
PO Box 121261 
Dallas, TX 75312-1261 

ADVERTISING INVOICE and STATEMENT 

BIWNG ACCOUNT NAMEMD ADDRESS 

"'"' 

,,1 

• I 

SIX MILE CREEK CDD C/O GMS LLC 
475 W TOWN PL STE 114 
SAINT AUGUSTINE FL 32092-3649 

CURRENT NET AMOUNT 1221 

$86.29 I 
PAGE# I• I BILLING DATE 

1 I 05/31/2021 

11111 I• I 111• I• 1I111111111.111, 1111 I 111 I• h 1111, 111,1 •11 '• 1 I• 11111 

I• I 
I 

$0.10 I NET 15 DAYS 
30 DAYS I 

$144.63 I 
BILLED ACCOUNT NUMBER 

15653 

60DAYS I OVER90DAYS 

$0.00 I $0.00 
1,1 ADVERTISER/CLIENT NUMBER I 24 STATEMENT NUMBER 

I 15653 I 0000091420 

REMITTANCE ADDRESS 

The St. Augustine Record 
Dept1261 
PO Box 121261 
Dallas, TX 75312-1261 



Mon, Sep 13, 2021 
11:37:46AM 

Acct: 
Phone: 
E-Mail: 
Client: 

Legal Ad Invoice 

The St. Augustine Record 

15653 
9049405850 
tviscarra@gmscfl.com 

Send Payments to: 
The St. Augustine Record Dept 1261 

PO BOX 121261 
Dallas, TX 75312-1261 

Name: SIX MILE CREEK CD□ C/O GMS LLC 
Address: 475 WEST TOWN PLACE, STE 114 

SIX MILE CREEK CDD C/O GMS LLC City: SAINT AUGUSTINE State: FL Zip: 32092 

Ad Number: 0003374451-01 Caller: Sarah Sweeting Paytype: BILL 
09/06/2021 Start: 

Placement: 
Copy Line: 

Lines 
Depth 
Columns 

Price 

09/06/2021 Issues: 1 
SA Legals Rep: Chris ISC-Landry 
Notice of Meeting Six Mile Creek Community Development District 

46 
4.00 

1 

$71.80 

Notice ofMeeting 
Six Mile Creek 

Community De,1elopment District 

The regular meetini; of the Board ofSu
penisors of the Sax Mile Creek Com
munity Development District will be 
held on Wednesday~ September 15y 
2021 at 2;00 p.m. at the Renaissance 
World Golf Village Resort, 500 
South Legacy Trail, St. Augustine, 
Florida 32092. 'The meeting is open 
to the public and will be conducted in 
accordance with the provisions of Flori
da Law fOI' Community Da 1elopment 
Districts. A ~y of the agenda for this 

~~eti~fa:a~:.e 407~~:t fr;~hif;!~ 
Suite 114. sl. Augustine~ Florida 32092 
(and phone (904) 94-0-5850). This 
meeting may be continued to a date, 
time, and place to be specified on the 
record at die meeting. There may be oc
casions when one or more Supervisors 
will participate b;r telephone. 

Any person requninJ special accommo
dations at this meeting becam;e of a di.s-

:~~~ct tb/grs~i~!~ tJ«:~~~4)h~b~ 
5850 at least two calendar days prior to 
the meeting. If you are hearing or 
speech impaired, ple35e cont.1.~t the 
Florida Relay Service at 1-800-955-
8770, for aid in contacting the District 
Office. 

Each person who decides to appeal any 
action taken at this meeting lS advised 
that person will need a record of the 
proceedings and that accordingly, the 
person may need to ensure that a verba
tim record of the proceedings is made, 
including the testimony and evidence 
upon which such appeal is to be based. 

JamesOliyer 
District Manager 

0003374451 September 6, 2021 

Stop: 

The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the S 



THE ST. AUGUSTfNE RECORD 
Affidavit of Publication 

SIX MILE CREEK CDD C/O GMS LLC 
475 WEST TOWN PLACE, STE 114 

SAINT AUGUSTINE, FL 32092 

ACCT: 15653 
AD# 0003374451-0 I 

PO# 

PUBLISHED EVERY MORNING SUNDAY THROUGH SATURDAY 
ST. AUGUSTINE AND ST. JOHNS COUNTY, FLORIDA 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF ST. JOHNS 

Before the undersigned authority personally appeared MELISSA 
RHINEHART who on oath says he/she is an Employee of the St. Augustine 
Record, a daily newspaper published at St. Augustine in St. Johns County, 
Florida; that the attached copy of advertisement being a NOTICE OF 
MEETING in the matter of REG MTG BOS 9/15/21 was published in said 
newspaper in the issue dated 09/06/2021. 

Affiant furtht!r says that the St. Augustine Record is a newspaper published at 
St. Augustine, in St. Johns County, Florida, and that the said newspaper 
heretofore has been continuously published in said St. Johns County, Florida 
each day and has been entered as second class mail matter at the post office in 
the City of St. Augustine, in said St. Johns County, Florida for a period of one 
year preceding the first publication of the attached copy of advertisement; and 
aftiant further says the he/she has neither paid nor promised any person, firm 
or corporation any discount, rebate, commission, or refund for the purpose of 
securing this advertisement for publication in said newspaper. 

Sworn to (or affirmed) and subscribed before me by means of 

[><[" physical presence or 
[ ] online notarization 

this_ day oSEP. 1 3 2021 . 

~;s pmonally known to 
me or who has produced as identification 

'Ii; 
l 
~/~ 

' • 

lr' 

7 

Notice ofMeeting 
Si-. Mile Creek 

Community De'\o'Clopment Dimict 

The regular meetin~ of the Board ofSu
per\"isors of the Six Mile Creek C-0m
munity Development District will be 
held on Wednesday, September 15, 
2021 at 2:00 p.m. at the Renaissance 
World Golf Villaile Resort, 500 
South Legacy Trail, St. Augustine, 
Florida 32092. The meeting is open 
to the public and will be conducted in 
accordance with the provisions of Flori
da Law for Community Development 
Districts. A copy of the agenda for this 
meeting may be obtained from the Dis
trict Manager, 475 West Town Place, 
Suite 114, St. Augustine, Florida 32092 
(and phone (904) 940-5850). This 
meeting may be continued to a date, 
time, and place to be specified on the 
record at tlie mee.ting. There may be oc
casions when one or more Supervisors 
will participate bvtelephone. 

Any person requiring special accommo
dations at this meeting because of a dis
ability or physical impairment should 
contact the District Office at (904) 940-
5850 at least two calendar days prior to 
the meetin~ If you are hearing or 
speech imEaired.. please contact the 
Florida Relay Service at 1·800-955-
8770, for aid in contacting the Distric.t 
Office. 

Ench person who decides to appeal any 
action taken at this meeting 1s advised 
that person will need a_ record of the 
proceedings and that accordingly, the 

~s:;3 ~ttet~:On~~~;t; ;~~: 
includinll the testimonv and evidence 
upou which such appeal is to be based. 

James Oliver 
District Manager 

00033744-51 September 6, 2021 



" 't t:! !I'\ 

Sold To: 22539664 
Six MileCDD 
475 W Town Pl Ste I i4 
St Augustine FL 3:;_092 

SEP 2 8. 2021 

Project Name: Six mile CD!) Trai!mnrk: 1:,,.i..:kcre<:k v,dm~ L :,;;~~ 
Project Description: Six mite COD Trn'ilm2:k: Backen; :.ii. :- ,t;l:;'. ;,,,.,;'!s 

:;-. .. -.. .. f,ll ............ ~..,.....1.,, .......... ~,t"'"~j,, ...... ~i ... _..,,.,~-

J~~~-: E::?i~~-~;::~,:,~=--·---t-·~~l,,.,j~~ I-· 
Hu mer ICD De.:::ocer , • .CGO E \ 

! 
Hunter S'.Jlermkl I ; .c::n E ', 

!I >'!,· ..... j ....... , ,- • 3m Dby r splice kit , .1.1, k,. ~,_.. 

------ .1 ..... -----··\ 
f AP PRO VEr.) 1 

I_ By A!ex Boyer at f ·r ·4£l r:;m, ,6.!;_;:: ~ a ,: ·,~~: J 
- ----- -,----···-·--

O&M- Irrigation ff;Sint 

INVOICE 

Cm:m,,mer #: 22539664 
fovokc ff: 7549683 
lm0ic~ Dat1;: 9/23/2021 
St,:.::-s On:Jser: 7624301 
CtbtPO#; 

77 . .251 
i 

:85.40 

1,081.50 

!85.40 

21.74 

164.80 

1-•-·-•-•-•--•-•-'" ■ Mll • ._...,,._.._ ..... ___, ..... _,,..,.__,.....,,...,4,,1 .. -·•.,_ •-•.,-,._-.-,,_ '--••" •,<,,,.c ... "'•~..'"4 ........ ..,_ •• .._.._._., ""'"''· _,....,....,.__,.._W_III __ , .,,.__.._ ,._ .. _ .. ___ .. _,. ______ _ 

Payment Stub 
Customer Account#: 22539664 
Invoice#: 754968'.l 
Invoice Date: 9/23/202; 

SixMil~CDD 
475 W Town Pl Ste 114 
St Augustii;e l•~ 32092 

Thank roufor ai!cwing us 10 sen•e you 

Please reJ:cn::·.C'c: ,he invoice# on vour 
• £t!~k and make payable to 

BrightV!ew L.:1:1dscape Services, Inc. 
.· P.O. Box 740655 

A1.'imt::, GA 30374-0655 



BrightVie·vv 

QTY 

14 oc 
LOO 

1,00 

2000 

Property Na:ne 
Property Address 

LloM/Siza 

HOUR 

EACH 

EACH 

EACH, 

For int...-nal u111 only 

SO# 

Six Mile COD Traih1ar!< 

805 Trailrn~r< Ork,;, 
St Augusti.':,i, FL 32092 

H . .1nler So anoit: 

Alex Boyar 

SixMileCDD 

,)i'S 1:VTovm P :}L '\i4 
SlAugusti:.e H Z:i.:'.?2 

JOB# 
Setvlee Line 

345100520 
150 Total Price 

,ms N(,";" J,N ,,;.\/OIC!:: 
This i,rapos;;:I is •:al d fJr eo tap l.'ntess c11an-iw ,,;,~·,;,,·,io by Bri;;r,:V~w la:1ascape Services. !n,: 

1153;'.; ll~v s Cr:iek C<iur:. J&t,ten, ::o i"!.. ::nJ5fi ~r. iSC4) 1~2 .: 1 ;6 ,~,. .904) 292·1014 

Sep1ember 22, 2021 

Pa9e 1 Of 2 

$1,453.44 



TERMS & CONDITIONS 
1. Thf! ConUa-etor '$hen 1c-~4nlz(! :;nd s;errcrm i11 a;cc~t:1-:1:-=•.:t wr'"\ "<1, ... 1. ·• -~ ·:n, 

~tt.n apeofieo\1cns a~d j:a-.,,;~ ar.tt, ~r.t::,mc 1 t~ :efet:-£;~ t~ .. ~.;:-• 
meletta!& shail coni':lrrrs l:> ba SPl!ciflcatiet,s 

2. Work Forae: Cont,a<'.Ot shall o.-.lgr,i,i,. n '-iltli,i:fi t(f,<.,5ec.tai;.,;, w • 
experi$nc~ m ltnd\ccpe maint'-!nanW.cor;;,;1rncti !It& up-a~a 1~! .. ·1v,.1J:~ 
a.oPltable in tree- rr.an~sem~nt Tha workforCEt s:~a!:. b~ tor..'\P~t&r.t :arid '1..ta!-'' :;d_ 
lllld shall be legallv at.l!--<ir:zed to work ill t";e \J S 

3. Utiert!o and Pen¥dt;.s.: Ccm:ra::0, ~i1a!l ma,r.ta,., !1 Ltmttvt:c-e Cc .. Lrec:i,, ~, 
hcert!-e a requ,i:ad ~ Sta.ta: or ke-a faw, lirid v.1:i :o~~V \'tilth :lt. e1r~r ·-\.':t·1·,u 
and permrt J~U'1ft:nail.b at !he Cit11: Stalt: and t=i!'tle1~l SoVBrr.r,,;e.l'\-..s a!~ v1t 

as all olher reqlli,emMill c! law 

-l.. T.a.x~a-Contra~o, a~,.Nu; to ;:.ay ~l'. al)P:elt~~ ~&, %. 1t.t ·uQ;r.:,;. :.;~~ iZ:u \!\-~ •. :. 

eppilcabl!'l on maienal a~;i,ed 

t. Insurance C:::r.~at.:t-~ aO!!~~ to p;t,v:.clt C·f'.!l~~ .. ! :i.iat.d r-1 n:...;;a:-:.:-\ 
Automo':.!ue UabiG:y i.'!.!W~nee, \:\!orket't. Comperi~at-U'I lttSl•i~fi~, told t .'f 
ct Mr insura.-ice ret?Jtred t'ft/ I4irN -c. ClientJ C.vr.~: it t-~ ~:n~:1 a frn..i;.~ r t<Ci.· __ , 
commenctm:~~ °; ;/!'J!::,.. 1r :net tr,:,e~",~-:t c-1~,J:3::·::-~ ~-~· :.1mith c.;Hr:::-•:.e \':tn 
Sl 000.!lOOlm>< GI "a.~ .. , 

t. Li=blllly Cootrar.~, itlllil ma.,,,nify u,;; Cten:·evm;; sM ,it ~c, .~:~ ~.,.; 
11mrJoyee-t fr~m ~r.rt a,air.s~ any !hlrd parq Vet.i'.i!il!~ M~t c: s1 eut ~·· 
Ct>ntractors wo,k to t .. \: 1:xtet.~ ~ceh 1:a~~~~- iiZ'b tt1/.!~~t.:?j t, t.t~~ t.i. ·i 

caused bf CGntre-!ter'S; ill~~:-:c.e at v&;HJ r/t$t0n!f...cl. CCt'!o'!idCr t.hv''. q:-J: 

oo liE!b!e lo! arrr dorr,a;;e tilal ,:;;i;;c111 from Ae1s IA GeJ sra :ie•n~tl 1,t iLT, 
caused by vt1incfstom'1. b:aU. fire. !:oo~, tsrth~:.;:..~~- t~.mi~.,-~l)a -Aon-.. t,.:.+.!,:'l<J r:: 
l.,..'1'ider these clre:;.mlttz:-:~1., Ce:r;Wict:.r ti:.!1~: t:J•:,.~ ~11' ·,~A to ;,!i\t,g(,;ta,; 1t. t 
1enns and i=Ft~ Qt J,:t. i:;:teme·r.~ YA!hin !.ixt: f!)! c.~;:: k; :1:1.0-J -~·:!'!~U, 
darJ';t'S antVO! dat.'13J!G h!:'$JJ!bt,~ frcrn ~l'Crit in.. . '!-te·J u-:at i not ~n P• :~ .A,y 
ovvned by Cl!er."J\Jl'\,1':er or riot -.;1\d~r C:if't;VC~n.'IH ;11,: ~o-;er~ttJ a.tt'2 evrr:::l~ 
$hall be the so1E-retpo:,s:b:ti~l c, tha Cti~tl'?(M/r!t;-t 

?. ihlbconl1:ic:tcr~ Ce.~bocier rc5~1'11&S '''* rit;h, to ta,3 qu~l.r.,•ll 
wbcontractor& iv pe,icrm -spett~·\2ed fi.J1-ct~.C:t•~ or lfY.;ti 10"'.i--~:;t 1Jpr:;t~i;. . .J 
equipment 

ll. 4:ldltl.,nl>I ll,tr~(~·:c, k; z:,JJit..:.'lol \\e,:, tel '""·°' i,'. t\1e ~Cl(i,,, 

3;"Nt~fn:a~eria in'10!\•W.; ~>:tre c~ZJ~. 1>-~;; be l!t<:•cuted or·J/ upth1 f,ifnes:: ~,,,,.:.~ 
0rda1a, ef\d ,;,,II i;ee:)nie 1!m e,1rn t!'l!tl)s! ""•' enc abcll~ t,e esii,nate 

t Access to .Jobt.~~ ~;it.l~ r.;:t s."'t{3;. p:;:•~kti! air t~--bt1 .1, ;;e{t; rn ~:-•. 
\<VOrk, c:,-ent~e1 s-r,&1 t,.t:;·,;sh !'oc.t"S~ ;, s :;:.arts d j--,~ ..... u~ •1.l11.rn:1 ~.:,nt·L~~ci< 
i$ to pe-dom-; 't....iik .".\~ r,:1;~•.:1t.:.;1 "::ii the C1n:. £:~ t-~ t/:hQ? br.~Ctt'.!- rr.Ja' .,0 
thet-eto. dtH'ing no,,1.<Q'. hU:&:lfi?Sf ~•1i)tH\i t~('° ,·~: '.\!: t~;~:r t•n;:i:e p:e,;;,~ 1s of t:·} 
Contractor ~xl p.H~ou:-: r~~ \--.int c.,.'J wea%r.lt-ty ~1;i:.:tt .... ~ ,;·,"".:et "!ri~ t.i,.'r.,.. •• '1&: . ..::; 
tno Urte a .. "3iS9tl~ S"o.:-i:-e:-:::.~ no'>C-.! c1 ,~ ~ \Y::~,; 

,o. fnvotl:it\o: Oi~iU . .'0-..•1:r~r tJ.'l::J. mci.:c payrt.e.:lt :o ~ri.-·:~ct ·:-,•. f:.i.1 ~e· ::· 
days upon u~-cei;;t ~r ;w,:,.,,::1:1: '1 t:'.v evt:r-;·' :ht" (•":'¾a'.L 1 fot J~.;, ... c,r.~.:-e .. ,:m :~ 
the '1>.tOtk ahaa rEtµ.~ rn. '-1:J" ,~~ .'.t1 t!' ·ny :O: -:; :yij .._, ;HO _ _;jtc:1·> b:' .,fr '.::w 
Qrfferited 'a-j .tnof\!h t?td .Jf'.d &htll De paid w.t:--,1,; frta:.:ri ~5) <!i:'l"u u"t:.n ti!·c-e;r-, 
of invoice 

.,_ TarminaUon: Th:~ ~-,'o;k Order nia·,,r t~ Utt:r.iruttd Ly-:h:, ~1lt10 ~3:r.-y "h !h ~; 
'MthtuJt cause, uPCn 1-e'J~~ {. S w~tl< daya <Jj\(z;:ce wt;ttI:.1 ~;.:;~c·,:, C!tl:! .u,:.-~\:'!;?t: 
't'All b& requiied ~o P3J ft,r &t" mt?t·r a~1 pi.;tt~c.~ 0.: >l(~j: v•,"Q;):; OY~P:&:.::J le g-;,e 
dZtti& oft&nn!nation 01:: H1l!~on~/:''.:; c.ha:Q~ ncurrn:: i:~ .1~m:ih, .:z,ng 

t2. Assignment: Tt-,.1; Ow.'X!t!Clie:·,! and tt:e ~unu~.f.{')! rt:,··-,ctrvr:1. ~;:•.~ 
tnem!dves, me:r ~,:tr.(t& S.J:Ce-..:so,-s a:s'.,J.rnt"' ar.j ~3i Ti;~t~tmit;~tJe !'; 

tt1e other pa1Y 'M:h ~f!';')t~ !:, t crw.sna,\t-$ d .~is ;,. 7·,tem?.; t N-!: ~hi:r ti 
~et!Ote:.t nu t.~)! C-o:-rtact~r !.lha: il!.-::i;tt :ct ttz,r .. ,,: • ar¥ tniC.-'N.t r\ t,:~ 
Agreem~nt V<r\!hcU1 1r,a. \/r.it!an t.:ntenl <I:° tt:o :rJ'lt'!~ p.;:;v,c!ed:, Mc:!,'i.:::,·~: ! :·;;.~ 
consent ~hatl r.:ct bi:! :e~vir.Jd 10 ::~a·g11 tt.i4, t:1::€i'.'~t! . ..; ,..r,p t...::11~ . ..a·, w~ •,,. 
ec-ntro!s, ti cott.:o!l.!t by o~ •~ t1 • .:'6r cc,.11nt c~n~H::: !,v:th C~n.rsc~.H -,r ·1 
conri«tion "\Mt..'1 a~11Jdm1;\ to er, aff:1at~ t,l' pi.;rst.·e1t,t ~r., e m~:~r sa:c o.f ~ f : 

sub!tar:ta:ty .tl1 of ii ... r.:.:sttf.=s w Eq ... ,fy ~eci.rw~ ,c.:;r,;c!;dt.c1~;, -tr~:·.~,"( . f 
controa or cor.pc1att! rao~ti:ir.::.rfoo."; 

13. Dlsclttlfffl1r: This ~c~sa "Mt'3 ,~t.1mrti-l:d ;)~-:, p:~(f·{i C~sed ,;,:,n ;, ~.:~ v. ·I 
and Vfiwa1 ir:s~~, >'mm ;:·ou:r.d ie'lir! i.!S:.n.Q'. ¢r::i:naiy ~=:.~an'!I. t! ct ~f,;.~ ~.:· .. 
t:mc l~ propasai \\."ilS· Pfl!pate:i!! TM ~.c.~ ~;Jct~ h th~ pr:!~~- 1 ct ~~ .i 

WOik de$.,.,"'1i~d. ii 'h'f i'(.;$L1! Ofti'.!:l grour..o h?..c~1; Y.\l!.HJI -111:;,ee~n., tr:11 ~1,etai>::f' 
our t~; \'ttlt r-""l. Y. ·JJ.t:f"l fet eri1 ~.:··d:~t-r:~1 t~: .. ~tt 1;.~ CJrr•~ Jt.'·1 ~· ~ 
atfditioniJ WOt~ :;ot d!'-s.tfo~ t·erttn, or :;i:.t;;~ :er a11 i'iC"d-St"l~-:--C-.. ~:~'.'~· 
re,sut;::lg hO."i'\ C:Cf'~t.,,"$ U·.a,1 \.\i~:~ ~o·~ ,"l,!C~ ·t1::iai:f;! tty !Hf1 ~·~t,;.~m 1t.·.i/ 
1/isuai lr.spcctcn !:')' 01.:.oaty "1P.3M at l~a sm! S3'd bs;,t,:;~,:. w;,~ pi:fo,n:-; 
Contractor cannot ~ held i~aµonsit:?e ~or uli1·i1~•,r1 ~t o!!',.fJV1itc rdot' :,"'; 
de!e:cis Atr., c0tet•Ct.i\'C 'A<rk pro~osed :!'1~~,,,_-..:n ;.,...~nN -~-=:1ta:;Vf.~ \.l,:aC. r~ ... ~:·· 
P:o,es1iomd ~r,g:i~;.cri:~o a• ctrtecturai, r;ra.ar:-~ t~nas: .::..,e C'::".1,;;.1 ~:?rt..~ t :, 
("Oes?g~ Ser"k:tt .. ) v~ nut ;n";.11,,~f! !n tr:~ A\)re1!r .. ~:it t:-.u ,r,a! tt)t :.:.~ 
p:c::-vt:ded by the: crun,--~:1"'1 A"'t'1 d~Sig:M d~ft~--::-.. 1(; t~ :..=:tt\1:t D :;ti''ri'f':,S [ 

tlie 9o;g -ret.pon~it.::.t; of J:.e: C'M'\ef t! !:'le-~i:t:.,C \11~11 rl'I ... ~ E::·.ec,;-:: .., 
t:censed enfii!'\iNi . . :t ~i1ect ar~·, • ,ants.;.:..!!;::& :.c"'!~.l .:,ro!.!:jJ;; ""r:11 t:.~:y ,:.:-:;.u. 
coneern;n,g l1'(fS,a Ct-4 ~!., l Se!'lh:<f:• tit£ t-11 ~ f.:.ii;: !,-_,.· ~ ::.1r.;::::,. .... ,r E.i <.a.:, r 

10 ttJa dalgn~r i1~vn~ !d 

September 22, 2021 

Pa9e 2 012 

..... C.,tii.~dit:O,.,n t-lnr-ce of Cancet!atK1n t1, v.,;1•k ,;.tmt ~e retel\'ed m WfJtlnO 
!i~~.;r.:; ~t.:¼ tt'if'H i, c:.HtPiUChe:3 tb thei.r ;)t,;.!.!t; ~· C:H:l"f!UO~'<ne, wdl be •·able tot 
~ ?'I'., ... ,.~·--a t?:'"'i\'(•~c;i!!r:g-e o~ $1SOOJ -F-1j !j, i!'; :~ C.1fl':,t10wru:u 

lht.~ fe!li;,-Ntnr t«:eHent. !.~3H .:,µply where Cet.tr: .;ti:n r.:ovkJes Customer wlth t,co 
t::H ~fi'Vi,:;et: 

1!, r,..e it £ii.mp Ru,ms,, .. 1 Trees ,-,mo,,H; ,,,,;i be cut as cJOie 111 tt.e ground as 
p;,,$'6<> 'Ja,e<S on cor.diben~ 1-, or r,;,xt t~ thoJ :in~c;m o! the tree trunk. Addibcna! 
cr.arJ2. ,.;11 oo l~:;ed foi 1mseG~ haza,~; iuh as, bul ~o\ lim,tea to conciete 
b;,:k fr l~d uunti:s. meal rods, ett: tf i'-t<'.Wf:ied meeflat'I cal grinor.1, cl visible trtt 
,.nmnp 1~, he ct:-:"i~ !o a define•::, ".M<:.t, aa1a.,1e,<!h be--~w grouri:d -,euet ut an 
~:!5t:,~.:J), <:h~rge f~ t~e Ctent/0-Mftt J:;t,,~o ba~lr..:! artd ia,"t~cap~ matenal 
r:.~y t•i ~~e:::ed C'.antfOwt\e-t aNtH tr. t :.t:..:):!:l'lSAhlt! for c~tadmg Un~tground 
!';-~JVit..,-AJl>lr. t:, '\ICO:s u,:1da1grou:"K! i.,t·;r:_• ~ .1tm prto: te 5t&rt of V't'!>lk. Cantra~ar ,g 

:-: ... : ,~~f"•••~-'bia ~ema:e dOt\e to undH;,tvJJt"":,~ t.t. 1tl?fJ such as but no; llmtted to 
c:;;;ti~-i:t;. ·.1t.,-es. p~s. arad ,~1-'·gahefi pa::r..~ c.~nt!aG~ti• w r<1pan damaae,d ,mgan~n 

-::es ;,:i· J,&-Ci~~r.~1!),M;e(i '$Jpenso, 

·,J, 1.:..'.:.l•: .,-, ,d ll.lbl,:·:~·: P~,q.;~ts ft,r t:~Nn tt ...... t:-.; r. e111:-:e$~ of twen:t, five ;,e1cent 
r:~~:.;.t t tv;;)rk n .. .: !., a:c~tda~e vi'~h ~S.=~ ;~. ~eiricivir.;il &x:ety cf Arbo:'c.utturet} 
t·.:,r:z-id:t vi t ,a~wii~ i 1'.gne<twafotu c.f -~.=~ :1· 

J.. :;.'"'\::" • t, ·-· Cont~.::}C1 
>:.~-::!•"'!~1 ib t~'t~o,:zo1 ,~ perform t~ wot~ ,s~at<.t~ c,n the: face ot thit Contraet 
i'e;:,, ... ,t w,,i t.? 100% tiua at ume ol b •~O : .zv••~t.t ha, nci been ecc.ve<J b)' 
f'r:J~tV::.:n, w.!·· i• f.tl~a~ {15) ctay& a!tat t.t~ing,. €r:i_;"~V!l .. v :J~al! be ent1Ued to ao ct$t'a 

,~,r ,.cr.e-cL,"!''\ i•.d~i:.!n"IG (Cl~\,1able attomtys :~~-$ .,,.,d ~t \lh:&IJ be reheved of any 
,:-;C..:0,7..1~·.: t;) ~o.':.t'!~1'U.J ~tr!:ernanCIJ urlder lfl1~-:~r e:~:l c.tt«r Conlrs.ct wtn C'ient!Owner 
t.,J~i'c.st :;: a ir a~r.U-".\ uti; cf t . .s•~ per r~?::••:-; (" ~:\ ,er yoar) er the: fliQh$$t ,ate 
; i-0~;1i~!e-~ ey rnat b:'1 r.. 'il'Jell on tr.~¼l ::a;;r;. "~-ii~,: d~y$ .aft~r bit:,ng 

c:ncs: -;_·:<!E 'tO M.~KE P,~YMEh:. \*.,t;•r:r-;;;; ·: FJR COMPLETED WRK 'JN 
-c::--rJSi'r.u.:t;---;::•: ~iCSf., rt.,·_y RESULT J A\.' .. ~:,; .. ;, .. NH:::? L!EN o:.i THE TiTLE T') 
'!t,.;:~ ;. ~:?t~~'.-trv 

3461CC520 

7624301 



Josinda York 
------ ..... --~tt<L~~~l~~~'i:ff'J.~lfilH'Dl~·~ 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject 

Juwan D1~,,r::Z! 
Tuesde:y, S!E-f-1erri:,~; 
Aiex Bcye, 
Steve i, 1ct,sc,y; :11.,;ii1,,-y 

.. ~ _,., "".'i .,_ 

£..,.)4; 

Re: Tra.!mark ::ontrol!er iL,ui:s 

Thank you Alex we'll kt you knovv whr.it we find 

Sent from my ;Phnne 

That's fine. please prvct:ed. 

Alex Boyer 
Facility Mar.ager 

Evergreen Ufo.:;tyt~s Mar,:'g•: :i]..:r, ! 
10301 Dee::-wccic: P:srl. Blvd .. ,~1,..:c':: .:.20:) 
Jacksom illc~...)125~ 

{0) 9045682:;(,g 
(E) Above1 tL:e'l.~ihl.~f~ ... Ll./4wco:i!. 

Spotlight a team member ... if',, .:·,·~:t .,,em!~ei• 1!1.,3 ym1 ?xce:p1iaw:l sei·vice ph:csc 
visit wvvw.evcri.!rcer;-lm com cr,.l s.;;:.m.: ym~!·.f::;;;dba6'- fo.H c!h'k ·Grud Dee,l,; 1 on ilw wolhar 

On Sep 14, 2021. at 7:4;:t P.M. Ju1;.a:-. D~•;ite.;; <Juwm~.Dupree1@brightview com> wrote: 

Good momi:1g t.!ex, 1 ·v2s to :,rn:::k ,he ,,.,,::: d.:,vm tc the \)ad 18g oi it heading ;o th,: back of 
the prop~rtv. I cfa:corm~cted 1:hat ::;:3r: toge:: t:',~ rt.::;t of it bJ,:K up and running. Vi!'th 3 day 
investe~: '·lrt:1U f1.2it:!G a r~ct ti:/ {.!·ti;e~t :,:~::-p-rt. ~\~ i,; (1? ~~. 00 f,,:; :~;/cce1.;;:C \.vah tracking ar·d 
trouoles!'!r:;,:,~hz ::he rc.1ot '..':,.:.::,e o; tLe t'G':1::,, c,9. ratlnc; en the cont·ol!er 

From: Steve Mt:Av;;;v 
Sent: WetinesdJ'/, Septe:nber B, 2r.;:1 f.:Q~ 1'.>t,11 

To: Alex e.oyer <F.boy1:r@cve::;ree'i-lM . .:u-."> 
Cc: Rodney Hld,t <Rotk::::y.Hki:s@btightvi:c·>N.::on:>; Da'JL L:r2 <Oavitl.Lara@brirf'itvl.:?\·J.tom>; 
Juwan Ct.q:mee <.htNi'm.Dt;::mia1@t :-igh::v,1-;,~,. :~m> 
Subj~tt: Y,;;;;;,m,,rk cor,tru!:Jr ls:;ues 



Hi Alex, we're having :ss:.ies w•th th-.~ ccntn:!:,ir c.;, Backcrne!:. No ;.:ones are current!v operating 
on that wr1tro!:er. or.c-~ •.ve hoie 'nvest:g:J.:2d :me km:rN ;·norse we wi'i send you an update. 
Thank ~tot: 

Steve McA voy Account Manager 
Cell 904--859-5 704 

l CAUTION· Thi;;;~riei"~ fro;~~-~ut,s;j~;,,; .. ci: .... o .. 1,,. ;~r •. t.i.:~:t .. ,~trk·s. lV;,;;iJe:·m·!l nt. orga. niz.tior;. r-1ease do 
Lnot cllcK !l~~t__S# or o;,sn a&clv:,(l~tr. 'f :v~u do 11:i: t< ~::!:~:::. th:_ ~~~J~'1, ~:~'!'.:~ a~'.~r~!!:___ _ _ _ _____ _, 



Bill To 
1---------------·-·-------
Six Mile Creek CDD 
475 West Town Plac,~ Ste 114 
St Augustine, FL ::2C92 

Quantity l,em Code 'Jescripti-r.jr 

1 So p K1'~g c··~·1· Br 'f("'•·' C•·s,n• <'·1·•s· ,·b, r• .. ,,,j, ,,,.,·,, 
J. ~- v.a., • VJ~ ••• 1 _.._•:~d '-'l~

0

J. D LL,::,,. \._l, "--•.L...i .... ,~ \~ ._.~l 

i ( Lrcn<.C/ .. t~·!xtt.r::-t Repi;:!c-:::"!~.e.:i" ) 

' ,.. '-""•~-N, .. ,,_,_......., __ , __ ,_H O .,.,,,,.,.,,,> •---•· -.,, .... .,,, ..... ,,,,.,,.,_,, ,e,-~w--·, A,, ........ ,., , 
;, ;:. t-~,"6.t<\10': "!'·_,.·. ;_ j;J; -.t' '6;'f.i' ~-. ~ j l 
1 t:: :u.. r !1' ~ 'r:tN'iJ' 
l i Sy .4lrt:•:t Boyt./' at ~-1 -5.Pv 2f 1 

I Oak Grove 
I 

I 

l. 

'---------,--.-------·-----·--·---✓ 

C•&M-Gen4a, MalntenanCB 
! 

Invoice 
L ____ . Cs_ta __ -.- __ ln_vo_i_ce_#_--t 

L .. ~~·_1
2_02_1 _ __._ __ 61_0_05_~ 

SEP 2 8 2021 

~ Terms Rep 

I Due on receipt wwc I 
I 

I 

Price Each Amount 

205.00 205.00 

I 
Tota! . $205.00 

P3yrnents/Credits $O.oo 



Riverside Management St;> tit.:e.s:, ILo:: 
9655 Flotida Mining Blvd. W. 
Bullding-300, 6"bite 305 
Jacksonv:1!e, :=t. :12257 

Billi'o: 
Six Milo Cteek 
475WestTown Place Suite 1 M 
st. Augustine~ FL 320S2 

SEP 2 3 202\ 

l 

l 
I 

·invoice 

kl ltibe #: 1.>:.2 
:1fooka nate: f:!:21/2021 

tl!(.a Date: 91,''.1/2021 
.· Case: 

P.O. Nurf1ber: 

• iat,, 

122.,· 

Amc,µnt 

122.02 

: f\a;Yments/Gre~its . • 
-- .,..., ½ ............. .._....,_-J'. ________ -

$122.02 

$0,00 

-$122.02 ~ 

·, ))\') \ 

(\.;;! 



AINTENANCE BILLABLE PURCHASES,. 

Period ending 09/05/21 

DISTRICT 
SMC 
SIX MILE CREEK 

8117!21 
8/17/21 
8/17/21 
8/17/21 
8117/21 
8ti7/21 
6/17/21 

Paper Towsls '12 ;·,rrs. 
i ollet PepGr 12 re rs { 'n 
Microfiber Towels 2~1:t 
Lysol(3) 
Pledge Mul!isurface (2) 
Dlspos&ble Gt:,va:il 
Stsln!es$ Steel Ck:am,, 

PRICE. sMPLQYEE 

19,62 
44."75 
11.48 
·/3,73 
1fJ.:'.ID 
14.!i).2 
. 7.$3 

F.S. 
F.S. 
F.S. 
F.S. 
F.S. 
ES . 
F.S. 



Renaissance Resort 

at the World Golf Village 
500 South Legacy Trail 
St Augusti.ne FL 32092 
Phone: 904-940-8606 Fax: 904-940-8682 

Invoice k 51218 

SEP 23 WJ 

BY: 

lrlVOICE -
Customer 

Name Six Mile Creek Meeting 

Attn Sarah Sweeting 

--~,\ ( J 

J l_~,,-t2 _____ 9 __ 12_2_12_0_21 __ _ 

Address 475 W Town Pi3ce, Suite 114 I 

City Saint Aug:.1stine, FL ' ) •. 
------~--,--'/ --------------- _______ ,, 

Qty D~sr:ripfaJn I Charged i----~-+------------~----·---------- -·------1 

1 
1 

Meeting Room Rental - Event C::rw 10 120/2021. 

~eakfil Phone 
25% Servke·Charge 

Payment Details 

0 Direct Bill 

0 Credit Card 
@ Chetk 

Tax Exempt tl25-8013854049C~::. 

$250.00 
$150.00 

$100.00 



Pay by Phone (844) 752-8845 
Phone (904) 209-2700 

Fax (904) 209-2718 
Toll Free (877) 837-2311 

PO Drawer 3006 
St. Augustine, FL 32085 

SIX MILE CREEK CDDfTRAILMARK SUBDIVISION 

Account Number: 
556887-132900 

Service Address: 
805 TRAILMARK DR >ty,'l\ 
Service Type: 
Commercial 
Days In BIiiing Cycle: 
Deposit Amount: $ 
Deposit Date: 
Geo Code: 
Meter Number: 
Present Read Date: 
Previous Read Date: 
Current Reading: 
Previous Reading: 
Gallon Usage (1000s): 

31 
0.00 

WGV 

77848570 
09/19/2021 
08/19/2021 

782290 
778774 

35.16 

7109 

Statement Date Current Charges Due Date 
09/19/2021 10/19/2021 

Current Month Activity 

Services Dates Service Description Units Amount Total 

8/19/21 
9/10/21 

Amount of Your Last Statement 
Payment - Thank You 

Past Due Balance 

Water Rates 
Meter Maintenance Charge 
B~se Rate 

662.47 
-662.47 

0.00 

1.00 9.00 
1.00 104.88 

Consumption Fees 0 ~ 40,000 Gallons 

9.00 
104.88 

3.32 35.16 116.73 
Water Total 35.16 230.61 

Wastewater Rates 
Base Rate 

Consumption Fees O + Sewer Gallons 
123.20 

5.80 
1.00 123.20 

35.16 203.93 
Wastewater Total 35.16 327.13 

0.00 Past Due Balance 
Curl"ent Charges 557.74 
Amount Now Due / Credits 

~i SEP 2 7 2021 

BY·----··-·-·-· 

557.74 

Past Due Balances are subject to a Late Fee of 1.5% or $5.00, whichever is greater and 
disconnection of service if not paid. 

MESSAGE CENTER 

In 2020, SJ CUD detected 11 contaminants in the drinking water. All contaminants were at allowable 
levels & no health based violations were reported. Please go to www.sjcfl.us/WaterReport/NorthWest. 

pdf to view your report. This report contains important info about the source & quality of your 
water. To receive a hard copy of the report or if you have any questions please call 904-209-2700. 

pLEASE 

www.sjcutitity.us 
See reverse for monthly draft options or credit card payments. 

Please detach and return with your payment · · ................................... Fl29539F 

Account Number I Date Due 

ST JOHNS COUNTY UTILITY DEPARTMENT 
POST OFFICE DRAWER 3006 Past Due 

556887 -132900 
Current 

I 10/19/2021 
Amount After Due 

ST AUGUSTINE FL 32085-3006 

Temp-Return Service Requested 

............ AUTO**MIXED AADC 300 

I 111111 • • 11• 111111 • 1111 I I I I 11111 I I I 1111111111111111111 I 111111 • 1 I 1 
SIX MILE CREEK CDD/TRAILMARK SUBDIVISION 
1408 HAMLIN AVE UNITE 3516 
SAINT CLOUD FL 34771-8588 

Amount CharQes/Credits Now Due Date Pay 

0.00 557.74 557.74 566.11 

Please Enter Amount Paid $ I 

1111111111111~11111~1111 
Please write your account number on your check and remit to: I 

ST JOHNS COUNTY UTILITY DEPARTMENT 
POST OFFICE DRAWER 3006 
ST AUGUSTINE FL 32085-3006 

1 • 1111 • 1111 • 1111 I 11111111111111 • 1111 • 111 I I I 11 I I I I• I I I I I I I I I I I 11 I 1 

000000132900000000556887000000055774000000056611 
D Check for Address Change 



Pay by Phone (844) 752-8845 Statement Date 
09/19/2021 

Current Charges Due Date 
10/19/2021 

7111 

Phone(904)209-2700 
Fax (904) 209-2718 

Toll Free (877) 837-2311 :=:===========================================================! 
Current Month Activity 

PO Drawer 3006 Services Dates Service Description 
St. Augustine, FL 32085 

Units Amount Total 

SIX MILE CREEK CDDfTRAILMARK SUBDIVISION 

Account Number: 
556887-135864 
Service Address: 
295 BACK CREEK DR 

Service Type: 
Commercial 
Days In Billing Cycle: 31 
Deposit Amount: $ 0.00 
Deposit Date: 
Geo Code: WGV 

Meter Number: 86147234 
Present Read Date: 
Previous Read Date: 
Current Reading: 
Previous Reading: 
Gallon Usage (1000s): 

09/19/2021 
08/19/2021 

15 
15 

0.0 

8/19/21 
9/10/21 

Amount of Your Last Statement 
Payment - Thank You 

Past Due Balance 

Water Rates 
Base Rate 

-32.78 

1.00 

32.78 

0.00 

Consumption Fees I)) -- 13,000 Gallons 
32.78 

3.32 
32.78 

0.00 
Water Total 

Past Due Balance 
Curl"ent Charges 
Amount Now Due I Credits 

j l SEP 2 7 2021 

32.78 

0.00 
32.78 
32.78 

BY: ___ u 

Past Due Balances are subject to a Late Fee of 1.5% or $5.00, whichever is greater and 
disconnection of service if not paid. 

MESSAGE CENTER 

In 2020, SJCUD detected 11 contaminants in the drinking water. All contaminants were at allowable 
levels & no health based violations were reported. Please go to www.sjcfl.us/WaterReport/NorthWest. 

pdf to view your report. This report contains Important info about the source & quality of your 
water. To receive a hard copy of the report or if you have any questions please call 904-209-2700. 

pLEASE 

www.sjootmty.us 
See reverse for monthly draft options or credit card payments. 

Please detach and return with your payment. •• ·H29539F·· 

Account Number I Date Due 
ST JOHNS COUNTY UTILITY DEPARTMENT 
POST OFFICE DRAWER 3006 Past Due 

556887-135864 
Current 

Charaes/Credits 

I 10/19/2021 
Amount After Due 

Date Pav ST AUGUSTINE FL 32085-3006 

Temp-Return Service Requested 

1 I 11 I• 11 I I• I I I I I I I•• I I I I I I 1 •II I I I 11 I II 11111 I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I, 11111 

SIX MILE CREEK CDD/TRAILMARK SUBDIVISlbt-J 
1408 HAMLIN AVE UNITE 3516 
SAINT CLOUD FL 34771-8588 

Amount Now Due 
0.00 32.78 32.78 37.78 

Please Enter Amount Paid $ I 

11111111111111 ~11111111~ Ill II 
Please write your account number on your check and remit to: I 

ST JOHNS COUNTY UTILITY DEPARTMENT 
POST OFFICE DRAWER 3006 
ST AUGUSTINE FL 32085-3006 

111 • • 111111 I 11 I I 11111111 • 111 • • 111111 I 111 • • 111111 • 1111 I I 11 •I 111 • 11 

aa□□□a13sab4 □□□ooossb887 □ aoo□□□□ 3278a □ aoa □ ao3778 

D Check for Address Change 



Pay by Phone (844) 752-8845 
8 "o Phone (904) 209-2700 

~ Fax(904)209-2718 
'~ Toll Free (877) 837-2311 

PO Drawer 3006 
St. Augustine, FL 32085 

SIX MILE CREEK CDD/TRAD..MARK SUBDIVISION 

Account Number: 
556887-141819 

Service Address: 
255 RUSTIC MILL DR 

Service Type: 
Commercial 
Days In BIiiing Cycle: 31 
Deposit Amount: $ 100.00 
Deposit Date: 06/02/2021 
Geo Code: WGV 

Meter Number: 89952575 
Present Read Date: 
Previous Read Date: 
Current Reading: 
Previous Reading: 
Gallon Usage (1000s): 

09/19/2021 
08/19/2021 

147 
7 

1.4 

7113 

Statement Date Current Charges Due Date 
09/19/2021 10/19/2021 

Current Month Activity 

Services Dates Service Description Units Amount Total 

8/19/21 
9/10/21 

Amount of Your Last Statement 
Payment - Thank You 

Past Due Balance 

Water Rates 
Base Rate 

13.18 
-13.18 

0.00 

1.00 13.11 
Consumption Fees O ~ 5,000 Gallons 

13.11 
3.32 1.40 4.65 

Wa'terTotal 1.40 17.76 

0.00 Past Due Balance 
Curl'ent Charges 17.76 
Amount Now Due / Credits 17.76 

~z~ 
\ • 3b0· )']\ • li?l; 

I i SEP 2 7 202f 
BY: __ _ 

Past Due Balances are subject to a Late Fee of 1.5% or $5.00, whichever is greater and 
disconnection of service if not paid. 

MESSAGE CENTER 

In 2020, SJCUD detected 11 contaminants in the drinking water. All contaminants were at allowable 
levels & no health based violations were reported. Please go to www.sjcfl.us/WaterReport/NorthWest. 

pdf to view your report. This report contains important info about the source & quality of your 
water. To receive a hard copy of the report or if you have any questions please call 904-209-2700. 

pLEASE 

www.sjoutility.us 
See reverse for monthly draft options or credit card payments. 

Please detach and return with your payment. ··· ••••·••••••••·• ······FL295-39F··· · 

Account Number I Date Due 
ST JOHNS COUNTY UTILITY DEPARTMENT 
POST OFFICE DRAWER 3006 Past Due 

556887-141819 
Current 

I 10/19/2021 
Amount After Due 

ST AUGUSTINE FL 32085-3006 

Temp-Return Service Requested 

I I h 111 II 1111 I Ill 1111' I 111111111• II• M 111lllhlll •hi 111111,1111 

SIX MILE CREEK CDD/TRAILMARK SUBDIVISltft..J 
1408 HAMLIN AVE UNITE 3516 
SAINT CLOUD FL 34771-8588 

Amount Charqes/Credits Now Due Date Pav 
0.00 17.76 17.76 22.76 

Please Enter Amount Paid $ I 

1111111111111111111111111111111111111111 

Please write your account number on your check and remit to: I 
ST JOHNS COUNTY UTILITY DEPARTMENT 
POST OFFICE DRAWER 3006 
ST AUGUSTINE FL 32085-3006 

1111 I I I 11111111 I I Ii I I 111 I I I I I I I I I I I 111111111 I I I 11 I I 11111 I I I 11 I 11 • 

□□□□□□ 141819000000556887000000001776□□□□□0002276 

0 Check for Address Change 



~ Invoice Number 

Customer Number 
W.B.MASON CO., INC. Invoice Date 
59 Centre St 
Brockton, MA 02301 Due Date 

Order Date 
Address Service Requested 
888-WB-MASON www~.w:.:..:b:..;.:m.:.::a:::..;so:..;.:n.:.::.co:::..;m'-'------------------,. 

Order Number 

(Page 1) 

PM(P) 

223442567 
C2689219 

09/17/2021 

10/17/2021 

09/16/2021 

S117173033 

WEB ~derMethod 

APPRO I 
By Alex Boyer at 9 :33 am, Sep 23, 20:~_J 

Amenity-Operating Supplies 

Evergreen Lifestyles Management Six Mi 
805 TrailMark Drive 

~ -- ~~II!~""--,- f!l', 
Delivery Address 
Evergreen Lifestyles Management Six Mile 
Creek COD 

~H'·~ ......... ·~------··,-

Saint Augustine FL 32092 . SEP 2 3 2021 
~ i 
B : 

805 TrailMark Drive 
Saint Allgustine FL 32092 

W.8. Mason .Federal ID#: 04-2455641 

Important Messages 

We are all going through an unprecedented situation. \.VB Mason hopes that you, your family and friends, and your 
co-workers, are healthy and remain that way. We encourage you to visit v1ww.\vbmason.com/accountstatement.aspx 
for 24/7 access to your account. We offer the ability to pay online, and view or download invoices. We hope this helps 
you and your business operate effectively with a remote workforce . 

. ---

l ITEM NUMBER DESCR:PT!;'.,N QTY U/M UNIT PRICE 

UNV26820 Rt:FILL,CARO HOLDER 10/PK I 1 PK 2.98 
GMT6685 KCUP FOLGERS CLASSIC ROAST. 24/BX. SI IM 1 BX 8.55 

SUBTOTAL: 
TAX & BOTTLE DEPOSITS TOTAL: 

ORDER TOTAL: 
Total Due: 

To ensure proper credit, please detach and return below portion with your payment 

W.B. MASON CO., INC. 
59 Centre St - Brockton, MA 02301 
Address Service Requested 
888-WB-MASON www.wbmason.com 

--
Remittance Section 
Customer Number 

Invoice Number I 

I Invoice Date I 
Terms I 
Total Due I 

EXT PRICE 

2.98 
8.55 

11.53 
0.01 

11.54 
11.54 

C2689219 

223442567 

09/17/2021 

Net 30 

11.54 

Amount Enclosed $ _________ _ 

Evergreen Lifestyles Management Six Mi 
805 TrailMark Drive 
Saint Augustine FL 32092 

.W.B. r.t'.A.SOJ\J CO., INC. 
PO BOX 981101 
BOSTON, MA 02298-1101 

(2689219223442567223442567 □□□□□□□□11543 



·invoice Number 

Customer Number 

(Page 1) 

PM(P) 

223522175 
C2689219 

~-
W.B.MASON CO., INC. Invoice Date 09/21/2021 

; ;;,;,;~-~~-

59 Centre St 
Brockton, MA 02301 

Address Service Requested 
888-V'vB-MASON www.wbmason.com 

APPROVED 

!-,• 

.. Due Date 10/21/2021 

Order Date 09/16/2021 

Order Number S117173033 

Order Method WEB 

By Alex Boyer at 9:34 am, f. ep :Z3, 202· ________________________ ..., 
Amenity-Operating Suppli)ffilt'.:'" l'f:""" ,,~ .,,,,_...,... 

Delivery Address 
Evergreen Lifestyles Management Six Mi 
805 TrailMark Drive 
Saint Augustine FL 32092 

Important Messages 

! '' ·----- .... __ , •• 

. \ SEP 2 3 2021 . 
U l U 
BY: --------

Evergreen Lifestyles Management Six Mile 
Creek CDD 
805 TrailMark Drive 
Saint Augustine FL 32092 

W.B. Mason Federal ID#: 04s2455641 

We are all going through an unprecedented situation. WB Mason hopes !hat you, your family and friends, and your 
co-workers, are healthy and remain that way. We encourage you to visit ,vww.wbmason.com/accow1tstatement.asnx 
for 24/7 access to your account. We offer the ability to pay online, and view or download invoices. We hope this helps 
you and your business operate effectively with a remot~ workforce. 

ITEM NUMBER OESCRIPT!ON QTY U/M UNIT PRICE 

AVE79193 BNDR D-RING, VIEW L TR 3"WE 2 EA 10.99 

SUBTOTAL: 
TAX & BOTTLE DEPOSITS TOTAL: 

ORDER TOTAL: 
Total Due: 

To ensure proper credit, please detach and return below portion with your payment 

WB. MASON CO., INC. 
59 Centre St - Brockton, MA 02301 
Address Service Requested 
888-WB-MASON www.wbmason.com 

, Remittance Sect.ion 
i Cu~tcrnsr Number I 

Invoice Number 

lnvo:ce Date I 

I Terms 
Total Due 

I 

EXT PRICE 

21.98 

21.98 
0.11 

22.09 
22.09 

C2689219 

223522175 

09/21/2021 

Net 30 

22.09 

Amount Enclosed $ ________ _ 

Evergreen Lifestyles Management Six Mi 
805 TrailMark Drive 
Saint Augustine FL 32092 

W.B. MASON CO., INC. 
?O BOX 981101 
BOSTON, MA 02298:'l 101 

(2689219223522175223522175 □□□□ 000 □ 22 □ 94 

'. 



REQUISITION NO. 119 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
(ST. JOHNS COUNTY, FLORIDA) 

$7,020,000 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT 

AND REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS, 
SERIES2020 

(ASSESSMENT AREA 2, PHASE 3A) 
The undersigned, a Responsible Officer of Six Mile Creek Community Development 

District (the "District") hereby submits the following requisition for disbursement under and 
pursuant to the terms of the Master Trust Indenture from the District to U. S. Bank National 
Association, as trustee (the "Trustee"), dated as of July 1, 2007, as supplemented by a Seventh 
Supplemental Trust Indenture, dated as of June 1, 2020 (collectively, the "Indenture"; all 
capitalized terms used herein shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the Indenture): 

(A) Requisition Nwnber: 119 

(BJ Name and address of Payee: Basham & Lucas Design Group, Inc. 
7645 Gate Parkway Suite 101 
Jacksonville, FL 32256 

(C) Amount Payable: $ 15,795.00 

(D) Purpose for which paid or incurred (refer also to specific contract if amount is due and 
payable pursuant to a contract involving progress payments, or, state Cost of Issuance, if 
applicable): Trailmark Amenity-Invoice 8570 (August 2021) 

(E) Fund or Account from which disbursement to be made: 

Phase 3A Acquisition and Construction Account 

The undersigned hereby certifies that: 

1. obligations in the stated amount set forth above have been incurred by the District, 

2. each disbursement set forth above is a proper charge against the Phase 3A 
Acquisition and Construction Account; 

3. each disbursement set forth above was incurred in connection with the acquisition 
and/or construction of the Project; 

4. each disbursement represents a Cost of the Project which has not previously been 
paid. 

The undersigned hereby further certifies that there has not been filed with or served upon 
the District notice of any lien, right to lien, or attachment upon, or claim affecting the right to 



receive payment of, any of the moneys payable to the Payee set forth above, which has not been 
released or will not be released simultaneously with the payment hereof. 

The undersigned hereby further certifies that such requisition contains no item representing 
payment on account of any retained percentage which the District is at the date of such certificate 
entitled to retain. 

Attached hereto are originals of the invoice(s) from the vendor of the property acquired or 
the services rendered with respect to which disbursement is hereby requested. 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

By:~ 

\} 
~~cT_~l? 

lc..l.£hairperson, Board of Supervisors 

CONSUL TING ENGINEER'S APPROVAL 

The undersigned Consulting Engineer hereby certifies that this disbursement is for a Cost of the 
Project and is consistent with: (i) the applicable acquisition or construction contract; (ii) the plans 
and specifications for the portion of the Project with respect to which such disbursement is being 
made; and (iii) the report of the Consulting Engineer, as such report shall have been amended or 
modified on the date hereof. 

Date: ~\\<t ~ ----1-1---+-,--



Jo~o 
~fll~5 

' BASHAM 
&LUCAS 
DB.SIGN GROUP, INC. -·-·-
INVOICE 

BILL TO 

Six Mile Creek COD 

James Oliver 

475 West Town Place 

Suite 114 

Sl Augustine, FL 32092 

CONTRACT SERVICES 

Interior Design Construction Documents 

Basham & Lucas Design Group Inc. 
7845 Gate Pkwy Ste 101 

Jacksonville, FL 32256 US 

(904) 731-2323 

www.bashamlucas.com 

CONTRACT 

INVOICE 

DATE 

TERMS 

DUE DATE 

8570 

08/20/2021 

Due on receipt 

08/31/2021 

DUE 

24,300.00 65.00 % of 24,300.00 

AMOUNT DUE 

15,795.00 

BALANCE DUE 

Estimate Summary 

Estimate 20-179 

Invoice 8564 

This invoice 8570 

Total invoiced 

Paw 1 of1 

$15,795.00 

24,300.00 

7,290.00 

$15,795.00 

23,085.00 



REQUISITION NO. 120 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
(ST. JOHNS COUNTY, FLORIDA) 

$7 ,020~000 -tt-\5(, 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT 'JOO·,J\• IOI 

AND REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS, 
SERIES2020 

(ASSESSMENT AREA 2, PHASE 3A) 
The undersigned, a Responsible Officer of Six Mile Creek Community Development 

District (the "District") hereby submits the following requisition for disbursement under and 
pursuant to the terms of the Master Trust Indenture from the District to U. S. Bank National 
Association, as trustee (the "Trustee"), dated as of July 1, 2007, as supplemented by a Seventh 
Supplemental Trust Indenture, dated as of June 1, 2020 (collectively, the "Indenture"; all 
capitalized terms used herein shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the Indenture): 

(A) Requisition Number: 120 

(B) Name and address of Payee: Basham & Lucas Design Group, Inc. 
7645 Gate Parkway Suite 101 
Jacksonville, FL 32256 

(C) Amount Payable: $ 59,580.00 

(D) Purpose for which paid or incurred (refer also to specific contract if amount is due and 
payable pursuant to a contract involving progress payments, or, state Cost of Issuance, if 
applicable): TrailmarkAmenity-lnvoice 8571 (July 2021) 

(E) Fund or Account from which disbursement to be made: 

Phase 3A Acquisition and Construction Account 

The undersigned hereby certifies that: 

1. obligations in the stated amount set forth above have been incurred by the District, 

2. each disbursement set forth above is a proper charge against the Phase 3A 
Acquisition and Construction Account; 

3. each disbursement set forth above was incurred in connection with the acquisition 
and/or construction of the Project; 

4. each disbursement represents a Cost of the Project which has not previously been 
paid. 

The undersigned hereby further certifies that there has not been filed with or served upon 
the District notice of any lien, right to lien, or attachment upon, or claim affecting the right to 



receive payment of, any of the moneys payable to the Payee set forth above, which has not been 
released or will not be released simultaneously with the payment hereof. 

The undersigned hereby further certifies that such requisition contains no item representing 
payment on account of any retained percentage which the District is at the date of such certificate 
entitled to retain. 

Attached hereto are originals of the invoice(s) from the vendor of the property acquired or 
the services rendered with respect to which disbursement is hereby requested. 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

By~~ 
~g Kim P.lVHA61- c:. -t"A'iw.C. 

th CJf:.. Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 

CONSULTING ENGINEER'S APPROVAL 

The undersigned Consulting Engineer hereby certifies that this disbursement is for a Cost of the 
Project and is consistent with: (i) the applicable acquisition or construction contract; (ii) the plans 
and specifications for the portion of the Project with respect to which such disbursement is being 
made; and (iii) the report of the Consulting Engineer, as such report shall have been amended or 
modified on the date hereof. 

Consulting Engineer 

Date: "'i ( (t> \ 2,1 



BASHAM 
&LUCAS 
=qNGR~~ 

INVOICE 

BILL TO 

Six Mile Creek CDD 

James Oliver 

475 West Town Place 

Suite 114 

St Augustine, FL 32092 

CONTRACT SERVICES 

Part 1: Construction Documents of the Clubhouse 

Part 2: Amenity Area Hardscape Construction Documents 

Part 3: Amenity Area Site Electrical Engineering 

Basham & Lucas Design Group Inc. 
7645 Gate Pkwy Ste 101 

Jacksonvitle, FL 32256 US 

(904) 731-2323 

www.bashamlucas.com 

CONTRACT 

INVOICE 

DATE 

TERMS 

DUE DATE 

8571 

07/27/2021 

Due on receipt 
08/31/2021 

DUE 

119,400.00 35.00 % of 
119,400.00 

AMOUNT DUE 

41,790.00 

29,800.00 15.00 % of 29,800.00 

Part 6: Swimming Pool(s) Engineering Documents (max 5,000 
s.f. pool area) 

5,200.00 35.00 % of 5,200.00 

18,600.00 35.00 % of 18,600.00 

4,470.00 

1,820.00 

6,510.00 

Part 7: Fine Grading Design of the Pool Area 

Part 8: Lightening Protection Diagram 

Part 9: Exterior Color/Material Selection for Entry & Amenity 
Area Improvements 

4,200.00 35.00 % of 4,200.00 

1,800.00 40.00 % of 1,800.00 

3,900.00 35.00 % of 3,900.00 

Part 10: Amenity Area Signage 4, 100.00 35.00 % of 4, 100.00 

BALANCE DUE 

Estimate Summary 

Estimate 20-146 

Invoice 8473 

Invoice 8490 

Invoice 8527 

This invoice 8571 

Total invoiced 

Page 1 of 1 

1,470.00 

720.00 

1,365.00 

1,435.00 

$59,580.00 

198,900.00 

68,640.00 

50,700.00 

10,757.92 

$59,580.00 

189,677.92 



REQUISITION NO. 123 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
(ST. JOHNS COUNTY, FLORIDA) 

$7,020,000 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT 

AND REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS, 
SERIES2020 

(ASSESSMENT AREA 2, PHASE 3A) 

3C0·\11 lbl 

The undersigned, a Responsible Officer of Six Mile Creek Community Development 
District (the "District") hereby submits the following requisition for disbursement under and 
pursuant to the terms of the Master Trust Indenture from the District to U. S. Bank National 
Association, as trustee (the "Trustee"), dated as of July 1, 2007, as supplemented by a Seventh 
Supplemental Trust Indenture, dated as of June 1, 2020 (collectively, the "Indenture"; all 
capitalized terms used herein shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the Indenture): 

{A) Requisition Number: 123 

(B) Name and address of Payee: ETM 

(C) Amount Payable: $ 338.38 

First Citizens 
ABA Routing #053100300 
Jacksonville, FL 
Account #9061592290 - England, Thims & Miller, Inc. 

(D) Purpose for which paid or incurred (refer also to specific contract if amount is due and 
payable pursuant to a contract involving progress payments, or, state Cost of Issuance, if 
applicable): Master Site Planning - Invoice 199370 (W A#Sl) (August 2021) 

(E) Fund or Account from which disbursement to be made: 

Phase 3A Acquisition and Construction Account 

The undersigned hereby certifies that: 

1. obligations in the stated amount set forth above have been incurred by the District, 

2. each disbursement set forth above is a proper charge against the Phase 3A 
Acquisition and Construction Account; 

3. each disbursement set forth above was incurred in connection with the acquisition 
and/or construction of the Project; 

4. each disbursement represents a Cost of the Project which has not previously been 
paid. 



The undersigned hereby further certifies that there has not been filed with or served upon 
the District notice of any lien, right to lien, or attachment upon, or claim affecting the right to 
receive payment of, any of the moneys payable to the Payee set forth above, which has not been 
released or will not be released simultaneously with the payment hereof. 

The undersigned hereby further certifies that such requisition contains no item representing 
payment on account of any retained percentage which the District is at the date of such certificate 
entitled to retain. 

Attached hereto are originals of the invoice(s) from the vendor of the property acquired or 
the services rendered with respect to which disbursement is hereby requested. 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

By:~Cdr:-
G!egg Kent ~ tl,#Mt.c. c. 'f'IOYu,c. 

II I a Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 

CONSUL TING ENGINEER'S APPROVAL 

The undersigned Consulting Engineer hereby certifies that this disbursement is for a Cost of the 
Project and is consistent with: (i) the applicable acquisition or construction contract; (ii) the plans 
and specifications for the portion of the Project with respect to which such disbursement is being 
made; and (iii) the report of the Consulting Engineer, as such report shall have been amended or 
modified on the date hereof. 



Six Mile Creek Investment Group, LLC 
C/OGMS, LLC 
1408 Hamlin Ave. Unite E 
St. Cloud, FL 34771 

September 1, 2021 
Project No: 20291.00000 
Invoice No: 0199370 

Project 20291.00000 Master Site Planning (WA#51) 
f[2,(es~o~al ~Q'IE.e:H!"E'!..~ tbr;gl§f!.A.!'Q!l!H.1!..2!!_21 ________________________ . 
Task 01 Master Site Planning 
Professional Personnel 

Principal - Vice President 
Wild, Scott 

Engineering/Landscape Designer 
8/14/2021 

Simonelli, Dino 8/21/2021 

Total Billings 
Budget 
Remaining 

Totals 
Total Labor 

Task XP Expenses 
Expenses 

Reproductions 
Total Expenses 

Hours 

1.00 

.50 
1.50 

Current 

310.50 

Rate 

245.00 

131.00 

Prior 

10,181.50 

Amount 

245.00 

65.50 
310.50 

To-Date 

10,492.00 
25,000.00 
14,508.00 

Total this Task 

1.15 times 

Total this Task 

24.24 
24.24 

310.50 

$310.50 

27.88 

$27.88 

Invoice Total this Period $338.38 =========~= 

Oustanding Invoices 
Number 
0198586 
Total 

Date 
717/2021 

Balance 
984.88 
984.88 

En91and• Thim~& mlc!r,lnc 
ENOHIRS•FIA'l\9\S•!UliEYOIIS•OG•I.IHll!C#EAIIC!tllB:!S 

l(mOliiSlAtpllhRald•~Fbldl:32ise•WIOMU:-GIO•fll~ 

c.1-~•a 



Six Mile Creek Investment Group, LLC 
C/OGMS, LLC 
1408 Hamlin Ave. Unite E 
St. Cloud, FL 34771 

--d:22 
JO/.l·\'.ll •IOI 

September 1, 2021 
Project No: 20290.00000 
Invoice No: 0199411 

Project 20290.00000 TrailMark East Parcel Phase 2, No. 50 
_!r£f!,S!!0.!''!!.~2'i£.e! '!n2~~ !'~Ujl~ A~~u~ 31_2~2.!. ________________________ . 

Task 01 Site Plan Revisions 

Total Billings 
Contract Limit 
Remaining 

Task 02-09 

Task 

2. MOP Modification 

Lump Sum 

3. Construction Plan Preparation 
4. Lift Station Design 
5. Landscape Design (Code Design) 
6. SJC & SJCUD Plan Approval 
7. FDEP Water & Sewer Permits 
8. SJRWMD ERP 
9.Credit for Preliminary Engineering 

Total Fee 

Task XP Expenses 
Expenses 

Reproductions 
Total Expenses 

Current 
0.00 

Contract 
Amount 

7,500.00 
98,500.00 
15,200.00 
7,400.00 

12,500.00 
5,000.00 

19,200.00 
-14,650.00 
150,650.00 

Prior 
7,499.00 

To-Date 
7,499.00 
7,500.00 

1.00 

Total this Task 

Percent Earned Previously 
Complete To Date BIiied 

100.00 7,500.00 7,500.00 
90.00 88,650.00 78,800.00 
90.00 13,680.00 13,680.00 
90.00 6,660.00 6,660.00 
90.00 11,250.00 11,250.00 
50.00 2,500.00 0.00 
90.00 17,280.00 17,280.00 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

147,520.00 135,170.00 

0.00 

Current 
Billed 

0.00 
9,850.00 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

2,500.00 
0.00 
0.00 

12,350.00 

Total Fee 12,350.00 

Total this Task 

Total this Task 

77.03 
77.03 

$12,350.00 

77.03 

$77.03 

Invoice Total this Period $12,427.03 
============== 

Enfilland-Thim)&millczr,lnc. 
ENOfEERS • PLAM'-lERS• SURVEYORS• GIS, LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS 

14nSO:dSt.A~LIS!il'lll!Rold•Je.::bonrle.Fbri:la3Zl58•telDliUi2-8990•1P:004-84&-9495 

CA"""""'LC«J!0316 



Outstanding Invoices 
Number 
0198435 
0198650 
0199055 
Total 

Date 
6/7/2021 
7/8/2021 
8/5/2021 

Balance 
40,901.67 
57,420.03 
21,494.42 

119,816.12 

En9land· Thim) l mmczr,lnc. 
8'.'GH.ERS• ~ERS• SURVEYORS •GI$ •LANDSCAPENICHllcCTS 

umai,~ ~rieRoad•JacltsOhY!le,Ao:idamsa•te100+$2-B990•1ax004-846-IM85 

CA-oo002584 LC=:l16 

Page2 



REQUISITION NO. 122 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
(ST. JOHNS COUNTY, FLORIDA) 

$7,020,000 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT 

AND REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS, 
SERIES 2020 

(ASSESSMENT AREA 2, PHASE 3A) 
The undersigned, a Responsible Officer of Six Mile Creek Community Development 

District (the "District") hereby submits the following requisition for disbursement under and 
pursuant to the tenns of the Master Trust Indenture from the District to U. S. Bank National 
Association, as trustee (the "Trustee"), dated as of July 1, 2007, as supplemented by a Seventh 
Supplemental Trust Indenture, dated as of June 1, 2020 (collectively, the "Indenture"; all 
capitalized terms used herein shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the Indenture): 

(A) Requisition Number: 122 

(B) Name and address of Payee: ETM 
First Citizens 
ADA Routing #053100300 
Jacksonville, FL 
Account #9061592290 • England, Thims & Miller, Inc. 

(C) Amount Payable: $8,754.63 

(D) Purpose for which paid or incurred (refer also to specific contract if amount is due and 
payable pursuant to a contract involving progress payments, or, state Cost of Issuance, if 
applicable): East Parcel Phase 1 Amenities and Amenity Center - Construction 
Documents-Invoice 199451 (August 2021) 

(E) Fund or Account from which disbursement to be made: 

Phase 3A Acquisition and Construction Account 

The undersigned hereby certifies that: 

1. obligations in the stated amount set forth above have been incurred by the District, 

2. each disbursement set forth above is a proper charge against the Phase 3A 
Acquisition and Construction Account; 

3. each disbursement set forth above was incurred in connection with the acquisition 
and/or construction of the Project; 

4. each disbursement represents a Cost of the Project which has not previously been 
paid. 



The undersigned hereby further certifies that there has not been filed with or served upon 
the District notice of any lien, right to lien, or attachment upon, or claim affecting the right to 
receive payment of, any of the moneys payable to the Payee set forth above, which has not been 
released or will not be released simultaneously with the payment hereof. 

The undersigned hereby further certifies that such requisition contains no item representing 
payment on account of any retained percentage which the District is at the date of such certificate 
entitled to retain. 

Attached hereto are originals of the invoice(s) from the vendor of the property acquired or 
the services rendered with respect to which disbursement is hereby requested. 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

By~m: 
Gregg 1'em ..M cc.,,tAe,c.. c. ?'Jh'.,..c. 

Ill te Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 

CONSULTING ENGINEER'S APPROVAL 

The undersigned Consulting Engineer hereby certifies that this disbursement is for a Cost of the 
Project and is consistent with: (i) the applicable acquisition or construction contract; (ii) the plans 
and specifications for the portion of the Project with respect to which such disbursement is being 
made; and (iii) the report of the Consulting Engineer, as such report shall have been amended or 
modified on the date hereof. 

ConsultiRg Engineer 

Date: j ~ \tq\'2.f --,\~,--



Six Mile Creek Investment Group, LLC 
C/OGMS, LLC 
1408 Hamlin Ave. Unite E 
St. Cloud, FL 34771 

September 3, 2021 
Project No: 19373.00000 
Invoice No: 0199451 

Project 19373.00000 East Parcel Phase 1 Amenities and Amenity Center-Construction 
Documents (WA#41) 

fr_gf!_s~o_Eal Servis.es ':!"2!:!e~ ~'2~'!. AJlqyst !1_2!21 ________________________ . 
Task Lump Sum 

Contract Percent Earned Previously Current 
Task Amount Complete To Date Billed Billed 

1.Construction Plan Prep-Common Area Ame 16,800.00 100.00 16,800.00 16,800.00 0.00 
2.Construction Plan Prep-Amenity Center 38,700.00 100.00 38,700.00 38,700.00 0.00 
3.Landscape Design(Code Design)-Amenity 4,300.00 100.00 4,300.00 3,225.00 1,075.00 
4.SJC Non-DRC Plan Approval 4,500.00 100.00 4,500.00 4,500.00 0.00 
5.SJC Plan and SJCUD Approval 8,000.00 80.00 6,400.00 4,800.00 1,600.00 
6.FDEP Water and Sewer Permits-Amenity C 2,500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
7.SJRWMD Environmental Resource Permit- 5,000.00 80.00 4,000.00 2,500.00 1,500.00 
A 

Total Fee 79,800.00 74,700.00 70,525.00 4,175.00 

Total Fee 4,175.00 

Total this Task $4,175.00 

Task XP Expenses 
Expenses 

Reproductions 
Other Taxes & Licenses 

Total Expenses 

Outstanding Invoices 

Number 
0198669 
0199160 
Total 

1.15 times 

4.29 
3,978.00 
3,982.29 

Total this Task 

4,579.63 

$4,579.63 

Invoice Total this Period $8,754.63 ====:::::::::!::a::::::=:= 

Date 
7/9/2021 
8/9/2021 

Balance 
3,564.04 
8,899.00 

12,463.04 

England-Thim:.lffiihr,lnc. 
~• "-"fftfO• SUIYEYCIU•OIS•wor:.arEAAQITmS 

MmQdSl ..... Allld~.llcb:lr.dlt.AiattmsB•fl!fl04-ICHll0•tu.....,_ 

~LOOXlll16 



Six Mile Creek Investment Group, LLC 
C/OGMS, LLC 
1408 Hamlin Ave. Unite E 
St. Cloud, FL 34771 

Project 20276.00000 Trailmark Phase 10 (WA#47) 

September 3, 2021 

-W-22 
306·131 • lb\ 

Project No: 20276.00000 
Invoice No: 0199453 

!r~f~slonal ~~l~es ren2E:re~ ~':9'!1)~ A~~u~ 31, 2!!_2.!, ________________________ . 

Task 01 Site Plan Revisions 

Labor 
Contract Limit 
Remaining 

Current 
0.00 

Task 01.1 Lump Sum (Phases 02-08) 

Contract 
Task Amount 

2.Master Development Plan (MOP) Modifica 7,500.00 
3.Construction Plan Prep (Collector Road 8,000.00 
4.Construction Plan Preparation 37,000.00 
5.Landscape Design (Code Design) 4,900.00 
6.SJC and SJCUD Plan Approval 12,500.00 
7.FDEP Water and Sewer Permits 5,000.00 
8.SJRWMD Environmental Resource Permit 14,400.00 

Total Fee 89,300.00 

Total Fee 

Task XP Expenses 

Prior 
4,055.00 

To-Date 
4,055.00 
4,500.00 

445.00 

Total this Task 

Percent Earned Previously 
Complete To Date Billed 

50.00 3,750.00 750.00 
75.00 6,000.00 2,000.00 
50.00 18,500.00 12,950.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

28,250.00 15,700.00 

0.00 

Current 
BIiied 

3,000.00 
4,000.00 
5,550.00 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

12,550.00 

12,550.00 

Total this Task $12,550.00 

Total this Task 0.00 

Invoice Total this Period $12,550.00 
========== 

England· Thim)&millczr,lnc. 
EN<JIEERS • PlAIIIERS • SI/IIVEYORS • GIS • LANDSCAPE ARCIITECTS 

14TT50dstAIJ}Jlt~Rofld•J.lck:son'lile.Fliri:la322SS•tel904-842.sm•tu9Jt.84&.9485 

CMX'llXr258-t I.C-OX0316 



REQUISITION NO. 121 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
(ST. JOHNS COUNTY, FLORIDA) 

$7,020,000 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT 

AND REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS, 
SERIES2020 

(ASSESSMENT AREA 2, PHASE 3A) 
The undersigned, a Responsible Officer of Six Mile Creek Community Development 

District (the "District'') hereby submits the following requisition for disbursement under and 
pursuant to the terms of the Master Trust Indenture from the District to U. S. Bank National 
Association, as trustee (the "Trustee"), dated as of July 1, 2007, as supplemented by a Seventh 
Supplemental Trust Indenture, dated as of June 1, 2020 (collectively, the "Indenture"; all 
capitalized terms used herein shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the Indenture): 

{A) Requisition Number: 121 

(A) Name and address of Payee: Environmental Resource Solutions 

(B) Amount Payable: 1,455.00 

3550 St. Johns Bluff Road South 
Jacksonville, FL 32224 

(C) Purpose for which paid or incurred (refer also to specific contract if amount is due and 
payable pursuant to a contract involving progress payments, or, state Cost of Issuance, if 
applicable): Trailmark East Phase 2 Environmental Services -Invoice 37991 (August 
2021) 

(D) Fund or Account from which disbursement to be made: 
Phase 3A Acquisition and Construction Account 

The undersigned hereby certifies that: 

1. obligations in the stated amount set forth above have been incurred by the District, 

2. each disbursement set forth above is a proper charge against the Phase 3A 
Acquisition and Construction Account; 

3. each disbursement set forth above was incurred in connection with the acquisition 
and/or construction of the Project; 

4. each disbursement represents a Cost of the Project which has not previously been 
paid. 

The undersigned hereby further certifies that there has not been filed with or served upon 
the District notice of any lien, right to lien, or attachment upon, or claim affecting the right to 



receive payment of, any of the moneys payable to the Payee set forth above, which has not been 
released or will not be released simultaneously with the payment hereof. 

The undersigned hereby further certifies that such requisition contains no item representing 
payment on account of any retained percentage which the District is at the date of such certificate 
entitled to retain. 

Attached hereto are originals of the invoice(s) from the vendor of the property acquired or 
the services rendered with respect to which disbursement is hereby requested. 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

B}S~~ 
Gt:egg 1'@nr .M ICMAUc,r1Pll,,,-U)<.. 

VJ u Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 

CONSULTING ENGINEER'S APPROVAL 

The undersigned Consulting Engineer hereby certifies that this disbursement is for a Cost of the 
Project and is consistent with: (i) the applicable acquisition or construction contract; (ii) the plans 
and specifications for the portion of the Project with respect to which such disbursement is being 
made; and (iii) the report of the Consulting Engineer, as such report shall have been amended or 
modified on the date hereof 

Consulting Engineer 

Date: ~\\~ \~ 
\ 



Six Mile Creek CDD 
Gregg Kern 
475 WestTown Place 
Suite 114 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 

Environmental Resource Solutions 
A division of SES Energy Services LLC 

3550 St. Johns Bluff Road South 
Jacksonville, FL 32224 

(904 )285-1397 

Invoice number 
Date 

37991 
08/31/2021 

Project 21138.01 Trailmark East Phase 2 (SES 
1G001.8088.0002.50) 

Professional Services provided through August 31, 2021 

Z99 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

Professional Personnel 

Environmental Scientist Ill 

Environmental Technician II 

subtotal 

Units 

8.00 

5.00 

Billed 
Rate Amount 

135.00 1,080.00 

75.00 375.00 

1,455.00 

Invoice total I 1,455.001 

Submittal of SJRWMD ERP application package; site visit with SJRWMD permit reviewer; CE coordination with surveyor and legal. 

NET 30. REMIT ADDRESS ABOVE PLEASE REMIT PAYMENT TO SES ENERGY SERVICES LLC 


	Agenda
	III.	Affidavit of Publication
	IV.	Approval of Minutes of the September 15, 2021 Meeting
	VI.	Public Hearing Related to Series 2021 Bonds, Resolution 2022-01
	VII.	Ratification of Resolution 2022-02, Setting Public Hearing Regarding Boundary Amendment
	VIII.	Ratification of Audit Engagement Letter with Grau & Associates
	IX.	Consideration of Hold Harmless Agreement with UPS
	XII. B.	Engineer Items 
	XIV. A.	Balance Sheet as of September 30, 2021 and Statement of Revenues and Expenses for the Period Ending September 30, 2021
	B.	Assessment Receipt Schedule
	C.	Check Register



